
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
AUGUST 3, 2009 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 
 

   

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 
Outcome Statements 
 
I. Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 
 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 
 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

 



NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

August 3, 2009 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Randy Vinson – Bridge 
Community Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Troy Traffic Jam Classic Car Show – Presentation by Cindy Stewart .................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – X-Ray Industries, 
1961 Thunderbird 1 

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to X-Ray 
Industries, 1961 Thunderbird 2 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 
 

   

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 No Postponed Items 3 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 3 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 3 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: Downtown Development Authority (b) City Council Nominations: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Commission; 
Parks & Recreation Board; and Youth Council 3 

E-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 15, 2009 5 

E-4 Michigan Municipal League, Michigan Green Communities Challenge, An Energy 
Efficiency and Conservation Strategy, Resolution to Participate 7 

E-5 Charter Section 6.2 (g) Recommendation 7 

CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 9 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 9 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 9 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 9 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 9 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Troy Youth Assistance .......................................................................................... 9 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Avondale Youth Assistance .................................................................................. 9 



 
 

   

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Common Ground ................................................................................................ 10 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Troy Community Coalition .................................................................................. 10 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
HAVEN ............................................................................................................... 10 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – National League of 
Cities – Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Affairs (FAIR) 
Steering Committee Fall Meeting ....................................................................... 11 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7:  Proprietary Maintenance Service 
Contract – Engineering Software Maintenance (Bentley Systems, Inc.) ............ 11 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL 
Program – Lawn and Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment ............ 11 

i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Marcite/Grouting 
Tile – Troy Community Center Pools .................................................................. 11 

F-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Alexandria 
Whitney, President of Guardians For Animals 12 

F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage Easement – 
McComb Construction Company, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-03-401-053, -052 and -
051 12 

F-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Sidewalk Easement – Michael J. Lamb – 
Sidwell #88-20-15-376-036 12 

F-8 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements – Michael J. Lamb – 
Sidwell #88-20-15-377-052 13 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement – West Maple 
Ventures, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-32-126-004 13 

F-10 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage 
Easements, Subhash and Sandhya Subhedar – Sidwell #88-20-22-102-022 and 
Neil G. and Donna L. Mitchell – #88-20-22-102-023 13 

F-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 14 

F-12 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Lanctot, 
Trustee for Friends of Jacob Foundation 14 

F-13 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival 14 



 
 

   

F-14 Traffic Signal Agreements – Rochester, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles, East and 
West of Rochester – Project No. 99.203.5 and 01.106.5 14 

F-15 Request to Grant a Permanent Drain Easement to McCulloch Drain Drainage 
District – Sidwell #88-20-22-478-007 and 88-20-23-354-047 15 

F-16 McCulloch Drain License and Use Agreement 15 

F-17 Request to Transfer Ownership through Merger of 2009 B-Hotel Licensed 
Business for Drury Hotels Company, LLC 575 W Big Beaver (Step 1) {MLCC 
Request #491090} 15 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 16 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 16 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 16 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 16 

H-1 Proposed City Charter Amendments as Requested by Council Member 
Eisenbacher and Council Member Howrylak Pertaining to Vacancies in Office 
(Item to be Transmitted Electronically as a Supplemental Item) 16 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 17 

REPORTS: 17 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Traffic Committee/Final – January 21, 2009....................................................... 17 
b) Special Joint Birmingham Planning Board/Troy Planning Commission – April 

16, 2009 ............................................................................................................. 17 
c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – April 23, 2009 ....................................... 17 
d) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – May 5, 2009 ................................. 17 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 16, 2009 ................................................ 17 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 23, 2009 .............................. 17 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 1, 2009 ........................................ 17 



 
 

   

J-2 Department Reports: 17 

a) Parks and Recreation – Monthly Golf Course Operations .................................. 17 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Officer Craig White, Madison 
Heights Police Department, Commending the Troy Police Department Color 
Guard in Honoring Officer Ryan Settlemoir and His Family ............................... 17 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Tpr. Denis McGuckin Regarding 
the Professionalism and Dedication of Sgt. Kowalski, Officers Brazel and 
Drewek, and PSA Ann Scherlinck ...................................................................... 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 17 

a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #09130 – Support for 
Safe Passage of Great Lakes Migrating Birds in Oakland County ..................... 17 

J-5  Communication from Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy Regarding Downtown 
Development Authority Membership 17 

J-6  Communication from Housing and Zoning Inspector Supervisor Paul Evans in 
Response to Comments made at July 20, 2009 City Council Meeting Regarding 
89 E. Long Lake 17 

J-7  Communication from Housing and Zoning Inspector Supervisor Paul Evans in 
Response to Comments made at July 20, 2009 City Council Meeting Regarding 
4977 Livernois 17 

STUDY ITEMS: 17 

K-1 Amendments to the Troy City Code: Update of Chapter 82 – Property 
Maintenance Code; Amendments to Chapter 48 – Litter; Chapter 82-B – 
Dangerous Buildings; Chapter 88 – Nuisance; and Deletion of Chapter 89 – Weed 
Control 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 18 

CLOSED SESSION: 18 

L-1 Closed Session 18 

RECESSED 18 



 
 

   

RECONVENED 18 

ADJOURNMENT 18 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 

Monday, August 17, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, August 31, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, September 14, 2009 Regular City Council .............................................. 19 
Monday, September 28, 2009 Regular City Council .............................................. 19 
Monday, October 5, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, October 19, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................. 19 
Monday, November 9, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 19 
Monday, November 23, 2009 Regular City Council ............................................... 19 
Monday, December 7, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 19 
Monday, December 21, 2009 Regular City Council ............................................... 19 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Randy Vinson – Bridge 
Community Church 

ROLL CALL:  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

  
ABSENT:  

 (b) Absent Council Members 
 
 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) Troy Traffic Jam Classic Car Show – Presentation by Cindy Stewart 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – X-Ray Industries, 1961 
Thunderbird  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for X-Ray Industries, Inc., for property known as 1961 Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 48084, 
Parcel #s 88-20-28-402-026 and 88-20-28-402-027, in accordance with City Council Policy 
Resolution #2009-02-042; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 2 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to X-Ray 

Industries, 1961 Thunderbird  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on August 
3, 2009, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1961 
Thunderbird, Troy MI, 48084, Parcel #s 88-20-28-402-026 and 88-20-28-402-027;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by X-Ray Industries, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1961 Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 
48084, for six (6) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on August 3, 2009, 
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for X-Ray Industries, Inc., at 
1961 Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 48084 may have the effect of substantially impeding the operation 
of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for X-Ray Industries, Inc., at 1961 
Thunderbird Troy, MI 48084 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or 
the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for X-Ray Industries, Inc., at 1961 
Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 48084, Parcel #s 88-20-28-402-026 and 88-20-28-402-027, for personal 
property for a term of six (6) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and X-Ray Industries, Inc., and payment of the application fee 
established in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and X-Ray Industries, 
Inc., a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
complete the Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 3 - 

No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 
E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled   

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: Downtown Development Authority (b) City Council Nominations: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Commission; 
Parks & Recreation Board; and Youth Council   

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 
Downtown Development Authority  
Appointed by Mayor   (13-Regular) - 4-Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 09/30/2011 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms; Student – 1-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms; Student – 1-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by  Council – Troy School District Rep. 1-Year Term; Student 1-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/2010* 
*NOTE: Appointment pending until Troy School District forwards their recommendation 
 
Youth Council 
Appointed by Council (13 Regular) - Student 1-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 06/01/2010 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 5 - 

 Term Expires 06/01/2010 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 15, 2009 
 
(a) Installation of NO PARKING Signs on Cypress Court 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the installation of NO PARKING signs on Cypress Court. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) Installation of Additional Advance Intersection Lane Control Sign North of 

Henrietta for Northbound Rochester Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the installation of an additional advance intersection lane control sign to be 
placed just north of Henrietta for northbound Rochester Road. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(c) Installation of YIELD Sign on Eastbound Barton Way at Falcon Drive 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the installation of a YIELD sign on eastbound Barton Way at Falcon Drive. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 6 - 

(d) Traffic Operations at Barnard Elementary School – Establishment of NO 
STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING Zone on the South Side of Forge from the 
School Property to Anvil 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of a NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING zone on the south 
side of Forge from the school property to Anvil, during the hours of 7:45 to 8:45 AM and 2:45 to 
3:45 PM, school days only. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 3150 Adams 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 3150 Adams as recommended 
by the Fire Department. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(f) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1075 Rankin 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 1075 Rankin as recommended 
by the Fire Department. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(g) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 637 John R 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 7 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 637 John R as recommended 
by the Fire Department. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-4 Michigan Municipal League, Michigan Green Communities Challenge, An Energy 

Efficiency and Conservation Strategy, Resolution to Participate 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy wants to emphasize the benefits of energy efficiency and 
conservation; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy wants to demonstrate that energy efficiency and conservation 
practices can be applied to the daily governmental operations and to infrastructure projects; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy seeks to find methods of service delivery and operations that 
conserve energy and resources, saving taxpayer dollars and protecting and preserving the 
environment; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy recognizes that sound energy efficiency and conservation 
practices can reduce government costs over the long-term; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy will lead by example to show the practicality and effectiveness of 
these practices; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy seeks to encourage its citizens and businesses to initiate 
stewardship activities that benefit the environment and their community; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Michigan 
Green Communities Challenge and pledges to work toward achieving the goals of the Basic 
Challenge over the next three years. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-5 Charter Section 6.2 (g) Recommendation  
 
 (a) Section 6.2 (g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 8 - 

Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the following proposed 
Charter Amendment for the November 3, 2009 City General Election: 

 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2(g) – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE TO ALLOW FOR CONTINUED SERVICE 
FOR SITTING COUNCIL MEMBERS SEEKING ANOTHER ELECTED CITY 
OFFICE UNTIL THE SEATING OF THE NEW COUNCIL 

 
Shall Section 6.2(g) be amended by deleting the requirement for a City Council 
member seeking to be a candidate for any other City elective office resign from the 
Council prior to the filing deadline for the municipal election and substituting in its 
place a requirement that a City Council member shall file with the City Clerk, prior to 
July 1st an irrevocable letter of resignation to allow for the future vacancy created to 
be placed on the next Regular Election Ballot? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) Charter Amendment Order 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES that the Charter Amendments be 
placed on the November 3, 2009 ballot in numerical order by Charter Section number. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 9 - 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 6:00 PM Special 
City Council Meeting of July 20, 2009 as submitted; and the 7:30 PM Regular City Council 
Meeting of July 20, 2009 as submitted.  
 
F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Youth Assistance    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2009/2010 fiscal year to the Troy Youth Assistance to provide diversion programs and 
community services to the residents of the City of Troy at a cost of $33,950.00, paid in quarterly 
installments; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Avondale Youth Assistance    
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2009/2010 fiscal year to the Avondale Youth Assistance to provide counseling and 
community services to prevent youth offender recidivism to the residents of Troy who reside in 
the Avondale School District at a cost of $5,820.00, paid in one installment; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

Common Ground    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2009/2010 fiscal year to Common Ground to provide community service programs to the 
residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $2,040.00; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Community Coalition    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in 
the 2009/2010 fiscal year to the Troy Community Coalition to provide community services to 
prevent drug and alcohol abuse in the amount of $97,000.00; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 

HAVEN    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council GRANTS approval to expend funds budgeted in the 
2009/2010 fiscal year to the HAVEN Program to provide community services to support victims 
of domestic assault for the residents of the City of Troy in the amount of $4,370.00; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – National League of Cities – Finance, 
Administration and Intergovernmental Affairs (FAIR) Steering Committee Fall 
Meeting    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Council Member Robin Beltramini to 
attend the NLC - FAIR Steering Committee’s fall meeting from October 8 - 11, 2009 in 
Mountainview, California, in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7:  Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract – 

Engineering Software Maintenance (Bentley Systems, Inc.)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Proprietary Maintenance Service 
contract to provide software maintenance for Microstation, InRoads, InRoads Survey, 
PowerSurvey and InRoads Storm and Sanitary Sewer software through July 13, 2010 to 
Bentley Systems, Inc., 685 Stockton Drive, Exton, PA 19341 for an estimated total cost of 
$14,440.00. 
 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – 

Lawn and Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) 2009 
John Deere Backhoe from JDE Equipment Company, of New Hudson, MI, through the State of 
Michigan MiDEAL program for $91,297.00 plus additional options not covered under MiDEAL 
of $5,050.00, and dealer installed items at $615.00 less trade-ins of $14,700.00 and 
$14,000.00, for an estimated net total cost of $68,262.00; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Fleet 
Maintenance Division to accept or reject the trade-in offers of $14,700.00 and $14,000.00 for 
two backhoes, pending the results to offer the equipment for sale on the open market at an 
amount greater than $14,700.00 and $14,000.00 respectively. 
 
i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Marcite/Grouting Tile – 

Troy Community Center Pools 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 12 - 

Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all material, labor, 
tools and equipment to re-marcite and re-grout tiles at the indoor pools of the Troy Community 
Center to the low total bidder, Clearwater Pools and Service of Ann Arbor, MI, for an estimated 
total cost of $24,500.00, at pricing as contained in the bid tabulation opened July 16, 2009, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
F-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Alexandria 

Whitney, President of Guardians For Animals 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Guardians For 
Animals, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community 
for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City Management. 
 
F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage Easement – 

McComb Construction Company, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-03-401-053, -052 and -051 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for storm 
sewer and drainage from McComb Construction Company, Inc., owner of the property having 
Sidwell #88-20-03,401-053, 052 and 051; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Sidewalk Easement – Michael J. Lamb – 

Sidwell #88-20-15-376-036 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for sidewalk 
from Michael J. Lamb, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-15-376-036; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 13 - 

 
F-8 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements – Michael J. Lamb – 

Sidwell #88-20-15-377-052 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easements for water 
main and public utilities from Michael J. Lamb, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-15-
377-052; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement – West Maple 

Ventures, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-32-126-004 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main from West Maple Ventures, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-32-126-
004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-10 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage Easements, 

Subhash and Sandhya Subhedar – Sidwell #88-20-22-102-022 and Neil G. and 
Donna L. Mitchell – #88-20-22-102-023  

  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easements for storm 
sewer and surface drainage from Subhash and Sandhya Subhedar, owners of the property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-102-022 and Neil G. and Donna L. Mitchell, owners of the property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-102-023; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 14 - 

 
F-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request that the City transfer 
Municipal Credit funds in the amount of $76,084.00 and Community Credit funds in the amount 
of $110,732.00 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service for senior 
citizens and persons with disabilities and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
F-12 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Lanctot, 

Trustee for Friends of Jacob Foundation 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Friends of Jacob 
Foundation, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
F-13 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber 
Fireworks Productions, Inc., of Kingsbury, IN for the display of fireworks at the conclusion of the 
2009 Troy Daze Festival on September 20, 2009. 
 
F-14 Traffic Signal Agreements – Rochester, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles, East and 

West of Rochester – Project No. 99.203.5 and 01.106.5 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached traffic signal agreements 
with the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) for the removal, modernization and 
installation of traffic signals as part of the Rochester, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles, East and 
West of Rochester Road projects at the following locations: Rochester Road and Charrington 
Drive (Co. #583); Rochester Road (NB) and Bishop Drive (Co. #641); Rochester Road (SB) 
and South of Torpey Drive, Pedestrian Crossing (Co. # 1291); Rochester Road (NB) and 
Torpey Drive (Co. # 1292); Rochester Road (SB) and Troywood Drive (Co. # 1293); Rochester 
Road (NB) and X-Over South of Wattles Road (Co. # 1294); Rochester Road (SB) and X-Over 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 15 - 

North of Wattles Road (Co. # 1295); Wattles Road (EB) and X-Over West of Rochester Road 
(Co. # 1296); Wattles Road (WB) and X-Over East of Rochester Road (Co. # 1297); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreements, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of the meeting.  
 
F-15 Request to Grant a Permanent Drain Easement to McCulloch Drain Drainage 

District – Sidwell #88-20-22-478-007 and 88-20-23-354-047 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
a Permanent Easement to the McCulloch Drain Drainage District for the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of the McCulloch Drain, said easement to 
encumber City of Troy owned parcels having Sidwell #88-20-22-478-007 and 88-20-23-354-
047. 
 
F-16 McCulloch Drain License and Use Agreement 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached McCulloch Drain License 
and Use Agreement with the McCulloch Drain Drainage District for the construction, operation 
and maintenance of a city park partially within a sixty (60) foot wide permanent easement for 
the McCulloch Drain at the northeast corner of Rochester and Big Beaver Roads; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of the meeting.  
 
F-17 Request to Transfer Ownership through Merger of 2009 B-Hotel Licensed 

Business for Drury Hotels Company, LLC 575 W Big Beaver (Step 1) {MLCC 
Request #491090} 

 
(a) 
 

Transfer Ownership 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request to 
transfer ownership through merger of 2009 B-Hotel licensed business located at 575 W Big 
Beaver, Troy MI 48084, Oakland County, from Drury Inns, Inc. to Drury Hotels Company, LLC ( 
A Nevada Limited Liability Company) (Step 1) {MLCC Request #491090} “above all others”; 
and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 16 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) 
 

Agreement 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with DDC Hotels, Inc. (A Missouri Corporation), to transfer ownership through merger of 2009 
B-Hotel and SDM Licensed Business, located at 575 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, from Drury Hotels Company, LLC (A Nevada Limited Liability Company); and 
a new official permit (food), and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:     
No:   

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Proposed City Charter Amendments as Requested by Council Member 
Eisenbacher and Council Member Howrylak Pertaining to Vacancies in Office 
(Item to be Transmitted Electronically as a Supplemental Item) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS the following Charter Amendments 
_________________________________________________to City Administration to prepare 
draft ballot language to be returned to City Council for authorization to place on the November 
3, 2009 ballot. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 17 - 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Traffic Committee/Final – January 21, 2009 
b) Special Joint Birmingham Planning Board/Troy Planning Commission – April 16, 2009 
c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – April 23, 2009 
d) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – May 5, 2009 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 16, 2009  
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 23, 2009 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 1, 2009  
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Parks and Recreation – Monthly Golf Course Operations 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Officer Craig White, Madison Heights Police 

Department, Commending the Troy Police Department Color Guard in Honoring Officer 
Ryan Settlemoir and His Family  

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Tpr. Denis McGuckin Regarding the 
Professionalism and Dedication of Sgt. Kowalski, Officers Brazel and Drewek, and PSA 
Ann Scherlinck   

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #09130 – Support for Safe 

Passage of Great Lakes Migrating Birds in Oakland County  
  
J-5  Communication from Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy Regarding Downtown 

Development Authority Membership 
 
J-6  Communication from Housing and Zoning Inspector Supervisor Paul Evans in 

Response to Comments made at July 20, 2009 City Council Meeting Regarding 89 
E. Long Lake 

 
J-7  Communication from Housing and Zoning Inspector Supervisor Paul Evans in 

Response to Comments made at July 20, 2009 City Council Meeting Regarding 
4977 Livernois 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Amendments to the Troy City Code: Update of Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance 

Code; Amendments to Chapter 48 – Litter; Chapter 82-B – Dangerous Buildings; 
Chapter 88 – Nuisance; and Deletion of Chapter 89 – Weed Control 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 18 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by MCL 
15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Troy v. Uncle Ed’s Oil Shoppe (UEOS) and Troy vs. Sunset 
Excavating/Eclipse Excavating, LLC. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 3, 2009 
 

- 19 - 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, August 17, 2009 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 31, 2009 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 14, 2009 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 28, 2009 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 5, 2009 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 19, 2009 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 9, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 23, 2009 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 7, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 21, 2009 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 

 
 
August 3, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for X-Ray Industries, 1961 Thunderbird, Troy MI. 48084  
 
 
Background: 
 
 X-Ray Industries, Inc., is requesting the creation of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 

1961 Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 48084, in order to apply for an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), for tax abatement at the same location. 

 
The exemption is for new equipment for immersion ultrasonic imaging and computed radiography. 
 
They currently have 77 employees in Troy.  They plan to add from 3 – 5 new jobs to Troy with this 
project. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,060,000 for the project.  Over a six 

(6) year life, the estimated total taxes are $88,645.00, of which $28,984.00 would be City taxes. 
 

A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $44,322.00 in total taxes, of which $14,492.00 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2009-02-042, attached).  
 

City Council Outcome III, “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a 
unique community in a changing and interconnected world.”  

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\X-Ray Ind 2009\CouncilPakIDD PH 







Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
X-Ray Industries, Inc.







Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

791

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

132

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet1320 66 Notes
X-Ray Industries - 1961 THunderbird

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

910

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

152

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet1520 76 Notes
X-Ray Industries - 1961 THunderbird

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels



IFT Application – Legal Description 
 
X-Ray Industries, Inc., 
1961 Thunderbird 
Parcel ID’s #88-20-28-402-026 & 88-20-28-402-027 
 
 
88-20-28-402-026 
T2N, R11E, SEC 28  
THUNDERBIRD INDUSTRIAL PARK  
N 30 FT OF E 220.84 FT  
OF LOT 14, ALSO  
LOT 15 EXC W 20 FT 
 
88-20-28-402-027 
T2N, R11E, SEC 28  
THUNDERBIRD INDUSTRIAL PARK  
N 10 FT OF E 220.84 FT  
OF LOT 13, ALSO  
S 80 FT  
OF E 220.84 FT  
OF LOT 14 



Market Value 2,060,000 1,888,402 1,573,794 1,180,503 787,159 459,308 229,746 95,781 31,953 0 0 0 0
50% of Value 1,030,000 944,201 786,897 590,252 393,580 229,654 114,873 47,890 15,976 0 0 0 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 944,201 786,897 590,252 393,580 229,654 114,873 47,890 15,976 0 0 0 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $557.08 $464.27 $348.25 $232.21 $135.50 $67.77 $28.26 $9.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
County 4.64610 $4,386.85 $3,656.00 $2,742.37 $1,828.61 $1,066.99 $533.71 $222.50 $74.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $3,181.01 $2,651.06 $1,988.56 $1,325.97 $773.70 $387.01 $161.34 $53.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $1,495.99 $1,246.76 $935.19 $623.59 $363.86 $182.00 $75.88 $25.31 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 4.62290 $4,364.95 $3,637.75 $2,728.67 $1,819.48 $1,061.67 $531.05 $221.39 $73.86 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.10000 $3,871.22 $3,226.28 $2,420.03 $1,613.68 $941.58 $470.98 $196.35 $65.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Admin 0.18912 $178.57 $148.82 $111.63 $74.44 $43.43 $21.73 $9.06 $3.02 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
City 9.28000 $8,762.19 $7,302.41 $5,477.53 $3,652.42 $2,131.19 $1,066.02 $444.42 $148.26 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total 28.38152 $26,797.86 $22,333.34 $16,752.24 $11,170.39 $6,517.92 $3,260.27 $1,359.20 $453.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total 12 Years $88,644.66
Total City 12 Yr $28,984.43

50% Total 12 Yr $44,322.33
50% Total City 12 Yr $14,492.22
2% Total City 12 Yr $289.84

Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
X-Ray Industries, Inc.

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated

Application Fee (2% total city)



E-7      Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy     
 
Resolution #2009-02-042 
Moved by Beltramini            
Seconded by Kerwin            
 
WHEREAS,  The  City  of  Troy  has  the  economic  objective  of  (a)  increasing  employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of  the  industrial base,  (d) providing homogenous  industrial areas,  (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers cities to 
establish  Industrial  Development  Districts  (IDD)  and  to  grant  tax  exemptions  for  certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS  the  following minimum 
criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be granted 
until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Real  property  shall  not  qualify  for  an  IFEC  tax  abatement,  except  for  those  unique 
situations where  there  are  building  improvements  that  are  required  to  support  the 
personal property that otherwise qualifies for a tax abatement; and 

 
3.  Leasehold  property  shall  not  qualify  for  an  IFEC  tax  abatement  unless  applicant  is 

responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely payment of 
property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 years; and 

 
5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more than 10 

jobs and/or has a personal property  investment of at  least $750,000.00, and/or owns 
the underlying real property or has a  lease for the underlying property that exceeds 5 
years, as long as two of the three criteria are satisfied. 
 

BE  IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES  the use of  the  following 
matrix to calculate the  length of an  IFEC tax abatement, where the  increase  in the number of 
jobs  created will  increase  the  term of  the  IFEC  abatement,  and  similarly  the  increase  in  the 
personal  property  investment  and  the  ownership/lease  conditions  on  the  real  property will 
increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 
 



 Tax Abatement Matrix 
   Job Creation  Building Terms  PP Investment 

10 ‐ 24  1 year  Own  4 years   $ 750,000   1 year 
25 ‐ 49  2 years  Lease      $ 2,000,000   2 years 
50 ‐ 99  3 years  1 ‐ 5 year  None   $ 5,000,000   3 years 
100 ‐ 149  4 years  6 ‐ 9 year  2 years   $ 10,000,000   4 years 
150 ‐ 199  5 years  10 + year  4 years   $ 20,000,000   5 years 
200 +  6 years             

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the implementation of an 
application fee equal to 2 % of the estimated personal property taxes abated under the terms 
of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of processing the application, whichever  is  less, 
and the City of Troy will not charge or collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with 
MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes:      Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield 
No:       Eisenbacher, Howrylak            
MOTION CARRIED 
 



June 16, 2009 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that the City of Troy has charged a fee of $289.84, 
equal to 2% of the estimated abated city taxes, for processing the 
application for tax abatement submitted by X-Ray Industries, Inc., 1961 
Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 
 
   Further, no other fee or concession has been charged or accepted in 
regards to this application, or consideration thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between X-Ray Industries, Inc., (“Company”) and the 
City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public Act 
198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), X-Ray Industries, Inc., understands that through its 
investment of $2,060,000 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 6 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2017, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2011, X-Ray Industries, Inc. will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) X-Ray Industries, Inc., agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
X-Ray Industries, Inc., further understands that if it chooses 
to leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior 
to the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City 
of Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  X-Ray Industries, Inc., understands that the City of Troy may 

reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or recover 
from the Company, the amount of taxes which were abated if 
the project has not been completed, expenditures made, as 
represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  X-Ray Industries, Inc., agrees that it will operate the Project 

in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws 
or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise 
control, other environmental regulations, and all of the terms 
and conditions of any Consent Judgment governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 

 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 

  City Clerk 



 

 

 
 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING & PUBLISHING 
 
 
State of Michigan 

County of Oakland 

City of Troy 

RE: PUBLIC HEARING – City Council - Monday, August 3, 2009 @ 7:30 PM - To 

Consider a Request from X-Ray Industries, Inc. for the granting of an 

Industrial Development District (IDD) – 1961 Thunderbird - Section 28 

 
I hereby certify that the attached notice was e-mailed to the Somerset Gazette 

Newspapers on Tuesday, July 7, 2009 and mailed by first class mail to the attached on 

Tuesday, July 7, 2009. 

 

 

 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

  

PUBLISHED:  Monday, July 13, 2009 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, August 3, 2009 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from X-Ray Industries, Inc., for the establishment of an Industrial 

Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-28-402-026 and -88-20-28-402-027 - 1961 Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 48084 

T2N, R11E, Section 28 - Thunderbird Industrial Park, Part of Lots 13, 14 and 15 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
X-RAY INDUSTRIES INC 
ATTN: SCOTT THAMS 
1961 THUNDERBIRD 
TROY  MI  48084-5467 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

 
 
August 3, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to X-Ray Industries – 1961 Thunderbird 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 X-Ray Industries, Inc., intends to expand their operations at 1961 Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 48084, 

with an investment of $2,060,000 in new equipment. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $2,060,000 for the project.  Over a six 

(6) year life, the estimated total taxes are $88,645.00, of which $28,984.00 would be City taxes. 
 

A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $44,322.00 in total taxes, of which $14,492.00 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2009-02-042).  
 

City Council Outcome III, “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a 
unique community in a changing and interconnected world.”  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
exemption. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to six (6) years, or not at all.   
 

Staff recommends that the Exemption be granted for the full six (6) years. 
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\X-Ray Ind 2009\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



 

 

 
 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING & PUBLISHING 
 
 
State of Michigan 

County of Oakland 

City of Troy 

RE: PUBLIC HEARING – City Council - Monday, August 3, 2009 @ 7:30 PM - To 

Consider a Request from X-Ray Industries, Inc. for the granting of an 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – 1961 Thunderbird - 

Section 28 

 
I hereby certify that the attached notice was e-mailed to the Somerset Gazette 

Newspapers on Tuesday, July 7, 2009 and mailed by first class mail to the attached on 

Tuesday, July 7, 2009. 

 

 

 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

  

PUBLISHED:  Monday, July 13, 2009 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, August 3, 2009 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from X-Ray Industries, Inc., for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-28-402-026 and -88-20-28-402-027 - 1961 Thunderbird, Troy, MI. 48084 

T2N, R11E, Section 28 - Thunderbird Industrial Park, Part of Lots 13, 14 and 15 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                       

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

        
 
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
X-RAY INDUSTRIES INC 
ATTN: SCOTT THAMS 
1961 THUNDERBIRD 
TROY  MI  48084-5467 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



CITY 


July 21, 2009 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Traffic Committee Recommendations 
July 15, 2009 

Background: 


The TrafFic Committee considered these items at the July 15, 2009 meeting and made the following 

recommendations (minutes attached): 


• 	 Recommend installing NO PARKING signs on Cypress Court (Item 3). 

• 	 Recommend that an additional advance intersection lane control sign be placed just north of 
Henrietta for northbound Rochester Road (Item 4). 

• 	 Recommend installation of a YIELD sign on eastbound Barton Way at Falcon Drive (Item 5). 

• 	 Recommend that a NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING zone be established on the south side 
of Forge from the school property to Anvil, during the hours of 7:45 to 8:45 a.m. and 2:45 to 3:45 
p.m., school days only (Item 6). 

• 	 Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 3150 Adams as recommended by the Fire 
Department (Item 8). 

• 	 Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 1075 Rankin as recommended by the Fire 
Department (Item 9). 

• 	 Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 637 John R as recommended by the Fire 
Department (Item 10). 

Financial Considerations: 

• Signs cost approximately $115. 


Policy Considerations: 


• Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 


Options: 


• 	 Council can approve or deny the recommendations . 

Traffic Committee\2009 Minutes and Agendas\July 15\Recommendation Memo.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES JULY 15, 2009 	 DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, July 15, 2009 in the 
Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall. Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 p.m. 

1. Roll Call 

PRESENT: 	 Sarah Binkowski 

Ted Halsey 

Richard Kilmer 

Gordon Schepke 

Pete Ziegenfelder 

Sam Jiang 


ABSENT: 	 John Diefenbaker 

Jan Hubbell 


Also present: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 

Lt David Livingston, Troy Police Dept 

Officer Larry Schultz, Troy Police Dept 


And 	 Chris Krasusky, 4251 Cypress 

Ed Schultz, 4237 Cypress 

James Moran, 4265 Cypress 

Lillian Moran, 4265 Cypress 


2. Minutes - January 21, 2009 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-01 
Moved by Kilmer 
Seconded by Binkowski 

To approve the January 21,2009 minutes. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTION CARRIED 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. Install NO PARKING Signs on Cypress Court 

Ed Schultz, 4237 Cypress Court, requests that NO PARKING signs be installed on 
Cypress Court. The residents at 4265 support the request and the residents at 4251 
oppose it See attached report. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - JULY 15, 2009 - DRAFT PAGE 2 

Mr. Schultz said that the roadway is too narrow for garbage trucks and emergency vehicles 
when cars are parked in the street. He pointed out that the other three cul-de-sacs off 
Cypress have NO PARKING signs. Mr. Moran, 4265 Cypress, reiterated the same 
concerns. 

Chris Krasusky, 4251 Cypress, would prefer to have parking allowed, as he has a pie
shaped lot with very little room for parking. 

The police officers agree that the street is too narrow for safe parking. 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-02 
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Kilmer 

Recommend installing NO PARKING signs on Cypress Court. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTION CARRIED 

4. Signage Request on Rochester at Big Beaver 

The Road Commission for Oakland County requests a review of signage on 
Rochester at Big Beaver. See attached report. 

Currently there is a sign near the intersection designating the right lane as a RIGHT TURN 
ONLY lane, and the next lane to the west as a THROUGH AND RIGHT lane. Staff 
recornmends that an additional advance intersection lane control sign (indicating the same 
lane advisory) be placed just north of Henrietta for northbound Rochester Road. 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-03 
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Schepke 

Recommend that an additional advance intersection lane control sign be placed just north of 
Henrietta for northbound Rochester Road. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTION CARRIED 

5. Install YIELD Sign on Eastbound Barton Way at Falcon Drive 

Jim Weston, 6376 Elsey, requests installation of a YIELD sign on eastbound Barton 
Way at Falcon Drive. Every other intersection in the subdivision has YIELD signs. See 
attached report. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - JULY 15, 2009 - DRAFT PAGE 3 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-04 
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Kilmer 

Recommend installation of a YIELD sign on eastbound Barton Way at Falcon Drive. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTION CARRIED 

6. Traffic Operations at Barnard Elementary School 

The Troy School District asked the Traffic Improvement Association to review traffic 
operations at Barnard SchooL Their findings are attached to the Traffic Engineer's 
report enclosed. Officer Schultz said that the real problem is lack of parking at the school. 
Parking is already prohibited on the north side of Forge, but parents park along the south 
side while dropping off and/or waiting for their children, which makes the roadway too 
narrow, especially for emergency vehicles. The school also requested that right turns 
be prohibited from Forge to Anvil to allow children to cross the street safely, but the officers 
and committee members feel that the congestion problem would just be pushed farther 
along to other areas of the subdivision. 

The committee recommends prohibiting parking on the south side of Forge, and observing 
the results before restricting any turns. 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-05 
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Schepke 

Recommend that a NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING zone be established on the south 
side of Forge from the school property to Anvil, during the hours of 7:45 to 8:45 a.m. and 2:45 to 
3:45 p.m., school days only. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTION CARRIED 

7. Information on Marengo at Norton 

At a previous meeting Gordon Schepke requested information on any previous sign 
requests at Norton and Marengo. See attached report. Mr. Schepke wants a STOP sign 
installed on westbound Marengo at Norton. There are partial sight obstructions looking 
both north and south, and Mr. Schepke thinks a full stop is necessary to enter the 
intersection safely. Lt. Livingston reports no real speeding issues. Mr. Huotari will have 
traffic counts done and research any past crashes for further consideration at the next 
meeting. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - JULY 15,2009 - DRAFT PAGE 4 

8. Establish Fire Lanes at 3150 Adams 

Section 8.28, Chapter 106, Troy City Code, provides for the establishment of fire lanes on 
private property. The Fire Department recommends that the fire lanes shown on the 
attached sketch be provided to allow proper deployment of and travel by emergency 
vehicles (fire, police, medical). 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-06 
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Schepke 

Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 3150 Adams as recommended by the Fire 
Department. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTION CARRIED 

9. Establish Fire Lanes at 1075 Rankin 

Section 8.28, Chapter 106, Troy City Code, provides for the establishment of fire lanes on 
private property. The Fire Department recommends that the fire lanes shown on the 
attached sketch be provided to allow proper deployment of and travel by emergency 
vehicles (fire, police, medical). 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-07 
Moved by Kilmer 
Seconded by Binkowski 

Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 1075 Rankin as recommended by the Fire 
Department. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTION CARRIED 

10. Establish Fire Lanes at 637 John R 

Section 8.28, Chapter 106, Troy City Code, provides for the establishment of fire lanes on 
private property. The Fire Department recommends that the fire lanes shown on the 
attached sketch be provided to allow proper deployment of and travel by emergency 
vehicles (fire, police, medical). 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - JULY 15, 2009 - DRAFT PAGE 5 

RESOLUTION #2009-07-08 
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Kilmer 

Recommend establishing fire lanes/tow away zones at 637 John R as recommended by the Fire 
Department. 

YES: AII-5 
1\10: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Diefenbaker, Hubbell) 
MOTIOI\I CARRIED 

11. Public Comment 

12. Other Business 

13. Adiourn 

The meeting adjourned at 8:39 p.m. 

Pete Ziegenfelder, Chair Laurel Nottage, Recording Secretary 

Traffic Committee\2009 Minutes and Agendas\July 15\minutes,doc 



ITEM 3 


Cityq/' 
TRAFFIC COMMITTEE REPORT Troy 

June 1,2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Cypress Court 
"NO PARKING" Sign Request 

Background: 

• 	 Ed Schultz of 4237 Cypress Court, requests that "NO PARKING" signs be installed along Cypress Court. 
• 	 Mr. Schultz stated that vehicles parked in the cul-de-sac prohibit the free movement of vehicles in the cul

de-sac, especially larger vehicles such as garbage trucks, snow plows or emergency vehicles. 
• 	 Cypress Court is part of the Cypress Gardens Subdivision that was originally platted on October 25, 1968. 
• 	 The existing road width on Cypress is approximately 28' and approximately 22' on Cypress Court. 
• 	 The west and south sides of Cypress are currently posted as "NO PARKING" due to the location of fire 

hydrants on that side of the road. 
• 	 There is no fire hydrant in the cul-de-sac as there are only three (3) homes with direct access to the cul

de-sac. 
• 	 Fire protection is provided from the fire hydrant one lot north of the cul-de-sac. 
• 	 The current "NO PARKING" signage standard for a cul-de-sac places a "NO PARKING" sign at the 

entrance to the cul-de-sac and then an "END NO PARKING" sign approximately 2/3 of the way around the 
cul-de-sac to the nearest property line. Using this standard, the "NO PARKING" zone would run from the 
entrance to the cul-de-sac to the property line between 4237 Cypress Court and 4223 Cypress, essentially 
eliminating parking in the cul-de-sac. 

• 	 There have been no other requests for "NO PARKING" signs at this location. 
• 	 A mail poll of the residents with direct access to the cul-de-sac was completed, with two (2) of the three (3) 

residents responding that they are in favor of the city installing "NO PARKING" signs on the court and 
establishing a "NO PARKING" zone (copies attached). 

Recommendations: 

• 	 Staff recommends that "NO PARKING" signs be placed along Cypress Court to establish a "NO 
PARKING" zone as the majority of residents with direct access to the cul-de-sac are in favor. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. 	 Recommend "NO PARKING" signs be placed on Cypress Court to prohibit parking within the cul
de-sac. 

b. 	 Recommend no changes on Cypress Court. 

KIATE FileslTC IlemslRequeslslCypress CourLNO ParkinglTC_Agenda Ilem_Cypress Court_NO Parking Request.doc 



Establish a "NO PARKING" zone on Cypress Court 

Please place an "X" in one of the boxes below, fill out your name, 
address{ date and any comments you may have and return this 
questionnaire by Friday, May 22, 2_Q09. 

YES, I am in favor of the city installing "NO PARKING" signs on 
Cypress Court 

NO{ I am not interested in changes to the existing parking on 
Cypress Court 

Address 

Date: 

MAY 13 2009 

ENG! 



Establish a "NO PARKING" zone on Cypress Court 

Please place an fiX" in one of the boxes below, fill out your name, 
address, date and any comments you may have and return this 
questionnaire by Friday, May 22, 2009. 

YES, I am in favor of the city installing "NO PARKING" signs on 
Cypress Court 

D NO, I am not interested in changes to the existing parking on 
Cypress Court 

COMMENTS: 

Name(s) 

Address 

Date: 

REGEl 
MAY 14 2009 



~0~ &.0 
rc-¥--s ()0 

CO~ ~O~.--· 

Establish a liND PARKING" zone on Cypress Court 

Please place an "X" in one of the boxes below, fill out your name, 
address, date and any comments you may have and return this 
questionnaire by Friday, May 22, 2009. 

o 	 YES, I am in favor of the city installing /lNO PARKING" signs on 

Cypress Court 


@I am not interested in changes to the existing parking on 
Cypress Court 

COMMENTS:
105L Ao 'f"ci r:D ,\ 	 \ \\ Ir) 	 ,..j..,-'<v~-:,\.I...L:-=--.!_~L-::i!::~L4-'--l-l~~~~UJ--W---D:d~~Y\..uo~r~·~f..bb~,~[$'~.(~\7J ~ l~<;. Il" ~~~ I 

~~~:.LJ..ffi1l~k-~~~q~U~b2~::Sg~-O.tccLL+:L\ \.,. (\oi c\ \oOI+.ttr 

~~ q Od ~u..OvVIr
OJ

C\'''j61\ e..t-·o 

\'9,'V() h bJl'S 

,'lh~ ~ 

http:v~-:,\.I...L:-=--.!_~L-::i!::~L4-'--l-l~~~~UJ--W---D:d~~Y\..uo~r~�~f..bb


1-75 

Road Conterline 

Major Road 

Indusinal RQad 

l.ocal Road 

Hydrography Poly 

Hydrography Arc 

Parcels 

o 

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 

tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
NAD.1983 .. StatePlane _ Michigan,.SouthflPSj113_Inti Feet map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 

represented should be consulted for verification. City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology 



Street Signs 
<l> <all other values> .. AAR .. 811-1 .. B3-1 .. 83-3 .. 64-5 .. 85-11_ 

• B5-1R .. B<>-l 

• B6-2R 
BUS 

CO•.. Cl 

.. .. 01-1 

01-2 .. 01-3A 

• 010-2 

• 011-1 .. 02--3 

.. 03-1 

03-2 .. 07-1 .. 07-2 

.. .. 09-1 

D9-14 .. 09-1A .. El-3 

• E1-4 .. E<>-2A .. GAS .. Ml·1 .. Ml-4 .. M2-2 .. M3-2 .. M3-4 .. f\A.4..1"J 

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 

NAD_1983_ SlatePlane_Mlchigan_SouthJIPS_2113_lntIFeet 
City of Troy Geographicallnformalion Systems - Department of Information Technology 

deeds, plats, tax surveys, and other pubtic records and data It is not a legally 
recorded map survey_ of thle data are hereby notifled that the source information 
represented should be consulted fer verification. 

Enter Map Description 

0 







ITEM 4 


RAFFle COMMITTEE REPORT 


June 1,2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Rochester at Big Beaver 
Sign Request 

Background: 

• 	 The city received a request from the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) to review the signage 
for the double-right turn from northbound Rochester to eastbound Big Beaver. 

• 	 Rochester Road is under the jurisdiction of the City of Troy and Big Beaver is under the jurisdiction of the 
RCOC. 

• 	 Currently, there is a R3-8 (advance intersection lane control) sign near the intersection delineating the right 
lane as a "RIGHT TURN ONLY" lane and the next lane to the west as a "THROUGH and RIGHT" lane. 

• 	 A review of the crash history for the past three (3) years shows an average of three (3) side swipe crashes 
at this location. 

• 	 For drivers not familiar with this location there may be some confusion with the double-right turn as several 
vehicles are making the right turn to cross back over to head westbound on Big Beaver. 

• 	 This has the potential for driver confusion on the inside lane if they do not anticipate that the vehicle 
alongside them is also turning right and they had expected to complete their right turn and then weave 
over to the cross over just east of the intersection. 

• 	 The advance intersection lane control sign should be placed at an adequate distance in advance of the 
intersection so that road users can select the appropriate lane. 

• 	 Traffic at this intersection is extremely high with approximately 117,000 vehicles traveling through the 
intersection on a daily basis so an additional sign may help reinforce lane operations. 

• 	 There is an upcoming project to provide for intersection enhancements as well as a park area at the 
northeast corner. These enhancements are aesthetic for the most part, but there will be improvements to 
the sidewalks and sidewalk ramps to meet current ADA requirements. 

Recommendations: 

• 	 Staff recommends that a new "R3-8" intersection lane control sign be placed just north of Henrietta to 
indicate the configuration of the lanes ahead. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. 	 Recommend that an additional "ADVANCE INTERSECTION LANE CONTROL" sign be placed just 
north of Henrietta for northbound Rochester Road. 

b. 	 Recommend no changes on Rochester Road. 

K:\ATE Flles\TC ItenlslRequestslTCAgeoda Item~Rochester at Big Beaver•.Double Right Sign. doc 



Hydrography Poly 

Hydrography Arc 

Parcels 

Aerial Photos - 2008 

Red: BamU 

Green: BamC2 
III Blue: Bar<C3 

o 

Note: The Information provided by this applioation has been 
deeds, plats, tax surveys, and other public re Enter Map Description 
recorded map su rvey, of this data are he reby 
represented should be consu~ed for verification, 

NAO_1983_StateP lane_Michjgan_South_FIPS_2113_lntfFeet 
City of Troy Geograpi1lcallnformation Systems· Department of Information Technology 



..... ,
"'~r 





SOUTHEA.ST QUADJ2ANT ONLY 

City of Troy CRASH DATA I Date: 5/4/09 

Type of Study: Special-Intersection Period: 3 year's from 1/01/06 thru 12/31/08 

/streets Rochester Rd and Big Beaver 

Type of Rear Right Head Side Left Turn Out of Year Year year 
Collision End Angle On Swipe Head On Control Total 2006 2007 2008 

~~8~:OO~3~~~1+-__-+__~~__+-__~_.~~.. 3 1 
9:00 3 3 2 t 

1~ .... 1...0...0..~0.1_.......~1"'~.I~-~-"~.+~.'-.. ~~__~..__1-.-.... ~.-~.._ .._ ...... --1~.1._1-_-""'.1-.'~_1 .... _ 

11:001_.+-.-2........._+~ ....-~._1_ .......-.1.._-1- ........___I........_ ...~-. 3 1 .. 
......... _12.:_0.0._1-._._.._ 3 .......__ --+--.~....1~......---1-......... _ ...~~.+_... _ ...1.-_.-1.-....~._...+-.- .. _ .•....._5:............. 1_... -1-....:.3._+. 1 _.... c---' ....... '~ 

13:00 1 __.... 1.• ... ......r.-.~..2..............I--....- .... II.~._... I~·~ ...... .........t---2~1 .... 
14:00 3 1 4 1 1 2

....•_........ I···--·····-····~···I·-··············..·+· ····_·-1············ --....... . ... - ..... -.-. I~··········-······.··· ........ --.......... .... ..---........... + ................. 
1500 2 0 2 4 1 3 

16:00 3 2 2 7 4 1 2 
17m 2 2 1 i 1 
18:00 2 1 2 1 
19:00 111 ..... 

~O:oo . 2 --t-....~-~.. I ..-.~..-.-.. -... I.~--.-.- ..I.---.--.-...I._._. .1 __ 2 ........ 1 .... 1--.. _ .... 1 .....+. _..1.......... _ 
3 3 

..~-I-·····-·- .-··_·_··-+·--1·_····+···_·····11···· 

2 
18 

http:SOUTHEA.ST


INDICATE NORTH 
BY ARROW· 

L'ULLl~lUl,( UIAl:fKAIYl 

+ 

SYMBOLS 

MOVING VEHICLE 
<i( >)0)00 BACKING VEHICLE 

...(- - PEDESTRIAN 
~ PARKED VEHICLE 

0 FIXED OBJECT ., INJURY ACCIDENT 
III IJ. I'I'Tn]:;'l\.TTJ;'.l TAT 

TYPES OF COLLISIONS 

)0 ot( HEAD ON 

,~ SIDE SWIPE 

·4 RIGHT ANGLE~i 
-/' LEFT TURN HEAD ON 

FOR EACH ACCIDENT SHOW: 
1. Date & Time 

2. Weather & Road Surface Conditions 

BY: .. Ii ./1"'?7jDATE:~o/--,"L!::..c....-_ 



+ 

/' 

-= 

Big Beaver 

COLLISION DIAGRAM 

'\i 

PERIOD: 

FROM~~~_____ 

TO: ~._----"_..... --I-----~......... . 

('----
i 

SYMBOLS / TYPES OF COLLISION LOCATION: 

MOVING VEHICLE 

BACKING VEHICLE 

__ _ _ _ _ _ PEDESTRIAN 

Wff...0::'l PARl(ED VEHICLE 

D

• 
FIXED OBJECT 

INJURY ACCIDENT 

HEAD-ON 

,~~4;;xs'rnR SWlPE0 

RIGHTANGLBt, 

~ LEFT TURN HEAD-ON 

Big Beaver and Rochester Road 

H~Hein 



--

--
-- --- -

COLLISION DIAGRAM 

N 

1 yearPERIOD 

FROM: ~f_()1_/0_8__ 

12 I 3: I ORTO:+ I 

II 


Big Beaver 

SYil1BOLS / TYPES OF COLLISION LOCATION: 

.. 1vfOVLVG VEHICLE 

BACKING VEHICLE HEAD-ON.. ~ ~ 

PEDESTRIAN 

[.'/~ PARJ(ED VEHICLE RIGHT ANGLE, Big Beaver and Rochester Road 

FIXED OBJECT ~ LEFT TURN HEAD-ON 
4 ! 12 i 09 RHeinEB INJURY ACCIDENT 



ITEMS 


Ci~o/" TRAFFIC COMMITTEE REPORT roy 
July 6,2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Barton Way at Falcon Drive 
Yield Sign Request 

Background: 

• 	 Jim Weston of 6376 Elsey requests that a YIELD sign be placed on Barton Way at Falcon Drive. 
• 	 The subject intersection is a T-intersection located in Crescent Ridge Subdivision No.1 on the west side of 

Crooks, north of Square Lake. 
• 	 The speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. 
• 	 Falcon Drive is a local street, which runs north~south and is considered the major road at the intersection 

based on volumes and geometrics, 
• 	 Barton Way is also a local street that runs east-west and is considered the minor road at the intersection. 
• 	 Traffic volumes were collected June 23, 2009 through June 24, 2009. 
• 	 Average daily traffic (ADT) on Falcon Drive is approximately 750 vehicles per day (vpd) 
• 	 ADT on Barton Way is approximately 500 vpd. 
• 	 A review of the crash history shows four (4) crashes over the past five (5) years. 
• 	 Sight distance at the intersection is good with no obstructions noted at the time of review within the corner 

clearance areas of the intersection. There is a large evergreen in the southwest quadrant (on private 
property) that does obstruct vision west of the intersection and does require a motorist to slow at the 
intersection to fully view Falcon Drive, but is far enough back that a motorist has time to stop in a 
reasonably safe manner. 

• 	 A field review of the Crescent Ridge Subdivision No.1 shows that all intersections within this subdivision 
are controlled by a YIELD sign, except for the intersection requested and STOP controlled intersections. 

• 	 The YIELD sign assigns right-of-way to traffic on certain approaches to an intersection, Vehicles 
controlled by a YIELD sign need to slow down or stop when necessary to avoid interfering with conflicting 
traffic. 

Recommendations: 

• 	 Staff recommends that a YIELD sign be installed on Barton Way at Falcon Drive. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. 	 Recommend installation of a YIELD sign on Barton Way at Falcon Drive. 

b. 	 Recommend no changes at the intersection of Barton Way at Falcon Drive. 

K:\I\TE Files\TC Ilems\Requests\Bar1op at Falcon\TCJgenda Ilem~Banon at Falcon.doc 









ITEM 6 


TRAFFIC COMMITTEE REPORT 


July 6,2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Barnard Elementary - Traffic Operations 

Background: 
a At the request of the Troy School District (TSD), the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) was asked to 

review the traffic operations at Barnard Elementary school. 
a Barnard Elementary is located east of John R, between Wattles and Big Beaver. 
a There is only one entrance/exit to the school and it is located on Forge Drive. 
a The intersection of Forge at Anvil is controlled by a 4-way STOP. 
a The north side of Forge is posted NO PARKING. 
a TIA reviewed the operations of the school and met with the TSD to discuss their findings in May 2009. 
a A copy of TIA's report is attached and a summary of those options affecting public streets are listed below: 

o 	 Prohibit stopping, standing, parking on the south side of Forge, from Anvil to the school 
property during the morning drop-off hours of 7:45 to 8:45 a.m. and the afternoon pick-up hours 
of 2:45 to 3:45 p.m. 

o 	 Consider prohibiting right turns from Forge to Anvil for ~ hour in the afternoon for exiting 
vehicles at the intersection to allow for students to cross the south leg of the intersection. 

o 	 Review of the intersection to see if the 4-way stop is necessary. 
a 	 City staff and the Troy Police Department had previously reviewed the school site during February 2009 to 

address congestion related complaints. At that time, the Troy PO provided assistance to facilitate traffic 
flow in the area. 

a 	 City staff from Traffic Engineering and the Troy Police Department met with representatives of TSD on 
July 1, 2009 to review TIA's report and discuss the alternatives recommended. 

Recommendations: 

a Staff recommends that the following items be approved to improve traffic flow in this area: 


o 	 Prohibit stopping, standing, parking on the south side of Forge, from Anvil to the school 
property during the morning drop-off hours of 7:45 to 8:45 a.m. and the afternoon pick-up hours 
of 2:45 to 3:45 p.m during school days only. 

o 	 Prohibit right turns from Forge to Anvil during the morning drop-off hours of 7:45 to 8:45 am. 
and the afternoon pick-up hours of 2:45 to 3:45 p.m during school days only. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. 	 Recommend that a NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING zone be established on the south side 
of Forge as well as prohibiting right turns from Forge to Anvil, both during the hours of 7:45 to 8:45 
a.m. and 2:45 to 3:45 p.m. during school days only. 

b. 	 Recommend no changes at Barnard Elementary school. 

K:IATE Files\TC Items\Requests\Barnard ElementarY\TC_Agenda Item_Barnard Elementary.doc 



1-75 

Road Centerline 

Major Road 

InJus1rlaJ Road 

Local Road 

Hydrography Poly 

Hydrography Arc 

Parcels 

1:12,100 

o 1.008 iNotes! .! "nnll=!Inn has been compiled from recorded 
records and data. It is not a legally 

NAD_1983_StalePlane .. Michigan.South FIPS_2113_lntIFeet notified that the source information I'"'"M', """","" 
City of Troy Geographic.al Information Systems Department of Information Technology 

http:Geographic.al


r 
Legend 

Street SIgns 

<an otl1er values> 

AAR• 
811-1• 

• 
83-1• 
B3-3 

• 	 84-5 


• B~1L 

• ~1R 

• 	 S<J.1 

S<J.2R 

BUS 

CD• 
Cl•

• 	 D1·1 

• 1)1-2 

• 01-3A 

• 010-2 

• 011-1 .. 02-3 

D3-1 


• 03-2 


• 07-1 

• 07-2 .. 09-1 

• 09-14 

• Og..1'A 

E1-3• 
E1-4 

• El>-2A 
• 

• GAS 

• MH 

• M1-4 

• M2-2 

• M3-2 

j
i • M3-4 

.. M.d..1? 

E 	 °1 

Note: The information provided by this application has blIen compiled from recorded ll-::::----c-=----c-= tax surveys, and other public records and data, It is not a 

NAD_1983_StatePlanELMichigar,-South_F1PS_2113_lntiFeet map survey, of this data are hereby notified tI1at the $(lurce infrlrm"tirll' I 
City of Troy Geographical Information Systems· Department of Information Technology represented should be consulted for verificatiOn. 	 I 



/7 

-A 


t 


A 

""

\IV' 

t 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

EXECUTIVE COMMITIEE 

Chairperson & CEO 
SUSAN M, CISCHKE 
Senior Vice President 
Environmenlal & Safely Engineering 
Ford Motor Company 

Vice Chairman 
DEBORAH MORRISSETT 
Vice Presldent·Regulalory ANairs 
DaimlerChrysler Corporalion (Ret,) 

Secretary 

MICHAEL PALCHESKO 

Dlreclor, Community Affairs 

OTE Energy 


Treeeurer 

BLAKE ROE, CPA 

Partner, Plante & Moran 


Members-at-Large 

BRENT 0 BAIR 

Managing Direclor 

Road Commission lor 

Oakland County 


JAMES BARBARESSO 

Vice Presidenl 

Nelional ITS Praclice Lead" 

HNTB Corporalicn 


ROBERT KITTLE 

President 

The Kinte Group 


ELIZABETH A, LOWERY 

Vice PI1lsidenl 

Energy & Safety Policy 

General MOlors Corpora lion 


NEIL MUNRO 

Editor (Rei) 

The Oakland Press 


RICHARD G SKARRITT 
Commissioner 
Road Commission For Oakland County 

JOSEPH SUTSCHEK 

Vice President 

RalTlco·Gershenson, Inc 


J, DAVID VANDERVEEN 

Director. Cenlral Services 

County of Oakland 


President 

JERRY L, WALKER 


BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MICHAEL J, BOUCHARD 

Sherin 

Counly of Oakland 


JOHN L GRUBBA 
Deputy Counly Executive [Ret.) 
Counly of Oakland 

BRUCE B MADSEN 
Execullve Dlreclor IReq 
Traffic Improvement Assoclalion 

L BROOKS PATTERSON 
County ExecuHve 
Counly 01 Oakland 

GARY RUSSI, PhD 
Presldenl 
Oakland Uni,ersity 

JOHN L SIMON 
Senior Vh::e President 
Th, TauDman Company, Inc 

TRAffiC IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 
2187 Orchard Lake Rd., Suite 140, Sylvan Lake, MI 48320-1778 


(248) 334-4971 • FAX (248) 334-2060 

www.tiami.org 


May 6,2009 

Michael Adamczyk 
Assistant Superintendent 
Troy School District 
4400 Livernois Road 
Troy, Michigan 48098 

Dear Mr. Adamczyk: 

You asked TIA to review the traffic operations at Barnard Elementary School, 
which is located on Forge Drive. A meeting was held at the school in the 
afternoon on March 10, 2009 to discuss the situation and review the operation 
when school ended. 

On-Site Conditions: 
• 	 All traffic enters the school from Forge Drive. 
• 	 Parent traffic flows in a counterclockwise direction around the large island 

and basically through the parking lot. 
• 	 Buses travel in a counterclockwise direction around the island but have a 

separate east/west drive to use to access the bus only area. 
• 	 Parking is prohibited on the island side ofthe driveway. 
• 	 On the outside of the east and north portions of the drive around the island 

parking is prohibited from 8-9 AM and 3-4 PM east of the island and from 
7:45-8:45 AM and 2:45-3:45 PM north of the island. 

• 	 Do Not Enter Buses Only 7:45-8:45 2:45-3:45 signs are posted on the east 
end of the drive that is on the north side of the island. 

• 	 Cars line up on the north-south drive east of the island and around the 
north end of the parking area while waiting to pick up their students. 

• 	 Vehicles also stop or park on the south side of Forge Dr. Parking is 

prohibited on the north side of Forge Dr. 


• 	 The school has 5 general education buses, 1 special education bus and 2 
Kinder Care size buses. 

• 	 Students have to walk to school if they are inside a 1 mile radius. 
• 	 Staff members are outside when school starts and ends to help students 

and keep drivers moving along. 
• 	 Student Safety Patrol that crosses students at the intersection of Forge 

Drive and Anvil Drive caused significant delays in exiting traffic. 
• 	 Bus and parent pick-up traffic are in separate areas. 
• 	 Southeast comer ofproperty has 2-3 feet of water in the spring. 
• 	 Existing 4-way stop at Forge Dr. and Anvil Dr. 
• 	 There is more ofa problem in the AM, although this timeframe was not 

observed. 

CELEBRATING TRAFFIC SAFETY SERVICES 

SINCE 1967 


http:www.tiami.org


Page 2 

Adamczyk 

May 6, 2009 


• School starts at 8:20 AM, however students are allowed in the building by 7:55 AM. 
• 	 Buses drop their students off at about 8:05 AM. 

The traffic flow during the afternoon operated well. The buses were separated from the parent 
vehicles. The issue of parents stopping on the south side of Forge Dr. west of Anvil Dr. and the 
vehicle backups on eastbound Forge Dr. west ofAnvil Dr. are the two issues that seemed to 
cause problems in the afternoon. The fact that the principal allows parents to drop-off their 
children approximately 25 minutes before school starts in the morning significantly improves the 
traffic flow in the morning compared to many other elementary schools that only allow students 
in the building 5 minutes before school starts. 

Possible Changes to Consider to Improve Traffic Flow: 
• 	 Work with the City ofTroy to prohibit stopping, standing and parking on the south side 

of Forge from Anvil Dr. west to the school property. It would be appropriate to have 
times on these signs of7:45-8:45AM and 2:45-3:45PM. 

• 	 To handle the large number of vehicles that drop off and pick up students, especially on 
bad weather days, consider adding a bus loop to the southeast side of the school or a 
parent drop-off loop to the north side of the school to better separate the bus and parent 
vehicles. A bus loop on the south side ofbuilding would require relocating playground 
areas and constructing an opening in the island to allow buses to access this loop. 

• 	 To improve traffic flow at the Forge/Anvil intersection consider the following: 
• 	 Provide additional training for the Safety Patrol that crosses students at Forge and 

Anvil so they allow better flow of exiting parent vehicles. Consider an adult to 
oversee the intersection operation. 

• 	 Consider prohibiting right turns for 12 hour in the afternoon for exiting vehicles at the 
intersection. This would allow the students to cross the south leg of the intersection 
while allowing vehicles to exit more easily using the north and east legs of the 
intersection. Also, a review ofthe intersection could be proposed to the City to see if 
the 4-way stop is necessary with the possibility being to remove the stop signs on 
Forge Dr. to improve exiting traffic flow. 

• 	 In order to provide additional parking consider extending the drive on the north side of 
the building farther west and then construct a parking lot between the building and the 
fields west of the building. One concept adds approximately 32 parking spaces. 

If you have any questions or would like to meet concerning the above, please feel free to contact 
me. 

incer~y, 

. ~".f7?'J(ua/~f&.. tll;~ r---
" David F, Allyn., 


Engineering and Data Services 


DFAIdfa 




SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Barbara A. Fowler, Ph. D., Superintendent 

Barnard Elementary School Mary Haezebrouck 
3601 Forge Drive Principal 
Troy, MI 48083 
(248) 823-4300 I (248) 823-4313-fax 

William Huotari 
Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, MI 48084 

July 1, 2009 

Dear Mr. Huotari, 

Thank you for taking the time to attend a traffic safety meeting with me today at Barnard 
Elementary in Troy. I wish to review our discussion with you in this letter. Last spring, as 
principal of Barnard, I requested that the TIA (Traffic Improvement Association) of 
Oakland County do a traffic study at our school due to a great deal of congestion at arrival 
and departure time. We have difficulty with traffic flow and our buses have a very hard 
time coming into and leaving our parking lot. The current conditions often create a 
gridlock. In addition, I have had great concerns regarding the safety of our students who 
are walkers at the corner of Anvil and Forge. 

The TIA traffic study was completed by Mr. David Allyn. He noted the Same concerns 
that I had which were also shared with our district administrative personnel. His 
suggestions for enhanced safety and traffic flow improvement concurred with mine and 
our central office administrators. I would like to review them with you. 

... 	 We would like to see signs posted on the south side of Forge between the school 
and Anvil that prohibit parking during the hours of 7:45a.m.-8:45a.m. and 2:45p.m.
3:45p.m. on school days. This would allow buses and cars to freely arrive and leave 
the school without battling a narrowed thoroughfare due to parked cars. 

... 	 We strongly suggest that we prohibit right turns from the school on to Anvil for 
exiting vehicles during the above times to allow students to safely cross at this 
intersection. 

REC 

JUL. 6 2009 




Currently, we have students who are crossing guards at the intersection of Anvil and Forge 
with adult supervision when possible. Our safety patrol sponsor who is frequently at this 
corner shared his concerns with me in an email last June. I have attached it for your 
review. The concerns expressed have been ongoing for many years. 

While we have had new parking signs posted on school property, have developed a separate 
bus route and parent pick up route, place cones each day to guide parent parking, and have 
had numerous communications with parents requesting assistance in this matter, we still 
experience difficulty with the flow of traffic. 

We appreciate any consideration the city will give us in our request for assistance in the 
above matters. Safety is always our first priority as I know it is yours. In addition, 
reducing the gridlock conditions we experience each day will promote a smoother arrival 
and departure for our students. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, ( 

?!:::'l!:~lM~ 
Cc: 	 Mike Adamczyk 

Kathy Davisson 

Attachment 

An Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer 



Page 1 of 1 

Haezebrouck, Mary 

From: Fawcett, Jason 


Sent: Friday, June 05, 20099:41 AM 


To: Haezebrouck, Mary 


Subject: Barnard Elementary- Anvil & Forge Intersection 


Mary, 

After reading the traffic assessment conducted by TIA and observing the conditions at the corner of Anvil and 
Forge, I would like to make a suggestion to ensure the safety of our students and improve the traffic flow coming 
into and out of Barnard Elementary. TIA suggested " ... prohibiting right turns for 1/2 hour in the afternoon for 
eXiting vehicles at the intersection" in order to " ... allow the students to cross the south leg of the intersection while 
allowing vehicles to exit more easily using the north and east legs of the intersection." TIA made its suggestion 
b<'lsed on its observation of the afternoon traffic. I agree with TIA's suggestion for the afternoon and believe It 
would be beneficial to prohibit left turns for vehicles entering Barnard in the morning, as well. The one exception 
should be for school district busses. 

lielJe cn~ngo$ would make consIderable improvements to our current situation. They would ensure a safer 
crossing for students because a majority of the students cross at the south leg of the intersection. Currently, 
parent5 "roll" through the intersection and do not notice crossing students. This morning, I watched as a parent 
talking Oli her cell phone almost drove into two students crossing with their bikes. The safety patrol members 
were very deliberate in signaling that the students were crossing, but the driver was not paying attention becaUse 

--..she was talking on a cell phone. These types of incidents would be greatly reduced if the human error factor was 
reduced by prohibiting traffic to enter from and exit into the south leg. 

Furthermore. traffic would enter and exit more quickly because drivers would only be entering from and exiting 
into two legs of the intersection. instead of three legs. The current conditions often create a gridlock. 
Unfortunately, many drivers do not understand the "right-of-way" laws. By reducing the number of legs that traffic 
enters from and exits to, drivers would be required to make less deciSions, which would reduce gridlock and 
improve traffic fiow. In addition, this change would help busses enter the parking lot more quickly, allowing 
5tut"lents to get to their classrooms on time. 

Sincerely, 

Jason Fawcett 

Barnard 5th Grade Teacher & 

Safety Patrol Sponsor 




ITEM 7 


Cityrl' TRAFFIC C,'OMMITTEE REPORT 
!Troy 

June 1, 2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Acting Traffic Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Marengo at Norton 
Request for Information 

• 	 At a previous meeting, Mr. Schepke asked if there had been any requests in the past for signs at the 
intersection of Norton at Marengo, 

• 	 There have been no specific requests for signs or other traffic related requests at this specific intersection. 
• 	 There was a traffic control order (TCO# 99-6-SS) issued for 4-way stop signs at Lovell and Norton as 

approved on October 4, 1999 by City Council (copy attached). 
• 	 Lovell at Norton is the next intersection to the north of Marengo, 
• 	 Maps of the area detailing existing signs and location are attached for your reference, 

Please advise if more information is required, 

K:IATE Files\TC IternsIRequesfs\CypresU,O Parj;ing\TC_Report,.Sc~eoke Request for tnfo.doc 



TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER #99-6-88 

LOCATION: Lovell and Norton 

OF ORDER: Resolved, Traffic Control Order No. 
99-6-88 is approved for 
installation of four-way 8TOP signs on 
Lovell and Norton. 

Date of Council Approval: October 4, 1999 Resolution #99-449 

8 , City Manager 

Date 

Work sent to DPW 


re 


Date Ins led Authorized 8ignature 

WHEN COMPLETED, PLEASE RETURN ORIGINAL TO TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 

Office will s copies after instalTraffic 
to: 

Date sent: 

Police Dept. 

Ci Clerk 

Fire t. 



Road ro.ntorlino 

Major R03(1 

Industrial Road 

Local Road 

Hydrography 

Hydrography 

Parcels 

1: 12,272 

1,,045 
! .. 

[~~t~:;0 1,023 Note: The information provided by this application has been from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and It is not a legally 


NAD_1983 _StatePiane«MicI1igan. SouthJ IPS_2113J ntlFeet recorded map Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 

represented should consulted for verification. 
 l'"'" ".,

~ity of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology 



fS37 	 0 269 Note: The information provided by I~ 1 I deeds, plats, tax surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 

" 
Street Signs 

<all o!hervalues> 

• AAR 

• 811-1 

• 'B3-1 

• 93-3 

• B4-5 

• S5-1L 

• B5-1R 

• B6-1 

• B6-2R 

BUS 

• CO 

• CL 

• 01-1 

• 01-2 

• 01-3A 

• Dl0-2 

• D11-1 

• 02-3 

03-1 

• 03-2 

• D7-1 

• 07-2 

• 00-1 

• 00-14 

• OO-lA 

• E1-3 

• EH 

• E6-2A 

• GAS 

• M1-1 

• M1-4 

• M2-2 

• M3-2 

• M3-4 

• liI..L1? 

Enter Map Description 
I NAD_1983_SlalaPlane_Michigan_SouthJIPS_21 	 recorded map survey. of this data are hereby notified that the source information 

represented should be consulted for verification. City of Troy Geograpmcallnformation Systems - Department of Information Technology 



ITEMS 


~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 
~ 
~ 

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 

~ .... 
~ 
VI .... 

V1~ 
l~ 
~{ 

~~ 
rn~ 

IoU 

~ 
~ 
u: 
II 
~ 

deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

http://gisl serv let/com.esri. esrimap .Esrimap ?ServiceName=TRO Y &Client V ersion=4. O&For... 3/6/2009 



ITEM 9 


Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 



ITEM 10 

r7()(1( 

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

T 1" (~1' pr"" ,::::::: () Y ~~ 1! 



 

 

 
 
Date: July 29, 2009 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Michigan Municipal League, Michigan Green Communities Challenge, An Energy 

Efficiency and Conservation Strategy, Resolution to Participate 
 
 
All Michigan communities are eligible to complete the Basic Challenge, a program designed to 
reflect each community’s commitment to adopt policies and programs of energy efficiency and 
conservation.  If the City of Troy decides to accept the Basic Challenge, City Council must 
pass a resolution indicating its desire to participate, and complete Steps 1 through 6.  These 
steps may seem burdensome; however, the City is the recipient of the $921,100 through the 
federal Energy Efficiency Conservation Block Grant (EECBG).  The City is collaborating with 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates to prepare a Rapid Energy Assessment Program (REAP) to meet 
the requirements of the EECBG.  This REAP will produce the bulk of the information needed 
for the Michigan Municipal League (MML) Green Communities Challenge.   
 
Step 1:  Obtain Organizational Support (Resolution) 
Passage of the support resolution by the City Council is the first essential step toward 
achieving the Basic Challenge.  This resolution acts as a commitment or pledge to work toward 
the objectives as identified in the Michigan Green Communities Challenge. 
 
Step 2:  Assign Responsibility 
Establish an energy manager position/responsibility or management team within the unit of 
local government.  Clearly define roles for the management team which may include a 
sustainability manager, energy manager, or similar title.  Also the City should consider 
establishing an advisory commission (or “Green Team”) composed of local residents and 
business representatives to advise and assist the City Council on policies and practices 
dealing with the environment, energy efficiency and conservation. 
 
Step 3:  Collect Energy Data for Governmental Operations 
Collection of critical data is an important aspect of preparing an accurate and significant 
strategy.  It allows for establishing a baseline for future analysis of energy reduction efforts and 
also allows municipalities to benchmark themselves against similar-sized municipal entities. 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



 

 

Step 4:  Assess Situation and Identify Gaps 
Following data collection, a clearer picture of the community’s status becomes available.  This 
presents an opportunity to begin setting priorities, identifying low-hanging fruit (projects easily 
completed at little or no cost), and also shows a community where gaps may exist.  When the 
community can readily identify gaps in its operations, it can begin to address them through 
planning and implementation. 
 
Step 5:  Develop Goals and Activities:  Planning for the Future 
Goals and activities should be evaluated and selected.  Measurable outcomes should be 
stated so that progress and achievement can be monitored. 
 
Step 6:  Measure Performance and Quantify Results 
Evaluate the progress made by including formal review processes that compare the outcomes 
with the projected goals.  The evaluation results and information gathered will assist in creating 
new goals, identifying best practices, and setting new performance goals.  If applicable, the 
community should review energy use and cost data to measure accomplishments.  Energy 
performance should be compared to baseline information.  Measure your results and reward 
individuals and teams for accomplishments.  The City will then document savings opportunities 
as well as non-quantifiable benefits that can be leveraged for future initiatives. 
 
All members of the Michigan Municipal League who enroll in the Basic Challenge prior to 
August 15, 2009, will receive recognition at the League’s Annual Convention, September 22-
25, 2009, in Kalamazoo.  Upon enrollment, a community will receive additional materials 
designed to assist the community in the completion of the Challenge.  At the League’s Annual 
Convention, communities will also have the opportunity to attend sessions designed to 
specifically “walk through” the Basic Challenge.  
 
Attachment 
 
 
Prepared by MFM 
 
G:\Michigan Green Communities Challenge\CC Resolution August 3 2009.docx 
 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mark Miller, AICP, PCP 
 
FROM: Richard Carlisle, AICP, PCP 

DATE: July 29, 2009 
 
RE: Rapid Energy Assessment Process 
 
 

Initially designed to help Michigan communities obtain their funding and meet the Federal 
submittal EECBG requirements, CWA created the Rapid Energy Assessment Process© (REAP).  
The REAP allows communities to identify the most immediate energy-related areas in which 
they can improve, and obtain the best benefit from their energy dollars. For the EECBG program 
specifically, this process is an eligible administrative expense that can be paid for with a portion 
of a community’s grant award.   

Elements of REAP 

The REAP identifies energy conservation and renewable energy opportunities, cites case studies, 
identifies costs and impacts, and helps communities prioritize their energy projects.  It includes 
assessments in the following four areas: 

• Renewable energy 

• Policy 

• Building conservation 

• Transportation 

These four assessment areas will be reviewed for at least the following: 

• Feasibility and data needs: How close is your community to being able to complete this 
project? Is the necessary information available? 

• Funding availability: What activities are eligible in the EECBG/ Economic Recovery Act 
or other funding sources? Are the funds going to be leveraged? 

• Required personnel: Can the project start and be completed with available personnel? 
Will it create or retain jobs? 



REAP July 29, 2009 

 2

• Potential benefit: What is the benefit of this project, and does it justify the expense or 
effort when reviewed against other similar projects? Does the project meet the objectives 
of the EECBG program or other programs or goals of the City? 

EECBG and the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Strategy 

EECBG block grants were intended to provide money for projects such as developing energy 
conservation strategies and programs to conserve energy used in transportation, revising zoning 
requirements to promote energy efficiency, and developing non-motorized infrastructure and 
plans.  The receipt of this money obligates the community to prepare an Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Strategy (EECS) within 120 days from the time of the award, a short time frame.  
The Rapid Energy Assessment Process (REAP) allows communities to quickly assess energy 
efficiency potential and largely meet the submittal requirements for the EECS.  

The Importance of the Energy and Land Use Connection 

Local units of government have largely relied on state and federal programs to tackle the energy 
issues of today.  However, as the EECBG demonstrates, it is the local units of government that 
the federal and state governments are relying on to actually execute energy efficiency and 
conservation programs.  Local governments are not trained or equipped to quickly adapt to this 
new way of thinking and this new responsibility.   
 
However, it clear that long-term energy efficiency and conservation must be clearly and directly 
tied to land use planning and community development.  Compact, smart-growth, walkable 
communities are intrinsically energy efficient.  The use of transit and non-motorized 
transportation are tremendous energy savers.  Green building, low-impact development, transit-
oriented development, and mixed-use projects all contribute to community-wide energy savings, 
and all are currently visible topics in community planning. 
 
This clear connection reveals that energy planning and community planning should go hand-in-
hand, and that with an affordable, easily implemented tool like the Rapid Energy Assessment 
Process, we have an opportunity to firmly implant energy planning into the everyday role of 
local government. 
 



 
 
Date July 30, 2009 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Charter Section 6.2 (g) Recommendation 
 
Background: 
  
 At their Regular meeting on Monday, July 20, 2009, the City Council requested that City 

Administration review the proposed amendment to Section 6.2(g), specifically the 
effective date provision placed on the amendment by the Attorney General. 
 
City Administration has reviewed the amendment and removed the effective date of the 
amendment provision and inserted the filing deadline of 120 days to eliminate the call of a 
Special Election. 
 
In addition, due to the City Council approving the placement of multiple amendments on 
the November 3, 2009 ballot, it is requested that the City Council determine the ballot 
placement order of the amendments. It would be recommended that the placement order 
be numerical by Charter Section number.  

  
 EXISTING CHARTER LANGUAGE: 

 
Section 6.2 - Vacancies in Elective Office: 
 
(g) Any City Council member desiring to become a candidate for any City elective office, 

except to succeed oneself, shall resign from the Council prior to the filing deadline of 
the municipal election.  

  
 PROPOSED REVISED CHARTER LANGUAGE: 

 
Section 6.2 - Vacancies in Elective Office: 
 
(g) Any member of City Council who wants to run for a City office different from the 
office currently held shall file an irrevocable letter of resignation effective no later than the 
date and time the successor takes office. The letter of irrevocable resignation shall be 
filed with the City Clerk prior to July 1st to allow for the future vacancy created to be 
placed on the next Regular Election ballot. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM   

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



 
 The recommended Charter Amendment ballot language is as follows: 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
A. Resolution #2009-08- 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the following 
proposed Charter Amendment for the November 3, 2009 City General Election: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2(g) 
– VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE TO ALLOW FOR CONTINUED 
SERVICE FOR SITTING COUNCIL MEMBERS SEEKING ANOTHER 
ELECTED CITY OFFICE UNTIL THE SEATING OF THE NEW COUNCIL 

 
Shall Section 6.2(g) be amended by deleting the requirement for a City 
Council member seeking to be a candidate for any other City elective office 
resign from the Council prior to the filing deadline for the municipal election 
and substituting in its place a requirement that a City Council member shall 
file with the City Clerk, prior to July 1st an irrevocable letter of resignation to 
allow for the future vacancy created to be placed on the next Regular 
Election Ballot? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 
B. 
 

Resolution #2009-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES that the Charter Amendments 
be placed on the November 3, 2009 ballot in numerical order by Charter Section 
number.  
 
Yes: 
No: 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 20, 2009, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor Jack Mannschreck of Big Beaver United Methodist Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL: 

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mary Kerwin 

ABSENT: 

 Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak – Absent from state 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) Robin Beltramini, President of the Michigan Municipal League provided an update of 

MML activities. 
b) Phillip Kwik, Technology Department Head at the Troy Public Library provided a 

presentation regarding the 2009 World Book/ALA Information Literacy Goal Award. 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Street Vacation – Twenty-five Foot (25’) Wide Right-of-Way Platted as Part of 
Supervisor’s Plat No. 10, Markton Street, North of Naughton and South of I-75, 
Abutting 1125 and 1200 Naughton, M-1 (Light Industrial) District, Section 26 (File 
Number: SV 34-B) 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2009-07-210 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, A request was received for the vacation of a section of the 25-foot-wide platted 
street, located north of Naughton and south of I-75, and abutting Lot 11 (1125 Naughton) and 
Lots 16 and 24 (1200 Naughton) of Supervisor’s Plat No. 10, in Section 26; and 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended that this street vacation be granted with 
the retention of a 25-foot wide easement for public and private utilities; 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The property which shall benefit from this requested 
vacation is Lot 11 (1125 Naughton, City of Troy Tax Parcel 20-26-152-005) and Lots 16 and 24 
(1200 Naughton, City of Troy Tax Parcel 20-26-153-026) of Supervisor’s Plat No. 10; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby VACATES a section of the 25-
foot-wide platted street, located north of Naughton and south of I-75, and abutting Lots 11, 16 
and 24 of Supervisor’s Plat No. 10, in Section 26; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RETAINS a 25-foot wide 
easement for public and private utilities; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
a certified copy of this resolution with the Oakland County Register of Deeds. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing 

Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital Troy 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving introductions from the petitioner. There 
was no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2009-07-211 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to 
make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by the Hospital 
to (1) finance the construction, acquisition, renovation, equipping, rehabilitation and/or improve 
hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan and (2) refinance indebtedness used to finance 
the construction, renovation and equipping of certain hospital facilities in the City of Troy, 
Michigan;  
 
WHEREAS, The Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group) and Hospital Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group), in one or more series (the 
“Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 
$120,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital;  
 
WHEREAS, The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute 
general obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, 
the State of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof;  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as provided 
in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);  
 
WHEREAS, A record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk;  
 
WHEREAS, The Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority; 
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of 
the Code, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the 
issuance, sale and delivery of not to exceed $120,000,000 in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds by the Authority; and 

 
2. The City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to provide three (3) certified 

copies of this resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Marvin Reinhardt 
James Savage 
Audrey Zembrzuski 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
E-4 City Manager Contract 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Mary Ann Bernardi 
Jack Witt 
Susan Werpetinski  
John Witt 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached Employment Agreement 
between the City of Troy and City Manager A. John Szerlag, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
the City Clerk to EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of Troy. A copy of the 
Employment Agreement shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend The Employment Agreement between the City of Troy and 
City Manager A. John Szerlag 
 
Resolution #2009-07-212 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS The Employment Agreement between 
the City of Troy and City Manager A. John Szerlag by STRIKING “attached” and INSERTING 
“as laid on the table” AFTER “Employment Agreement”, and by STRIKING “three (3) weeks of 
paid vacation” and INSERTING “two (2) weeks of paid vacation” in SECTION 9. VACATION 
LEAVE. 
  
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini   
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Approve The Employment Agreement between the City of Troy 
and City Manager A. John Szerlag as Amended 
 
Resolution #2009-07-213 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Employment Agreement as laid 
on the table between the City of Troy and City Manager A. John Szerlag and as AMENDED by 
STRIKING “three (3) weeks of paid vacation” and INSERTING “two (2) weeks of paid vacation” 
in SECTION 9. VACATION LEAVE, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and the City Clerk to 
EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of Troy. A copy of the Employment Agreement 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 5 - 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 
Commission (b) City Council Appointments: Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; 
Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; and Troy Daze Committee 

 
a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Resolution #2009-07-214 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor - Student 1-Year Term 
 
Adrienne Milner - Student Term Expires 07/31/2010 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher   
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2009-07-215 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council – Student 1-Year Term 
 
Liyuan (Lily) Huang-Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
David Guo-Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) – 3-Year Terms; Student 1-Year Term 
 
Kevin Lindsey Term Expires 07/31/2012 
 
Library Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council – Student 1 Year Term 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 6 - 

Paul Lee-Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council – Student 1-Year Term 
 
Sarah Wunderlich-Student Term Expires 07/31/2010 
 
Alice Liang-Student Term Expires 07/31/2010 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield , Eisenbacher, Fleming    
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: No Nominations Presented (b) City Council Nominations: No 
Nominations Presented 

 
E-3 Charter Revision Committee Recommendations 
 
(1) Section 3.7 – Election of Mayor Pro Tem - Annual Term 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES as to form the following proposed Charter 
Amendment for the November 3, 2009 City General Election: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 3.7 – TO 
PROVIDE THAT THE MAYOR PRO TEM SHALL BE ELECTED BY THE COUNCIL 
MEMBERS ANNUALLY, RATHER THAN NOVEMBER IN EVERY ODD-
NUMBERED YEAR. 

 
Shall Section 3.7 be amended to provide that the Mayor Pro Tem be elected 
annually in November by the Council from among its members, rather than in 
November in every odd-numbered year? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Vote on Resolution to Amend E-03 Charter Revision Committee Recommendations 
Section 3.7 – Election of Mayor Pro Tem - Annual Term 
 
Resolution #2009-07-216 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution E-03 Charter Revision 
Committee Recommendations Section 3.7 – Election of Mayor Pro Tem - Annual Term by 
REPOSITIONING “by the Council from among its members” and INSERTING it AFTER 
“elected.” 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield , Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin    
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution E-03 Charter Revision Committee Recommendations Section 3.7 – 
Election of Mayor Pro Tem - Annual Term as Amended 
 
Resolution #2009-07-217 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES as to form the following proposed Charter 
Amendment for the November 3, 2009 City General Election: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 3.7 – TO 
PROVIDE THAT THE MAYOR PRO TEM SHALL BE ELECTED BY THE COUNCIL 
MEMBERS ANNUALLY, RATHER THAN NOVEMBER IN EVERY ODD-
NUMBERED YEAR. 

 
Shall Section 3.7 be amended to provide that the Mayor Pro Tem be elected by the 
Council from among its members, annually in November, rather than in November in 
every odd-numbered year? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield , Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling     
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(2) Section 3.10 – City Manager; Appointment and Qualification 
 
Resolution #2009-07-218 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES as to form the following proposed Charter 
Amendment for the November 3, 2009 City General Election: 
 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 8 - 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 3.10 – 
TO AMEND THE RESIDENCY REQUIREMENT FOR THE TROY CITY 
MANAGER, WHICH IS NOT ENFORCEABLE UNDER STATE LAW, AND 
REPLACE WITH STATUATORILY ALLOWABLE RESIDENCY 
REQUIREMENTS. 
 
Shall Section 3.10 be amended to delete the requirement that the Troy City 
Manager reside in the City (which is not enforceable under current State Law) 
and to substitute in its place a requirement that the City Manager shall reside 
within 20 miles of the city unless by law the City Manager is permitted to 
reside in a location even more distant from the city? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(3) Section 6.2(g) - Vacancies in Elective Office 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Victor Lenivov 
 
There was a consensus of City Council Members present to take no action on the proposed 
Charter Amendment (3) Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office at this time to allow the City 
Attorney and City Clerk to re-draft the language to eliminate “This provision shall be effective for 
each City official elected at the City Election on November 3, 2009 and thereafter”.The revised 
language to be placed on the Monday, August 3, 2009 Regular City Council Meeting Agenda. 
  
CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2009-07-219 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item F-3a, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 9 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2009-07-219-F-2  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of July 6, 2009 as submitted; the Minutes of the 5:30 PM Special City 
Council Meeting of July 7, 2009 as submitted; the Minutes of the 9:00 AM Special City Council 
Meeting of July 8, 2009 as submitted; and the Minutes of the 7:00 PM Special City Council 
Meeting of July 9, 2009 as submitted.  
 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolution 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Troy Daze Tent 

Rentals  
 
Resolution #2009-07-219-F-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish and erect tents for 
the Troy Daze Festival to the low bidders, S & R Event Rental, of Harrison Township, MI, and 
Ace Canvas & Tent, of Detroit, MI for an estimated total cost of $13,520.00 and $3,200.00 
respectively, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 24, 2009, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
F-5 Approval to Purchase a Foreclosed Property for Drain Purposes Resulting from 

Non-Payment of Taxes for Drain Purposes 
  
Resolution #2009-07-219-F-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate and Development 
Department to purchase foreclosed property with Sidwell # 20-15-378-030, for the amount of 
unpaid real property taxes, interest and finance charges in an amount not to exceed $3,000.00, 
plus closing and administrative costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby VACATES any currently active 
special assessments. 
 
F-6 Approval to Purchase Foreclosed Properties for Park Purposes Resulting from 

Non-Payment of Property Taxes  
 
Resolution #2009-07-219-F-6 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate and Development 
Department to purchase foreclosed property with Sidwell # 20-22-326-001, 20-22-326-002, 20-
22-326-012, and 20-22-326-013, for the amount of unpaid real property taxes, interest and 
finance charges in an amount not to exceed $80,000.00, plus closing and administrative costs; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby VACATES any currently active 
special assessments. 
 
F-7 Private Agreement for Sonic Restaurant – Project No. 09.902.3  
 
Resolution #2009-07-219-F-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and PRG-SD, Inc., for 
the installation of water main, sidewalks, deceleration lane, and soil erosion on the site and in 
the adjacent right of way, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Resolution #2009-07-220 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
a) Parks and Recreation Month – July, 2009  
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher   
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council,  Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 19 L. 
 
Resolution #2009-07-221 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 19 L. Closed Session and AUTHORIZE Troy City 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

Council to discuss and take action on the following item that does not appear on the agenda: L-
1 Closed Session.  
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming   
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted  

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Member Beltramini encouraged the public to view the various medias available to take 
advantage of the numerous Parks and Recreation programs available to them. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher requested that the Charter Revision suggestion he brought 
forward at the July 6, 2009 Regular City Council be referred to the Charter Revision 
Committee. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I Council Comments 
 
Resolution #2009-07-222 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business, Article 15-I Council Comments and AUTHORIZE Troy City 
Council to discuss and take action on the following item that does not appear on the agenda: 
Proposed Charter Revision Amendment Referral to Charter Revision Committee.  
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin    
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 12 - 

Vote on Resolution to Refer Proposed Charter Revision to Charter Revision Committee 
 
Resolution #2009-07-223 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REFERS Proposed Charter Revision Regarding 
Vacancies in Elective Office to the Charter Revision Committee for their consideration. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling    
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Council Member Fleming referred to agenda item J-7 Communication from City Engineer 
Steven Vandette Regarding Current Local Road Conditions and Analysis of Road Maintenance 
Funding and pointed out that this memorandum projects that the overall road conditions and 
funding are expected to decline over the next five years. He added that this issue will have to 
be addressed in the City’s next budget. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher requested that they begin to prioritize these types of items in 
preparation for the next budget. City Manager, John Szerlag responded that City Management 
has already begun the process. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher appreciated receiving the information in agenda item J-6 
Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Review of Sidewalk 
and Drive Approach Bids in response to his questions regarding costs for sidewalks and 
contract renewal. 
 
Mayor Schilling commended Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development 
Services, for his involvement on many projects especially his work on the transit center and the 
pursuit for funding, which resulted in the recent approval of funding by the House 
Appropriations Committee and the expected approval of the House and Senate. 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Charter Revision Committee/Final – March 20, 2009  
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – May 13, 2009 
c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – May 21, 2009 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 3, 2009  
e) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 13, 2009 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 13 - 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department – Permits Issued June 2009 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued January 2009 – June 2009 
c) Building Department – Permits Issued July 2008 – June 2009 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Suzanne Kayser Regarding the Outstanding 

Service of Officers Pokley, Morgan and Mouch; and Sergeants Giorgi and Nastasi  
b) Letter of Thanks to Aquatic Center Staff from the Giorgi Family  
c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Nelson from Clawson Fire Chief Ballard Regarding Fire Station 

Coverage  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
  
J-5  Communication from Police Department Regarding Proof of TIPS/TAMS Server 

Training 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Review of 

Sidewalk and Drive Approach Bids 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Communication from City Engineer Steven Vandette Regarding Current Local 

Road Conditions and Analysis of Road Maintenance Funding 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2009-07-224 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by MCL 
15.268 (h) – MCL 15.243 (g). 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 14 - 

Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini    
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:42 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:55 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:30 PM. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 20, 2009 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 20, 2009, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6:02 PM. 

 ROLL CALL: 

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher – Arrived at 6:05 PM 
Wade Fleming  
Mary Kerwin 

ABSENT: 

Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak – Absent from state 
 

DISCUSSION ITEM:  

1. Discussion of City Manager Contract 
 
Outside labor counsel, Craig W. Lange, of Roumell, Lange & Cholack, P.C. was present to 
explain the conditions of the proposed City Manager contract and respond to questions brought 
forward by City Council Members in a round table discussion.  

PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Jack Witt 
Mary Ann Bernardi 
Audrey Zembrzuski  
Jim Werpetinski 
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 6:58 PM. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\contracts\agendarequests\troyyouthassistance09-10.doc 

 
 
 
July 23, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend 

Budgeted Funds – Troy Youth Assistance 
 
 
Background: 
 
Funding requirements were previously approved by City Council resolution #2008-09-306, resolution 
#2007-09-270, resolution #2006-08-342, resolution #2005-10-459, resolution #2004-07-354, 
resolution #2003-10-529, resolution #2002-07-424, and resolution #2001-07-373. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – Troy Youth Assistance 
account #3057802104 has been designated for the funding of this program.  The Police Department 
requests approval to continue to provide funding the TROY YOUTH ASSISTANCE in the amount of 
$33,950.00 for the 2009/2010 fiscal year.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: __________________________  ___________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
The Troy Youth Assistance will provide diversion programs and community services to the residents 
in the City of Troy.  The services provided would otherwise be the responsibility of the City of Troy. 
 
 
 
GGM/tc Troy Youth Assistance 09-10 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND TROY YOUTH 

ASSISTANCE  
  

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 

Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Troy Youth Assistance, 

4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  48098, a Michigan non-profit organization, (hereinafter 

referred to as “TYA”),   

  

RECITALS  
  

  WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for youth 

and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable those served to cope 

with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to make optimal use of their 

world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-site 

service for youth, especially those who cannot afford private services; and  

  

  WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide youth residents of the City an opportunity 

to participate in the TYA program; and  

  

  WHEREAS, the general purpose of the TYA is to provide opportunities for mental, 

social and physical growth and development of youth; and  

   

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

youth of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter 

contained, the parties agree as follows:  

  

TYA RESPONSIBILITIES.    

  

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by TYA is as follows:  

  

  A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at TYA shall be available to the youths of the community who 

are having difficulty in their personal and social adjustments.  This person will work 

with youths, parents, schools and other community organizations, consistent with 

their professional training and licensing, in helping the youth grow towards a more 

satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a liaison for the youth, agencies, and 

family.  

  

B.  TYA shall also offer programs to resident youth which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the youth.  

  

    C.  TYA will continue to provide service at the current level or greater.  

  

 



2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at TYA, and will be available for 

inspection by the CITY on request.  

  

3.  Location of Facility.  TYA shall provide an office or treatment facility within the 

CITY.  Currently, that facility is located at 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan  48098.  

The CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of 

the facility.  

  

4.  Service Documentation.  TYA shall provide a quarterly report which may be in 

the form of minutes from monthly TYA Board of Directors meetings to the CITY in 

October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the following 

information:  

  

A.  Data regarding TYA’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by TYA programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc.  

  

    B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s).  

  

    C.  All community and special projects undertaken by TYA.  

  

    D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

               jeopardizing the confidentiality of the TYA clientele.  

  

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  TYA shall maintain an accounting system to identify and 

support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, and 

general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers and 

receipts that detail the reason for the transaction.  

  

TYA shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year which 

falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These budgets 

shall show the TYA budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded and 

claimed to other funding sources.  

  

TYA shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in the 

form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the TYA Board of Directors in 

October, January, April and July, including total income and expenditures for the 

previous three (3) months.  

  

TYA agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 

this Agreement for six years after final payment.    

  

 



6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, TYA will review with the CITY 

staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are appropriate 

educational guidance and counseling activities which may be utilized  by the youth.    

  

7.  Confidentiality.  The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants for 

services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance of 

the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements.  

  

8.  Subcontracts.  TYA shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY.  

  

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  TYA shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any losses, 

damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including attorney fees, 

interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused directly or indirectly 

by any act or omission of TYA or its officers, directors, employees, agents or 

volunteers.  

  

10. Insurance.  TYA shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory to 

the CITY that indicates that TYA is covered under a policy of insurance or self-

insurance with Oakland County, Michigan.  

  

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES  

  

  The CITY hereby agrees to pay to TYA an amount not to exceed $33,950.00 for 

services performed under this Agreement.  Payments are to be made in four quarterly 

installments of $8,487.50 each during the months of September and November 2009 and 

February and May, 2010.  

  

  Obligations incurred by TYA prior to or after the period covered by this Agreement 

shall be excluded.  

  

MUTUAL COVENANTS  

  

1. Cancellation of Agreement.  If the CITY determines that TYA fails to comply 

with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 

the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 

utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 

compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 

Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to TYA.  If TYA becomes 

defunct, TYA will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 

termination.  

  



2.  Employees of TYA.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of TYA shall 

not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any purposes solely 

because of their participation with TYA.  

  

3.  Independent Contractors.  TYA is an independent contractor, and its agents, 

employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is not a 

joint venture for the profit of either party.  

  

4.  Compliance with Laws.  TYA shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement.  

  

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of August 1, 

2009 and shall terminate on July 31, 2010 unless terminated under the provisions set 

forth in this Agreement.  

  

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and TYA have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers.  

  

  

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY  

  

  

____________________________     ____________________________  

Louise Schilling, Mayor  

  

____________________________                 ______________________________  

              Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  

  

  

  

WITNESSES:           TROY YOUTH ASSISTANCE  

  

  

____________________________     _____________________________  

              Leonette Ciepielowski, Chairperson   

  

____________________________    

 

  



o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\contracts\agendarequests\avondaleyouthassistance09-10.doc 

 
 
July 23, 2009 
                         
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend 

Budgeted Funds – Avondale Youth Assistance 
 
 
Background: 
 
Funding requirements were previously approved by City Council resolution # 2008-09-305, resolution 
#2008-04-120, resolution #2006-09-356, resolution #2005-10-458, resolution #2004-07-354, 
resolution #2003-09-467, and resolution #2002-07-424. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – Avondale Youth Assistance 
account #3057802104 has been designated for the funding of this program.  The Police Department 
requests approval to continue to provide funding the AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE in the 
amount of $5,820.00 for the 2009/2010 fiscal year.  
  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: __________________________  ___________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
The Avondale Youth Assistance will provide diversion programs and community services to the 
residents in the City of Troy.  The services provided would otherwise be the responsibility of the City 
of Troy. 
 
 
 
 
GGM/tc Avondale Youth Assistance 09-10 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND AVONDALE YOUTH 

ASSISTANCE 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Avondale Youth 

Assistance, 260 South Squirrel Road, Auburn Hills, Michigan  48326, , a Michigan non-

profit organization, (hereinafter referred to as “AYA”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for youth 

and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable those served to 

cope with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to make optimal use of 

their world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-

site service for youth, especially those who cannot afford private services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide youth residents of the City an 

opportunity to participate in the AYA program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the AYA is to provide opportunities for 

mental, social and physical growth and development of youth; and 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

youth of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants hereinafter 

contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

AYA RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by AYA is as follows: 

 

 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at AYA shall be available to the youths of the community who 

are having difficulty in their personal and social adjustments.  This person will 

work with youths, parents, schools and other community organizations, consistent 

with their professional training and licensing, in helping the youth grow towards a 

more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a liaison for the youth, 

agencies, and family. 

 

B.  AYA shall also offer programs to resident youth which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the youth. 

 

  C.  AYA will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 

 



 2 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at AYA, and will be available 

for inspection by the CITY on request. 

 

3.  Location of Facility.  AYA shall provide an office or treatment facility within 

a reasonable distance from the CITY. The CITY shall be notified immediately of 

any relocation or planned relocation of the facility. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  AYA shall provide a quarterly report which may be 

in the form of minutes from monthly AYA Board of Directors meetings to the 

CITY in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the 

following information: 

 

A.  Data regarding AYA’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by AYA programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by AYA. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the AYA clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  AYA shall maintain an accounting system to identify 

and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 

and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 

and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 

AYA shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year 

which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 

budgets shall show the AYA budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded 

and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

AYA shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in 

the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the AYA Board of 

Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 

expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 

AYA agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 

this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, AYA will review with the 

CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 



 3 

appropriate educational guidance and counseling activities which may be utilized 

by the youth.   

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  AYA shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  AYA shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 

losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including 

attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused 

directly or indirectly by any act or omission of AYA or its officers, directors, 

employees, agents or volunteers. 

 

10. Insurance.  AYA shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory 

to the CITY that indicates that AYA is covered under a policy of insurance or 

self-insurance with Oakland County, Michigan. 

 

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to AYA an amount not to exceed $ 5,820.00 for 

services performed under this Agreement.  Payment is to be made in a lump sum in 

September of 2009. 

 

 Obligations incurred by AYA prior to or after the period covered by this 

Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that AYA fails to comply 

with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 

the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 

utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 

compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 

Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to AYA.  If AYA becomes 

defunct, AYA will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 

termination. 

 



 4 

2.  Employees of  AYA.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of AYA 

shall not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any purposes 

solely because of their participation with AYA. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  AYA is an independent contractor, and its agents, 

employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is 

not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  AYA shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of August 1, 

2009 and shall terminate on July 31, 2010 unless terminated under the provisions 

set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and AYA have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                ______________________________ 

      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:  AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE 

 

____________________________  _____________________________ 

      John Dalton, AYA Chairperson 

 

____________________________    



 
o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\contracts\agendarequests\commonground09-10.doc 

 
 
 July 23, 2009                          
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend 

Budgeted Funds – Common Ground 
 
 
Background: 
 
Funding requirements were previously approved by City Council resolution #2008-09-305, resolution 
#2007-09-269, resolution #2006-09-367, resolution #2005-10-458, resolution #2004-11-576, 
resolution #2003-02-091, and resolution #2001-02-076. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – Common Ground account 
#3057802107 has been designated for the funding of this program.  The Police Department requests 
approval to continue to provide funding the COMMON GROUND in the amount of $2,040.00 for the 
2009/2010 fiscal year.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: __________________________  ___________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
The services provided by Common Ground include: the Oakland County Crisis Response Team, 
Victim’s Assistance Program, Community Education and Training Programs, and a Legal Clinic.  The 
services provided would otherwise be the responsibility of the City of Troy. 
 
 
 
GGM/tc Common Ground 09-10 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND  

COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and Common Ground 

Sanctuary, 1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302, a Michigan 

non-profit organization, (hereinafter referred to as “ Common Ground Sanctuary”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for problem-solving for individuals and 

families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with mental illness, persons trying to cope 

with critical situations and runaway and homeless youths, especially those who cannot 

afford private services; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of Common Ground Sanctuary is to provide 

opportunities for individuals and families in crisis: 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

individual, including youth and families of the CITY, and in consideration of the 

promises and mutual covenants hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by Common Ground Sanctuary is as follows: 

 

 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at Common Ground Sanctuary shall oversee programs 

designed to make crisis assistant available including, but not limited to, a 24-hour 

crisis telephone line, victim assistance programs, runaway and homeless youth 

shelters, street outreach programs, legal clinics and in-home counseling programs.   

 

B.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall offer these programs to  individuals, 

including youth, and families in crisis, victims of crime, persons with mental 

illness, individuals trying to cope with critical situations and runaway and 

homeless youths, including residents of the City of Troy. 

 

C.  Common Ground Sanctuary will continue to provide service at the 

current level or greater. 

 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at Common Ground Sanctuary, 

and will be available for inspection by the CITY on request. 

 



 2 

3.  Location of Facility.  Common Ground Sanctuary has administrative offices at 

1410 South Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302.  The CITY shall 

be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of the facility. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide a quarterly 

report which may be in the form of minutes from monthly Common Ground 

Sanctuary Board of Directors meetings to the CITY in October, January, April 

and July, including but not limited to the following information: 

 

A.  Data regarding Common Ground Sanctuary’s operation, including but 

not limited to, the number of persons serviced by Common Ground 

Sanctuary programs, attendance records for counseling and programs, 

duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

C.  All community and special projects undertaken by Common Ground 

Sanctuary. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

jeopardizing the confidentiality of the Common Ground Sanctuary 

clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall maintain an 

accounting system to identify and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and 

expenses for which services are provided under this Agreement.  The accounting 

system, at a minimum, shall consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, 

cash disbursements journal, and general ledger.  All expenditures and income 

must be supported by vouchers and receipts that detail the reason for the 

transaction. 

 

Common Ground Sanctuary shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget 

for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this 

Agreement.  These budgets shall show the Common Ground Sanctuary budget, 

total expenditures, and expenditures funded and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

Common Ground Sanctuary shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial 

statement which may be in the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to 

the Common Ground Sanctuary Board of Directors in October, January, April and 

July, including total income and expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 

Common Ground Sanctuary agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other 

documents relevant to this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, Common Ground Sanctuary 

will review with the CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to 



 3 

determine if there are appropriate crisis guidance programs and counseling 

activities which may be utilized by individuals and families.   

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall not assign this Agreement or 

enter into any subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining 

prior written approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall indemnify, 

save and hold harmless the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and 

affiliated entities from any losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, 

and liabilities, including attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may 

arise from or be caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of Common 

Ground Sanctuary or its officers, directors, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 

10. Insurance.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall present to the CITY 

documentation that is satisfactory to the CITY that indicates that Common 

Ground Sanctuary is covered under a policy of insurance or self-insurance with 

Oakland County, Michigan. 

 

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to Common Ground Sanctuary an amount not to 

exceed $ 2,040.00 for services performed under this Agreement.  Payment is to be made 

in one payment in September, 2009. 

 

 Obligations incurred by Common Ground Sanctuary prior to or after the period 

covered by this Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that Common Ground 

Sanctuary fails to comply with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its 

responsibility as indicated in the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the 

methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 

Agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the 

CITY reserves the right to cancel this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days 

written notice to Common Ground Sanctuary,  If  Common Ground Sanctuary 

becomes defunct, Common Ground Sanctuary will reimburse the CITY for all 

pre-payments based on the date of termination. 

 



 4 

2.  Employees of Common Ground Sanctuary.  Representatives, employees and 

volunteers of Common Ground Sanctuary shall not be deemed to be employees or 

agents of the CITY for any purposes solely because of their participation with 

Common Ground Sanctuary. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  Common Ground Sanctuary is an independent 

contractor, and its agents, employees, or servants are responsible for its own 

conduct.  This Agreement is not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  Common Ground Sanctuary shall be responsible for 

compliance with all Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of 

the law or ordinance results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 

2009 and shall terminate on June 30, 2010 unless terminated under the provisions 

set forth in this Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and Common Ground Sanctuary have caused this 

Agreement to be executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                 ______________________________ 

      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:     COMMON GROUND SANCTUARY 

 

 

____________________________  _____________________________ 

      Tony Rothschild, President and CEO  

 

____________________________  



o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\contracts\agendarequests\troycommunitycoalition09-10.doc 

 
 
 July 23, 2009                            
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend 

Budgeted Funds – Troy Community Coalition 
 
 
Background: 
 
Funding requirements were previously approved by City Council resolution #2008-09-305-F-4e, 
resolution #2007-08-233, resolution #2006-08-342, resolution #2005-09-416, resolution #2004-09-
454, resolution #2003-09-474, resolution #2002-07-427, and resolution #2001-09-449. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – Troy Community Coalition 
account #3057802109 has been designated for the funding of this program.  The Police Department 
requests approval to continue to provide funding the TROY COMMUNITY COALITION in the amount 
of $97,000.00 for the 2009/2010 fiscal year.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: __________________________  ___________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
The Troy Community Coalition will provide community services to prevent drug and alcohol abuse.  
The services provided would otherwise be the responsibility of the City of Troy 
 
 
 
GGM/tc Troy Community Coalition 09-10 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04d



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND 

 TROY COMMUNITY COALITION 

 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan 48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Troy Community 

Coalition, 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 48098, a Michigan non-profit organization, 

(hereinafter referred to as “TCC”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for 

individuals in an effort to prevent drug and alcohol abuse through individual, group, and 

family counseling to enable those served to cope with problems adversely affecting the 

ability of the individual to make optimal use of their world, i.e. social adjustment, work 

adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-site service for individuals, especially 

those who cannot afford private services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide individuals with an opportunity to 

participate in the TCC program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the TCC is to provide opportunities for 

mental, social and physical growth and development of individuals to prevent drug and 

alcohol abuse and to cope with their environment; and 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of 

residents of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 

hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

TCC RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by TCC is as follows: 

 

 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor, on staff at TCC shall be available to the individuals of the community 

who are having difficulty in their personal and social adjustments.  This person 

will work with individuals, youths, parents, schools and other community 

organizations, consistent with their professional training and licensing, in helping 

the youth grow towards a more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a 

liaison for the individual, agencies, and family. 

 

B.  TCC shall also offer programs to individuals which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the individuals and to prevent drug and 

alcohol abuse. 

 



 2 

  C.  TCC will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 

 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at TCC, and will be available for 

inspection by the CITY on request. 

 

3.  Location of Facility.  TCC shall provide an office or treatment facility within 

the CITY.  Currently, that facility is located at 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 

48098.  The CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned 

relocation of the facility. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  TCC shall provide a quarterly report which may be in 

the form of minutes from monthly TCC Board of Directors meetings to the CITY 

in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the following 

information: 

 

A.  Data regarding TCC’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by TCC programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by TCC. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the TCC clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  TCC shall maintain an accounting system to identify and 

support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 

and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 

and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 

TCC shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year 

which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 

budgets shall show the TCC budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded 

and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

TCC shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in 

the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the TCC Board of 

Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 

expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 

TCC agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 

this Agreement for six years after final payment.   



 3 

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, TCC will review with the 

CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 

appropriate counseling activities or educational guidance and which may be 

utilized by the individual.   

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  TCC shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  TCC shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 

losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including 

attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused 

directly or indirectly by any act or omission of TCC or its officers, directors, 

employees, agents or volunteers. 

 

10. Insurance.  TCC shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory 

to the CITY that indicates that TCC is covered under a policy of insurance or self-

insurance. 

 

TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to TCC an amount not to exceed $97,000.00 for 

services performed under this Agreement. Full payment shall be made by September 30, 

2009.  

 

 Obligations incurred by TCC prior to or after the period covered by this 

Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that TCC fails to comply 

with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 

the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 

utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 

compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 

Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to TCC.  If TCC becomes 

defunct, TCC will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 

termination. 



 4 

 

2.  Employees of  TCC.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of TCC shall 

not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any purposes solely 

because of their participation with TCC. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  TCC is an independent contractor, and its agents, 

employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is 

not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  TCC shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of September 

1, 2009 and shall terminate on August 31, 2010 unless terminated under the 

provisions set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and TCC have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                           ______________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:      TROY COMMUNITY COALITION 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

       Ann M. Comiskey,  

       Executive Director 



o:\administrative staff\1 office coordinator\agenda\contracts\agendarequests\haven09-10.doc 

 
 
                             
July 23, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend 

Budgeted Funds – HAVEN 
 
 
Background: 
 
Funding requirements were previously approved by City Council resolution #2008-09-305, resolution 
#2007-09-269, resolution #2006-09-356, resolution #2005-10-458, and resolution #2004-11-576. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – HAVEN account #3057802108 
has been designated for the funding of this program.  The Police Department requests approval to 
continue to provide funding the HAVEN in the amount of $4,370.00 for the 2009/2010 fiscal year.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: __________________________  ___________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
The services provided by the HAVEN Program include: the Domestic Violence Counseling Program, 
Sexual Assault/Child Abuse Treatment Program, Court Advocacy Counseling/First Response Team, 
Residential Program, and Men Exercising Non-Violent Skills Counseling Program.  The services 
provided would otherwise be the responsibility of the City of Troy. 
 
 
 
 
GGM/tc HAVEN 09-10 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04e



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND HAVEN, INC. 

 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 

Troy, Michigan  48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and Haven, Inc., 2550 

Telegraph Road, Suite 111, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302, a Michigan non-profit  

corporation, (hereinafter referred to as “HAVEN”),  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide crisis intervention, shelter, advocacy, 

individual, group and family counseling for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault 

and child abuse; and to further provide for counseling to the perpetrators of domestic 

violence in an attempt to prevent further violence from occurring; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the HAVEN is to provide available shelter to 

citizens who are forced to escape from the home where violence occurs; and to provide 

ongoing counseling to help heal the damage caused by these terrible crimes; and  

 

 WHEREAS, HAVEN also provides a 24-hour crisis line for immediate assistance 

for the citizens of the City, 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of the 

citizens of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 

hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 

HAVENS RESPONSIBILITIES.   

 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 

be provided by HAVEN is as follows: 

 

 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 

counselor on staff at HAVEN or available for consultation to HAVEN, shall 

supervise all activities ongoing under the HAVEN program consisting of, but not 

limited to, crisis intervention, shelter, advocacy, individual, group and family 

counseling for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault and child abuse. 

HAVEN shall also maintain a 24-hour crisis line to provide immediate assistance 

to the citizens of the City and others who are in need of such assistance. 

 

B. Other project responsibilities include, but are not limited to, counseling 

for the perpetrators of domestic violence in an attempt to prevent further violence 

from occurring. 

 

  C.  HAVEN will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 

 



 2 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 

maintained on file at HAVEN and will be available for inspection by the CITY on 

request. 

 

3.  Location of Facility.  HAVEN shall provide an office and/or treatment facility 

at 2550 Telegraph Road, Suite 111, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302. The 

CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned relocation of the 

facility.  HAVEN shall maintain “safe houses: in the area for use by its citizens 

and that the locations of those “safe house” shall remain confidential for the 

protections of the residents. 

 

4.  Service Documentation.  HAVEN shall provide a quarterly report which may 

be in the form of minutes from monthly HAVEN Board of Directors meetings to 

the CITY in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the 

following information: 

 

A.  Data regarding  HAVEN’s operation, including but not limited to, the 

number of persons serviced by HAVEN programs, attendance records for 

counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 

  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 

 

  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by HAVEN. 

 

  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 

                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the HAVEN clientele. 

 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  HAVEN shall maintain an accounting system to identify 

and support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 

provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 

consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 

and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 

and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 

HAVEN shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year, 

which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 

budgets shall show the HAVEN budget, total expenditures, and expenditures 

funded and claimed to other funding sources. 

 

HAVEN shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be 

in the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the HAVEN Board of 

Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 

expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 

HAVEN agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents 

relevant to this Agreement for six years after final payment.   



 3 

 

6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, HAVEN will review with the 

CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 

appropriate shelter and counseling activities which may be utilized by citizens.  

 

7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 

for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 

of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 

administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 

consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 

8.  Subcontracts.  HAVEN shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 

subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 

approval of the CITY. 

 

9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  HAVEN shall indemnify, defend, pay on 

behalf of save and hold harmless the CITY, its elected and appointed officials, 

employees, volunteers, officers, agents, and affiliated entities against and from 

any losses, damages, judgments, claims, demands, suits, expenses, costs, and 

liabilities, personal injury or death and/or property damage, including attorney 

fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused directly or 

indirectly by any act or omission of HAVEN or its officers, directors, employees, 

agents or volunteers.  

 

10. Insurance.  HAVEN shall present to the CITY documentation that is 

satisfactory to the CITY that indicates that HAVEN is covered under a policy of 

insurance or self-insurance which is satisfactory to the CITY and which names the 

City as an additional insured. 

 

11.  Discrimination prohibited.  HAVEN shall not discriminate against any 

employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 

conditions, or privileges of employment, on a matter directly or indirectly related 

to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, 

weight, or marital status pursuant to the Elliot Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976, P.A. 

453.  HAVEN shall comply with the provisions of the Michigan Handicappers 

Civil Rights Act, 1976, P.A. 220 and the Federal Rehabilitations Act of 1973, 

P.A. 93-112, 87 Stat. 394, which requires that no employee or client or otherwise, 

qualified handicapped individual shall, solely by reason of his handicap, be 

excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of or be subjected to, 

discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal assistance.  No 

person shall, on the grounds of  race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin, 

height, weight, handicap, or marital status, be excluded from participation in, be 

denied the proceeds of, or be subject to discrimination in the performance of this 

contract.  HAVEN shall comply with all applicable regulations promulgated 

pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended. 

 



 4 

12.  Prohibition of Political and Religious Activity.  There shall be no religious 

worship, instruction, or proselytization as part of, or in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement.  None of the funds, materials, property or 

services under this Agreement shall be used in the performance of services under 

this Agreement for any partisan political activity, including lobbying, as specified 

in Federal Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations – 

lobbying revisions, or to further the election, defeat, recall, impeachment, 

appointment or dismissal of any candidate for or from any public office. 

 

CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to HAVEN an amount not to exceed $ 4,370.00 

for services performed under this Agreement.  Payment will be made in one payment in 

September, 2009. 

 

 Obligations incurred by HAVEN prior to or after the period covered by this 

Agreement shall be excluded. 

 

MUTUAL COVENANTS 

 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that HAVEN fails or has 

failed to comply with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its 

responsibility as indicated in the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the 

methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 

Agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the 

CITY reserves the right to cancel this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days 

written notice to HAVEN.  If HAVEN becomes defunct, HAVEN will reimburse 

the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of termination. 

 

2.  Employees of HAVEN.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of 

HAVEN shall not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY for any 

purposes solely because of their participation with HAVEN. 

 

3.  Independent Contractors.  HAVEN is an independent contractor, and its 

agents, employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This 

Agreement is not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 

4.  Compliance with Laws.  HAVEN shall be responsible for compliance with all 

Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 

results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 

5.  Notices.  Whenever under this Agreement provision is made for notice of any 

kind, unless otherwise herein expressly provided, it shall be in writing and shall 

be served personally or sent by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, 

to the addresses stated below, or such other address as either of the parties may 



 5 

subsequently designate in writing by notice to the other party in the manner 

required hereunder:  

 

 Notice to City:          Tonni Bartholomew 

             City Clerk, City of Troy 

             500 W. Big Beaver Road 

                                       Troy, Michigan  48084 

 

 Notice to Haven:       Beth Morrison, President & CEO 

              HAVEN, INC. 

              2550 Telegraph Road 

              Suite 111 

              Bloomfield Hills, Michigan  48302 

 

6.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between 

HAVEN and the CITY with respect to the subject matter hereof; and there are no 

other further written or oral understandings or agreements with respect hereto.  

 

7.  Modification.  No variation or modification of this Agreement and no waiver 

of its provisions shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties.        

 

8.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 

2009 and shall terminate on June 30, 2010 unless terminated under the provisions 

set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and HAVEN have caused this Agreement to 

be executed by their respective authorized officers. 

 

 

WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 

 

 

____________________________   ____________________________ 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

____________________________                           ______________________________ 

       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 

 

 

WITNESSES:      HAVEN, INC. 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

       Beth Morrison, President & CEO 

 

____________________________    



campbellld
Text Box
F-04f





Cityg/ CITY CO;UN'CIL ACTIO:N REPORT roy 
July 21,2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Brian P. Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Ecor'!pmic Development Services 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director ,j)'V,... 
Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Directo 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer~ v 

SUBJECT: 	 Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract 
Engineering Software Maintenance (Bentley Systems, Inc.) 

Backg round: 

• 	 The City of Troy uses Microstation software (computer aided drafting program) for our civil design 
and computer aided drafting (CAD) needs. 

• 	 Microstation is used by four city departments, Engineering, Fire, Public Works and Building. 
• 	 Other software is used exclusively by the Engineering Department for survey work and sewer 

design, including: InRoads, InRoads Survey, PowerSurvey and InRoads Storm and Sanitary 
Sewer. 

• 	 Bentley Systems, Inc. is the manufacturer of all of the above software and the sole provider of 
maintenance. 

• 	 The maintenance service contract for this software is purchased directly from Bentley Systems, 
Inc. 

• 	 The annual cost for the maintenance service contract is $14,440.00, which is $1,231.36 less than 
the previous contract due to renegotiation of the contract by city staff to be commensurate with 
the use of the software by city staff. 

• 	 The maintenance service contract includes all software fixes, updates and technical support 
through July 13, 2010. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 Funds are available in each department's 2009/10 budget in their respective computer software 
maintenance account. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 There are no legal considerations. 

http:1,231.36
http:14,440.00
campbellld
Text Box
F-04g



Policy Considerations: 

• 	 Add value to properties through maintenance of upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 
venues (Goal II). 

Options: 

• 	 It is recommended that City Council approve the proprietary maintenance service contract to 
Bentley Systems, Inc., 685 Stockton Drive, Exton, PA 19341 at a cost of $14,440 to provide 
software maintenance for Microstation, InRoads, InRoads Survey, PowerSurvey and InRoads 
Storm and Sanitary Sewer software from July 14, 2009 through July 13, 2010. 

ENG\Funding Issues\Budget Files\2009-1 o\Engineering\Operating\Bentley Contract Renewal_Agenda Item,doc 



Invoice 
Page 1 of 2 

City of Troy 
Michael Bastien 
500 W. Big Beaver 
TROY MI 48084 
USA 

Payment Terms: Net 30 Days 
Remit Payment To: Bentley Systems, Inc. 
PO Box 828836, Philadelohia, PA 19182-8836 
SWIFT/BIC: PNCCUS33 
Account No.: 80135903 33 
TRANS #031207607 

Please reference your customer and invoice number with your 
payment. 

95-3936623 

§tlfm~~~ii~!~.~·%i.i~ ! 

Invoice Number 
Invoice Date 
PO Number 
Customer Number 
Currency 

SELECT Billing Period 

06/08/2009 

4010976 
USD 

07/14/2009 
07/13/2010 

Item Description Qty Total 

10 MicroStation SELECT Subscription I .e.:( 
...,.~ t'5' ~ , fJC 

30 Bentley InRoads Survey SELECT Sub 1 300.00 

40 Bentley InRoads SELECT Subscription 2 2,400.00 

Total Amount I :7.190 .1..3-,-57-5:00 
Tax Amount 0.00 
Total Invoice Amount 1~-SJ.Ht· 

1;12..5.o/) 

Bentley Systems Inc 685 Stockton Drive Exton PA 19341 

Phone: 18005135103 FAX: 16104582779 


Website: www.bentiey.com E-mail: bac@bentley.com 

Thank you for choosing Bentley Systems Inc. 


mailto:bac@bentley.com
http:www.bentiey.com


l Details 
Page 2 of 2 

Invoice Number 47249875 

Ship to: 
City of Troy 
Michael Bastien 
500 W. Big Beaver 
TROY MI 48084 

Description Qty Unit Price Gross Price Discount I Total 
Surcharge 

MicroStation SELECT Subscription 

07/14/2009 - 07/1312010 15 725.00 10,875.00 0.00 10,875.00 

Bentley InRoads Survey SELECT Sub 

07/14/2009 - 07/13/2010 300.00 300.00 0.00 300.00 

Bentley InRoads SELECT Subscription 

07/14/2009 - 07/13/2010 2 1,200.00 2,400.00 0.00 2,400.00 

Site Subtotal ta';5?S.00 
Tax 0.00 % 0.00 
Site Total 17,575.00 

id,,\';l'? 00 

Bentley Systems Inc 685 Stockton Drive Exton PA 19341 

Phone: 1 8005135103 FAX: 1 6104582779 


Website: www.bentley.com E-mail: bac@bentley.com 

Thank you for choosing Bentley Systems Inc. 


mailto:bac@bentley.com
http:www.bentley.com


City of Troy 
Michael Bastien 
500 W Big Beaver 
TROY MI 48084 
USA 

Payment Terms: Net 30 Days 
Remit Payment To: Bentley Systems, Inc. 
PO Box 828836, Philadelphia, PA 19182-8836 
SWIFT/BIC: PNCCUS33 
Account No.: 8013 5903 33 
TRANS #031207607 

~4th'm~ryl':/0!;'l: 
Invoice N 
Invoice Date 
PO Number. 
Customer Number 
Currency 

SELECT Billing Period 

Invoice 
Page 1 of 2 

4010976 
USD 

07/14/2009 
07/13/2010 

Please reference your customer and invoice number with your 
payment. 

Item Description Qty Total 
10 Product Sub, Bentley PowerSurvey PPA 1 770.00 

20 Product Sub, Bentley InRoads S & S PPA 1 1,545.00 

Total Amount 2,315.00 
Tax Amount 0.00 
Total Invoice Amount 2,315.00 

Bentley Systems Inc 685 Stockton Drive Exton PA 19341 

Phone: 1 8005135103 FAX: 1 6104582779 


Website: www.bentley.com E-mail: bac@bentley.com 

Thank you for choosing Bentley Systems Inc. 


mailto:bac@bentley.com
http:www.bentley.com


Details 
Page 2 of2 

Invoice Number 47249896 

Ship to: 
City of Troy 
Michae Bastien 
500 W. Big Beaver 
TROY MI 48084 

Description Qty Unit Price Gross Price Discount I 
Surcharge 

Product Sub, Bentley PowerSurvey 
PPA 

07/14/2009 - 07/13/2010 770.00 770.00 0,00 

Product Sub, Bentley InRoads S & S 
PPA 

07/14/2009 - 07/13/2010 1,545,00 1,545,00 0,00 

Site Subtotal 

Tax 0.00 % 

Site Total 

Total 

770,00 

1,545.00 

2,315.00 

0,00 

2,315.00 

Bentley Systems Inc 685 Stockton Drive Exton P A 19341 

Phone: 1 8005135103 FAX: 1 6104582779 


Website: www.bentley.com E-mail: bac@bentley.com 

Thank you for choosing Bentley Systems Inc. 


mailto:bac@bentley.com
http:www.bentley.com
http:2,315.00
http:2,315.00
http:1,545.00


Page 1 of 2 
 

 
  July 24, 2009 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Lawn & 

Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment  
  
Background 

 The State of Michigan MiDEAL Program awarded a contract agreement for commercial equipment 
to the John Deere Company (Contract #071B6200191).  

 The Backhoe being purchased is a replacement Backhoe for two that will be auctioned or traded-
in. 

 Discounts on this equipment are available up to 36% from manufacturer’s suggested retail prices. 
 JDE Equipment Company has agreed to a trade-in allowance of $14,700 for the 2000 New Holland and 

$14,000 for the 1997 JCB backhoes. 
 
Financial Considerations 

 $90,000 has been budgeted for this purchase in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account 
#5657981. 

 
                  UNIT COST     

 (1) John Deere 410J Backhoe                $91,297.00 
 Plus: Additional Options 
 5year/5,000 hours extended power train/hydraulic warranty $  5,050.00 
 Dealer Installed Items (stabilizer kit, beacon wiring and  
           hydraulic Accu-swing kit)      $      615.00  
 Less: Trade-In 2000 New Holland 675-E           $(14,700.00) 
     Less: Trade-In 1998 JCB 215 Backhoe     $(14,000.00)  
                     ESTIMATED TOTAL               $ $68,262.00  
 
TRADE-IN 
 After researching the current market value of our two backhoes for trade-in, the City may be able to benefit by 
marketing these backhoes through trade publications and websites, thereby increasing the trade-in value of 
this equipment.  If that fails, JDE Equipment Company would extend their offer to trade-in the two backhoes at 
$14,700.00 and $14,000.00 at the time of delivery of the new backhoe. 
 
Legal Considerations 

 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04h



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
July 24, 2009 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Commercial Equipment 
 
 
Policy Considerations 

 The purchase of the backhoe would assure the safety and welfare of citizens and businesses, and 
also reduce the liability for the City. (Outcome Statement I). 

 The backhoe is used on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive Water Division maintenance 
and repairs to water and sewer mains (Outcome Statement II).   

 
Options 

 City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend awarding a contract to provide 
one (1) 2009 John Deere 410J Backhoe from JDE Equipment Company, New Hudson, MI, through 
the State of Michigan MiDEAL program for $91,297.00, plus additional options (5 year/5,000 hour 
extended power train/hydraulic warranty) not covered under MiDEAL in the amount of $5,050.00, 
and dealer installed items of $615.00 less trade-ins of $14,700.00 and $14,000.00, for an 
estimated net total cost of $68,262.00.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 08-03-2009 – SR4- Backhoe State of Michigan MiDEAL Letter 
 



 

 
July 27, 2009 
 

TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – 
Marcite/Grouting Tile Troy Community Center Pools. 

Background 
 On July 16, 2009, bids were opened to furnish all equipment, material and labor to re-marcite and re-grout 

tile in the pools at the Community Center. 
 Two vendors made a scheduled visit to the site. 
 195 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with two bidders responding. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in furnishing all equipment, 

material and labor to re-marcite and re-grout tile in the pools at the City of Troy Community Center. 
 Clearwater Pools and Service of Ann Arbor was the low bidder.  The award is being made on a low total 

basis due to bonding requirements. 
 Clearwater has completed marcite and grout work at the Troy Family Aquatic Center in the past with 

successful results. 
 Clearwater Pools and Service of Ann Arbor has twelve (12) years of experience with this type of work and 

have done similar work in other aquatic parks. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funding for this project is available in the Community Center Buildings and Improvements Annex 

Renovation Capital Account # 401.751.755.7975.125. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including insurance, bonds, and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations 
 This project will replace both pool surfaces providing a safe and well maintained facility. (Outcome 

Statement I and II) 
 
Options 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding the bid to furnish all 

equipment, material and labor to re-marcite and re-grout tile in the pools at the City of Troy Community 
Center to the low total bidder, Clearwater Pools and Service of Ann Arbor at an estimated total cost of 
$24,500.00. 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – PoolRepairs-Indoor 08-09.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04i



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-27
Opening Date -- 7/16/09 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 7/27/09 sl INDOOR POOL REPAIRS

VENDOR NAME: ** Clearwater Pools and Advanced Pool

Service of Ann Arbor Services, Inc.
Check # 343823021 15200496
Amount $5,000.00 $5,000.00

PROPOSAL:  Furnish all equipment, material and labor to re-marcite and re-grout tiles at the indoor pools of the 
                   City of Troy Community Center in accordance with specifications.
POOL #1: LEISURE POOL - re-marcite & re-grout tiles in accordance with specifications

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 19,900.00$                 20,976.15$              

POOL #2: THERAPY POOL - re-marcite & re-grout tiles in accordance with specifications

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 4,600.00$                   4,287.30$                

TOTAL COST FOR BOTH POOLS: 24,500.00$                 25,263.45$              

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours 7 AM to 6 PM 248-889-8846
24Hr Phone Number 734-216-2503 248-820-7205

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N Yes Yes
      Date 07/09/09 07/09/09

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Balance - Net 15 Days Net 30

COMPLETION DATE
Y or N Yes Yes
But Offers:

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Attached Yes Yes

BIDDER  QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 15 Days Net 30

WARRANTY: 2 years 2 years

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes

FORMS:  Non-Collusion & Legal Status Yes Yes

ATTEST:
Cheryl Stewart ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER
Ann Blizzard
Brian Goul _____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director

Between August 25 and September 1, 2009



 
 

July 22, 2009 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Alexandria 

Whitney, President of Guardians For Animals 
  
Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Alexandria Whitney, President of Guardians For Animals 

seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of obtaining a 
charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City Management’s 
practice to support the approval of such requests. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05











pallottaba
Text Box



































































CITY COUNCIL CTION REPORT 


July 21,2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

FROM: 	 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer~ 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative ~ 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage Easement -
McComb Construction Company, Inc., Sidwell #88-20-03-401-053,052 & 051 

Background: 

• 	 As part of the redevelopment of a property located at Ottawa Road and Peacock Drive in Section 3, the 
Real Estate and Development Department has received a permanent easement for storm sewer and 
drainage from McComb Construction Company, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-03-401
053, 052 and 051. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of this document is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 
and accepted by the City. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 

G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\McComb Construction Esmt 7-21-09.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Sidwell #88-20-03-401-053,052 and 051 (pt of) 

McCOMB CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC., a Michigan corporation, Grantor(s), whose address is 1871 
Austin, Troy, MI 48083 for and in consideration of the sum of: One and noli 00 Dollar ($1.00) paid by the 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation, Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan, 48084 grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair and/or replace 
storm sewerldrain, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan 
described as: 

SEE EXHIBIT "A" AlTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART OF 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair andlor replacement thereof. 

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to 
its original condition by the Grantee. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, 
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shalf run with the land. 

IN1WITNESS WHEREOF, the. undersigned hereunto affixed signature(s) this Iq±h, day of 
" fI Ad < AD. 2009. . 

McCOMB CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC 
a Michigan corporation 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this tQ+Lday Of~A.y ,2009,-d 

by Ropert l, McComb , President of McComb Construction Company, Inc ., a Michigan 

oocpocabon 00 b,half of th, ",cpmatioo. ~ ... . 

NOla,,!, P~bllo~~g~u~ Michl a ~~.* 	 ~ 
Acting In Oakland Coun~ M~ g n . 0 	 ; ': 
My Commission expires o3 1d @!IIy Public, ~ Coun y, ~A d c~ ~ 

I' 2012 My Commission Expires 3 '- ..... -;::;,[.:£ 
Acting in ~d County, {l&t(,tu.5!l41 

Prepared by: 	 Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk 
City of Troy City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 50b W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 

PLEASE SIGN IN BLUE INK AND PRINT OR TYPE NAMES IN BLACK INK UNDER SIGNA TURES 



EXHIBIT "A" 


STORM SEWER AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

20-03-401-053 (Part of) 

THE SOUTHERLY 12 FEET AND THE WESTERLY 12 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
PARCEL: 

PART OF LOT 10 OF "GOLF ESTATES" A SUBDIVISION OF A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST Y. OF 
SECTION 3, T.2N., R11E., CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN AS RECORDED IN 
LlBER 58 OF PLATS, PAGE 23, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 10; 
THENCE N.Or20'02"W. ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 10, 201.41 FT. TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; S,88"39'58"W .. 127,88 FT,; THENCE N.01'24'21W., 125,00 FT.; THENCE N.88'39'58"E" 
128.03 FT, TOA POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 10; THENCE S,01'20'02"E. ALONG THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 10, 125.00 FT, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

ALSO 

20-03-401-0152 (Part of) 

THE WESTERLY 12 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: 

PART OF LOT 10 OF "GOLF ESTATES" A SUBDIVISION OF A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST Y. OF 
SECTION 3, T,2N, R 11 E" CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN AS RECOREDED IN 
LlBER 58 OF PLATS, PAGE 23, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 10; 
THENCE S,01'20'02"E, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 0, 222.62 FT. TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 10, S.01'02'02"E., 125,00 
FT.; THENCE S,88'39'58"W., 128,03 FT.; THENCE N.Or24'21"W" 125,00 FT,; THENCE 
N,88'39'58"E" 128.19 FT, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

ALSO 

20-03-401-051 (Part of) 

THE·SOUTHERLY 12 FEET OF THE WESTERLY 12 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
PARCEL: 

PART OF LOT 10 OF "GOLF ESTATES" A SUBDIVISION OF A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST Y. OF 
SECTION 3, T,2N., R 11 E, CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN AS RECOREDED IN 
LlBER 58 OF PLATS, PAGE 23, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 10; 
THENCE s,OnO'02"E ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 10, 222,62 FT,; THENCE 
S88'39'58"W., 128,19 FT.; THENCE N,01'24'21"W., 226.49 FT., TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE 
OF SAID LOT 10; THENCE S,89'36'33"E ALONG THE NORTH LJNE OF SAID LOT 10, 128.53 FT. 
(RECORDED AS S.89'12'20"E.). 



§JKJETCCH Of EASEMENT 
JEA§T 1/2 Of LOT 1l(()) Of UQGOLf JE§TATJE§UQ 

A SUBDMSllON IOF PART IOF TIm SIOU'1I'lH!EAST 114 IOF SlECTIION 3~ 
T.2N., RUR, CliTY OF TROY, OA.KLAND COUNTY, MIICJH[][OAN AS 
RECORDED IN lLIDER 58 OF PlLATS, JPlAGE 23. OA.KLAND COUNTY RECORDS 

~~ 

NORTHLINBOF N89°12'20"WR o~ 

"GOLF ESTAES" N89°36'33"W M FND}14" PIPE


FNDMO·~i~ \--1961.55'R ; g; 260.29IR&M~-~O 
'1'1 V 1961.36' M FND 1/2" IRONiii 

~ 0, PARCEL4~!i ~ g. I 
~ '<I; .0.662AC. ~I ~~ ( IN FEET ) 

~ ~ ~! ~ ~ t: <:) 1 INCH 100 FT. 

! f:~ N88"39'58!! ~ ~&S ~ LEGEND_:_ 
- Q ~ Y OJ lFOUND IRON 

~ i pARm3 I ~~ Cd @ SlETIRON 
~ 0.368 AC. l'> I ~ ~ @~ llt RlECOllID DISTANClE 
~ e; 0 M MlEASUlRlED DISTANCE 

~~ rpla~ E\ ~ rT.a ~I N88°39'58"B I F""l 
~ Ie 128.03' ~;:)1 I PARCEL2 I ~ 
ro::t: 0.367 AC. I Y 

~ ~~ lEAST 1/2 ~I Cd 
~ i lLOT 10 Ei < 
-I'-'L ~ 
~ ".- , ~ I='! 

N N8S0 39'58"Ba I ~ ffi 
...-~().I!-~.·-·~·---···-------,,-<-b . @ 

~ !i I <:) 
<='4 ~ ~ 
~~- '0 
~~ ~ 

~I ~ 
'""1 

~ Q128.4~,~ 26O.1TR&M ----jO 
L.1%~9.~AAfiIR.------4~~~~N8~8~03~3~~~M~~~~~ FNDla"IRON 

1%9.S9'M N88°S5'50~R 

OTIAWARD, 
60 Ft. WO. 

PREPARED FOR: 

McCOMB CONSTRUCTION 

1871 AUSTIN COURT 

TROY, MI 48083 

(248) 528-0816 SHEET 1 OF 2 

__1IIIIi 

&ale: 
Date: 
lob No. 

1"=100' 
5-14-09 
09-005 ~ 

REICHERT SURVEYING INC. 
140 FLUMERFELT LANE T 
ROCHESTER. MICH. 48306 f1\ 

TELE: (248) 651-0592 

Land 

Surveying 



Citrrf" OUNCIL. CTION REPORTTroy 
July 21, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

FROM: 	 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer?1f-" 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative4(; 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Sidewalk Easement - Michael J. Lamb, 
Sidwell #88-20-15-376-036 

Background: 

• 	 As part of the redevelopment of a property located on Evaline Avenue in Section 15, the Real Estate and 
Development Department has received a permanent easement for sidewalk from Michael J. Lamb, owner 
of the property having Sidwell #88-20-15-376-036. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of this document is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 
and accepted by the City. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 

G:IMEMOS TO MAYOR AND CCILamb Sidewalk Esmt 7-21-09.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Michael J. Lamb, Grantor, whose address is 327 Evaline Drive, Troy, MI 48085, for and in consideration of the 
sum of One Dollar ($1.00) paid by the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 
500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084, grants to the grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair 
and/or replace sidewalk as follows: . 

A permanent easement described as: 


The south 5 feet of the west 85.58 feet, excluding the north 60.00 feet of Lot 57 of the "McCormick & Lawrence 

Little Farms Subdivision" as recorded in Liber 20, Page 30, OCR. 


Across the following described vacant land: 


Part of the SW X, Section 15, T.2N., R11 City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan more particularly described 

as the west 85.58 feet, excluding the north 60.00 feet of Lot 57 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms 
Subdivision" as recorded in Liber 20, Page 30, OCR. 

Sidwell No.: 88-20-15-376-036 (part) 


Any disruption to the premises by the exercise of any of the foregoing rights shall be reasonably restored to its 

original condition by the Grantee. 


This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, 

successor and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 


In Witness Whereof, the undersigned hereunto affixed his signature this 20th day of July, 2007. 


State of Michigan ) 
County of Oakland) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 20th day of July, 2007, by Michael J. Lamb. 

J ' 

rbara Mickel 
tfbtary PU.bli?, Oakl~nd Co~nty, Mi?higan tr 
My commission explres:/n.<2iJt t) Ii {ill!iJ i 

Prepared by: Return to: 

Michael J. Lamb City Clerk, City of Troy 
327 Evaline Drive 500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48085 Troy, MI 48084 



PERMANENT EASEMENT DESCRIPTION 
~()'A. S"d ~v0 i\. \ 1< 

EVAliNE AVENUE 50 FEET WIDE 

s 

LOT 257LOT 259 LOT 258 

"CYPRESS GARDENS SUBDIVISION 

No.2" 


USER 130, PAGES 7-8, O.C.R. 


85.58' 

LOT 56 LOT 57 LOT 58 

"McCORMICK & 
LAWRENCE LlTTLE FARMS ---' ->. 

SUBDIVISI ON" 0 
(J1 PARCB.. Ul 

P 
coUSER 20, PAGE 30, ro.....0 . .O.C.R. 

N 
~ 

~ ~Permanellt E~sem"nt 
vV' S\ 01 e"".... Cl l "j< 

r- ----

85.58' 
E 

A permanent easement described as: 

The south five feet of the west85.S8 feet, excluding the north 60.00 feet of Lot 57 of the "McCormick & Lawrence 
Little Farms Subdivision" as recorded in Liber 20, Page 30, OCR. 

Across the following described vacant land: 

Part of the SW %, Section 15, T.2N., R11E., City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan more particularly described 
as the •• est 85.58 feet, excluding the north 60.00 feet of Lot 57 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms 
Subdivision" as recorded in Liber 20, Page 30, OCR. 

Sidwell No.: 88-20-15-376-036 (part) 

http:west85.S8


 

 
 
July 21, 2009 
 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 

     
SUBJECT: Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements - Michael J. Lamb,  

Sidwell #88-20-15-377-052  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 As part of the redevelopment of a property located on Evaline Avenue in Section 15, the Real Estate and 

Development Department has received a permanent easement for sidewalk and one easement for public 
utilities from Michael J. Lamb, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-15-377-052. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The consideration amount on each document is $1.00. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The format and content of these documents is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 

and accepted by the City. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
I. Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Lamb Sidewalk & PU Esmt 7-21-09.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Michael J. Lamb, Grantor, whose address is 327 Evaline Drive, Troy, MI 48085, for and in consideration of the 
sum of One Dollar ($1.00) paid by the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 
500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084, grants to the grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair 
and/or replace sidewalk as follows: 

A permanent easement described as: 

The north 5 feet of the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick &Lawrence Uttle Farms Subdivision" as 
recorded in Uber 20, Page 30, OCR. 

Across the following described vacant land: 

Part of the SW:4, Section 15, T.2N., R11 E., City of Troy, Oakland County. Michigan more particularly described 
as the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Uttle Farms Subdivision" as recorded in Uber 20, 
Page 30, OCR. 

Sidwell No.: 88-20-15-377-052 C'f>t·· ~1) 

Any disruption to the premises by the exercise of any of the foregoing rights shall be reasonably restored to its 
original condition by the Grantee. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, 
successor and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

In Witness Whereof, the undersigned hereunto affixed his signature this 20th day of July, 2007. 

State of Michigan ) 
County of Oakland) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 20th day of July, 2097, by Michael J. Lamb, 
'l , 

B rbara Mickel 
Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My commission expires: /Y!/J'l C?I. ).{l/ ( 

AcA\':ji/i'., O~JL e!e"c'~!j / flt! 

Prepared by: Return to: 

Michael J. Lamb City Clerk, City of Troy 
327 Evaline Drive 500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48085 . Troy, MI48084 



PERMANENT EASEiVIENT DESCRiPTiON 

EVAUNE A VENUE 50 FEET WIDE 


N 

I,,-·t-~sg: --  -I 
I 

w E 

LOT 67 
s 

. 
"McCORMICK & 


LAWRENCE LITTLE FARMS 

SUBDIVISION" 


L1SER 20, PAGE 30, 

O.C.R. 

LOT 88 

~ 5' Permaln~sli't lE~sem(:;mt
1u'," <5"\ cA € .....J C\..\ 1:: 

LOT 65LOT 66 

N ...... 
:-..J 
~ 
~ 

85.58' 

LOT 9089 

A permanenc easement described as: 


The north 5 feet of the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision" as 


recorded in Liber 20, Page 30, OCR. 


Across the following described vacant land: 


Part of the SW K Section 15, T.2N., R11 E., City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan more particularly described 

as the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision" as recorded in Liber 20, 


Page 30, OCR. 


Sidwell No.: 88-20-15-377-052 




PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Michael J. Lamb, Grantor, whose address is 327 Evaline Drive, Troy, MI 48085, for and in consideration of the 
sum of One Dollar ($1.00) paid by the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 
500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084, grants to the grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair 
and/or replace public utilities as follows: 

A permanent easement described as: 

The north 15 feet of the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision" as 
recorded in Liber 20, Page 30, OCR. 

Across the following described vacant land: 

Part of the SW X, Section 15, T.2N., R11 City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan more particularly described 
as the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision" as recorded in Liber 20, 
Page 30, OCR. 

Sidwell No.: 88-20-15-377-052 "f) 
Any disruption to the premises by the exercise of any of the foregoing rights shall be reasonably restored to its 
original condition by the Grantee. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, 
successor and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

In Witness Whereof, the undersigned hereunto affixed his signature this 20th day of July, 2007. 

State of Michigan ) 
County of Oakland) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thisj20th day of July, 2007, by Michael J. Lamb. 
JA ;! >¥ 

l:a~:~;~~~r dlr:iit(l 
Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 1J7/2,{! ':<:'0 11(/If 

Itt: ti n ..,) '/ >'\ 0 /'A.k:.t~ ;,.. efl~ I M f 

Prepared by: Return to: 

Michael J. Lamb City Clerk, City of Troy 
327 Evaline Drive 500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48085 Troy, MI 48084 



PERMANENT DESCRIPTION 
.. FQZ.F\?bL",C VT\L\T't...5 

EVAUNE AVENUE 50 FEET WIDE 

N 

w E 

LOT 67 LOT p6 LOT 65 
s 

-' '" -....,J :-J 

"McCORMICK & 
 ~ o 

(Jl
LAWRENCE UTILE FARMS -

SUBDIVISION" 
UBER 20, PAGE 30. 

O.C.R. 

85.58' 

LOT 88 LOT 89 LOT 90 
I 

A permanent easement described as: 

The north 15 feet of the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision" as 
recorded in Liber 20, Page 30, OCR. 

Across the following described vacant land: 

Part of the SW X, Section 15, T.2N., R11E., City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan more particularly described 
as the west 85.58 feet of Lot 66 of the "McCormick & Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision" as recorded in Liber 20, 
Page 30, OCR. 

Sidwell No.: 88-20-15-377-052 



Ci~~' OUNCIL ACTION EPORTTroy 
July 21, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 

FROM: 	 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer ~ 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative<~ 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Watermain Easement - West Maple Ventures, 
LLC, Sidwell #88-20-32-126-004 

Background: 

• 	 As part of the redevelopment of a property located on the south side of Maple Road, east of Coolidge Hwy, 
the Real Estate and Development Department has received a permanent watermain easement from West 
Maple Ventures, LLC, owner of the property located at 2477 West Maple and having Sidwell #88-20-32
0126-004. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of this document is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 
and accepted by the City. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 

G:IMEMOS TO MAYOR AND CCIWest Maple Ventures WM Esmt 7-21-09.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



PERMANENT EASEMENT 


Sidwell #88-20-32-126-004 (part of) 

WEST MAPLE VENTRUES, L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability company, Grantor(s), whose address is 
10651 Northend Avenue, Ferndale, MI 48220 for and in consideration of the sum of: One and no/100 
Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF TROY,a Michigan municipal corporation, Grantee, whose address is 
500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, 
repair and/or replace watermain, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan described as: 

SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. 

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to 
its original condition by the Grantee. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, 
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

,~ 	 /5'';1-,
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixed nl S signature(s) this . day of 
/?0OV<ZMb';: {' ~D. ~007 . 

In presence of: /l7)1JJ;4:jA. £JvrJ1i'--
WITNESS (not r~qu~edY ~I~ WEST MAPLE VENTURES, L.L.C., 

)_Cjl..\ fa. (\JQ rd S Lva ty) A Michigan limite~bili~ company 

By 	 (L.S.)hi )l;
* Euge e S. Sherizen 

Its: Member 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
COUNTY OF tn)I(..Acwd ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this \ S4h day of NC\f~VVvIo.Q.\I , 2007, 
by Eugene S. Sherizen, Member of WEST MAPLE VENTURES, L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability 
company, on behalf of the company. 

TIFFANY N. Atll),f 
~«JrAAYPUBUC,grATE or: Mi 


COUNTY OF OAKl.ANO 

MY COMMISSION EXPiRES S6p22, 201 r1 


ACTING IN OOUNTYOF DLI<...~ Notary Public, Oct,W~t\j;\ County, Michigan 

My Commission Expires <;.w, '],,2 '10 '0 
Acting in Ocv!:i9.sJq --=-County, Michigan 

Prepared by: 	 Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk 
City of Troy City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 

PLEASE SIGN IN BLUE INK AND PRINT OR TYPE NAMES IN BLACK INK UNDER SIGNATURES 



EXHIBIT A 
20 FOOT WIDE WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - SUBJECT PARCEL 
LAND 11\j THE N.W. 1/4 OF SECTION 32, T2N.,R11E, CITY OF TROY, COUNTY OF OAKLAND, 
STATE OF MICHGIAN DESCRIBED AS COMMENCING 'AT THE NORTH 1/4 COR~ER OF SAID 
SECTION 32, THENCE N89'38"21"W 792.31 FEET ALONG TH E NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 
32 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE SOO'28'15"W 989.34 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
NORTH LINE OF "THE BUSINESS PARK AT CAMBRIDGE CROSSINGS" OCCP NO. 1266, 
THENCE N89'38'18"W 219.69 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH LINE; THENCE NOO'27'31"E 989.33 
FEET TO A POINT Ol~ THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 32; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG 
SAID NORTH LINE S89'38'21"E 219.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 2'17.452 SQUARE FEET OR 4.99 ACRES OF LAND 
TAX ID NO: 20-32-126-004 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - WATER MAIN EASEMENT, 

A TWENTY FOOT (20') WIDE EASEMENT FOR WATER MAIN, THE CENTERLINE OF WHICH IS 
DESCRIBED AS BEING LOCATED IN PART OF THE N. W. 1/4 OF SECTION 32, T2N. ,R11 E, CITY 
OF TROY, COUNTY OF OAKLAND, STATE OF MICHGIAN, BEING DESCRIBED AS COMMENCING 
A T THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 32, THENCE N89'38

H 
21 "w 859.35 FEET 

ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 32, THENCE SOO'21'02"W 60.00 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOO'21'02W 43.56 FEET TO POINT' A'; THENCE S89'31' 45"E 
34.40 FEET; THENCE S44'31' 4·5"E 1 0.49 FEET; THENCE SOO'28'15"W 15.98 FEET TO POINT 
'B'; THENCE SOO'28'15"W 347.83 FEET TO POINT 'C'; THENCE SOO'28'15"W 31.17 FEET; 
THENCE S45'28'15"W 14.14 FEET; THENCE N89'31' 45"W 154.00 FEET; THENCE N44'31' 45"W 
14.14 FEET; THENCE NOO'28'15"E 2.00 FEET TO POINT '0'; THENCE NOO'28'15"E 336.52 
FEET TO POINT 'E'; THENCE NOO'28'15"E 107.18 FEET TO THE POINT OF ENDING ON THE 
SOUTH 60 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF tJiAPLE ROAD. 

ALSO THE CE~nERLINE OF A TWENTY FOOT (20') WIDE EASEMENT FOR WATER MAIN 
BEGINNING AT POINT I A' SOO'21 '02"W 51.27 FEET TO THE POINT OF ENDING. 

ALSO THE CENTERLINE OF A TWENTY FOOT (20') WIDE EASEMENT FOR WATER MAIN 
BEGINNING AT POINT 'B' S89'31'45"E 15.00 FEET; THENCE SOO'28'15"W 16.75 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF E"'IDING. 

ALSO THE CENTERLINE OF A TWENTY FOOT (20') WIDE EASEMENT FO~ WATER MAIN 
BEGINNING AT POINT 'C' S89'31' 45"W 25,00 FEET TO THE POINT OF ENDING ON THE EAST 
PROPERTY LINE. 

ALSO THE CENTERLINE OF A TWENTY FOOT (20') WIDE EASEMENT FOR WATER MAIN 
BEGINNING AT POINT '0' N89'31' 45"E 20.79 FEET TO THE POINT OF ENDII\lG ON THE WEST 
PROPERTY LI~IE. 

ALSO THE CENTERLINE OF A TWENTY FOOT (20') WIDE EASEMENT FOR WATER MAIN 
BEGINNING AT POINT 'E' N89'31' 45"E 20.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF E~Ij)ING ON THE WEST 
PROPERTY LINE. 



- -

I J1-+-tf---SOO"28'15"W 
___-__-_ 31.17' 

EXHIBIT A 
20 FOOT WIDE WATER MAIN EASEMENT 

________..1-1 

NORTH LINE "BUSINESS 
PARK AT CAMBRIDGE 
CROSSING" OCCP h 1266- - - -	 - --.1

N89'38'lS"W 219.69' 

Equity Drive (60' Wide Private) 

N.W CORNERN 
SECTION 32 

I T.2N"R.l1 E 
S89;38'21ii~~ 

1638.42' 
I-~- ---- 

E EX 12" WM 

NOO'28'lS"E 
107.18' 

N89'31, 45"W 
20.87' 

n 
n 

.. I i?3 
m 

, 
to 
1--

~ o 
z 

N89'31' 45"W 

20.79' 


NOO'28'lS"E 

2.00' 

N44'31 , 4S"W 

14.14' 


P.O.B.Maple Road (120' Wide) 
PARCEL 

589'38'21"E 219.90' .- N89 '38 '21 "w 859.35'-. 

500"21 J02"W~ 
60.00' 

-
EX.-60·-R.O~W. 

I SOO'21 '02"W ~ 
11143.56' I••

I 

il POINT'A' ~II fl .~-:-o-~ 10.49' 
IT

J I SOO'21'02"W -{L
~1.27'
II ~ POINT .'B' 

1 : I POINT 'E' 
I N 


I I 1111

ItO

II I~ 
II 


/ I I~

It[)

II·~ 
II('-J 


11
,/8z 

/: / 

. 

I 1 i POINT 'c' 
III 'D'~
POINT 

I 

I:
I 

1 

• ,II 
[ri I 
r--:I I I
'<tl 
t')11 1 

I 
~I! I . 
;Q,I
inl I I
f'li 
8111 
(f)1 

/1/
I 


/ : I 


N89'38'21"W 792.31 ' 
N. 1/4 

-	 589-31'4$"E CORNER 
SECTION 3234. 40' 

T. 2N.,R.11 E 
........--S44'31'45"E 

SOO'28'15"W 

15.98' 

S89'31'45"E 


15.00' 


SOO'28'15"W 
-'<i- 16.75' 
n 
m 
g; 	 .. 

-~ ~ 
g
(f) 

S89'31'44"E 
25.00' 

S4S'28'15"W 

14.14' 


I 

http:11143.56
http:T.2N"R.l1


CITY COUNCIL CTION REPORT 


July 23, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City MajJ.ager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer'7"""'" 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative~ 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage Easements -
Sidwell #88-20-22-102-022 and 88-20-22-102-023 

Background: 

• 	 To address drainage issues on properties located on Gunston Court in Section 22, the Real Estate and 
Development Department has received permanent easements for storm sewer and surface drainage from 
Subhash and Sandhya Subhedar, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-22-102-022 and Neil G. 
and Donna L. Mitchell, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-22-102-023 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on each document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of these documents is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 
and accepted by the City. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 

G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Gunston Court Drainage Esmt 7-23-09.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-10



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Sidwell #88-20-22-102-022 
Resolution # 

Subhash Subhedar and Sandhya Subhedar, husband and wife, Grantors, whose address is 359 Gunston 
Court, Troy, MI 48085 for and in consideration of the sum of: One Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF 
TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate,maintain, repair and/or replace storm sewer 
and surface drainage, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan 
described as: 

The East 10 feet of Unit 22 of "Hidden Forest Condominium", as recorded in Liber 35881, Pages 248-313, of 
Oakland County, Michigan records being part of the Northwest Y. of Section 22, Town 2 North, Range 11 
East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. Containing 1,133 square feet or 0.026 acres, more or less. 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, 
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixeq{lt :A, signature(s) this ,2.g rtf day of 
~_ A.D. 2009, . 

Signed by: 

7 :23 OJ' 

4~~~(L.s.) 
'7 }:1?J( 051 

STAT.E OF MI9~IGAN ) 

COUNTY OF L!.ttfd{L~ ) . . 


The forego.lng instrument was acknowledged before me this :.z.ovd day of' 1p, () l ' . __,2009, 

by Subhash Subhedar and Sandhya Subhedar, husband and~'fYl ~ 


. ~0· 
LARYSA FlGOl * f-fhzY A F \,.;:?-l.l-

Notary P~lic, Oakland County, MIchIgan Notary Pub!,··, Co~:l:{ County, Michigan 
Actmg In Oakland County, Michigan My Commission Expires .3 - ::z- - :l-O t '~ 
My Commission Expires 0310212012 Acting in J:2fJ.c~. County, Michigan 

Prepared by: 	 Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerl< 
City of Troy City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 

A¥~7"-'f:p>...L~~~=-----,-__N'_(L.S.) 

PLEASE SIGN IN BLUE INK AND PRINT OR TYPE NAMES IN BLACK INK UNDER SIGNA TURES 



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Sidwell #88-20-22-102-023 
Resolution # 

Neil G. Mitchell and Donna L. Mitchell, husband and wife, Grantors, whose address is 375 Gunston Court, 
Troy, MI 48085 for and in consideration of the sum of: One Dollar ($1.00) paid by the CITY OF TROY, a 
Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, 
grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair and/or replace storm sewer and 
surface drainage, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan described 
as: 

The West 10 feet of Unit 23 of "Hidden Forest Condominium", as recorded in Liber 35881, Pages 248-313, of 
Oakland County, Michigan records being part of the Northwest 1,4 of Section 22, Town 2 North, Range 11 
East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. Containing 1,143 square feet or 0.026 acres, more or less. 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, 
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

Iii WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereu~to affixed ~l;'" signature(s) this II<iL day of 
",JtktZll A.D. 2009. 

Signed by: 

l1' f}_6--/e:~~ ~Ttchell 
~ 	 __,---LL_C_(__(L.S.)"...:.<lj0....4c··':n~.f..-k<=-.-L_.Y~-'-..-h: 
"ponna L. Mitchell 

STATE OF MI?\IGAN ) 
COUNTY OF WiLl) ~d ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 11 +-h day of J/LA L.--'i ,2009, 
by Neil G. Mitchell and Donna L. Mitchell, husband and wife. 

LARYSA FIGOL 

Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 


Acting in Oakland County, Michigan 

Notary Pu lie, ....,...,.'-'--"'~=->""'"_My Commission Expires 03/0.2/2012 
My Commissio 

Acting in -,,",-,=-,,"~c.::..:...""l'-

Prepared by: 	 Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerl< 

City of Troy City of Troy 

500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road 

Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 


PLEASE SIGN IN BLUE INK AND PRINT OR TYPE NAMES IN BLACK INK UNDER SIGNA TURES 



Ci~ 

July 20,2009 

TO: 	 Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: 	 John S. Szerlag, City Manager 
John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Carol Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation~' 

SUBJECT: 	 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 

Background: 

• 	 Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are given directly to the Suburban Mobility 
Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) to be divided among every city, township and 
village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita basis. Community credits are a 
direct result of the SMART millage that provides opf-in communities with additional funds. 

• 	 Troy's municipal and community credit dollars have been used to support the community based 
Troy Medi-Go Plus service. Medi-Go Plus provided over 13,000 rides to senior and disabled 
riders in 2008. 

Financial Considerations: 

• There is neither expense nor financial implications to the City for this program. 


Legal Considerations: 


.. There is no change to format and content of previous agreements with Medi-Go. 


Policy Considerations: 


• 	 These funds must be used for local public transportation. Medi-Go provides door-to-door service 
and wheelchair accessible vehicles. For these reasons, Medi-Go is well suited for our frail elderly 
and disabled population. (Outcome Statement 1 and 2 ) 

campbellld
Text Box
F-11



Options: 

• 	 The City can transfer Municipal Credit funds in the amount of $76,084 and Community Credit 
funds in the amount of $110,732 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service 
for senior citizens and persons with disabilities. 

Where legal review is necessary: 

Approved as to Form and Legality: 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 







 
 

July 27, 2009 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael 

Lanctot, Trustee of Friends of Jacob Foundation 
  
Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Michael Lanctot, Trustee of Friends of Jacob Foundation, 

seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of obtaining a 
charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City Management’s 
practice to support the approval of such requests. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12

































































 

 
 
 
 
 
July 28, 2009 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    William Nelson, Fire Chief 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival   
 
 
Background: 
 
 Michigan Fireworks Law requires that before anyone can conduct a fireworks display, they must 

apply to the local unit of government for a permit. 
 The law defines local unit of government as a council or commission of a city or village, or the 

township board of a township. The City of Troy has received a permit application from Mad 
Bomber Fireworks Productions, Inc., of Kingsbury, Indiana for a public fireworks display to be 
conducted at the close of this year’s Troy Daze Festival. 

 Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, Inc. is requesting that City Council grant a permit for a public 
fireworks display to occur on Sunday, September 20, 2009 at Boulan Park. 

 The Fire Prevention division has reviewed the permit application and recommends that City 
Council issue a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber fireworks Productions, Inc. Attached for Council’s 
review is the permit application along with the permit to be signed and issued. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funding for the fireworks display is available in the Parks and Recreation Community Fair 

operating account #103.784.7889.010. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-13



 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The Troy Daze Festival attracts nearly 100,000 people annually to celebrate the community. The 

festival provides a wide variety of activities for the entire family, and offers an opportunity for Troy 
business and community groups to showcase their organizations. (Outcome Statement I) 

 
 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends that City Council issue a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber 

Fireworks Productions, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DLEG/BCCFS Fax:517-241-9570 Rug 12 2005 15:03 P.06 

Permit for Fireworks Dllllpl.y 

Michigan Department of Labor &Economic Growth 


Bureau of Construction Codes & Flm Safety 

Office of the State Fire Ma.rshal 


P,O. Box 30254 

Lansing, M I 48909 


517·241·9302 

Authority: 19$9 FA 3~ 'th$ ~ t:I ~ 8< I!etIf1C/I'Ii<l G~h WIll nat dIwImJ"N aQiinst .nv lildMduAI or gl!l~ ~ !II raee, 18!, I'I!!~ agt!!. lUI50Ml OI!gI": QQlOo'. ~ 
ComPiill!'le« Reqlllf'ed ' statlJa, dhmblllljl. Dr political bellm. W~OIJ """ aselatsnc:a wllh medl!1W, wrl~ hfirlnlil' .tc., und.r the ~ wI,ll! ~tlIIi Act, )lQY may make)'!lUl' net!dm 
F@M;1~: M~em_ known to Ihl!l~. 

This permit Is n~t transferable. Possession of this permit authorizes the herein named person to possesa, tramport and dIsplay 
Firoworks In the amounts, for the purpose of and at the pfao9 listed below only. 

p( Publio Di$play D Agricultural Pest control 

AGE (1' Or owrl 

-37 

3& 0 

00 U " 17 (}N"S 

'~. -5" f}J~ f f-4{ ~ I-kLL-~ 

? It f)t?pt.A-{ ~J-/£LL~ 

J- 'gOO "5H0 r ~fJ-U:.. 8oI.E:-~ 


Issued by act/on of tn,e Cl council Cl commission CJ board of , 

o city 0 village CI townshIp of_______________ on thEl _____day of 



--

1t0735 P, 002/003'05/27/2008 14:25 2183833177 MAD BOMBER FIREWORK8P 

MIC! liGAN STATE POLICE 

F1R5 W,RSHAL OIVlSION 


APPLtCATION FOR FIREWORKS D}SPLAY PERMIT 

/' _.,,-_.-....... ....
lft· PUBLlCDISPLAY o AGRICULTURAL peST CONTROL Date ()f Appllcatlon 

,~ --1-J..6ClQ 
Name of Applicant AdQflOJriiS AgS(1S or over)

11...) {5",ir.btX'" h'l ... ,-",o... ~~ g.tYJu,,1II,,,~, p'o. (f(?);C. 4. (R .K:o'i!~ 1.. 1:',1 XvU t-It.$ tf)" 

~...:r;~poratl~ Niim~ of President . Mdres$ 


... ~..) J"''''es- 11.fs"()4 ebfl: ~1: (!.~:PI'I ~~ IN ~Ut)'j 
If a NOrHe$;ident Appli~nt: Name of MI AddreS$ Pholi~ NQ. 
Attorney ~lRaSG,Mt ~nt (q~b) ;.JI./ C1g71. :r" "" LKo'I..... &:. f) .&73 Br~«1,..... iJ.. ge.rI·~/; fIIIJ QCf1J.f 
~::'e of Pyrot~nic ~:ror Acldr8$5 A~ C~02'V8r) 


....,.)" '(11 ~; J~v'- ~S~ IiN>tl. ... d....."'\1 IJ.,.I";i;.(""·~~;:;:'III/!f(Pllf" 

'rWnereNo. Yi2l9EXp&rienca INo. ~~ 

:IN r L- Jf1I WT FL t11 vJ ;1& 
Name of AS(!~j Address . A~e ;<, 1rfill .. k'.I.! :"""l"".., e.( 1)... 1.1 "'.ta.: Sn :rtf() 

N13: of Other ~~Iital'tt Ase
Addf1,! . " 

!.-.e.t'tv 1/JIfr{? ,T ... t-t.:!$..-~L... .2~ 
~act ~o:tton of ~~po* ~5PlayRJ.

v.a.... .:zr- f ";''t'V';K_~ -rrrN fI1r 
Date of Proposed Cisplay Cj Time g,PTOP?Se:d Dir;~~ J.~,;.;[~bd ;W ;}jJ1) "";'t;.e.-" 10-( ,5 < 


No, Of FiltlwOi"Q Kind of flreworklii to be Dl$playad 


35"0 2· r(' 0; S'O/<>\/ 5'l~ {(I 


3"0 ? 1/ -~ ~p),,~ 5~e I(J~__~_.. __ 

r 

a.wo ~ htJlJ B?'CfC"''''' ~ot.e> ....-. .................
.. 

....--.......................... 


MaMer &: P18e& ef Stonilge PliOI' to Display (Subject to Approval 01 1.00a1 Fire Authcritil~$) 

X./",~.{b(..~ Jt-<JlAfTf"\'", , P~'fk J-/t'gh X' I1r-et:. 

Am1nt Of 6\)011 til' Insurance (to be s&t by local goV't) -1 Ntlme of BondIng CQrporation j~ll1s.urlltn~ Com.f@."Y.r. title' . t}r?(}, v. IfSf":']T:. .... ~ 6"111.~4~"'" ..-2 ...) ~'tJ?W:t.i-:.r.... <Jt-IL 


Addt~~~~f Bonding Corporation or ~jutlllnoe Crmp~)~ .J 

,2. 0 .<"OP) (1q"l7~-c C Ie" IJe (loA t)tf, -tjll{yq 


Slgnature of APPUca~~.~A" 

---/~r~ ~ 

See OTHER SlOE FOR' INSTF,lUGfrIONS 
A.uthtl tv: 1m PA 358 
Complml'letl: V¢!luntlry but a Pf:tmi! will 

!'lOt 1::>8 i'$$lIod wl!hOut ;ll'l 
ill iietlll<:m 

mailto:Com.f@."Y


Cityo/" .COUNCIL ACTION REPORTTroy 
July 23, 2009 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Economic Dev. Services 
Steve Vandette, City Enginee~ 

SUBJECT: Traffic Signal Agreements 
Rochester, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles, East and West of Rochester 
Project No. 99.203.5 and 01.106.5 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached traffic signal agreements with the Road 
Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) for the removal, modernization and installation of traffic 
signals as part of the Rochester, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles, East and West of Rochester Road 
projects. Furthermore, staff recommends that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the 
agreements. 

Background: 

The RCOC requires a City Council resolution approving the attached agreements and a copy of the 
signed agreement for their files. Rochester and Wattles Road will be reconstructed to a boulevard 
and the traffic signal locations listed below and as shown on the attached plan sheets will need to be 
removed, modernized or installed as part of the project. 

Removal: 
Rochester Road and Charrington Drive (Co. #583) 

Modernize: 
Rochester Road (N B) and Bishop Drive (Co. #641) 

Installation: 
Rochester Road (SB) and South of Torpey Drive, Pedestrian Crossing (Co. # 1291) 

Rochester Road (NB) and Torpey Drive (Co. # 1292) 

Rochester Road (SB) and Troywood Drive (Co. # 1293) 

Rochester Road (NB) and X-Over South of Wattles Road (Co. # 1294) 

Rochester Road (SB) and X-Over North of Wattles Road (Co. # 1295) 

Wattles Road (EB) and X-Over West of Rochester Road (Co. # 1296) 

Wattles Road (WB) and X-Over East of Rochester Road (Co. # 1297) 


campbellld
Text Box
F-14



Financial Considerations: 


The traffic signal work is estimated at $840,000 and approximately 80%, or $672,000, of the cost is 

eligible for reimbursement with federal funds. The city's estimated share of $168,000 is budgeted in 

the Capital Fund - Major Roads, account numbers 401.447.479.7989.992035 and 

401.447.479.7989.011065. 


Rochester Road and Wattles Road are both city roads, so future maintenance costs are paid by the 

city. The average traffic signal operation and maintenance costs for a year are approximately $1,800 

and are budgeted annually in the General Fund - Public Utilities, Traffic Signals, account number 

101.447.22.479.7920.030. 


Legal Considerations: 


The format and content of the agreements is consistent with traffic signal agreements approved by 

City Council for all other traffic signals in the city. 


Policy Considerations: 


Goal I - Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 

Goal II - Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality 

of life venues. 


G:\Projecls\Projecls - 1999\99.203.5 - Rochester, Torpey to BarclayiTo CC ra RCOC Traffic Signal AgreemenLRochester &WattJeu2.doc 



t1~{ 

Tn 
ROAD 

<>: I 
~[""""",,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,:.
'-; 

~c:;=;~-~-.---__ _ 
:r::r:: 
~ ~~~;:..::::;::. 

e$t1MA.TED__~~~s 
Sl,¥\, fllS"l !lJi ZOO,!) $r1 

Slq->, !1f.'" 1!14_", _"S10.Qi}Sft 
$19',l~!I!e_ 
Parl:. '>ml. 1 In _______~-
f«d. 1I'>x4. G Ir>It\ h'! a in<;!> ___" __ 

PWl IJr!<:Q. q,.,l) told ?I<>:r,.je. ~ 1.,.,.. 1'I>ln __ 

P""d 1in;I), Q!tly reId >'janl>:;. 4 Inch. hlh,,", __ 

hwr 14"\(<;1_ O<'i)' i';<>S~fc. JZ Inc!\. Cre»WOIl< ~1 

P""tloh;<;j. 0'<'1'1 fOld I'I<)$tl<;. II i.-;d>. lI<:rh:hiii9. hiIOW'. JOIl,Q h 
Po"t 1«1<<;1, (NIX (old Pl<ittlt:, ~~ lncn. StQ;! 1I<r ___HIi.u ,1 
PQrl 1Ir14l. ))vI)' feH:lI')mi't,<:. tt- T,""" orr",.. S:tlI' __tlI,C (0 

Pav1'101r1<.{l.j)yIJC<)I<lPJnstl<:~On!y ____ 

P(I\It 'IoIr1<.Q. (lid., tOld PI<>:rtic. II:t To.r'n ~ .'i~m 

pov·'IoIr1<.{l.IIIM....b<::>t'...... oj ,"""'. 

Pa"'''' U'i<Q. 1'a1i60rtarTIlh 4 -,net>. 1"11",,"__ 

f{_Cur;....,C~...~lIl-ftrt<nJit_,.s Hi,'100.0rt 
!!<)II! C\rlfIQ t(7lPCU'l'l hr ~I"I 1oIdt.gs _____ l,OOO.O lift 

R_~i<ll Il-kl,l .. ,"__ _~_ ~l,\JQO.OSft 

j:11q[ 

:ltllQ2,. 

.,,",
-AU 5TH.', RKTSRAtl.lI£'l r.l1JMlU'[tllJl8itl (;~¥.oJiI'>l'l(O. 

~. SUP wtl[n {TYP.) 

6iIMk ljWES AM£: rMlEO &1 Sltlail"i'; lJiD t:~1'$ AS $>!{IlPt, 

.,-Pl:RltUlfill loWIJ U4G nw.} 
)1,':' n.!V J1.S·

T 

OlNUU,CTOO WISt SM!J;I,! 4rIO et(4M Ntroon Til B[ STillf'l:{l 1l1E ~~ !l,IY 
Il£ _Ill rKI ;"l1Ilf'IHf;, 

~1. I'f~;IidIi£1(J SlR(P181l SlIMl at tJ.fRL~T UtO hUT(': lIo\'l£RI"'-i. crwFOIBI.ll¢ 
HI lfIL l!I'H 1I1t:IHC~tI W<I~~1. Oi' lJIlI"OI<" TlhFFI{ C(J>l~O C1f"otICES. 

~l ~11lP Ihl!:h ltr,tIoliQ$. ~ UIIl LOIt:lSS .....1, JU,1I~rICS 'Sl!l.ll BfMRtAY 
CIlIl PLASTIC ~T(jWi1S loEtTlW mr 5P'1:CS, ~QR 11I'fltl. H coco Pi ...mc ~"liiINGS. 

IROCHESTER /f)+ 31 

== I-K:: 

:'~~M~ 
....-J.:I,I.tI~ 

fAXl'IrItl"lo»!1rlKal1llSol 
r.u:(itlllf"AIIH><\.' IZoII')m 

Wt:\I&rrl,,,,,,,,Ir-~ 

errY OF TROY 

ROCHESTER R 
RECONSTRUCl 

TORPEY TO BAI 

PERMANENT S 
&. LANE MARK 

~-.K)i~'~ 



o
o

-n
r't.1

S
 

3
N

I7
 

H
:J.1'tJY

 

00·96'\11.5 
3

N
I7

 
H

:J1VW
 

00-99Y
15 

:1
N

n
 

H
J1V

W
 



~ 

tlHJo 

Tn 
1.( 

I ARROW W!TH "OM...Y~ 

ATWAJaRlHTERSECTlUHSl 

N£lSCAlE 

~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
~ 

I ! 

NOTE: 

~ii 
§s 
j~ 

co 
co 

~~~§ij~~~==~~~~~~~~~~~_~~~n~'~~~~2 
~~::~;i~::::::~~~~~~::::::::::~::::~~~~~~~~~::~~::::::~H~-:OO::::::~~::::::~==~~~==~~ 

------------  ------------------,,------------- ---------------_..- - _.- ----------------------.- ._ ~ 

/ ~~ \!!! j ~ 
1lQ:Q9 II -J 

I ~ ~ ~ \ ~ I~ __ ~ -I \ - ~ - L7 - - ( - -~ ~ ~ -I \\ \ -t j ! J. " ;{ r I !J II {= ~ 1/ \3 2~c\ _=L H...L I ::::~-------·f--------J--f-i m\ -·_:_J.~rm/--Hmd-- -:..JL I '" 

NEW A qP.ECMENT 
NoT REaVlt< ED 

~! 

~ 

f~~rl ~!;1 
L~ mo,::::

,o"",.orn5<"1<mco. 

'.j 

ROCHESTER ROAD 

NOTE: 
[X!STlIIG P~YfJFNT IotARK'~5 NIJ tONGrR 
SHAll BE H(I.llV£O I:'l ffilIHR~T£O ,\.S 
TEloPOR~RY IIln(,~s SHALt BE U~EO AS 

1 

5%Ilil~' ~ .,:~;t 
(t/Jf-9/11:l!!!1, 0 ":-+. 

3:= : g~, . 
~'" 

;1[0 

I~ i ~t1 
'-----~I!Irl1~i~ ~ ~ 

i.!;l : ~ 
:i' :f 

o !!5 
APPLICABLE. 

SIlOH AS PR~cnc'\'aL[. 
Il([(SSART. 

fl6·I(RJ 

PERMANENT PAVEMEN1 MARK INGS: III 
eH(l{~H L 11'Il~ AI1~ fOR ...D 8Y SEGMENTS .uID CJ.PS .lS S\IOWM: 

~PERIWIE)jTWAR(JHG!TlP"J 

nos' ----' 
12.S' .n.5' 12.S' 12,5' 

CO"HR,\.CTIJl~TIlROI:W,\.lIIlnEAHP,\.YEIEHTfOeESTAIPEllTliESAloEO.I.Y V)NHE WILL 00 STIHPI}lG. 

I(l P[AlWlfHT ~TR1P1HG SHALL BE OV'ERUY mo Pl~STIC IotATERII(S. [IlNFORlotlNG 
ro THE 19'H W1CHrr.AHWANtJAL 'J' IJIIIFQRYTlHFFlrCrtlTROl DEVICES. 

AU HI)' I:I~RS. LEGums. ARROWS ~ omss WAll )IARlltrGS SKI(L til:: OV~IIUl 

COLO PLASTIC Ij~TrRUlS loEETIMG mE SPECS, I'(IR (M'II\.AT COLlI PlASTIC lU.f'/kll<GS, 


All PERWAHfHT SIGNS ~HD PAV'EIEIoiT WAR(!IIGS AS 51l0~ HE.REIN (STAGE !YI ARt 

INClUOfD I}I THE EHIIoI1TEO OOANTlTIE5 SHOWN nN SHE[T P...... l. 
 IROCHEST£R 3.f 31 

nJr-!»J~ 

ROCHESTER !WAn-LES ROAD INTERSECTlON 
NlJSC.o.u; 

== I-R::: 

_tlUUJPIUVI 
ILDOMRO-D HIlUi, MlCIi 

,.../=~~r:::. 
f~(Zn<!'Ro<>rl'l~lpa...: 

WEI~: bII!I:II_..,...,. 

I ".":~ I ::::~:~I 

r,'.........-.""••••,,'.........., ........ ..,.. 

I!I:.....!.F" '! 'u:i:l Jif 

CITY OF moY 

ROCHESTER R' 
RECONSTRUCl 

TORPEY TO BAI 

PERMANENT 5 
& LANE MARK 

http:M'II\.AT


.
~
 

C
I 

ill 

E::;.
z
z
' 

~
o
 

a
:;e

 i
"'0·
!!:;.j::
.. "" ",::Ii ~~ 
,,0; 

;~ 

~ 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I I I ~I I 

~ 
a:::; 

~ 
:a I!' 
.... 

i!)

5 
~5
;lidlIX! 

-.. 
'-l.. 

<> 
"


tJ ~
 

I

~ 
~ ! ~ I f ~
 

~ 



"WE CARE" 

floard of Road Commissioners 

Riclmrd G. Skarritt 
Commissioner 

Eric S. Wilson 
Commissioner 

Brent O. Bair 
Managing Director 

Dennis G. Kolar, P.E. 
Deputy Managing Director 
County Highway Engineer 

Traffic Safety Department 

2420 Pontiac Lk.Rd. 
Waterford, MI 

48328 

248-858-4802 

FAX 
248-858-4814 

TDD 
248-858-8005 

www.rcocweb.org 

July 14, 2009 

William J. Huotari, P.E. 
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 

Re: Traffic Signal Cost Agreements 
City of Troy, Rochester Road Project 
North of Big Beaver Road to North of Wattles Road 

Dear Huotari: 

Included within the City of Troy project to reconstruct Rochester Road to a boulevard 

cross section from north of Big Beaver Road to north of Wattles Road, are plans to 

remove, modernize and install several traffic signals. This will require the 

modification or execution of new cost agreements. The following is a list of the 

signals: 


Removal: 

Rochester Road & Charrington Drive (Co. # 583) 


Modernize: 

Rochester Road (NB) & Bishop Drive (Co. # 641) 


Installation: 

Rochester Road (SB) & South of Torpey Drive, Pedestrian Crossing (Co. # 1291) 

Rochester Road (NB) & Torpey Drive (Co. # 1292) 

Rochester Road (SB) & Troywood Drive (Co. # 1293) 

Rochester Road (NB) & X-Over South of Wattles Road (Co. # 1294) 

Rochester Road (SB) & X-Over North of Wattles Road (Co. # 1295) 

Wattles Road (EB) & X-Over West of Rochester Road (Co. # 1296) 

Wattles Road (WB) & X-Over East of Rochester Road (Co. # 1297) 


Enclosed are three copies of the traffic signal modernization agreement for each of the 

traffic signals listed above. Please have all the agreements signed by the appropriate 

official and return them to us for further processing. In addition, please provide a copy 

of a resolution approved by your Board in support of these agreements. A fully 

executed copy of each of the agreements will be returned to you for your records. 


If you have any question, please feel free to contact me at (248) 858-4830. 


Sincerely, 


I@.. 
Charles Keller, P .E. 
Traffic Engineer 
Traffic-Safety Department .JUt 1 6 2009 

Enclosures (27) 
ENGINEERING 

http:www.rcocweb.org


STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Removal 

Location: Rochester Road and Charrington Drive 	 Signal No: 583 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY REMOVAL MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 	 100 % In Project Cost N/A% 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 N/A% 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: 


ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 


Date_________ 

Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official 

APPROVED: 


CITY OF TROY 


Date 

Title of Authorized Official 

·Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Modernization 

Location: Rochester Road (NB) and Bishop Drive 	 Signal No: 641 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY MODERNIZATION MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 	 100 % In Project Cost 100% 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 100% 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: APPROVED: 


ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY CITY OF TROY 


Date_ _ ______ 

Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFiC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official Title of Authorized Official 

'Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Installation 

Location: Rochester Road (SB) and South of Torpey Drive Signal No: 1291 
(Pedestrian Crossing) Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 100 % In Project Cost 100 % 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 100 % 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED; APPROVED: 


ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY CITY OF TROY 


By~__________________ 

Title of Authorized Official 

Gary Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official 

'Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Installation 

Location: Rochester Road (NB) and Torpey Drive 	 Signal No: 1292 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 	 100 % In Project Cost 100 % 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 100 % 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMIVlISSIOI\l FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnity, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located ona road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 

APPROVED: 

CITY OFTROV 

Date____~ ____ 

Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official Title of Authorized Official 

'Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Installation 

Location: Rochester Road (SB) and Troywood Drive 	 Signal No: 1293 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective goveming bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 	 100 % In Project Cost 100% 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 100% 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County. then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: APPROVED: 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY CITYOFTROY 

Date_~_______ 

Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official Title of Authorized Official 

*Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Installation 

Location: Rochester Road (NB) and X-Over South of Wattles Road 	 Signal No: 1294 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state Jaw and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City ofTroy 	 100 % In Project Cost 100 % 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 100 % 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and aU claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: APPROVED: 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY CITYOFTROY 

Date_________ 

Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official Titl~ of Authorized Official 

*Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Installation 

Location: Rochester Road (SB) and X-Over North of Wattles Road 	 Signal No: 1295 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY INSTALLATION MAlNTENAI\JCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 	 100 % In Project Cost 100 % 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 100 % 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: 


ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 


Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official 

APPROVED: 

CITY OF TROY 

Dale_________ 

Title of Authorized Official 

*Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CON"rROL DEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Installation 

Location: Wattles Road (EB) and X-Over West of Rochester Road 	 Signal No: 1296 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 	 100 % In Project Cost 100% 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 100 % 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control' device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: 	 APPROVED: 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 	 CITY OF TROY 

Piotrowicz 

DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY •..... ----------
Title of Authorized Official 	 Title of Authorized Official 

*Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 


OAKLAND COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL OEVICE 


Type of Work: Traffic Signal Installation 

Location: Wattles Road (WB) and X-Over East of Rochester Road 	 Signal No: 1297 
Date Effective: 

Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

AGENCY INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE 
Percent Estimated Cost Percent 

City of Troy 	 100 % In Project Cost 100 % 

Total 100 % In Project Cost 	 100 % 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 

"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 

APPROVED: APPROVED: 


ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY CITY OF TROY 


Gary Piotrowicz 

DI RECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY 
Title of Authorized Official Title of Authorized Official 

*Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



Ci~q/' CITY COUNiCIL ACTION REPORT Troy 
July 14, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Mar.Jag~/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Enginee~ (\ 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative~~ 

SUB,JECT: 	 Request to Grant a Permanent Drain Easement to McCulloch Drain Drainage District 
Sidwell#88-20-22-478-007 & 88-20-23-354-047 

Background: 

• 	 As part of the ongoing improvement project at the corners of Big Beaver and Rochester Roads, the City of 
Troy has received a request from the McCulloch Drain Drainage District to grant an easement for the 
existing McCulloch Drain. Although in existence for many years, it appears that an easement has never 
been granted to the Water Resources Commissioner (formerly Oakland County Drain Commissioner) or 
the Drainage District. 

• 	 The easement is 60 feet in width running diagonally over the northeast corner parcels east of Rochester 
Road. Granting this easement will allow the Water Resources Commissioner the right to construct, 
operate, maintain, repair or replace the McCulloch Drain. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of this easement document has been reviewed by the City Attorney's office. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 

Options: 

• 	 Staff recommends that City Council grant the easement request to the McCulloch Drain Drainage District. 

G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\McCullochDrainEasement 7/27/09.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
F-15



Parcel No. 1~2009 

K.c~OW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that CITY OF TROY, a 

Michigan Municipal Corporation, GRi\NTOR, whose address is 500 West 

Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084 for and in consideration offrle sum of 

ONE DOU-,AR AND OO/CENTS ($1.00) receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, paid to them by the McCULLOCH DRAIN DRAINAGE 

DISTRICT ("Drainage District"), a Michigan Statntory Corporation, acting 

through the Drainage Board for the McCULLOCH DRAIN ("Drain") pursuant to 

Act No. 40 of the Public Acts of 1956 ("Drain Code"), as amended, 

whose addr~ss is the Office of the Oakland County Water Resources 

Commissioner ("OCWRC"), One Public Works Drive, Bldg. 95 West, Waterford, 


Michigan 48328·1907, does hereby to the said GRANTEE the to 


construct, operate, maintain, repair or replace said DRAIN, in accordance with the 


tenns and conditions set forth herein: 


RECITALS: 


A. The GRANTOR is the owner of certain real property described as follows 

(the "Premises"): 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A" AND "E" 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


SIDWELL NO. 20-22-478-007 
20-23-354-047 

and, 

B. The GRANTEE desires to acquire from the GRANTOR certain rights to 

the Premises in order to construct, operate, maintain, repair or replace the DRAIN. 

IT IS THEREFORE AGREED: 

1. Grant of iii Permanent Easement. Gra11tor hereby grants to Grantee a 

perpetnal easement described as follows: 

PERMANENT EASEMENT "A" 

SEE EXHIBIT "A" FOR L.EGAL DESCRIPTION 

-1



PERMA~ENT EASEMENT "B" 


SEE EXHIBIT "B" FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION 


2. Purpose of the Easement. The permanent easement granted herein shall 

be used for the purpose of the operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of the 

DRAIN constnlcted in accordance with the plans and specifications approved 

the Drain Board. 

3. General Conditions. 

a. Except as otherwise agreed in vvriting between the GRANTOR and 

GRANTOR agrees not to build or convey to others permission to 

build any permanent structures on the above-described pennanent easement. 

Permanent structures, include but are not limited to, fixtures, structures with 

footings, culverts, dams, bridges and structures of a similar nature. 

b. Except as otherwise in ,,\rriting between the GRi\NTOR and 

GRANTEE, GRAKTEE may remove all trees and shrubbery within the permanent 

easement and shall not be required to replace trees and shrubbery that are 

removed. 

c. as otherwise to in writing, if the Premises shall be 

disturbed by reason of the of any of the foregoing powers, then the 

Premises shall be restored to substantially the eondition that existed prior to 

entering upon said Premises by the Grantee, its contractors, agents or assigns. 

d. GRi\NTOR retains, reserves, and shall continue to enjoy the use of 

the permanent easement for any and all purposes which do not interfere with, 

obstruct the use of or prevent the use by GRAKTEE. Any unauthorized use or 

obstruction may be removed by GRANTEE in accordance with the procedures set 

forth in the Drain Code. 

e. It is understood that the easement, rights, and privileges granted 

herein are nonexclusive, and GRANTOR reserves and retains the right to convey 

similar easements and rights to such other persons as GRANTOR may deem 

proper provided such similar easements do not affect GRANTEE'S Easement. 

f. This Easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 

Parties hereto, their heirs, representatives, successors and assigns. If the 

GRANTOR or any of GRANTOR'S heirs, representatives, successors or 

shall dedicate all or any part of the Premises affected by this Easement, then prior 

to such dedication, GRANTOR or GRANTOR'S heirs, representatives, successors 

and shall submit such dedication for review and approval from the 

GRANTEE, its heirs, successors or assigns. 

-2



g. A map of the above-described Easement is attached hereto and made 

a part thereof. 

h. This instrument contains the entire agreement between the Parties 

relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed. oral 

represel1tations or modifications concerning this instrument shall be of no force 

and effect. Any modification of this Easement must be in writing and must be 

signed by the party to be charged. 

1. This Easement is made and entered into in the State of Michigan and 

shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the 

State of Michigan. The language of all parts of this Easement is intended to and, 

in all cases, shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and not 

construed strictly for or against any party. 

J. It is further understood and agreed between the Parties that the terms 

and conditions herein are contractual and are not a mere recital and that there are 

no other agreements, understandings, contracts, or representations between 

GRANTOR and GRANTEE in any way related to the subject matter hereof, 

as expressly stated herein. 

k. If any provision of this Easement or its application to any person or 

circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

Easement shall not be affected and shall remain valid and enforceable to the fullest 

extent permitted by law. 

1. It is understood and agreed between fue Parties that a failure by 

either Party to fulfill a condition or term set forth in this Easement shall not result 

in extinguishment of the easement rights granted herein or constitute a waiver of 

such term or condition. 

m. 	 This easement shall be subject to a certain License and Use 

between GRANTOR and GRANTEE as recorded in 

Liber Pages , Oakland County Records. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the GRANTOR have hereunto affixed their 

this _____ day of , A.D., 2009. 

WITNESSES: 	 CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation 

________~(L.s.) 

LOUISE E. SCHILLING, MAYOR 

__________CL.s.) 
TONNI L. BARTHOLOMEW, CITY CLERK 

-3



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATEOFMJCHIGAN ) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

On this ____ day of _~__...~____.~__, A.D., 2009, before me, a 

Notary Public in and for said County, personally appeared 

LOUISE E. SCHILLING and TONNI L. BARTHOLOMEW to me personally 

known, who being by me severally duly sworn did say that they are respectively 

the MAYOR and CITY CLERK of the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 

Municipal Corporation, a eorporation created and existing under the laws of the 

State of Michigan, and that the said Easement Grant was signed and sealed in 

behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors, and the said 

___ acknowledged ~he said 

instrument to be the free act and deed ofthe said Corporation. 

Notary Public 

My Commission '-'''l:'HV~.________~_ 

This instrument drafted by: 

Paul E. Dove, Right of Way Supervisor, Office of 
Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
Building 95 West 
One Public Works Drive 
Waterford, Michigan 48328-1907 

(C)-Corporation Ack.- Revised !O/18illl 

PED/kmb 

Kimberly Brown', file,ID,\DOVEIEAS\CITYllWY(MCCULLOCH)'09.Pl\716109 

-4



I 
r== 

SKETCH OF EA NT 
NOTE:NO FIELD WORK 

DESCRIPTION TAKEN 
 \ 

\ \N UNVERSI7Y AVENUE 
\ \ 

N8'J33' 23"£ 149.25' ~ 
SCALE: 1" =40' 

I 
I 

I 
I 

BIG 

20-22-478-007 

SUB. L!N...E 584'32'OO"E 179.82,' 
- - - - - '1 ~ 973'"82.50' T... -.~ - - - - - __ :: 

LOT 27 

I 
I 

PART OF LOT 28 

22431' 

S.E. COR. SECT [ON 
T02N, RllE, CITY 
OAKLAND COUNTY, 

..... ~-~---, 

1 
SUB. LINE 

- __ .1., _ - - -

8, 
<\i:
£;1 

1 

10 o 
~ 

i -----

JOB NO. 
20070645 

DATE 

HUBBELL, ROTH 
CONSU~ TiNG 

& CLARK. !NC. 
ENGINEERS 

SHEE, NC. 

1 
06-25-09 

555 Hli~ET DRIVE 
BLOOMclELD HILLS. MICr. 

P.O. BOX 82, 
48303~0824 O!=' 2 

© 20~5 Hubbe I '. Roth lork. Ire AI I Rights Reserved 



06-25-09 
20070645 
20-22-478-007 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY ITAKEN FROM RECORD 20-22-478-007) 

That part of Lot 1 lying in Section 22 of "Supervisor's Plat No. 13" a subdivision of part of Southeast Y. of 
Section 22 and part of Southwest Y. of Section 23, T2N, RIlE, Troy Township (now City of Troy), Oakland 
County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 49 of Plats, Page 1, Oakland County Records and Lots 27 and 28, 
Except the South 69.00 feet taken for road of "Supervisor's Plat No.9" a subdivision of parts of South 'h of 
Section 22 and part of Northwest Y. of Section 26 and part of Northeast Y. of Section 27, T2N, RIlE, Troy 
Township (now City of Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Libel' 46 of plats, Page 41, Oakland 
County Records. 

Subject to reservations, restrictions, and easements of record, if any. 

Also known as Sidwell No. 20-22-478-007 

DESCRIPTION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

Part of Lot 1 of "Supervisor's Plat No. 13" a subdivision of part of Southeast Y. of Section 22 and part of 
Southwest Yo of Section 23, T2N, R1 Troy Township (now City of Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as 
recorded in Libel' 49 of Plats, 1, Oakland County Records and Part of Lot 28 of "Supervisor's Plat No.9" 
a subdivision of parts of South of Section 22 and part of Northwest Y. of Section 26 and part of Northeast Y. 
of Section 27, T2N, RI (now City of Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 
46 of plats, Page 41, Oakland County Records, described as follows: Begiruling at a point distant N00041 'OO"E 
102.00 feet along the East line of said Section 22 to the North right of way line of Beaver Road and the 
Point Of Beginning; thence said right of way line N89°00'04"W 4.94 feet; thence N17°45'56"W 267.74 
feet to a point on the South of way line of University Avenue; thence said of way line 
N89°33'23"E 62.85 feet; thence 817°45'56"E 84.78 feet to a point on the East line of said Section 22; thence 
along said Section line 800°41 'OO"W 174.81 feet to the Point Of BegiDlling. 
Said easement contains 11,008 square feet, or 0.253 acres, more or less. 

Page 2 of 2 



Exhibit "B" 


CI-1 OF EASEMENSK 

NOTE:NO FIELD WORK 

DESCRIPTION TAKEN 
 FROM 

N 

~ 
SCALE: 1" 40' 

\ 
~ 
\ 
\ 

PART OF LOT 

\ 
\ 
"\ 

\ 
\ 

20-22-478-007 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

McCULLOCH DRAIN 

\ 
- ,--1 

\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

60.00! 
-I 

BROTHERTON 
DRAIN ESMT. 
L. 6488, P.2.28 

SUB. LINE 
J 

J 

I 

-!\ 

\ 

\ 

\ '" PART OF LOT 28 a.~' \ 
~ 

PART OF LOT 28 

SECOR. SECTION 

\ 
\ 

P 

\ 

\ 

T02N, R11E, CITY TROY, 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN. 

f<) 
C\J 

h s &J 
h 

I 9 

~ is 
h 

~ c... 
I 20-23-354-047 I 
I 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
I 
I 
I 

BIG BEAVER 

-, 
C\J 

h 
9 

is 
h 

~ c... 

..1 

UNVERSITY AVENUE 


--~'-'-----------

JOB NO. SHEET NO. 
20070645 HUBBELL~ ROTH & CLARK, INC. 

DATE CONSULTING ENGINEERS 1 
555 HU~fT ~RIVE P.O.

06-25-09 BLOOMFIELD HILLS. MICH. 48303-0824 OF 2 

© 2005 hubDe I I. Roth ond Ci orl<. A I I R j gilts Reserved 



06-25-09 
20070645 
20-23-354-047 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY (TAKEN FROM RECORD 20-23-354-047) 

The East 26.00 feet of Lot 1, All of Lots 2 thm 7, inclusive "Supervisor's Plat No. 13" a subdivision of part of 
Southeast Y. of Section 22 and part of Southwest Y. of Section 23, T2N, RIlE, Troy Tovmship (now City of 
Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 49 of Plats, Page 1, Oakland County Records and Lots 
17 tbm 24, inclusive, Except the South 69.00 feet taken for road "Supervisor's Plat No. 11" a subdivision of 
part of the Southwest. Y. of Southwest y,; of Section 23 and part of the Northwest Y. of the Northwest Y. of 
Section 26, T2N, RUE, Troy Townslrip (now of Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 
46 of Plats, Page 46, Oakland Records. 

Subject to reservations, restrictions, and easements of record, if any. 

Also known as Sidwell No. 20-23-354-047. 

Part of Lot 1 "Supervisor's Plat No. 13" a subdivision of part of Southeast y,; of Section 22 and part of 
Southwest Y. of Section 23, R1 Troy Township (now City of Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as 
recorded in Liber 49 ofPlats, 1, Oakland County Records and part of Lots 23 and 24 of "Supervisor's Plat 
No. 11" a subdivision of part of the Southwest Y. of Southwest Y. of Section 23 and part of the Northwest Y. of 
the Northwest Y. of Section 26, TIN, Rl Troy Township (now City of Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, 
described as follows: Beginning at a point distant NOoo41 'OO"E I 02.00 feet along the East line of said Section 
22 to the North right of way line of Beaver Road; thence continuing N00041'OO"E 174.81 feet; thence 
S17°45'56"E 184.90 feet to a point on said right of way line; thence along said right of way line N89"OO'04"W 
58.51 feet to the Point 

Said easement contains 5,114 square or 0.117 acres, more or less. 


Page 2. of 2 



Ci~if


Troy 

July 27, 2009 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Economic Dev. Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Enginee~ 

SUB.JECT: McCulloch Drain License and Use Agreement 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached License and Use Agreement with the 
McCulloch Drain Drainage District for the construction, operation and maintenance of a city park, 
partially within a sixty (60) foot wide permanent easement for the McCulloch Drain, at the northeast 
corner of Rochester and Big Beaver roads. Furthermore, staff recommends that the Mayor and City 
Clerk be authorized to execute the agreement. 

Background: 

The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner's Office requires a standard license and use 
agreement whenever improvements are constructed within a drain easement. A City Council 
resolution approving the attached agreement and a copy of the signed agreement is needed for their 
files. 

The Big Beaver and Rochester Intersection and Park Enhancement project includes a park with 
landscaping, sidewalks and other aesthetic enhancements at the northeast corner of the intersection. 
The project also includes pedestrian safety improvements; modernizing the pedestrian crossing 
signals and upgrading the sidewalks and cross walks to comply with the American's with Disabilities 
Act (ADA). Additional trees will also be planted along sidewalks near the intersection and within a 
landscaped island to be constructed in the middle of the Big Beaver/Rochester intersection. These 
improvements are being constructed in accordance with the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor 
study, previously adopted by City Council, and City Planning Commission and are being funded by 
the Downtown Development Authority (DDA). 

Financial Considerations: 

There are no financial considerations associated the agreement. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-16



Legal Considerations: 


The format and content of the agreement is consistent with agreements approved by City Council for 

other improvements located within county drain easements. 


Policy Considerations: 


Goal I - Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 

Goal II - Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality 

of life venues. 


G:IContraclsIContracts· 2008108-4 Big Beaver at RDchester,Correspondence\To CC re OCWRC License and Use Ag"",melltooc 





LICENSE AND USE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of 
---~-

________~) 2009, by and between the McCULLOCH DRAIN 

DRAINAGE DISTRICT, a Michigan Statutory Corporation, acting through 

the Drainage Board for the McCULLOCH DRAIN, under Chapter 20 of Act 40 

of the Public Acts of 1956, as amended, whose address is One Public Works 

Drive, Bldg. 95 West, Waterford, Michigan 48328-1907 (hereinafter referred to as 

the "DISTRICT") and the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 

Corporation, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 

48084 (hereinafter referred to as the "CITY"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the CITY is the fee owner of certain property located in the 

CITY OF TROY, said property being more particularly described as: 

That part of Lot 1 lying in Section 22 of "Supervisor's Plat No. 13", a 
subdivision of part of Southeast Y, of Section 22 and part of Southwest '/. 
of Section T.2N., R.1 Troy Township (now City of Troy), Oakland 
County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 49 of Plats, Page 1, Oakland 
County Records and Lots 27 and 28, except the South 69.00 feet taken for 
road of "Supervisor's Plat No.9", a subdivision of parts of South Y2 of 
Section 22 and part of Northwest Y4 of Section 26 and part of Northeast Y, 
of Section 27, T.2N., R.IIE., Troy Township (now City ofTroy), Oakland 
County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 46 of Plats, Page 41, Oakland 
County Records. 

Subject to reservations, restrictions, and easements of record, if any. 
Also known as Sidwell No. 20-22-478-007 

AND, 

The East 26.00 feet of Lot I, all of Lots 2 thru 7, inclusive "Supervisor's 
Plat No. 13", a subdivision of part of Southeast Y, of Section 22 and part 
of Southwest 1;4 of Section 23, T.2N., R.ll E., Troy Township (now City of 
Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 49 of Plats, Page 
1, Oakland County Records and Lots 17 thru 24, inclusive, except the 



South 69.00 feet taken for road "Supervisor's Plat No. 11 ", a subdivision 
of part of the Southwest Y. of Southwest Y. of Section 23 and part of the 
Northwest Y. of the Northwest ';4 of Section 26, T.2N., R.l Troy 
Township (now City of Troy), Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in 
Liber 46 of Plats, 46, Oakland County Records. 

Subject to reservations, restrictions, and easements of record, if any. 
Also known as Sidwell No. 130-23-354-047. 

AND, 

WHEREAS, there is located a 60 foot wide permanent easement for 

the McCULLOCH DRAIN over the aforedescribed parcel of property for 

drainage purposes, said easement having been granted to the DISTRICT as 

recorded in Liber ____, Pages _~~~____ of Oakland County 

Reeords; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY acknowledges and accepts the paramount 

rights of the DISTRICT to permanently maintaining control and use of 

said easement; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY proposes to construct, operate and maintain 

a portion of a City "Park" within said easement. Said "Park" to include a 

stone seatwalJ with seats, fencing, landscaping and irrigation system, 

sidewalk, curb and walk pavers, lighting and a decorative pond, hereinafter 

collectively referred to as the "Improvements", and 

WHEREAS the DISTRICT does not object to the proposed "Park" 

and "Improvements" as approved at its Drainage Board meeting on 

,2009. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, convenants 

and undertakings hereinafter contained, and for ONE DOLLAR ($1.00), 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by the DISTRICT, the 

DISTRICT and the CITY mutualIy a!,'Tee as follows: 

1) 	 The CITY shaII be allowed to construct the "Park" and 

"Improvements" in aceordancc with the plans submitted and 

approved by the DISTRICT. No other permanent structures 

of any kind shall be allowed. The "Park" and 

"Improvements" shall be constructed in such a manner and 


. location as to prevent any damage to the existing drain or its 
related drainage systems which lie within the easement. 

-2



2) 	 The CITY shall be responsible for any and all costs associated with 
the construction, operation or maintenance of the "Park" and 
"Improvements". 

3) 	 The CITY agrees, that if it is ever necessary for the DISTRICT to 
remove and/or cause damage to the "Park" and "Improvements" 
because of operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement of the 
McCULLOCH DRAIN or its related systems, the DISTRICT 
shall not be held liable for restoring or replacing said "Park" and 
"Improvements". All restoration will be paid for and accomplished 
by the CITY, and such restoration shall bc approved by the 
DISTRICT. 

4) 	 The CITY further agrees to remove any portion of the "Park" 
and/or "Improvements" that the DISTRICT deems necessary to 
facilitate maintenance, repair andlor replacement activities to the 
McCULLOCH DR'\IN within 30 days of receiving written notice 
from the DISTRICT of any impending maintenance, repair and/or 
replacement activity. 

5) 	 In the event that the CITY fails to so remove said "Park" and/or 
"Improvements" as deemed necessary by the DISTRICT within 30 
days of the date of receiving such notice or any later date as set by 
the DISTRICT for such removal, the DISTRICT may proceed to 
clear all or any area by any means expeditious to the project and 
assess and bill the CITY for all costs additional to the project and 
attendant to such clearing of the right-of-way area. The CITY 
agrees that it shall be liable for and will pay all such costs upon 
receipt of any billing for sueh costs. 

6) 	 The CITY shall be allowed to replace and re-establish the "Park" 
and/or "Improvements" upon completion of any maintenance, 
repair and/or replacement project consistent with the specifications 
of the plans as approved by the DISTRICT. 

7) 	 To the extent provided by law, the CITY OF TROY shall 
indemnify and hold the DISTRICT halmless from any and all 
liability, loss or damage the DISTRICT may suffer as a result of all 
claims, demands, costs or judgments against it or claimed by any 
third party, their heirs, successors or out of the CITY OF 
TROY'S use of the easement for "Park" and "Improvement" only. 

8) 	To the extent provided by law, the CITY agrees tq defend and hold 
the DISTRICT harmless against any and all claims of any nature 
or type, lawsuits, actions, arbitrations, or any form of claim or 
demand brought against the DISTRICT arising out of the City of 
Troy's use of the easement tor "Park" and Improvements" only. 



9) The CITY shall name as an additional insured on it's present and 

future insurance contracts, the DISTRICT for any and all coverage 

or contract that the CITY shall have in effect that provides 

coverage for the CITY'S use of the DlSITRICT'S easement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the CITY may fulfill the insurance 

requirements herein by requiring any and all CITY authorized 

users ofthe site to purchase and maintain general liability insurance 

which names the DISTRICT as an additional insured, The CITY 

or other authorized users shall submit insurance certificates to the 

Water Resources Commissioner for his review and approvaL 


10) The DISTRICT will grant and issue such permits as are deemed 

necessary prior to starting construction of the "Park" and 

"Improvements" within the DISTRICT'S easement. The CITY 

shall secure approval from any other municipality, agency, utility 

company or private property owner as may be required prior to 

commencing construction, 


It is hereby expressly reserved unto the DISTRICT that this Agreement 

may be terminated by the DISTRICT in writing to the CITY for cause or without 

cause at any time during its duration. Furthermore, in the event the CITY 

chooses to abandon its use of the easement, this Agreement may be terminated by 

the CITY in writing to the DISTRICT for cause or without cause. 

In the event this Agreement is terminated by the DISTRICT, the CITY 

hereby releases the DISTRICT from any loss, damage or liability of any kind of 

nature caused by or due to the termination of this Agreement by the DISTRICT. 

Furthermore, if this Agreement is terminated by the CITY, the DISTRICT hereby 

releases the CITY from any loss, damage or liability of any kind of nature caused 

by or due to the termination ohhis Agreement by the CITY. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 

hereto, their heirs, representatives, successors or assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHF~REOF, the Parties have hereunto affixed their 

signatures this ______ day 

In the Presence of: lVlcCULLOCH DRAIN 
DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

JOHN P. McCULLOCH, CHAIRMAN 

-4



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)SS: 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 

On this day of ___________" A.D. 2009, before 

me, a Notary Public in and for said County appeared JOHN P. McCULLOCH, to 

me personally known, who being by me duly sworn did say that he is the 

CHAIR'\1AN of the DRAINAGE BOARD for the McCULLOCH DRAIN 

acting for the McCULLOCH DRAIN DR;\INAGE DISTRICT and that said 

instrument was in behalf of said Drainage District authority of its 

Drainage Board and the said JOHN P. McCULLOCH acknowledged said 

instrument to be the free act and deed of said Drainage Board, 

Notary Public 

-5



CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation 

LOUISE E. SCHILLING, MAYOR 

TONNI L. BARTHOLOMEW, CITY CLERK 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)SS: 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

On this ___ day _____~~ ______, A.D. 2009, before me 

personally appeared LOUISE E. SCHILLING, MAYOR and TONNI L. 

BARTHOLOMEW, CITY CLERK, of the CITY OF TROY, who are to me 

known to be the persons described in and who executed the above License and 

Use Agreement and acknowledged the same to be their own free act and deed. 

:\fotary Public 

My Commission 

This instrument drafted by: 

Paul E. Dove, Right of Way Supervisor 
Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner 
One Public Works Drive 
Bldg. 95 West 
Waterford, Michigan 48328-1907 

PED/kmb 

Kimberly 3:'owl1's flles\D:\DOVE\UCENSEUSEAGREEEAS\MCCULLOCHbRAtN'C9.JL7\717/09 

-6



 

 
 
July 30, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
SUBJECT: Application for merger of ownership of Drury Hotels Company LLC. 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Drury Hotels Company, LLC (A Nevada Limited Liability Company) requests to transfer ownership 

through merger  of 2009 B-Hotel licensed business, located at 575 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI, 
Oakland, MI 48084, from Drury Inns, Inc. to Drury Hotels Company, LLC (Limited Liability 
Company) (Step 1) {MLCC Request #491090}. 

 Troy City Council approved DDC Hotels, Inc. (A Missouri Corporation) request to transfer 
ownership of 2008 B-Hotel and SDM Licensed Business, located at 575 West Big Beaver, Troy, 
Michigan 48084, Oakland County, from Drury Hotels Company, LLC (A Nevada Limited Liability 
Company); and request for a new Official Permit (Food) (Step 2). {MLCC Request #491095) on 
June 15, 2009. 

 MLCC inadvertently provided incorrect resolution wording in the initial request placed before City 
Council. The attached resolution corrects the oversight. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/Drury Inn 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-17













CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  June 15, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – 111th Michigan Municipal League 
Convention   

 
Resolution #2009-06-189-F-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES Council Members to attend the 111th 
Michigan Municipal Convention on September 22 – 25, 2009 at the Radisson Plaza Hotel in 
Kalamazoo, MI, in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Utility Vehicle 
 
Resolution #2009-06-189-F-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase one (1) new 
Kubota Model RTV900W6-H utility vehicle to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, 
Weingartz Supply Company of Utica, MI, at an estimated total cost of $16,364.00, including all 
necessary set-up, preparation, and delivery. 
 
F-5 Approval of Request from DDC Hotels, Inc. for Transfer of Ownership of 2008 B-

Hotel and SDM Licensed Business, Located at 575 West Big Beaver from Drury 
Hotels Company, LLC, and Request for New Official Permit (Food) 

  
a) License 
 
Resolution #2009-06-189-F-5a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
DDC Hotels, Inc. (A Missouri Corporation), to transfer ownership of 2008 B-Hotel and SDM 
Licensed Business, located at 575 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from 
Drury Hotels Company, LLC (A Nevada Limited Liability Company); and the request for new 
official permit (food); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS issuance of this 
license. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2009-06-189-F-5b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with DDC Hotels, Inc. (A Missouri Corporation), to transfer Ownership of 2008 B-Hotel and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  June 15, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

SDM Licensed Business, located at 575 West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, 
from Drury Hotels Company, LLC (A Nevada Limited Liability Company); and a new official 
permit (food), and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-6 Approval of Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Mary 

Lou DiSessa, Board Member of Springhill Housing Corporation 
 
Resolution #2009-06-189-F-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Springhill Housing 
Corporation, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
F-7 Appointment of SOCRRA Representative and Alternate Representative 
 
Resolution #2009-06-189-F-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES Brian P. Murphy as the SOCRRA 
Representative and Timothy L. Richnak as the Alternate SOCRRA Representative for the term 
beginning July 1, 2009 and expiring on June 30, 2010. 
 
F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Second Year Renewal Option – 

Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program   
 
Resolution #2009-06-190 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On August 20, 2007, a contract to complete the Sidewalk Replacement and 
Installation Program for 2007/08 with an option to renew for two additional one-year periods 
was awarded to the low total bidder, Viking Construction, Inc. of Warren, Michigan (Resolution 
#2007-08-250-E-4e);  
 
WHEREAS, On August 11, 2008, Troy City Council exercised the first option to renew for the 
2008/2009 construction season with Viking Construction under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions (Resolution #2008-08-254-F4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, Viking Construction has agreed to exercise the second one-year option to renew 
the contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions as the original contract; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the second one-
year option to renew the contract with Viking Construction to provide sidewalk replacement and 
installation for the 2009/10 construction season under the same prices, terms, and conditions as 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 8, 2009  

 Page 1 of 5 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, June 8, 
2009 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Patrick Hall called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Officer James Feld 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2009-06-007 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of June 8, 2009 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of April 13, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-06-008 
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the April 13, 2009 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 8, 2009  

 Page 2 of 5 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. DDC Hotels, Inc. (A Missouri Corporation) requests to transfer ownership 

of 2008 B-Hotel and SDM Licensed Business, located at 575 West Big 
Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084, Oakland County, from Drury Hotels 
Company, LLC (A Nevada Limited Liability Company); and requests a new 
Official Permit (Food) (Step 2).  {MLCC Request #491095} 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney John Carlin and 
hotel general manager Tracy Thomas. 
 
The Drury family has owned 140 hotels in the United States for many years.  For 
estate planning purposes, the hotels will be split between two sons in the family.  
With regard to the Troy location, DDC Hotels, Inc. will become the owner and 
licensee and Drury Inns, Inc. will remain as hotel management.  The current staff 
will not change. 
 
Officer Feld stated that the Police Department has no concerns in this matter. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-06-009 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that DDC Hotels, Inc. (A Missouri Corporation) be allowed to transfer 
ownership of 2008 B-Hotel and SDM Licensed Business, located at 575 West Big 
Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084, Oakland County, from Drury Hotels Company, LLC 
(A Nevada Limited Liability Company); and receive new Official Permit (Food). 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
2. Han Mi Mart, Inc. 5060 Rochester, Troy, Michigan 48085, Oakland County 

requests to transfer ownership of escrowed 2008 SDD and SDM licensed 
business from B&K Investment Group.  {MLCC Request #474731}  

  
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Hyun Jung Kim and Young 
Jin Kwon, owners of the business. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 8, 2009  

 Page 3 of 5 

The owners stated that they have been in business for 2-1/2 years.  Their clientele 
is 80%-90% Korean, with the balance mainly consisting of Chinese and Japanese 
and they plan to sell Asian liquors.   
 
Officer Feld stated that the Police Department has no concerns in this matter. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-06-010 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Han Mi Mart, Inc. 5060 Rochester, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland 
County be allowed to transfer ownership of escrowed 2008 SDD and SDM 
licensed business from B&K Investment Group. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Tabled Items 
 
M & M Troy, Inc. 
 
There was a brief discussion regarding M & M Troy, Inc.  Officer Feld stated that 
the owner has submitted drawings to the Police and Fire Departments.  The Fire 
Department is currently reviewing the plans to determine if they meet with 
approval.  The Building Department has approved the final inspections.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster reviewed Chapter 101 of the City Ordinance with 
the Committee: 
 
 

4.   City Council Approval; Gas Stations and/or Businesses with Fuel Pumps.  
 
a.  Both of the following shall be established for any applicant seeking 

City Council approval for a liquor license for a gas station and/or a 
business with fuel pumps:  

 
1)  The site of payment and selection of alcoholic liquor shall be at 

least 50 feet from that point where motor fuel is dispensed; and  
 
2)  The applicant must establish that one or both of the following 

conditions exist and will continue to exist:  
 

(i)  The applicant or licensee is located in a neighborhood 
shopping center composed of one or more commercial 
establishments organized or operated as a unit which is 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 8, 2009  

 Page 4 of 5 

related in location, size, and type of shop to the trade area that 
the unit serves, which provides not less than 50,000 square 
feet of gross leasable retail space, and which provides five 
private off-street parking spaces for each 1,000 square feet of 
gross leasable retail space; and/or  

 
(ii)  At all times, the applicant or licensee maintains a minimum 

inventory on the premises of not less than $250,000.00 (at 
cost) of those goods and merchandise customarily marketed 
by approved types of businesses, excluding alcoholic liquor 
and motor vehicle fuel.  

 
A)  Services, prizes, offers, contests, coupons, and other items 

which require purchase before a cash value attaches shall 
not be considered inventory.  

 
B)  The applicant or licensee shall allow inspection of the 

inventory at the licensed premises during regular business 
hours by the Director of Building and Zoning or his/her 
designee, the Treasurer or Finance Director or his/her 
designee, or the Troy Police Department.  

 
C)  Upon a verbal or written request of the City, the applicant 

or licensee shall produce documents and/or records of the 
cost of inventory on the premises on a specific date. If the 
applicant or licensee fails to produce such documents or 
records, or if the documentation presented does not 
contain enough information to determine if the inventory is 
based on cost, within 3 days of the request, then there shall 
be a rebuttable presumption that the inventory on that 
specific date was below the $250,000 minimum requirement 
of this Chapter, which can be raised in any legal 
proceeding.  

 
b.  Failure to satisfy the requirements of sub-section 1) and sub-section 

2), as set forth above, will result in a denial recommendation from the 
Troy City Council. In the event that a gas station or business with gas 
pumps is granted a liquor license by the State of Michigan, the failure 
to continuously satisfy the requirements of sub-section 1) and sub-
section 2), as set forth above, will result in a recommendation for 
revocation or other adverse action against the liquor license.  

 
 
Officer Feld indicated that this item will most likely appear on next month’s 
Agenda.   
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 8, 2009  

 Page 5 of 5 

 
Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld briefly updated the Committee regarding the Informational Items: 
 
Southwest Dining, Inc. 
 
This Class C license has been placed in a “hold status”. 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC 
 
Plans for outdoor service area have been put on hold. 
 
Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge No. 2169 
 
Building has been sold. 
 
Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. 
 
Plans to build this restaurant have been cancelled for economic reasons. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES JANUARY 21,2009 FINAL 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, January 21, 2009 in the 
Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall. Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 p.m. 

1. Roll Call 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

Sarah Binkowski 
John Diefenbaker 
Ted Halsey 
Jan Hubbell 
Gordon Schepke 
Pete Ziegenfelder 
Sam Jiang 
Richard Kilmer 

Also present: Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
Lt David Livingston, Troy Police Dept 

And Kirsten Sonneville, 3131 Kilmer 

RESOLUTION #2009-01-01 
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Hubbell 

To excuse Mr. Kilmer. 

YES: AII-6 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 1 (Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

2. Minutes - November 19, 2008 

RESOLUTION #2009-01-02 
Moved by Hubbell 
Seconded by Schepke 

To approve the November 19, 2008 minutes. 

YES: AII-6 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 1 (Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a





TRAFFIC COMMllTEE MINUTES - JANUARY 21,2009 PAGE 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. Request for a STOP Sign on Langston at Kilmer 

Kirsten Sonneville, 3131 Kilmer, has requested installation of a STOP sign on Langston at Kilmer. 
She reports seeing many close calls when drivers exit Langston without yielding to traffic on 
Kilmer. Based on their review and studies, our traffic engineering consultant, OHM, recommends 
that a YIELD sign be installed on Langston at Kilmer (see attached report). 

The traffic counts on Langston are quite high for a short dead-end street. Ms. Sonneville believes 
someone is operating a business from one of the homes. 

RESOLUTION #2009-01-03 
Moved by Schepke 
Seconded by Hubbell 

Recommend installation of a YIELD sign on Langston at Kilmer. 

YES: AII-6 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 1 (Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

4. Public Comment 

5. Other Business 

Mr. Ziegenfelder commented that traffic signal timing on Big Beaver from the City Hall area to 
Crooks is poor. Mr. Huotari replied that the Road Commission for Oakland County is working on 
wireless signals for that area. 

6. Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 

Laurel Nottage, Record g Secretary 

Traffic Committee\2009 Minutes and Agendas\January 21\minutes.doc 





T 

January 6, 2009 

TO: 	 Traffic Committee 

FROM: 	 Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Kilmer at Langston 
Stop Sign Request 

Background: 

III Kirsten Sonneville of 3131 Kilmer requested that a STOP sign be placed on Langston at Kilmer. 
III Ms. Sonneville stated that she has experienced vehicles not yielding to traffic or pedestrians when 

turning from Langston onto Kilmer. 
.. Traffic volumes were collected November 3, 2008 through November 5, 2008 and again on 

November 17, 2008 through November 19, 2008 to verify counts. 
III Average daily traffic (ADT) on Kilmer is 617 with Langston at 158. The highest peak hour 

volumes along each road are 59 for Kilmer and 24 on Langston. 
III The city requested that our traffic engineering consultant (OHM) review the request and provide a 

report of their findings and recommendations. 
III The report recommends that a YIELD sign be placed on Langston at Kilmer based on their review 

and findings that the safe approach speed on Langston is greater than 10 mph. 
III A copy of this report is attached. 

Recommendations: 

III Staff concurs with our consultant's recommendation to modify the intersection control from "no 
traffic control" to a YIELD sign on the Langston Street westbound approach to Kilmer. 

Suggested Resolutions: 

a. Recommend installation of a YIELD sign on Langston at Kilmer. 

b. Recommend no changes at the intersection of Langston at Kilmer. 

K:'.ATE FileslTC ltemslRequeslslKtimer al LangstonlTCJ\genda Item_Kilmer at Langston.dcc 





December 30,2008 H 
Advisors 

Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 

Subject: Traffic Control Recommendation for the intersection of Kilmer Drive and Langston 
Street 
OHM IN: 0128-08-0070 

Dear Mr. Huotari: 

As requested, we have reviewed the Kilmer Drive/Langston Street intersection to determine the 
proper traffic control. The subject intersection is a T-intersection located in the City of Troy 
between Livernois and Rochester Roads, approximately 500 feet north of Big Beaver Road and 
250' south of Hartland Drive. Kilmer Drive is a local street, which runs north-south forming T
intersections at both ends (with Big Beaver Road to the south and Hartland Drive to the north). 
Langston Street is a local street running in the east-west direction forming the T-intersection 
with Kilmer Drive at the west end. Langston Street is a 275' dead end street with three houses 
along both the north and south sides. The speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. There is 
currently no traffic control at the intersection. Reference the attachments for an aerial 
photograph and intersection photos. 

Background on Traffic Control Determination 
Based on the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD) there are four 
conditions where STOP signs may be warranted: 

.. At the intersection of a less important road with a main road where application of the normal 
right-of-way rule is unduly hazardous. 

.. On a street entering a through highway or street. 

.. At an unsignalized intersection in a signalized area. 

.. At other intersections where a combination of high speed, restricted view, or crash records 
indicate a need for control by the STOP sign. 

Many times STOP signs are installed where they may not be warranted. Traffic experts agree 
that unnecessary STOP signs: 

.. Cause accidents they are designed to prevent. 

.. Breed contempt for other necessary STOP signs. 

.. Waste millions of gallons of gasoline annually. 

.. Create added noise and air pollution. 
\II Increase, rather than decrease, speeds between intersections. 

The use of "multiway-STOP" or "all-way" STOP sign installation is discouraged. The multiway
STOP warrant requires the volumes of traffic per approach leg on intersecting roads to be 
approximatelyequa!. 



2 

Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
December 30, 2008 

The use of a YI ELD sign is intended to assign the right-of-way at intersections where it is not 
usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. Conversely, the STOP sign is 
intended for use where it is usually necessary to stop before proceeding into the intersection. 
The following conditions should fully evaluated to determine how the right-of-way should be 
assigned: 

.. Traffic Volumes: Normally, the heavier volume of traffic should be given the right-of-way. 

.. Approach Speeds: The higher speed traffic should normally be given the right-of-way. 
• Types of Highways: When a minor highway intersects a major highway, it is usually 

desirable to control the minor highway. 
.. Sight Distance: Sight distance across the corners of the intersection is the most important 

factor and is critical in determining safe approach speeds. 

Traffic Volumes 
24-Hour traffic volumes were provided by the City of Troy. The counts indicate the average 
daily traffic (ADT) on Kilmer Drive to be 617 with Langston Street at 158. The highest peak hour 
volumes along each road are 59 for Kilmer Drive and 24 on Langston Street. The MMUTCD 
indicates that mUlti-way STOP control could be warranted if there were at least 300 vehicles per 
hour from the major street approaches and 200 units (vehicles, pedestrians and bicycles) per 
hour from the minor street approaches for the same eight hours on an average day. Based on 
the peak hour volumes alone, the option of multi-way STOP control does not meet warrants. In 
addition, the traffic volumes at the intersection are not directionally balanced, which is required 
for multi-way STOP control. 

With the pedestrian and vehicular traffic added together (assuming 20 pedestrians per hour) this 
location is still far below warrant thresholds for mUlti-way STOP control. All traffic counts are 
provided as an attachment to this letter. Pedestrian traffic has not been counted at the 
intersection. 

Crash Analysis 
on data provided by Traffic Improvement Association's (TIA) Traffic Crash Analysis Tool 

(TeAT), there have been no crashes recorded in the past three years at this intersection. 

Approach Speeds 
The approach speed limit on both streets is 25 mph. Speed limits alone cannot be used in this 
case to determine which direction of traffic should be assigned the right-of-way. 

Types of Highways 
Although both Kilmer Drive and Langston Street are considered local streets, Kilmer Drive is 
considered the major road at this intersection based on the traffic volumes. The road with the 
heavier volume of traffic, Kilmer Drive, should be given the right-of-way. 

Sight Distance 
The only major sight distance obstructions at the intersection are the houses on the northeast 
and southeast quadrants. The houses and sight distance come into play when determining the 
safe approach speeds for the intersection. The safe approach speed is the speed at which a 
vehicle can approach an intersection and still stop in time to avoid a collision with a vehicle on 
the cross street. Safe approach speeds are determined through calculations. 



Mr. William Huotari, P.E. 
December 30, 2008 

Page 3 

When the safe approach speed is found to be less than 10 mph for the minor road, a STOP sign 
is commonly used. In this case, the safe approach speed on Langston Street was found to be 
greater than 10 mph; therefore a YIELD sign is the recommended treatment. The safe 
approach speed calculation spreadsheet is attached for your reference. 

Recommendation 
OHM recommends that the intersection control be modified from "no traffic control" to a YIELD 

sign on the Langston Street westbound approach to the intersection. We recommend against 

modifying the intersection to multi~way STOP control. 


Sincerely, 

Orchard Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 


~(\?JYl! 

Steven M. Loveland, PE, PTOE 
Traffic Project Engineer 

Attachments: 
.. Aerial and Intersection Photos 
.. Traffic Counts 
.. Safe Approach Speed Calculation Spreadsheet 





Kilmer NB at Langston 

Kilmer SB at Langston 



Kilmer NE at Langston 

Kilmer SE at Langston 



-------

Safe Approach Speed Calculation 
Kilmer and Langston Kilmer 

City ofTroy, MI Local Langston 
 L 

Measured: 
Width of Roads 

Major: M = 22 (ft) Vb 
Local: L = 28 (ft) 

Distance to Obstruction 
a=: 32 (ft) Db 

b = 38 (ft) 


Angle of Intersection 

Delta 90 (degrees) 


Rd Posted 

Speed Limit = 25 (mph) 


Major Rd 


Assumed: 

Speed of Vehicle A '" Posted Speed Limit 
on Maior Road + 5 (mph) 

M 

Va == 30 (mph) 


Perception 1Reaction Time 

t:= 2.0 (sec) 


Coefficient of friction 
 localSt 
f = OAO 

Clearance distance in excess of safe stopping distance (AAA) 
C 15 (It) 

Date: 12/30/2008 
Analyst: 

b' 


b 


On Major Rd 

Intermediate Calculations: 
Da 178 a' 
Db 57.9 b' 55 

Calculated Safe Approach Speed for Vehicle Notes: Enter field measurements in yellow area. 
Approaching on Local Rd Blue fields are std. default values; change for cause. 

Vb= 11.1 (mph) CalcuJctted by spreadsheet 

Recommended ROW control for local street 

based on safe approach speed :I"--y=-::'::-::IE:::"L~D~'"":5:":.j-g-n-





STOP SIG~ REQUEST AT LANGSTON & KILMER 

SOURCE: Citizen request for a stop sign on Langston thm Traffic Engineering 

2 ACTION TAKEN: On November 3rd 2008 a counter was put out on Kilmer south of 

3 Langston for speed and volume count. A second counter was placed on Langston east of 

4 Kilmer for a volume count. On November 1ih a counter was again placed at same 

5 location on Langston and Kilmer to verify the first volume count at that corner. 

6 CONCLUSIONS: The average speed on Kilmer from November 3rd at 12:00 hrs to 

7 November 5th at 12:00 hrs was 17.4 mph. The volume of cars that passed in same 

8 time period was 1248. On Langston the volume cars that passed over the counters from 

9 November 3rd thm the 5th was 338. When a counter was placed on Langston, for 

10 verification, on November 1t h from 12:00 hrs thm the 19th to 12:00 hrs the count was 

11 similar at 294. Further details can be found on attached data sheets. 

12 STATUS: Open 

Phil Bovensiep & Bud Hein __.__________ November 20,2008 

Page 1 





 

1 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM  
PLANNING BOARD AND CITY OF TROY PLANNING COMMISSION  

ACTION ITEMS OF THURSDAY, APRIL 16, 2009 
 

Item 
 

Page 

 
There were no motions made this evening. 
 
Charrette to take place June 15 and 16 from 9 a.m. to 7 p.m. 
 

 
 
 

6 

            

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



 

1 

 
SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM  

PLANNING BOARD AND CITY OF TROY PLANNING COMMISSION  
THURSDAY, APRIL 16, 2009 

 
 

 
 
Minutes of the joint meeting of the Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning 
Commission held April 16, 2009.  Chairman Robin Boyle convened the meeting at  
5:43 p.m. 
 
Birmingham Planning Board 
 
Present: Chairman Robin Boyle; Board Members Carroll DeWeese, Gillian Lazar, 

Mark Nickita, Janelle Whipple-Boyce, Bryan Williams  
 
Absent:  Board Member Sam Haberman  
 
Birmingham Administration: Matthew Baka, Planning Intern 
     Sheila Bashiri, City Planner 

Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
     Jill Robinson, City Planner 
     Carole Salutes, Recording Secretary 
 
Troy Planning Commission 
 
Present: Chairman Robert Schultz; Commission Members Donald Edmunds, 

Michael Hutson, Mark Maxwell, Thomas Strat (arrived at 5:50 p.m.), John 
Tagle, Lon Ullmann 

 
Absent: Commission Members Philip Sanzica, Mark Vleck 
 
Troy Administration: Zak Branigan, Planning Consultant  
    Hal Haberman, Deputy City Engineer 
    Allan Motzny, Asst. City Attorney 
    Mark Miller, Planning Director 
    Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
  

04-40-09 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S COMMENTS AND INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 
 
Chairman Boyle welcomed the audience and everyone around the table introduced 
themselves.  Additionally the chairman recognized Carroll DeWeese, the Birmingham 



 

 2 

Planning Board’s newest member, and David Potts, a one-time Birmingham Planning 
Board member who is currently an Oakland County Commissioner. 
 

04-41-09 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF 
DECEMBER 2, 2008 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Tagle to approve the Minutes of December 2, 2008 as presented. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 

04-42-09 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (no changes) 
 

04-43-09 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (no one 
spoke) 
 

04-44-09 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN AND DESIGN REVIEW 
100 Doyle Drive 
Construction of multi-modal transit center to serve Birmingham and Troy 
 
The Cities of Troy and Birmingham have entered into an Interlocal Agreement to 
develop a Multi-Modal Transit Center to be located where the two communities meet, in 
the area of Maple and Coolidge Roads. The Transit Center is to be located on property 
that has been established as a brownfield and made available for development pursuant 
to the provisions of a consent judgment with developer Grand Sakwa. This agreement 
requires funding to be obtained for a transit center by 2010, or the property will return to 
private ownership. 
 
Design of the Transit Center will encourage increased rail travel, expanded multi-modal 
transit coordination and integration with other modes of transportation. A pedestrian 
tunnel will connect the Transit Center in Troy to a loading platform in Birmingham. 
 
Ms. Ecker offered background information.  The two city staffs have been working with 
Wendel Duchscherer, Architects and Engineers, to come up with a proposed design for 
the tunnel and building.  Tonight they seek input from the two planning groups.  Hubbell 
Roth and Clark (“HRC”) has been hired jointly by the two cities to bring the plans ready 
for bidding.  Mr. Miller added that HRC has already started work on the tunnel. 
 



 

 3 

Ms. Ecker advised they have hired Clark Hill to work as lobbyists tohelp the cities obtain 
some federal funding and they are going after many different avenues of federal 
funding.  Congressman Gary Peters has requested an earmark amount of $2 million for 
this project.  They have been meeting with Detroit Regional Mass Transit and 
SEMCOG.  Also they will meet with M-Dot officials and SMART officials to bring as 
much partnership as possible to this type of application.  Hopefully this will optimize the 
chances of getting funding.   
 
Chairman Boyle explained how he sees this facility as being very much a part of a much 
bigger and potentially achievable improvement to the rail network in the Midwest.   
 
Mr. David Duchscherer from Wendel Duchscherer recognized representatives of his 
company who were present:  Laird Pylkas, Project Manager; David Zielinski, Architect; 
and Matt Zinski.  Wally Alix and Larry Ancopa from HRC were also present. 
 
Mr. Duchscherer said their company has been working on the project for twenty months.  
They were picked for the project because of their overwhelming experience in dealing 
with inter-modal train and bus facilities.  Their slide presentation focused on award 
winning projects that are sustainable and LEED focused.   Wendel Duchscherer wants 
this facility to reflect the values of the two communities and their goal tonight is to 
receive direction from this group as to which of three options to move forward on. 
 
Ms. Pylkas offered a history of how they got to this point.   
 
Mr. Zielinski outlined the landscape design, sidewalks, retaining wall,  building 
placement, 300 ft. platform, and canopy.  He showed slides of projects that have used 
the construction materials corton steel and terra cotta.  A benefit of corton, which is a 
steel product, is that it replenishes itself.  Terra cotta provides flexibility in terms of 
finishes, colors and shapes.  It adds richness to the space, which is what they are trying 
to incorporate into this project. 
 
Mr. Zinski talked about the fundamental design objectives for this building: 
 Security is a big issue, therefore, create a clear view of the site and the tunnel for 

passers-by and users; 
 Simple, high quality materials; 
 Create a link between the two communities; and 
 Presence and energy efficiency of the site and of the building. 

 
Design Option 1 features simplicity and transparency. 
 
Design Option 2 looks at not as much transparency and creates a more dynamic 
roofscape. 
 
Design Option 3 starts to bring more dynamic form to the building.  The floor plan is 
similar to Option 1.  This option allows a vegetative roof. 
 



 

 4 

At this time a walk-thru video tour of the site was presented.  The landscape undulates 
and has a very sculptural feel.   
 
Mr. Hutson  inquired how the proposed models fit into future expansion. Mr. 
Duchscherer replied expansion is difficult because of the size of the site.  The size of 
the building could be increased by as much as 2,000 sq. ft. but the shape would end up 
slightly different.  Constructing a larger building initially doesn’t fit into the budget.  As to 
security in the tunnel, there is the option to provide TV camera screens.    
 
In response to a further question from Mr. Hutson, Ms. Ecker said the facility is moving 
more and more toward being manned.  Mr. Miller added they will look for potential 
concessionaires to set up kiosks in the space. 
 
Mr. Schultz hoped the initial design would include as much potential for expansion as 
possible.  He does not see how a future addition fits into any of the three options.  
Therefore, conceptual drawings of expansion might be included in the initial design.  
Ms. Pylkas pointed out that expansion could go in the direction of the shopping center. 
 
Mr. Duchscherer responded to a question from Ms. Lazar.  The glass would need to be 
cleaned every couple of months.  He confirmed for Mr. DeWeese that Option 2 has 
about 300 sq. feet more floor space than the other two options.  Mr. DeWeese 
described how more space could be added to Option 1 or Option 3 by taking the wall 
back so it aligns with the other wall.  That would create a core so the public could see 
the train coming from both directions.  Expansion could flip the back side and not add 
necessarily any more building but add floor space.  Mr. Duchscherer agreed there is 
room to do that out into the triangular space. 
 
Mr. Nickita received confirmation from Mr. Duchscherer that the tunnel length at 144 ft. 
is at its absolute minimum length.  Mr. Nickita suggested the following: 
 The entrances be widened at each end in order to minimize the narrowness of 

the tunnel and optimize the view into the tunnel; 
 Minimize the distance from the door to the ramp or stair so that people will find it 

most convenient to get in and out of the building; 
 On the Birmingham side construct a stair going directly up from the train so 

people don’t tread on the grass.  Of course there is the ramp for people who 
need it; 

 Also on the Birmingham side, find a way provide direct access from the Rail 
District sidewalk grid to the ramping system; 

 Minimize the amount of impervious surface at the entry area to the space; and 
lastly, 

 There is a disconnect aesthetically in his mind on the arches of the canopy 
relative to the building. 

 
Mr. Williams was concerned with traffic flow in and out of the site.  He did not see where 
the cars would queue.  With as many pedestrians in and out of the facility along with the 
high traffic volumes coming to and from the shopping center, he did not think the project 



 

 5 

could go forward without making a decision where to put waiting cars.  If they don’t plan 
now there will be congestion and a safety hazard. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked about handicap accessibility to the site.  Mr. Zielinski explained the 
slope of the ramp, curb cuts on the sidewalk, building is at grade, restrooms are ADA 
accessible,  stairs and ramp are options for the tunnel.  On the Birmingham side once 
again they have the stairwell as well as the ramp.  There are several landings along the 
path to break up the slope.  Mr. Maxwell inquired about the distance from handicapped 
parking space in the parking lot to the terminal.  Mr. Zielinski estimated it would be 
roughly 600 ft.  Mr. Maxwell thought the distance should be kept to a minimum. 
 
Mr. Nickita pointed out there is no crossing point from the parking lot directly to the train.  
Mr. Alix explained there are paths going down 14 ft. below surface elevation.  Mr. 
Nickita thought a lot of study still needs to be done in terms of circulation.   
 
Mr. Ullmann saw a problem because there is not a direct route from the parking lot to 
the ramp. 
 
Mr. Williams asked if it is possible to relocate Doyle Drive in order to alleviate the 
congestion of merging shopping center traffic with traffic from the train.  Mr. Miller said it 
would be very difficult given the development is already in place and all the agreements 
have occurred.  Ms. Ecker added they are looking at getting about thirty parking spaces 
on the Birmingham side, which would provide much closer access to the platform. 
 
Mr. Strat questioned if the architects have investigated partially depressing the structure 
and being able to go with the expandability that people have discussed.  It was 
discussed that they are working toward a park-like setting. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked about rotating the building almost 90 degrees so it would be parallel to 
the busses.  Mr. Duchscherer replied that would block the views to the tunnel from the 
street.  Mr. Tagle said he would like to see a building that is more vertical that would 
provide some presence at the back of the shopping center and also from down the 
tracks, especially when some lighting is introduced at night.  A last thought was to 
provide covering to protect the stairs. 
 
Mr. DeWeese recommended expansion of the sidewalk along the street.  He sees the 
ramp closest to the building as the drop-off ramp rather than the bus ramp.  The buses 
should be on the far side.  Pay attention to the transition down in the corner so that 
people don’t have to cross where the road expands.  Keep the corner as a clear area.  
Think walkability. 
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce thought the tunnel may be a prime space for graffiti.  Mr. 
Duchscherer responded that lighting and wall treatment will be important.  Mr. Miller 
added that HRC is working with their city engineer on providing video cameras and with 
the police chief about security issues as part of the overall planning of the project.  Ms. 



 

 6 

Whipple-Boyce felt the building is somewhat dwarfed and there is a conflict between it 
and the retaining walls. 
 
Mr. Edmunds said he would like to see the canopy on the platform tied in more with the 
building.  It would be nice if the building had more presence or height.  He likes the 
canted walls because they would be less maintenance.  He received confirmation that 
Options 1 and 3 are most conducive to a green roof. 
 
Chairman Boyle was concerned that he sees a building that responds to today, not 
tomorrow.  The drawings do not give a sense of the color and excitement of transit.   
Not one drawing shows an LED display of where the train is.  Further, there are no 
seats or bike racks in any of the drawings. 
 
The chairman took comments from the public at 7:10 p.m. 
 
Mr. Phillip Marcuse who lives on Villa in Birmingham thought that vehicles should be 
able to access the shopping center through the tunnel under the tracks.  In further 
discussion Ms. Ecker noted there is only a canopy on the Birmingham side because that 
is the only track that the passenger rail runs on.  The AMTRAK trains cannot be 
accessed from the east side of the tracks.  Mr. Marcuse thought the building should be 
placed parallel to the tracks with the canopy on the back. 
 
Mr. Larry Bertollini from Webster in Birmingham asked the architect to talk about energy 
efficiency.  He inquired about having an elevator or ramps in the building to get down to 
the tunnel.  He commended the excellent concept and asked about the relationship of 
the building and the canopy.  Mr. Zinski replied they are continuing to investigate energy 
efficiency such as insulated glass, geothermal heating, solar panels, water efficient 
plumbing fixtures that use recycled rain water.  Further they are looking at elevating the 
ramps. 
 
Ms. Barb Quincy who resides in the Mid Town Square condos in Troy said the drawing 
shows crossings on the lower side where no one can walk.  There should be a walkway 
to go down without entering the building.  Lighting would be a concern at night.  She 
said Doyle is not safe and asked about putting up stop signs if the routing of the road 
cannot be changed.  Mr. Miller advised that currently Doyle is a private road that was 
built to public road standards.  They are trying to convert it to a public road in order to 
have much more ability to control situations that are related to pedestrians and vehicles. 
 
Mr. Branigan encouraged only looking at passive systems such as skylights and 
daylight if the goal is to have a LEED certified project.  Active systems such as a green 
roof can cost a lot of money.   



 

 7 

 
04-45-09 

 
TRANSIT-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT CHARRETTE  
 

1. Selection of date, location and time 
 
Ms. Ecker announced that the folks at the Big Rock have generously offered their space 
for a charrette for two days June.  The charrette seeks to gather public input on the 
creation of transit-oriented design standards for the District that would cross into both 
the City of Birmingham and the City of Troy.  They are going on the assumption of not 
only using the AMTRAK lines that are there now, but that the transit center will tie into 
the Detroit Regional Mass Transit Plan as one of the hubs of that whole system.   
 
The decision was made to run the charrette on Monday and Tuesday, June 15 and 16 
starting at 9 a.m. and ending at 7 p.m. 
 

2. Proposed schedule of events 
 

On the first night there will be a presentation to convey information.  The wind-up 
presentation on the second night will employ some of the input that was garnered over 
the last two days and it will start to show some potential form-based regulations. 
 

3. Formation of Discussion Group 
 
A couple of members will be needed from the Birmingham Planning Board and the Troy 
Planning Commission, along with some residents and property owners, to attend a 
series of meetings over the next couple of months to work out a lot of the details before 
they are brought to this group.  If board members want to be part of that planning group, 
they can sign up through an e-mail to staff. 
 
WALKABILITY STUDY – SEMCOG UNIVERSITY 
 
SEMCOG would like to do a walkability audit on this project.  They are looking at April 
29 from 8 a.m. until noon.  A number of experts will be participating on this project to 
identify some of the strengths and weaknesses of what is being proposed.  Interested 
persons are invited to attend. 

 
04-46-09 

 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
Ms. Lazar noted that if this is going to be a main hub the group should consider the 
needs of people from other communities who will be drawn to the transit center.  Such 
amenities as wayfinding and luggage carts would make the facility appealing and 
functional for them. 



 

 8 

 
04-47-09 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
No further business being evident, meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Jana Ecker 

 Planning Director  
 City of Birmingham 
 
 
 
 Mark Miller 
 Planning Director 
 City of Troy 
 
 
  



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  April 28, 2009 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER              
 
A meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, 
April 28, 2009 at the Troy Community Center at 7:02 pm.  

 
B. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present:  Jeff Stewart 

Sandy Macknis 
Alison Miller 
Bob Berk 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Super 

      Bob Preston 
      Dan O’Brien 

     Sarah Wunderlich, student rep 
 

 
Absent:   Jim Hattan 

     
City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 

     Jeff Biegler 
     Tonya Perry 
     Mike Lyczkowski 
     

 
Others:    Doris Schuchter 

     Poncho Massaini 
     Diana McKay 
     Margaret Julian 
     Lisa Neel 

     
 
C. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA  Under new Business add 2010 Festival dates 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
Motion by:  Mike Gonda 
Seconded by:  Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of January 27, 2009 are approved. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  April 28, 2009 

 

 
E. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Review of 2009 Festival – Sept. 17-20.  

 
All committee chairs will return with the exception of Photography.  Bob is trying 
to contact Steve Wassaf to assume this role. 

 
We will also try to get a co-chair for Student Art to help Jeff McCoy. 

 
Diana Dulock will not be back to help with Senior Sensation due to health issues, 
but Margaret Julian is back. 

 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board will not run EthniCity – too difficult to get countries 
to run booths because they can’t get volunteers to man it. 

 
We can get rid of one tent (40x100) keep EthniCity Tent (60x80) for Student 
Art/Photography and Poster Contest. 

 
We’ll save $900 on tent plus cost of table and chairs and time to set up 
electricity. 
 
b. Parade Discussion 

 
Due to Shir Tikvah’s Rosh Hashana (Jewish New Year), our issue is holding the 
parade on Saturday.  We’d like to accommodate them by not having a Saturday 
morning parade.  The idea for holding the parade on Thursday has several 
negatives:  it’s a school night, parents are just coming home from work, and rush 
hour traffic.  The idea for holding on Sunday also has several negatives:  
DPW/Police overtime costs and the longer hours for staffing due to the Fireworks 
event later that same night. 
 
Motion to postpone the parade for one year was made by Mike Gonda and 
seconded by Sandy Macknis.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 
It was noted that it’s tough to postpone the parade because we might not get the 
momentum back, but the committee feels it’s the right thing to do this year. 

.  
c. Event Chairpersons Reports 

 
Operations: Mike Gonda expressed concerns regarding economic times and the 
problems that arise if GM and Chrysler go bankrupt.  Families won’t be able to 
come to the festival and spend money for food and rides. 

 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  April 28, 2009 

 

Ideas for saving money were brainstormed and explored: No EthniCity tent, one 
less storage trailer, Groups to clean Boulan (trash pickup), Miss Troy on a Friday, 
not Saturday at Troy High. 
 
We have to be very conscious of the money we spend, and find more ways to 
save money.  For future:  meeting with DPW ahead of the Festival to talk about 
situations that could occur, like the 2008 “flood.” 
 
Sponsors:  Commitments are coming in slow – ITC, Michigan Schools and 
Government Credit Union and Tringali are in.  For the first time ever, DTE cannot 
be a sponsor.  We’re unsure what HealthPlus will contribute (our major 2008 
sponsor). 
 
Operations and Police will meet in 2-3 weeks regarding parking. 
 
Senior Sensation:  hopefully businesses will donate prizes.  We will need to find 
a new caterer with Buscemi’s gone.  (Try Marinelli’s.)  Perhaps pizza and salad. 
 
Publicity:  small brochure again and one page in Troy Today, Summer and Fall. 
 
Miss Troy:  will be held on Friday, August 21 at Troy High School.  Looking at 
soliciting advertising in the program book.  Also, looking to hold interviews on 
another day at the Community Center so there is less time at Troy High, thereby 
reducing costs. 
 
Special Needs Children:  they will do rides and bring a brown bag lunch.  
Ronald McDonald and other clowns will appear, plus a Glitter Tattoo Artist. 
 
Special Needs Adults:  We received a donation for pizza from Marinelli’s plus 
funding from the parents of a special needs adult.  There will be no band on 
Thursday night since the attendees want to ride the rides.  Donation of pop from 
Kroger’s is 50 percent less. 
 
Entertainment:  all entertainers who did not perform last year due to weather will 
return.  No performer on Friday evening due to Shir Tikvah’s sundown service.  
The Entertainment is $1,800 under budget. 
 
Student volunteers:  Sandy Macknis talked to THS student government, Project 
Lead, and the National Honor Society regarding volunteers. 
 
Kids Corner:  Alison Miller raised the question of whether it is worth having this 
event.  She noted that Kids Crafts is a draw, but Kids Games/Entertainment is 
not.  Parents do not want to pay more money.  They don’t get crowds of people 
for entertainment that costs money ($550 per hour of entertainment).  The 
student volunteers have also noted the low number of children coming to this 
event.   



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  April 28, 2009 

 

Motion was made by Alison Miller to cancel the Kids Corner Tent with games 
and seconded by Mike Gonda.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Cutest Toddler:  the display needs to be checked for water damage. 
 
Parade:  Diana McKay offered the idea to charge each group to be in the parade 
as a possible way to offset costs. 
 
Mr. Troy:  will contact all 2008 contestants to see if they are interested in 
participating in 2009. 
 
Talent Show:  Lisa Neel and Karen Yelder will chair.  Letters will be sent to the 
2008 applicants to see if they’ll be back in 2009.  Reminder:  bring safety pins to 
attach to their numbers.  Jeff will be getting prizes from McDonald’s for the 
winners. 
 
Parking:  Mike Lyczkowski will schedule a parking meeting with Bob Berk, Mike 
Gonda, Russ Harden and Cindy Stewart. 
 
Shuttle Drivers:  Jeff Super will need volunteers, but he won’t need as many 
since there is no parade.  Also order less shuttle carts which will save money. 
 
Contingency Plan:  Discussion about having a plan in the event Troy Daze has 
to be canceled due to the economy.  Times are not good, but moving ahead, as 
far as committee is concerned, we’re still a “go” working to get the best value for 
our dollars.  It was noted that often in times like this Festivals are a good thing.  
We might not see the same numbers of people riding rides, but families can 
come to gather with friends.  We are making every effort to cut costs, save 
money and cut out unnecessary expenses. 
 
Petting Zoo:  Jeff Biegler will look for the 2008 contract. 
 
Shirts:  Birch grey for 2009.  No need to order new ones since we didn’t wear 
them in 2008. 
 
Booths:  Applications have been reviewed by the Attorney’s Office.  Ready to go 
out in the mail on Friday.  Last year’s applicants have until June 1 to apply.  
Applications will be on the website after June 1 – rules and policies will be 
attached to the application.  Will look at more outside booths after we sell out the 
indoor area. 
 
Food Booths:  Usually there are only 1-3 open spots after last year’s get their 
applications in. 
 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  April 28, 2009 

 

Student Rep - A motion was made by Mike Gonda and seconded by Jeff 
Stewart to recommend Sarah Wunderlich for Troy Daze Student Representative 
again for 2009.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
 
d.  2010 Festival Dates:  September 16-19, 2010.  Yom Kippur is this same 
weekend.  They asked us to consider moving ahead one week (Sept. 9-12) or 
back one week (Sept. 23-26).  Is there a problem with Arnold Amusements and 
their dates?  Cindy will check with Louise Arnold regarding the conflict.  We’ll 
meet with a representative from Shir Tikvah, Police and Operations to discuss. 
 
Adjourn 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Jeff Super and seconded by Mike Gonda.  The 
motion passed unanimously.  Meeting adjourned at 8:35 pm. 
 
The next meeting is Tuesday, June 23, 2009. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY    MAY 5, 2009 
FINAL MEETING MINUTES                       
                                                         

 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Council Boardroom by 
Bruce Wilberding.   
 
 
Members Present:   Art Cotsonika 

Victor Lenivov  
Donald Schenk 
Joseph Vassallo 
Bruce Wilberding (Chairman) 

 
 
Members Absent: Jim Campbell 

Robert Swartz 
 
  
Also Present:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Mark F. Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
James Nash, Finance Director 
Nino Licari, City Assessor 

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BRA 2009-05-01 
Moved by Vassallo 
Seconded by Cotsonika 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of October 21, 2008. 
 
Yeas:  All (5) 
Absent: Campbell, Swartz 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Lenivov inquired if staff had any information on the cost of video and/or audio 
taping the Brownfield meetings. Mr. Miller will research the options and report back to 
the Board at the July meeting.  
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

A. Elimination of Future Recapture of Tax Increment Revenues for Local Site   
Remediation Revolving Loan Fund. 

 
Mr. Miller discussed the recapture of tax revenues. Mr. Lenivov asked the item be 
delayed until after the proposed budget was discussed. 
 
ITEM TABLED 
 
 

B. 2009/10 Budget 
 
Resolution # 2009-05-02 
Moved by Cotsonika 
Seconded by Vassallo  
 
RESOLVED, that the 2009/10 budget is approved as amended and will be submitted 
to City Council for final approval. 
 

Yeas:  Cotsonika, Schenk, Vassallo, Wilberding 
Nays:    Lenivov 
Absent: Campbell, Swartz 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
    
A. Elimination of Future Recapture of Tax Increment Revenues for Local Site   

Remediation Revolving Loan Fund (cont.) 
 
Resolution # 2009-05-03 
Moved by Vassallo 
Seconded by Schenk 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board approves the elimination of future capture of tax 
revenues from Grand Sakwa – Brownfield Plan #1. 
 
Yeas:   Cotsonika, Schenk, Vassallo, Wilberding 
Nays:   Lenivov 
Absent: Campbell, Swartz 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
C.  Election of Officers 
 
Resolution # 2009-05-04 
Moved by Lenivov 
Seconded by Vassallo 
 
RESOLVED, that Bruce Wilberding is re-elected as Chair, Art Cotsonika as Vice 
Chair and Mark Miller as Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
Yeas:   All (5) 
Absent: Campbell, Swartz 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Mr. Lenivov asked that a report be created that includes eligible activity dollar 
amounts submitted and reimbursed.  Further, Mr. Lenivov requested that the principal 
and interest amounts be indicated.  Further, Mr. Lenivov requested that these newly 
created reports breakdown the information per Brownfield Plan basis. 
 
Mr. Vassallo asked staff to provide an audit report at the July meeting. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:24 p.m. 
 
 
The next meeting scheduled is July 21, 2009. 
 
 
 
Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 
 
 
Mark Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
BRA Meeting Minutes   
05-05-09 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Glenn Clark, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order 
at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, June 16, 2009 in Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Bartnik 
   Glenn Clark 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Ed Kempen 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Dave Lambert 
   Lon Ullmann 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to move Item #7 and Item #8 to the end of the agenda to become Item #12 
and Item #13. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO MOVE ITEM #7 AND ITEM #8 TO THE END OF THE AGENDA TO 
BECOME ITEM #12 AND ITEM #13 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 19, 2009 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 19, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
RESOLVED, that Item #3 is hereby approved in accordance with the suggested 
resolution printed in the Agenda Explanation and Item #4 is also approved with the 
stipulation that at the end of the three-year period, a new Public Hearing is held to 
consider the possibility of granting a permanent variance. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All - 7 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  THE LUTHERAN CHURCH OF THE MASTER, 
3333 COOLIDGE, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a berm along the west side of 
off-street parking in lieu of the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall. 
 
MOVED, to grant Lutheran Church of the Master, 3333 Coolidge, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief to maintain a berm along the west side of off-street parking in lieu of 
the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall. 
 

 Conditions remain the same. 
 There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT, 4777 NORTHFIELD 
PARKWAY, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall required along the west 
side of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Mark Dziatczak, the Principal of Troy High School was present and stated that he 
was hoping that this Board would approve this renewal request. 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy School District, 4777 Northfield Parkway a three-year (3) renewal 
of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the west property line of 
the site that abuts residential zoning. 
 

 Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 Conditions remain the same. 
 We have no complaints or objections on file 
 In 2012 a Public Hearing will be held in order for the Board to consider making 

this request a permanent variance. 
 

ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOHN HERRICK, 3124 ADAMS, for relief of the 
Ordinance to maintain an existing accessory building located in a side yard, where 
Section 40.56.02 prohibits the location of an accessory building in any yard but a rear 
yard. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
an existing accessory building located in the side yard.  Section 40.56.02 prohibits the 
location of an accessory building in any yard but a rear yard.  In November 2006 the 
petitioner was issued a Building Permit to construct an addition on the rear of the home 
that placed the existing detached garage in a side yard location.  A condition of the 
issuance of the building permit was that the existing garage had to be demolished.  In 
October 2007 the petitioner obtained a Building Permit to relocate that garage to a  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
conforming location at the rear of this property.  The petitioner submitted a letter in 
February 2008 stating that he now wished to leave the existing building in its original 
side yard location. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this building would comply with the Ordinance if a breezeway 
between the addition and the garage was constructed. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the garage would no longer be in a side yard location but 
would be too close to the property line for an attached accessory building. 
 
A discussion of the history of this building began and Mr. Stimac informed the Board 
that originally the petitioner was planning to move this structure to the proper location.  
Mr. Stimac further clarified the one site plan presented that showed the building moved 
to the rear of the site was submitted with the petitioner’s request.   
 
Mr. Lambert asked if any variances had been granted in the past. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he was not aware of any variances on this property. 
 
Mr. Lambert questioned the letter from the petitioner dated February 2008 asking that 
the garage remain in its current location. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department had received that letter and 
responded in March 2008 informing the petitioner that he would have to file an appeal 
with this Board in order for the structure to remain in its current location. 
 
Jason Cardasis, the Attorney for Mr. Herrick and Mr. John Herrick were present.  Mr. 
Cardasis stated that he had been retained by Mr. Herrick after Mr. Herrick lost his job.  
Mr. Herrick has filed Chapter 13 Bankruptcy and this is the reason for the delay in his 
coming to this Board.  Mr. Cardasis stated that he understands that the lack of funding 
is not a reason to consider a variance, but Mr. Herrick does not have the funding to 
move this structure.  Mr. Herrick is a master plumber and is now employed by a 
hospital. This property has a vacant lot on each side and Mr. Cardasis stated that he 
does not feel anyone will object to this request.  With the market conditions the way they 
are it would be very difficult for the petitioner to obtain a loan to re-locate this building. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner would be receptive to having a time limit on this 
request to allow him the opportunity to get back on his feet. 
 
Mr. Cardasis stated that the bankruptcy process will be ongoing for about the next four 
(4) years.  This home has no basement and this garage is the only place to store 
equipment and is a necessary structure. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that this Board cannot consider money issues as a valid reason for a 
variance and stated that there are bushes along the front property line along Adams that 
shield this structure from Adams. 
 
Mr. Herrick stated that they are deciduous trees. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked about the fence on the property.  Mr. Herrick stated that there is only 
a small area of fencing that was there when the home was purchased. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked why the petitioner put on an addition. 
 
Mr. Herrick stated that they added a family room. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the addition is not visible to traffic along Adams Road. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Board could grant an approval with a time limit. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the Zoning Ordinance does not provide for a time limit on 
variances.  
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant John Herrick, 3124 Adams, relief of the Ordinance to maintain an 
existing accessory building located in a side yard where Section 40.56.02 prohibits the 
location of an accessory building in any yard but a rear yard. 
 

 Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 Variance will not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 Property is unique as it is located on Adams Road. 
 Large vacant yards are located on each side of this property. 
 Garage appears to be in the rear yard since the addition is not visible from 

Adams Road. 
 Moving the garage could create a more of a visual impact on the neighborhood 

then its present location. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOSEPH CUPELLI, 190 HABRAND, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct an addition to his home which would result in having an 
accessory building located in a side yard where Section 40.56.02 prohibits the location 
of an accessory building in any yard but a rear yard. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition to his home.  The construction of the addition on the rear of the home would 
extend the defined side yard 24’ to the north, to the north line of the new addition.  A 
detached garage is currently located in this extended side yard area.  Section 40.56.02 
prohibits the location of detached garages in a side yard location. 
 
Mr. Joseph Cupelli was present and stated that he and his wife have three young 
children and recently his mother in law came to live with them.  They are hoping to 
obtain this variance as they wish to expand the family living space that includes a family 
room and remodel of the existing kitchen.  They have been planning to put this addition 
in for a long time and they feel this is the best location for this construction.  The existing 
garage is in very good condition and they have a number of power lines about 20’ 
behind the proposed addition.  This property is 100’ wide and 300’ deep and the lot 
slopes down in the back for drainage.  If the garage were to be moved it would be about 
4’ or 5’ lower than its present location.  Mr. Cupelli stated that he is self-employed and 
feels that this is the only way they can make this work.  They love this neighborhood 
and do not want to move. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Joseph Cupelli, 190 Habrand, relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
addition to his home which would result in having an accessory building located in a 
side yard where Section 40.56.02 prohibits the location of an accessory building in any 
yard but a rear yard. 
 

 Variance is not contrary to public interest or general purpose or intent of the 
chapter. 

 Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 
District. 

 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 

 Property is unique in that it slopes down at the rear of the property and has utility 
lines overhead that would require that the garage be moved a considerable 
distance back from the house. 

 Literal enforcement of the Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the property and 
would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
(ITEM #7 AND ITEM #8 WERE MOVED TO THE END OF THE AGENDA TO 
BECOME ITEM #12 AND ITEM #13) 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  A & M SERVICE CENTER, INC. 2075 AUSTIN, 
for relief of the Ordinance to install a 6’ high chain link fence in lieu of the required 6’ to 
8’ high required masonry screen wall for an outdoor storage facility adjacent to a 
freeway. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
fence in lieu of a masonry screen wall for an outdoor storage yard adjacent to a 
freeway.  The rear lot line of this property abuts I-75.  Section 38.30.04 requires storage 
areas in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District to be screened from freeways with a 
masonry obscuring wall 6’ to 8’ in height.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high 
chain link fence in lieu of the required masonry wall along I-75.  Petitioners were 
approved to have the outdoor storage of vehicles on this property and as part of that 
approval the screen wall is required. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the screen wall was only required on the west side of the 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that a screen wall is required along any public street and no 
screening is required at either the north or sound end of the property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Stimac knew what the elevation of this property and I-75 were. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it appears based upon the petitioner’s plans that the location of the 
wall is at an elevation of 644’ and I-75 is at 650’. 
 
Mario Valente was present and stated that because I-75 is higher than the property at 
this point the parking lot will be visible from I-75.  There is another fence that is actually 
50’ farther back.  This is a monetary issue as Mr. Valente believes that fence will have 
the same effect as the screen wall. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t.   
 
Mr. Lambert asked what types of businesses were located on either side of this 
property. 
 
Mr. Valente said that there is an ambulance company to the south and a machine shop 
on the north side.  The trucks for the machine shop are parked at the back of the lot. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to grant A & M Service Center, Inc. 2075 Austin, relief of the Ordinance to 
install a 6’ high chain link fence in lieu of the required 6’ to 8’ high required masonry wall 
for an outdoor storage facility adjacent to a freeway. 
 

 Variance is not contrary to public interest and general purpose and intent of the 
Chapter. 

 Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
 Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
 Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
 Based on the topography of the site the required masonry screening wall will not 

provide the necessary screening. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. DON FAIRMAN, 2775 E. 
SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new covered front porch that 
will result in a 13.1’ front yard setback where Section 10.60.03 requires a 50’ minimum 
front setback for acreage parcels in the R-1D Zoning District located on major 
thoroughfares. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new covered front porch.  The site plan submitted indicates that the covered front 
porch as proposed will result in a 13.1’ front yard setback.  Section 10.60.03 requires a 
50’ minimum front setback for acreage parcels in the R-1D Zoning District located on 
major thoroughfares. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked Mr. Stimac to explain how measurements are taken regarding right of 
way lines. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

8 
 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac gave an explanation based on the State statutes of “Road by User” and 
stated that originally these properties went to the center of the road.  The original 33’ of 
right of way is based on Square Lake Road being a public road.  The City or the County 
actually acquired an additional 27’ and the setback is measured from the 60’ right of 
way.  In terms of the actual pavement, there may be two lanes going each way because 
of the entrance to the Church, so the actual distance from the 60’ right of way line to the 
actual pavement would be about 35’. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what setback would be required if this was a lot in a subdivision. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if the subdivision was platted prior to 1977 it would be a required 
setback of 25’ and if it was platted after 1977 it would still have the 50’ setback 
requirement. 
 
Mr. Kovacs questioned the master thoroughfare plan and asked how close to the road 
this house would be. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the master thoroughfare plan for Square Lake Road ultimately will 
result in a 120’ right of way and would most likely result in 5 lanes of pavement which 
would be approximately 62’ in width and would result in 29’ from the property line to the 
edge of the property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this house would be bought by the City when Square Lake was 
widened and stated that he would hate to see someone put money into a house that 
was going to be taken by the City. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he had no idea if that was going to happen if the right of way 
does not impact the structure itself.  Square Lake Road is not on the list of immediate 
roads to be widened. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he was concerned about the safety issues regarding setbacks.  Mr. 
Clark asked about the proximity of other homes compared to the location of this home. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there are a number of situations where there are houses on the 
thoroughfare such as Livernois and Square Lake and because of their age, they are not 
even 33’ from the center line of the road.  Lots here were much deeper however; the 
newer subdivision behind these houses was constructed on the northern portion of 
these parcels. There are a number of homes within the City that have existed before the 
setbacks were changed in 1977. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked about the requirement for a covered porch. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that based on the plan submitted by the petitioner the proposed size 
of this porch is 8’ x 11’.  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

9 
 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the material submitted by the petitioner indicates that this is a non-
conforming structure due to the fact that this home was constructed in the front setback. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the house probably predates the 1977 Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if this house was in the 50’ setback and Mr. Stimac said that it was. 
 
Mr. Don Fairman and Mr. Zack Ostroff from the Pine Building Company were present.  
Mr. Ostroff stated that they had spoken to Mitch Grusnick in the Building Department 
and he informed them that the house was built in the front setback.  The existing deck is 
720 square feet and protrudes quite a bit to the south.  They are proposing to take off 
the existing deck and add a 175 square foot covered porch.  If they were to construct 
this porch 50’ from the front property line it would be located toward the back of the 
existing house.   
 
Mr. Ullmann asked if the proposed porch was going to be smaller than the existing 
porch. 
 
Mr. Fairman stated that they are planning to remove the deck and replace it with this 
porch. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked why this construction would require a variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that because they are proposing to cover the porch a variance is 
required. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Bartnik pointed out that two (2) of the objections are from the same property. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Don Fairman, 2775 E. Square Lake, relief of the Ordinance 
to construct a new covered front porch that will result in a 13.1’ front yard setback where 
Section 10.60.03 requires a 50’ minimum front setback for acreage parcels in the R-1D 
zoning District located on major thoroughfares. 
 

 Variance request is minimal. 
 As a condition of the variance the covered front porch cannot be enclosed and 

will remain a covered porch only. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

10 
 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 

 Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 
District. 

 Literal enforcement of the Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the property and 
would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  CITY OF TROY, 60 W. WATTLES, for relief of 
the Ordinance to add new and expanded parking lots within 10’ of the front property line 
of Wattles and within 15’ of the property line along Livernois, where Paragraph A of 
Section 18.50.01 requires a 50’ front setback free of parking adjacent to any public 
street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to add to 
and expand the parking lots at the Troy Museum and Village Green.  This site is located 
in the C-F (Community Facilities) Zoning District.  Paragraph A of Section 18.50.01 
requires a 50’ front setback adjacent to any public street.  This section further requires 
this setback be free of parking.  The site plan submitted indicates new and expanded 
parking lots within 10’ of the front property line of Wattles and within 15’ of the property 
line along Livernois. 
 
Previous action of the Board of Zoning Appeals at the meeting of May 19, 2009 allowed 
parking within 20’ of the front property line of Wattles and within 35’ of the property line 
along Livernois. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how many parking spaces are on this site and how many parking 
spaces were proposed to be added. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that presently there are 48 parking spaces in the existing parking lot 
and they are proposing to add 120 more parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked the petitioner why more parking was needed. 
 
Mr. Gene Hopkins of Hopkins Burns Design Studio was present.  Mr. Hopkins stated 
that with the expansion of the site additional parking will be required depending on the 
type of functions that are held at the site.  Mr. Hopkins said that they have studied the 
site and determined this was the best solution to splitting up the parking. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that actually 30 parking spaces are on the lawn. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

11 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hopkins said that was correct and this would be considered overflow parking as 
they do not plan on using them very often.  Mr. Hopkins apologized to the Board and 
said that the dimensions originally presented were a technology error and the 
dimensions were shifted because the drawings were shifted.  Mr. Stimac had found the 
error and this is the reason they are before the Board again. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he concerned that there is a lot of additional parking proposed 
that may not be required and asked if the petitioner had entertained any thoughts to 
asking for less parking. 
 
Mr. Hopkins said that in their Planning Commission request they had asked for less 
parking.  Mr. Hopkins further stated that they do have an agreement signed for overflow 
parking and busing to take people off site if the need arises for special events.  In the 
design process they broke down the parking and really looked at what requirements 
would be needed to meet 75% of the demand for parking and this is where the 
additional parking came in at the front of the site.  They have also added additional 
overflow parking on Lang Street.  Mr. Hopkins said that it is not their intent to have a 
“sea of asphalt” and are trying to create a safe situation by not allowing any parking in 
the turnaround site.  The parking lots will align with the existing parking lots of the 
adjacent business and they are hoping to add a light landscape buffer that will not 
obstruct the view of the site from people driving by this area. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he is not opposed to the parking along Wattles, but does not want 
to see a lot of asphalt along Livernois Road.  
 
Mr. Hopkins said that the amount of the parking was based on the use and functions of 
the Church and not as much from the Ordinance criteria.  Mr. Hopkins indicated that 
they want to be able to provide parking for people using that Church. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the drawings and plans are the same as what was submitted 
except for the numbers on the plans. 
 
Mr. Hopkins said that was correct and the numbers shown near Livernois were actually 
switched. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the parking line along Wattles coincides with the business to the 
east on Wattles and asked where the 15’ setback was from Livernois. 
 
Mr. Hopkins said that the parking is from the property line and it will be a sustainable 
parking lot that will look more natural and also provide parking for people that are using 
this site.  Mr. Hopkins indicated that they are working with the Planning Department to 
determine what type of material they can use in this area to not only provide parking but 
also easily accommodate walking in that area.   
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

12 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kempen believes that this is an asset to the City of Troy and believes it is important 
to maintain visibility along Livernois. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Margaret Pence, 106 Miracle was present.  Ms. Pence stated that she lives across 
Wattles and asked where the setback was on Wattles and asked if the proposed 
parking was going to come out closer to Wattles. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the current parking lot to the west of the entrance goes right 
out to the front property line and that line will go back 10’ and that the new parking lot at 
the east end of the site will move closer to the property line along Wattles. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no additional approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney   
 
MOVED, to grant the City of Troy, 60 W. Wattles relief of the Ordinance to add new and 
expanded parking lots within 10’ of the front property line of Wattles and within 15’ of the 
property line along Livernois, where Paragraph A of Section 18.50.01 requires a 50’ 
front setback free of parking adjacent to any public street. 
 

 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 Variance does not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
 This is a historical site for all of the City of Troy and the variance will allow full 

enjoyment for the entire City. 
 Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
 The setbacks for the parking lot are at least equal to the setbacks for the parking 

lot on the adjacent commercial property. 
 

Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #12 – (ITEM #7) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KIRCO DEVELOPMENT LLC, 
153 W. BIG BEAVER (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new one-story restaurant that would result in a total gross building area per acre of 
31,425 square feet where Section 26.70.00 limits developments in the O-S-C Zoning 
District to not more than 30,000 square feet of gross building acre of land. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

13 
 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik informed the Board that he is a sub-tenant of Columbia Center and felt that 
he should let the Board know so that Board members could determine if this was a 
conflict of interest. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that in his opinion Mr. Bartnik has a remote interest in this site and 
does not believe it would cause any type of conflict. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new one-story restaurant on the Columbia Center site.  This proposed building would 
result in a total gross building area of 31,425 square feet per acre.  A previous variance 
granted in 1995 limited the development to not more than 30,992 square feet of gross 
building area per acre where Section 26.70.00 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance limits 
developments in the O-S-C (Office Service Commercial) Zoning District to not more 
than 30,000 square feet of gross building area per acre of land. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that there a lot of other changes on this property and asked if the only 
variance the petitioner required was the square feet of gross building area. 
 
Mr. Stimac indicated all of the other provisions of the Zoning Ordinance have been met 
by the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Alan Kiriluk of Kirco Development, LLC and Mr. Steven Thomas of Yamasaki 
Associates were present.  Mr. Kiriluk stated that they are very familiar with the Big 
Beaver Corridor study and felt that there was a need for a restaurant to meet the needs 
of the occupants of the Columbia Center.  Mr. Kiriluk said that they are planning a high 
level of architecture and plan a garden seating area.  Essentially they are asking for 
about a 1% increase in the density allowed.   
 
Mr. Thomas said that this restaurant will increase the number of jobs in the area both in 
the building of the structure and also with people that will be employed by the 
restaurant.  This restaurant would be an enhancement to this area and Columbia Center 
has a very high occupancy rate.  All the landscaping requirements will be met or exceed 
the minimum requirement and this structure will be an improvement in this area. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what type of restaurant would be going in this location and the name of 
the proposed restaurant. 
 
Mr. Kiriluk said that they have been in the process of getting this plan approved for the 
last two (2) years and did not believe it was appropriate to approach a tenant until all of 
the requirements were approved by the City.  Mr. Kiriluk also said that they expect to 
have a restaurant that would offer food in the moderate to upper end price range in 
keeping with the profile of the tenants at Columbia Center.  They are basing this site on 
sites they have visited in New York City such as Tavern on the Green, which brings the 
outside in.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

14 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Clark asked about the garden seating that would be available. 
 
Mr. Kiriluk said that right now the garden seating is located to the south of this proposed 
building and closer to Columbia Center.  They have enhanced the garden area and 
have extended it toward the building and plan to incorporate it into this proposed 
restaurant. 
 
Mr. Clark said that the Ordinance has strict guidelines regarding the square footage and 
asked why they could not make the existing square footage work. 
 
Mr. Kiriluk stated that restaurants have strict guidelines regarding their footprint and 
they are trying to be able to meet these requirements.  They have to supply a certain 
percentage of square footage for seating, staging and the kitchen area and this is 
difficult to do inside the existing building 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he has been to Columbia Center a number of times and has a 
difficult time finding a parking space.   
 
Mr. Kiriluk said that when they went through the approval process they had to do a 
traffic study. Each tenant has more square footage which allows for lower density.  
Historically there is enough parking.  Because of the parking deck this restaurant should 
have a minimal impact on parking.  There is also off-peak parking and different parking 
requirements would be needed at different times of the day.  There will not be any 
restaurant parking in the morning and there probably will not be a lot of office parking on 
a Saturday night. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in looking at this site he does not see where there is a density 
problem and asked Mr. Stimac for clarification. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that this site has two 14-story office buildings.  The minimum building 
height is 3-stories and if these buildings were taken apart into four three story buildings 
the end result would be eight or nine times the footprint of the building.  That would 
probably make the site seem much more crowded.  There is also a three-story parking 
deck that allows the site to have more landscaping.  330’ is the maximum height in the 
O-S-C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that this variance request is only related to the square footage, but we 
do know that in Troy the lunch time is very busy and asked how many parking spots 
would be required during the business day. 
 
Mr. Thomas said that they are required to have 139 and received a modification on the 
parking last night from the Planning Commission. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

15 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kiriluk said that the last thing they want to do is to destroy the parking available.  
40% of the parking deck is available at 9:00 A.M. 
 
Mr. Clark said that he thinks most of the people that are in the office will use the parking 
available in the lot and wondered where people will be able to park if they come in to the 
restaurant at lunch time. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that people in the office will probably park in the deck as it is actually 
closer to the building. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked if this density is in keeping with the Big Beaver Corridor study. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the Big Beaver Corridor study anticipates a denser development in 
the buildings that run along Big Beaver Road.  Mr. Stimac does not know if a specific 
square footage was part of this study. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he has not experienced any type of parking problem with this site. 
 
Mr. Thomas said that these buildings are 87% to 97% occupied at this time. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what will happen with the handicapped parking spots. 
 
Mr. Kiriluk said that they are all accounted for and they will be adding additional 
handicap parking at the restaurant site. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to grant Kirco Development LLC, 153 W. Big Beaver, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new one-story restaurant that would result in a total gross building area per 
acre of 31,425 square feet where Section 26.70.00 limits developments in the O-S-C 
Zoning District to not more than 30,000 square feet of gross building acre of land. 
 

 Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
 This restaurant will not cause this site to be over-built. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

16 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #13 (ITEM #8) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  URBANCAL-OAKLAND PLAZA, 
LLC, 124 JOHN R (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
new commercial building (Sonic Restaurant) with the following variances:  1. A canopy 
that is located only 10’ from the front property line where Paragraph G of Section 
31.30.00 requires a 25’ front setback for canopies on the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning 
District.  2. A driveway on the east side of the building that is only 12’ wide where 
Paragraph G of Section 31.30.00 requires a minimum one-way driveway width of 15’.  3. 
Section 39.70.02 requires a 10’ wide landscape greenbelt along the front property line 
along John R.  The site plan submitted indicates that the overhang of the parking 
spaces adjacent to the greenbelt encroaches approximately 1’-9” into the 10’ width. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new commercial building (Sonic Restaurant).  The site plan submitted shows the 
following:  1. A canopy that is located only 10’ from the front property line where 
Paragraph G of Section 31.30.00 requires a 25’ front setback for canopies on the H-S 
(Highway Service) Zoning District.  2. A driveway on the east side of the building that is 
only 12’ wide where Paragraph G of Section 31.30.00 requires a minimum one-way 
driveway width of 15’.  3. Section 39.70.02 requires a 10’ wide landscape greenbelt 
along the front property line along John R.  The site plan submitted indicates that the 
overhang of the parking spaces adjacent to the greenbelt encroaches approximately 1’-
9” into the 10’ minimum width. 
  
Mr. Stimac indicated that the petitioner came up with 0.62’ by using a standard type 
vehicle.  Depending on whether you center the car and depending where you actually 
park your vehicle the encroachment changes.  For the purpose of determining the 
Ordinance, Building Department staff takes the dimension of the parking space, 9.5’ x 
19’ wide space and projects it forward by 2’ and that is where the 1’-9” or 1.75’ comes 
from. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that the pavement or edge of the parking spot is at 10’ whether the 
encroachment is 1.75’ or 0.62’ and because it is angled parking the encroachment 
changes. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that they refer to the average size of vehicle and asked what type of car 
is that. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that for the purpose of the Ordinance the size of the parking space 
and not the size of the vehicle is what determines the overhang. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

17 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
Mr. John Gaber, the Attorney for the property owner, Allison Maxwell White, Urban 
Retail, Jim Butler, PEA Associates, Mike Labadie, the traffic consultant from Wells and 
Associates, and franchise owners and designers of Sonic Restaurants were present. 
 
Mr. Gaber passed out letters from tenants at Oakland Plaza indicating approval of this 
proposed construction.  Mr. Gaber said that this is the right location for a Sonic 
Restaurant.  Originally they were asking for six (6) variances and have now made 
changes to the plans and brought that number down to three (3) variances.  Mr. Gaber 
stated that the Planning Commission tabled this request so that they could appear 
before this Board to obtain these variances.  The canopy hasn’t changed and the 
overhang of the cars hasn’t changed and Mr. Gaber said that they still feel the 12’ drive 
through lane is more than sufficient.  This is not a two way drive so there will be no 
adverse traffic in that area.  This building was originally set back 5’ further and they 
have moved the building forward 5’ and moved the parking from the rear to the side 
yard area and this has enabled them to remove three (3) of the variance requests.  
They have also increased the stacking lane to nine (9) cars and now meet the 
requirements of the Ordinance.  Also, by moving this building they have the correct 
setback between the building and the rear property line.  Furthermore, by switching the 
site plan around the landscaping requirement will also be met.  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked who owns this property.  Mr. Gaber said that Urban Retail Properties 
own Oakland Mall and Oakland Plaza. 
 
Mr. Butler said that they have changed the site plan and now have provided more green 
space.  Regarding the frontage landscaping the car is a typical mid-size sedan.  He 
doesn’t agree totally with Mr. Stimac’s measurement but feels that people will stop 
before they get to the curb.  Mr. Butler said that they have met with the Oakland County 
Road Commission, the Engineering Department and the Planning Commission and they 
are required to put in a taper lane on John R that will be 75’ long.  The entrance from 
John R will be a right turn in only and there will not be any egress to John R.  They will 
also be required to put in an 8’ sidewalk. They are proposing to put in a dense row of 
hedges in this area to screen the headlights of the cars under the canopy and they are 
required to have one street tree for every thirty feet.  They are planning to put in seven 
(7) trees. These changes do meet the intent of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Ullmann clarified that Mr. Butler said that they were going to have a 5’ greenbelt 
between the deceleration lane and the sidewalk.  Mr. Butler said that was correct. Mr. 
Ullmann said that a 12’ deceleration lane, 8’ for the sidewalk and a 5’ greenbelt adds up 
to 25’. 
 
Mr. Butler also stated that they would be putting in another 3.75’ of green space. 
 
Mr. Ullmann said that he does not see a greenbelt area on this plan.  Mr. Butler 
approached the podium and explained where this greenbelt area would be. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

18 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Butler stated that they are not planning to plant any deciduous trees in this area.   
 
Mr. Ullmann said that a larger vehicle may not stop and Mr. Butler said that hopefully 
people will stop before they hit the landscaping. 
 
Mr. Ullmann said that this plan started out with a crowded condition and now they are 
moving the sidewalk, adding twelve more feet of concrete and losing green space.  Mr. 
Ullmann also clarified that this was one of the smallest Sonic Restaurant sites. 
 
Mr. Butler stated that was correct and does believe this restaurant fits in with the intent 
of the Ordinance.  Mr. Butler also stated that they do not believe they will need a 
deceleration lane but they are planning to put one in. 
 
Mr. Ullmann pointed out that the report their traffic consultant prepared, stated that Troy 
would require a deceleration lane and a taper lane.  Mr. Ullmann said that he 
understands Mr. Butler’s job but believes that the size of this site will not support the 
restaurant. 
 
Mr. Butler said that if you look up and down John R there are no 8’ wide sidewalks and 
there are not any deceleration lanes. 
 
Mr. Ullmann said that the petitioner could use the driveway that goes into Oakland 
Plaza. 
 
Mr. Butler said that they have indicated in the past that it will not work for them to use 
that driveway for this site. 
 
Mr. Ullmann said that in his opinion the petitioner is proposing more use that this 
property can handle.  The petitioner is proposing a high intensity use and this is not the 
best use of the site. 
 
Mr. Butler said that this drive in restaurant will work and believes that they are asking for 
minimal variances. 
 
Mr. Ullmann said that he does not believe this proposal is in keeping with the Master 
Plan.  The City is trying to create more urbanized areas and Mr. Ullmann believes this 
restaurant is something from a bygone era and does not believe this is the best use of 
this property.  Mr. Ullmann also stated that if this was a fast food restaurant these 
variances would not be required.  Mr. Ullmann further stated that he believes the 
petitioner did a good job with what he has, but still feels this is too small a space to 
handle this type of restaurant. 
 
Mr. Courtney confirmed that egress will not be permitted onto John R and asked what 
steps would be taken to make sure that traffic does not try to use this drive. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

19 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Butler stated that a sign will be put up indicating that there is no access to John R 
and also believes that the bump out in the drive will also restrict access. 
 
Mr. Courtney brought up the fact that a letter was received from Mr. Douglas Mossman, 
the previous owner of Oakland Mall and Oakland Plaza indicating the reasons for not 
developing this property. 
 
Mr. Mike Labadie, the traffic consultant for Sonic Restaurant stated that they did a traffic 
study for the site back in February.  Mr. Courtney asked if anything had been done in 
December of last year and Mr. Labadie said that the only study was done in February.  
Mr. Labadie said that they verified the scope with the City Planner, the Oakland County 
Road Commission and the City Engineer.  The Road Commission owns the road and 
they have certain guidelines that have to be followed.  Mr. Labadie said that they have 
tried to address the concerns of the Board regarding this being a fast food type of place 
although it is not typical compared to other fast food type restaurants.  This study was 
done during mid-day hours and also during P.M. peak hours.  The mid-day study of 
John R indicated that there were 905 vehicles heading northbound and in the afternoon 
there were 1499 vehicles.  The next thing they looked at was to try and determine how 
many of these vehicles would use this site.  Based on mid-day there would be 71 total 
trips, 37 inbound and 34 out; the peak hour would be 27 vehicles inbound and 25 out for 
a total of 52 vehicles.  In looking at a 24 hour total it appears there would be 762 trips.  
Part of the operation of a fast food restaurant that has access to a strip mall means that 
someone going to the mall may also use the restaurant and also may go to the 
restaurant and then go to the mall. 
  
Mr. Labadie also said that this site is proposed to be a right turn only, no access to John 
R.  This site is compounded in that there are crossovers on John R.  MDOT has 
standards on that and this is something that is unique to Michigan.  The proposed 
driveway meets the MDOT requirements.  A lot of multi-lane roadways do not have 
tapers as you approach driveways because people become confused by them and they 
become hazardous.  In this case the Road Commission told the petitioner in the 
beginning that this site meets the requirement for taper but may not be required to be 
installed.  After this study was done it appears that the only requirement would be a 
taper.  The Road Commission and the City got together and decided that a deceleration 
lane would also be required.  Sonic will also put in a deceleration lane even though it is 
not required based on criteria.  Locating the driveway properly amongst other driveways 
and crossovers is very important and this driveway will meet or exceed all of the 
necessary requirements. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked the petitioner why they would put in a deceleration lane even though 
they are only required to put in a taper. 
 
Mr. Labadie stated that he believes the owner is trying to compromise and move this 
project along.  Mr. Labadie also stated that the Road Commission may have some  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

20 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
concerns regarding this area.  The property owners and developers are willing to put 
this lane in anyway. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked where the sidewalk on John R was 8’ wide and asked how it 
correlates to the sidewalk around this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there are 8’ wide sidewalks north of Elliott on the east side of 
John R, and on the north side of 14 mile in front of Krispy Kreme and Logan’s  
Roadhouse.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he was not aware that these sidewalks were 8’ wide. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the 8’ width requirements went into effect in the mid 1990’s and 
Oakland Mall was built before that and as sidewalks are being replaced and new 
development takes place, the sidewalks are 8’ wide. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the right turns were doubled and the traffic was doubled would it 
still fall into the taper.  Mr. Labadie said that was correct.  Mr. Courtney asked how far 
back the deceleration lane would be to the south.  Mr. Labadie said that he did not 
believe it would go back as far as the gas station. 
 
Mr. Gaber stated that he does not believe these variances are not contrary to public 
interest, City Council contemplated the construction of a Sonic Restaurant at the time 
they approved the re-zoning request; these variances will not cause a negative impact 
to surrounding property; absent a variance no reasonable use can be made of this 
property.  Mr. Gaber said that they have looked at other uses and no other use can be 
made of this property.   
 
Mr. Gaber addressed the letter received from Mr. Mossman and believes because it is 
on Oakland Mall letterhead it is very misleading.  Mr. Butler went to the City and 
reviewed the files and did not find anything indicating that this space was to be used as 
a greenbelt area at the time Oakland Plaza was developed.  This site was larger 
originally, but Burger King is using 57’ for a drive for their site.  Mr. Gaber also stated 
that they could not get a curb cut, but this petitioner has found out that the Road 
Commission will allow a curb cut.  The approval letters from the tenants in Oakland 
Plaza indicate that they would like this type of business in this location to help increase 
their business.  Mr. Gaber said that they have listened to the Planning Commission and 
this Board and have reduced the number of variances required to develop this site.  The 
Sonic Development was something that was originally submitted last fall and City 
Council has looked at it and approved the rezoning of this property.  The timing is such 
that they need to move this project along. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked where the other letters were from the other tenants located in this 
site. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

21 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Gaber said that he believes that the Mall Director went to a sampling of the tenants 
of this site and presented these letters to them and none of these tenants reacted 
negatively to this proposal. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he thinks it would be difficult for a tenant to disapprove of a 
request that was presented to them by a landlord. 
 
Mr. Gaber said that was true, but these are the people that would be affected the most 
by this restaurant. 
 
Mr. Kempen said that this parcel was split off of Oakland Plaza and asked how it would 
affect the green space requirement of this site. 
 
Mr. Butler said that Oakland Plaza is required to have 66,000 square feet of 
landscaping and presently they have 86,000 square feet of landscaping.  This site will 
take away approximately 8,000 square feet and therefore will not have an impact on the 
landscape requirement.   
 
Mr. Clark said that the Burger King proprietors main concern is that traffic from 14 Mile 
will cut through and go out to John R or go to Sonic.  This will adversely affect their 
business and this is something that has to be taken into consideration.  There could be 
a lot of people cutting through this site either going to Sonic or going on to John R. 
 
Mr. Gaber said that he is not anticipating traffic going through Burger King to go to 
Sonic but was addressing traffic that will try to avoid the traffic light and cut through 
John R.  This site will not allow access to John R. 
 
Mr. Clark said that people coming in may not know that they can’t use this site as 
access to John R.  Mr. Clark also stated that he believes there are other reasonable 
uses for this property. 
 
Mr. Clark opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Tony Versaci, the CEO of Multi-King was present and stated that the opened the 
Burger King on Fourteen Mile thirty (30) years ago and never received any type of 
variance from the City.  This original Burger King was a “flagship” restaurant.  Mr. 
Versaci also went on to say that Multi-King’s headquarters are in Troy.  Mr. Versaci also 
stated that Mr. Mossman indicated in his letter that he was the former owner of this 
property.  In the course of a day approximately 1,000 cars go through the drive-thru at 
this restaurant.  In addition, there are a number of vehicles that use this drive as way to 
cut through and avoid the traffic light at Fourteen Mile and John R.  Mr. Versaci believes 
that this Sonic Restaurant will increase the amount of traffic in this area and does not 
believe that this is the appropriate site for this restaurant.  Mr. Versaci is concerned 
about the safety of people walking in this area as well as the safety of customers  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

22 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
utilizing his restaurant.  Mr. Versaci said that he visited the site of the Sonic Restaurant 
on the east side and there was two-hour staging as well as police directing traffic.  Mr. 
Versaci is trying to protect his restaurant but is also looking at the safety of his 
customers and the traffic discipline on his property.  Burger King has been at this 
location for thirty (30) years and this is a very crowded area.  Multi-King has three (3) 
locations in Troy and they have never required any type of variance. The Burger King 
on Rochester Road is going to be re-built and will not require any variances, but will 
comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Mr. Versaci said that Sonic is a 
wonderful brand but this is an incredibly high density traffic area and he does not feel it 
should be in this location.   
 
Mr. Clark asked about the space taken from the original parcel for Burger King. 
 
Mr. Versaci said that when they opened the restaurant and the business exceeded what 
they had projected Mr. Versaci approached Mr. Kogan, the owner of the property at that 
time, and asked if they could purchase that site and were told they could not because it 
was designated to be greenspace.  Mr. Mossman came to Multi-King when the new 
owners were purchasing this property and asked that they cooperate with the new 
owner.  Mr. Mossman’s standards were impeccable over the years and the complied 
with Mr. Mossman’s request to make the sale of this property as smooth as possible.  
Mr. Versaci also stated that his partner, Mike Lucci, was unable to attend this meeting 
because of prior engagement.   
 
Mr. Bartnik said that Mr. Lucci was before this Board previously.  Mr. Bartnik asked Mr. 
Versaci if the driveway off of John R being changed to a one-way drive would affect Mr. 
Versaci. 
 
Mr. Versaci stated that he had not had the opportunity to look at this change. 
 
Mr. Kempen said that the drive into Burger King shares access to Oakland Plaza and 
asked if it was possible for the petitioner to move that entrance back into the general 
drive in order to ease some of the traffic using this site as a cut thru. 
 
Mr. Versaci said that they are before other cities for approval of restaurants and he 
understands what these gentlemen are going through and moving the drive is 
something that he will look into. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked about the traffic at the Sonic Restaurant on the east side. 
 
Mr. Versaci said that it was very busy on the day he was there and he has been at other 
locations throughout the country and they are not as busy. 
 
Mr. Doug Hailey, the Designer for Sonic Restaurants was present.  Mr. Hailey said that 
they opened the first Michigan store in Southgate and this promises to be a very typical  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

23 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
Sonic.  This restaurant actually helps other businesses in the area and he believes that 
there are other opportunities for people to get into this site without going through the 
Burger King.  Stacking of vehicles is as much of a concern to Sonic as it is to the City.  
They want this property to be successful and do not want to make people wait a long 
time to be served as they will probably just go somewhere else.  This is a nostalgic 
restaurant and celebrates the car.  In the beginning they are expecting a lot of traffic at 
this site but believe that the traffic will slow down after a few weeks.  Mr. Hailey said that 
this restaurant will add a lot of interest in this area because it is new and different.  They 
have kids on roller skates delivering food and they also have a patio for people to use 
for dining.  Mr. Hailey also said that this restaurant will bring vibrancy to this area that is 
presently lacking.   Mr. Hailey said that the entrance in was more important than the 
entrance out. 
 
Mr. Carl Chandler said that he is actually the behind the scenes guy.  With regards to 
the traffic cut through, they will not be cutting through to get to John R because this will 
be an entrance only.  Mr. Chandler said that he does not believe people will be using 
the drive in at Burger King in order to get to Sonic.  This is the smallest model of Sonic 
but there are several hundred same size restaurants around the country.  Sonic would 
not allow them to put a restaurant on a site that wouldn’t work.  The tenants that signed 
the approval letters had the option to sign the letter or not and they also had the 
opportunity to send in objections to the City.  Oakland Mall and the restaurants along 
John R need cars to make their businesses viable.  These business owners need cars 
to survive.  Mr. Chandler said that they decided to put in the deceleration lane in order 
to add extra safety for this site.  This particular intersection ranks 22nd compared to 
other intersections in the City regarding the incidence of accidents and this deceleration 
lane will help to create safety.   Mr. Chandler said that he believes they have 
compromised and addressed the concerns of this Board and hopes that these variances 
are granted. 
 
Mr. Ben Cheshire, the future franchisee of this site was present and stated that he has 
been a resident of the City for ten (10) years.  They have brought the variance requests 
down from six (6) to three (3) minor variances.  Mr. Cheshire also said that they have 
closed the exit onto John R.  This will be an entrance only drive.  Mr. Cheshire said that 
he will be happy to provide a sign for Burger King stating that they cannot use their drive 
to get to Sonic.  Mr. Cheshire wants to be able to bring this business to Troy and their 
time has run out and Mr. Cheshire feels that they have met most of the requirements of 
the City. 
  
Mr. Kevin Birnes of Burger King was present and stated that they had done a training 
video in August and there were 200 cars in the drive thru in one hour and the drive thru 
is 65% of our business.  In February there were 100 cars that went through the drive 
thru at McDonald’s in one hour.  Mr. Birnes stated that he just wanted to make the 
Board aware of the amount of traffic using these businesses. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

24 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  Twelve (12) written approvals were brought in 
by the petitioner. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to grant Urbancal-Oakland Plaza, LLC, 124 John R. relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new commercial building (Sonic Restaurant) with the following variances:  1. 
A canopy that is located only 10’ from the front property line where Paragraph G of 
Section 31.30.00 requires a 25’ front setback for canopies on the H-S (Highway 
Service) Zoning District.  2. A driveway on the east side of the building that is only 12’ 
wide where Paragraph G of Section 31.30.00 requires a minimum one-way driveway 
width of 15’.  3. Section 39.70.02 requires a 10’ wide landscape greenbelt along the 
front property line along John R.  The site plan submitted indicates that the overhang of 
the parking spaces adjacent to the greenbelt encroaches approximately 1’-9” into the 
10’ width. 
 

 Variances are not contrary to public interest or to the general purpose or intent of 
the Ordinance. 

 Petitioner has compromised and worked diligently to meet the concerns of the 
City. 

 Variances will not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 
District. 

 City Council approved the re-zoning of this property. 
 Variances will not have an adverse effect to surrounding properties. 
 This area relies on cars for the success of their businesses and it would be 

unrealistic to put a restriction on this property. 
 Variances apply only to the property described in this application. 
 Absent a variance no reasonable use can be made of the property. 
 Literal enforcement would preclude full enjoyment of a permitted use and would 

be unnecessarily burdensome. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that this request is very much different than what was originally 
submitted and Sonic has done their best to address the concerns of the Board.  The 
stacking has been changed and the entrance from John R has been changed to a one-
way drive.  The width of the driveway to 12’ rather than 15’ is very minimal, and Mr. 
Kovacs said that he agrees with the petitioner that this would not be a problem as it is a 
one-way drive.  Mr. Kovacs further stated that he does not believe the variance 
regarding the overhang of the cars is outrageous and is in support of this request. 
 
Mr. Ullmann said that this plan was presented six (6) months ago and this petitioner has 
only owned the property for one year.  Mr. Ullmann said that he believes the statement  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 16, 2009 

25 
 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
made by the petitioner that this is the only reasonable use for this property is not 
appropriate.  Mr. Ullmann further stated that he believes this restaurant is too intense for 
this property and that there is too much going on here. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he did not believe City Council granted re-zoning for this 
property as he does not think they visualized a drive-in restaurant at this site.  Mr. 
Courtney said that he does want to see Sonic in Troy but thinks this location is very 
tight. 
 
Mr. Clark said that Troy is a very large community and has a lot of businesses in the 
area and this Board does not have a right to approve something that is not permitted 
and that will adversely someone else’s property.  Mr. Clark thinks that Sonic is a very 
well run restaurant but Mr. Clark does not believe this is the right area for it.  This is a 
very high impact business and thinks it would be better on another location.  Mr. Clark 
said he will be voting no and thinks the amount of variances requested are excessive for 
this parcel and does believe there are other areas available. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he believes the Board has to look at the type of variances they are 
requesting and does not think this request is excessive. 
 
Mr. Kempen said that in his opinion he felt that the Board members were being strong-
armed when this whole proposal came forward.  Mr. Kempen does believe that the 
petitioner has made several compromises and although he does have concerns about 
this site he will be in support of this request. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs, Lambert 
Nays:  2 – Clark, Ullmann 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCES CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that he will not be present at the meeting of July 21, 
2009. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:50 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Glenn Clark, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 23, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Schultz requested to revise the agenda, as follows: 
1) Remove Agenda item #6, Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Meeting. 
2) Add Agenda item #10(a), Joint Planning Commission Meeting with City of 

Birmingham. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-06-056 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
Absent:  Sanzica, Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-06-057 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 2, 2009 Special/Study meeting 
and the June 9, 2009 Regular meeting as prepared. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Ullmann gave a report on the June 16, 2009 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.  He specifically addressed the three variances approved for the proposed 
Sonic Restaurant. 
 
 

[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:36 p.m.] 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Note:  Item removed from the Agenda because there was no meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on: 
 June 15-16 Transit Oriented Design Charrette. 
 City Council action items taken on June 15, 2009. 
 Approval of Big Beaver Kilmer PUD #10, Amendment to Preliminary 

Development Plan. 
 Approval of ZOTA 238, Social Service Facilities in M-1 District. 

 
Chair Schultz announced construction started on the Huntington Bank approved on 
the southwest corner of Troy Center Drive and Big Beaver.   
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 366) – Proposed Sonic Restaurant, East side of 

John R, North of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 36, H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant briefly reviewed the status of the proposed Sonic Restaurant.  Mr. 
Savidant explained the time constraints involved relating to the variances granted 
by the BZA and the report prepared by the Planning Consultant. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Richard Carlisle reviewed the report and addressed the following noted deficiencies: 
 Speaker and menu board locations. 
 Loading area in relation to truck delivery times. 
 Affidavit from property owner for outdoor seating.  (Affidavit received by Planning 

Department via facsimile, and original Affidavit hand delivered at meeting). 
 
Mr. Carlisle said the site in terms of position and arrangement makes for a very 
intensive project.  He reported the site plan meets all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements and it is recommended to approve the application as submitted, with a 
condition that truck deliveries are limited to non-operational hours. 
 
The petitioner, Jim Butler of Professional Engineers Associates (PEA), 2430 
Rochester Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Butler submitted the original Affidavit 
signed by the property owner required for the outdoor seating.  He distributed 
twelve (12) letters of endorsement from Oakland Plaza tenants as well as site plan 
exhibits and colored pictures relating to the variances granted by the BZA.  Also 
displayed was a colored rendering of the proposed Sonic Restaurant. 
 
Mr. Butler addressed the latest site plan revisions relating to the taper and 
deceleration lane on John R, the 8-foot wide sidewalk and greenbelt landscaping.  
Mr. Butler also addressed concerns outlined in the letter submitted to the BZA from 
Douglas Mossman, former managing partner for Oakland Mall and Oakland Plaza, 
relating to the greenbelt, visibility, traffic congestion and cut-through traffic.  He 
stated there is an existing reciprocal cross access easement on the site. 
 
Mr. Butler said the franchisee and representatives from the traffic consulting firm 
and Sonic corporate office were in the audience and available for questions. 
 
Mr. Ullmann voiced concern with planting deciduous trees in the greenbelt.  His 
concern is with potential problems to the sidewalk and driveway caused by the roots 
so close to the sidewalk.   
 
Discussion continued on the species, height and width of the proposed landscaping. 
 
Doug Hailey, Senior Director of Design for Sonic Industries, Oklahoma City, 
Oklahoma, was present.  Mr. Hailey briefly described the internal traffic flow and 
specifically addressed the stacking of vehicles, canopies and menu boards.  He 
said usually demand determines the hours of operation. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Kevin Barnes, operator of the Burger King on 14 Mile Road near the proposed Sonic 
Restaurant, was present.  Mr. Barnes spoke in opposition of the proposed 
development.  He addressed the potential for increased traffic congestion, stacking of 
cars, cut-through traffic and safety concerns because of the tight site layout.  Mr. 
Barnes shared his experience at the Sonic Restaurant located in Clinton Township 
this past February.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Hailey responded that most Sonic Restaurants are located on three-quarter acre 
sites and are very successful.  He said the traffic volume will be a challenge during the 
honeymoon period.  Mr. Hailey addressed the traffic count numbers and the “energy” 
that a Sonic Restaurant generates.   
 
Carl Chandler, an accountant for Sonic, addressed traffic counts and does not 
anticipate any safety concerns. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Discussion continued on: 
 Proposed landscaping. 
 Species of trees, planting within proximity of sidewalk, maintenance. 
 Yews and viburnums, maintain at 30-36 inches. 

 Unloading area as relates to delivery schedule. 
 
Ben Cheshire of 5388 Ridge Court, Troy, addressed the hours of operation and the 
schedule of truck deliveries.  He gave a brief explanation of “key drop delivery” 
system.  Mr. Cheshire agreed with a stipulation for deliveries during off peak hours 
when drive-up services are not offered. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-06---- 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 23.30.06 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Sonic Restaurant, located on the east side of John R, north of Fourteen 
Mile Road, in Section 36, within the H-S zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The exact speaker locations be shown on the plans. 
2. Deliveries only accepted during non-operational hours. 
3. Tree species along John R be determined with the Planning Consultant and City 

Landscape Architect. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was a lengthy discussion on defining “non-operational hours”. 
 
Mr. Cheshire said hours of operation would be from 6 a.m. to midnight.  He would 
use the “key drop delivery” system for major deliveries, but asked to allow small 
deliveries until 10 a.m. 
 
It was determined to specify no deliveries between the hours of 10 a.m. and 12 
midnight. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-06-058 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
To amend the delivery hours to state that there will be no scheduled deliveries 
between 10 a.m. and 12 a.m. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor as amended. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-06-059 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 23.30.06 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Sonic Restaurant, located on the east side of John R, north of Fourteen 
Mile Road, in Section 36, within the H-S zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The exact speaker locations be shown on the plans. 
2. No scheduled deliveries between 10 a.m. and 12 a.m. 
3. Tree species along John R be determined with the Planning Consultant and City 

Landscape Architect. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: Ullmann 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Ullmann said it is his belief that the site is too small for the proposed 
development.  He wished success in the operation of the restaurant. 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
9. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Review of 

Draft Nonconforming Uses/Structures Article and Amendments Article 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief review and introduction of the item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Carlisle reviewed the draft of Article 13, Nonconforming Uses/Structures.  He 
pointed out inconsistencies in the current Zoning Ordinance (Section 13.03 D., 
Section 13.04 B, Section 13.05 C, and Section 13.05 E).   
 
There was discussion on the following: 
 Place mechanisms that would give owner ability to bring property into 

conformity. 
 Add value to the property; intent is not to devalue property.  
 Building Department and Zoning Board of Appeals (BZA) involvement. 
 Obtain count of existing nonconforming uses from Building Department. 
 Eliminate and/or make consistent specified timeframes (i.e., 30 day, 6 months, 6 

consecutive months). 
 Identify classifications for nonconforming uses.  Class A nonconformities are 

permitted to expand; Class B are not. 
 Look at Section 13.03 D.5. 
 Provision not to preclude someone from building up to code. 

 
______________ 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-06-060 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To suspend the rules, and table Agenda item #9 to later in the evening and 
move Agenda item #10 forward. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

______________ 
 
 

10. POTENTIAL ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Used Car Sales in M-1 
 
Mr. Hutson disclosed that his law firm represents an automobile dealer located in 
Troy that is situated in the M-1 Zoning District.  He asked to recuse himself from 
discussion on this item to avoid any appearance of impropriety.   
 
Mr. Forsyth agreed it would be appropriate to recuse Mr. Hutson from discussion. 
 
[Mr. Hutson exited meeting.] 
 
Mr. Strat disclosed his relationship with the petitioners, but indicated he has no 
financial interest in the matter.   
 
Mr. Forsyth said he sees no conflict of interest.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Savidant gave a brief introduction to the item.  He advised members that used 
car sales are not permitted in the M-1 zoning district as a principal use.  They are 
permitted as an accessory use to a new cars sales agency, provided that agency is 
in a planned automobile center.  Mr. Savidant said used car sales are permitted in 
the B-3 and H-S districts, subject to Special Use Approval.  He reported an 
amendment to the Zoning Ordinance would be necessary to permit used car sales 
as a principal use or as accessory to a towing or automobile storage facility in the 
M-1 district.  Mr. Savidant identified questions to consider and generate discussion. 
 
Mr. Strat said the primary interest of the petitioner is to operate a wholesale car 
dealership.  Pre-ordered upscale cars would be displayed on a temporary basis for 
retail.  Mr. Strat said some cars might be repaired on site and then put on the 
market for sale. 
 
Carrie Heichel and Jack Youhana of Global Towing Company, 5878 E. Maple 
Road, Troy, were present.  Ms. Heichel and Mr. Youhana are seeking the City’s 
approval so they can move forward with a Class B License application.  They 
provided a brief description of the proposed wholesale operation relating to the 
type, number, repair, storage and retail display of vehicles on site.   
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the Zoning Ordinance standards for used car sales in the B-3 
zoning District.  He indicated the Planning Department could work on similar 
standards for the M-1 Zoning District.   
 
Discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Department will work on language for the proposed Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment.  Mr. Savidant indicated the process would take approximately 90 
to 120 days.   
 

[Mr. Hutson returned to the meeting.] 
 
9. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236)  (continued) 

 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief review and introduction of the item.   
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the draft of Article 15, Amendments.   
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Dimensional concept plans. 
 Incentive for conditional rezonings. 
 Checklists. 
 Guide flow charts and appropriate linkage. 
 PUD approval process as guideline. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

10 (a). JOINT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING – CITY OF TROY AND CITY OF 
BIRMINGHAM 
 
Chair Schultz introduced the item. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-06-061 
 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission has the opportunity to 
participate in a joint meeting with the City of Birmingham Planning Board.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The intent of the meeting is to update both 
boards on the design of the proposed Troy/Birmingham Transit Center. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission shall hold a joint 
Special Meeting with the City of Birmingham Planning Board on Tuesday, July 14, 
2009, at 7:30 p.m. in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the July, 2009 Planning Commission Regular 
meeting shall be held on Tuesday, July 28, 2009, at 7:30 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of Troy City Hall. 
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
Absent:  Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
Mr. Edmunds was commended for a well-written and informative report on the APA 
National Conference.   
 
Mr. Edmunds addressed the Planning Commission recommendation to rezone and 
subsequent City Council approval to rezone Harlan Plaza (File Number Z-736) from 
B-1 to B-3, as relates to a nonconforming use. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 23, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Savidant acknowledged the inconsistency in measuring the setbacks for that 
particular rezoning request, and apologized for the unintentional error and misleading 
information. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\06-23-09 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:33 A.M., on Wednesday, July 1, 2009 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Keith Lenderman 
   Tim Richnak 
   Mark Stimac 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Frank Zuazo 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 3, 2009 
 
Motion by Lenderman 
Supported by Stimac 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 3, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Lenderman, Richnak, Stimac 
Absent: 1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  CHRISTINE SHANTRY, 6195 BLACKWALL, 
for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high fence.  Because of the location of this home and the orientation of the adjacent 
homes, this property is classified as a double front corner lot.  It has front yard 
requirements along both Blackwall and Aspinwall.  Chapter 83 limits the height of 
fences in front setbacks to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high picket style 
fence located 3.5’ from the north property line along Aspinwall. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of June 3, 2009 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to mark her property as to the location of the fence; to 
allow the petitioner to discuss this variance request with her neighbors to see if they 
would approve of the request; and to allow Building Department staff to provide a map 
of this area indicating the neighbors that were opposed to this request. 
 
 
 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

2 
 

Ms. Shantry was present and passed out the documents that the Board had asked for, 
which included a letter from the veterinarian as well as a petition signed by several of 
her neighbors indicating approval of this request. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the flags and fence posts on the property were in the proposed 
location of the fence and if the fence material was the same as that of the fence 
installed along the south property line. Ms. Shantry said that was correct.   
 
Mr. Dziurman questioned the petition that Ms. Shantry brought in. 
 
Ms. Shantry stated that there are eight (8) homeowners that have indicated approval. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the hardship was the fact that the dog could jump a fence that 
was less than 6’ and Ms. Shantry said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Lenderman said that in reading the material Ms. Shantry brought in, a 6’ high chain 
link fence was recommended so that the dog could see what was outside of the fence. 
 
Ms. Shantry said this was not a privacy fence but a picket fence so that the dog would 
be able to see out of the yard. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if Ms. Shantry had indicated to the people she approached with her 
petition that the measurement of the location of the fence would be from the edge of the 
pavement. 
 
Ms. Shantry said that the only people that had concerns were people that thought the 
fence was going to block the corner. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that documents had been submitted that a 6’ high fence was required to 
contain the dog, but indicated that the fence could be placed farther back on the 
property line.  Mr. Stimac also said that the house is 40’ from the property line. 
 
Ms. Shantry said that if the fence is moved back it would cut off her yard and she wants 
to be able to use all of it.  The distance from the corner of the house to the pavement is 
59’.  Ms. Shantry said that she would lose 40’ of her property that she would like to be 
able to use. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that Ms. Shantry would still have an 82’ wide fenced yard. 
 
Ms. Shantry passed out pictures of her yard and stated that she would like to be able to 
enjoy the yard and not cut it in half. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked what the height restriction was and Mr. Stimac said that the 
Ordinance limits the height of fences in the front yard to not more than 30” in height. 
Mr. Lenderman further stated that he believes that dog could be trained to stay in the 
yard and did not see a lack of training as a hardship. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Shantry indicated that she had just gotten the dog and has been working with him 
on her own as well as in obedience school. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that from the pictures and site visits that it appears that this property is 
lower than the road on Aspinwall. 
 
Ms. Shantry said that there is a drainage ditch that runs along Aspinwall although she 
had never noticed that her property was lower. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how far the fence would be from the property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he thought it would be about 3 ½’ back.  Ms. Shantry said that they 
had measured 24’ from the Road and thought the distance would be 5’ from the 
property line. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Ms. Shantry presented a petition with eight (8) homeowners indicating approval of this 
request. 
 
Motion by Stimac 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Christine Shantry, 6195 Blackwall, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high picket style fence located 3.5’ from the north property line along Aspinwall. 
 

 This property has a significant amount of trees between the fence and the front 
property line. 

 This fence is a non-obscuring type of fence. 
 This property is lower than the level of the street pavement on Aspinwall giving 

the appearance of a shorter fence. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Lenderman, Richnak, Stimac, Dziurman 
Absent: 1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. KENNETH BUDRY, 884 HIDDEN 
RIDGE, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 5’ high privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
privacy fence.  Because of the location of this lot and the orientation of the adjacent 
homes, this lot is classified as a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front yard  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
requirements along Hidden Ridge Drive both on the north and east side of the property.  
Because of the common rear yard relationship with the property to the west, Chapter 83 
limits fences in the yard to the north of this house to a non-obscuring fence not more 
than 48” in height.  The site plan submitted indicates a 5’ high obscuring fence at the 
front property line along the north property line adjacent to Hidden Ridge. 
 
Ms. Olivia Olsztyn-Budry was present.  Ms. Budry stated that she and her husband 
have two (2) young children that play in the yard most of the day and she wants to put 
up this fence in order to protect her children from people walking and driving by.  
Although the children are not alone when they are outside, they are visible to people 
passing by.  Ms. Budry has chosen a white PVC fence in order to eliminate any type of 
maintenance and it carries a lifetime warranty.  Ms. Budry said that she had spoken to 
the people across the street and one person said that they did not care, but the 
homeowner at 859 Hidden Ridge indicated that they would not approve a 6’ high fence 
but would be in favor of a 5’ high fence.  There is an existing chain link fence around the 
property and the 5’ fence would be put in that location. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Jan Duzzie, 827 Hidden Ridge was present.  Ms. Duzzie indicated that her home 
was near this home and stated that this is a very difficult corner.  Ms. Duzzie said that 
this neighborhood is relatively safe and if a variance is granted for a 5’ high fence at this 
location, other owners of corner lots could come in and ask for the same thing.  Ms. 
Duzzie feels that a privacy fence will make this property look like a fort.  There is an 
existing fence around this property and another neighbor had created a hedge along his 
chain link fence which increased the privacy of this yard. 
 
Ms. Budry said that she had contacted the Deputy Engineer for the City regarding traffic 
problems at this location and the City had done both a traffic study and a traffic count.  
This is what is considered an “eyebrow” turn and is quite wide.  In order for this curve to 
be changed it would require a special assessment and due to the economic climate Ms. 
Budry decided not to pursue this.  The City Engineer did put up a reflector to help and 
slow down traffic.  Ms. Budry also stated that the homeowner at 859 Hidden Ridge said 
that they would not approve a 6’ high fence but would consider a fence that is 5’ high.  
Ms. Budry further stated that she and her husband do not like hedges or arborvitae.  
They do not want to maintain this type of shrubbery and this is one of the reasons that 
they chose to put up a PVC fence.   
 
Ms. Duzzie stated that in her opinion if you buy a house on a corner lot, then that is 
what you have.  Ms. Duzzie does not think that a child’s safety is enough of a hardship 
to put up a 5’ high fence.  Child safety is up the parents.  Ms. Duzzie said that she has 
lived in her home for twenty-nine (29) years and has not witnessed any type of problem.  
Ms. Duzzie also stated that she believes additional shrubbery will add to the screening  
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
of the yard and would be aesthetically pleasing.  Ms. Duzzie said that she is opposed to 
this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the existing fence was permitted by Ordinance and Mr. Stimac 
said that a 4’ high non-obscuring fence was permitted. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if Ms. Budry would be willing to start the fence at the northwest corner 
of the property and go back, which would provide privacy for the rear yard. 
 
Ms. Budry said that if they did that, a great deal of their yard would be cut and they 
would not be able to see the children.  They have a swing set, a patio and a garage 
behind the house and Ms. Budry did not believe this would add enough security. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that presently the children could walk around the fence and end up on 
the street. 
 
Ms. Budry said that they keep the fence locked and the area that Mr. Stimac is 
proposing is used to play sports and she does not want to enclose that area. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this lot is 100’ wide while most of the lots in this subdivision are 
76.5’ wide.  Corner lots are made larger with the knowledge that the area cannot always 
be used 100%.   Mr. Stimac stated that if they maintain a 4’ high fence the whole yard 
would be enclosed. 
 
Ms. Budry said that she is aware of people in the area that have criminal records and 
she wants to be able to provide a secure back yard for her children. 
 
Ms. Budry was asked if this was the only place the fence could be located. 
 
Ms. Budry indicated that she would be willing to move it back a few feet, but their plan 
was to take out the existing fence and put the new fence in the same location. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if there was any location that Ms. Budry would be willing to 
compromise regarding the location of this fence and Ms. Budry said that she would be 
willing to move it back 5’.   
 
Ms. Budry said that her front yard is very well maintained and landscaped.  She and her 
husband do not like obscuring vegetation and feels that it requires a lot of work. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that personal preferences are not always considered when this 
Board grants a variance.  In many cases, this Board requires obscuring vegetation 
along a fence line to soften the appearance along the property line.  There is a lot of 
plant material available that may not require as much care.  Mr. Richnak said that he 
would have a hard time approving this request if Ms. Budry did not accept the fact that 
obscuring vegetation would be required. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if this fence came in different colors.  Ms. Budry said that it comes in 
khaki like color and a darker brown, but these colors are more expensive.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that in his opinion the worst thing you can do aesthetically is put up a 
solid white fence at the property line without screening.  Mr. Stimac suggested that Ms. 
Budry contact a landscaping company to see what type of plant material would be 
available. 
 
Ms. Budry asked if she could move the fence back 5’ and put in hostas.  Mr. Richnak 
stated that there would not be any type of screening in the winter. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the Board would want to have some type of screening year round. 
 
Mr. Lenderman said that he is not comfortable granting this variance as it appears that 
approval would mean that Ms. Budry’s children would be guaranteed to be kept safe.  
Mr. Lenderman said that he is opposed to the assumption that a 5’ high fence would 
keep them safe. 
 
Ms. Budry said that she understands that and the 5’ high fence would keep them 
screened from traffic, and she does not like the idea that people can see her children in 
the yard.  Ms. Budry said that she would also like another child so they will have young 
children for quite some time. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that Ms. Budry is very close to the outside corner clearance triangle and 
people do come around the corner very fast.   
 
Ms. Budry indicated that she would be willing to move the fence back. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it would still require a variance.  This fence will have a greater 
impact on the southern portion of Hidden Ridge. 
 
Motion by Stimac 
Supported by Richnak 
 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth Budry, 884 Hidden Ridge, for 
relief of the Chapter 83 to install a 5’ high privacy fence. 
 

 To allow the petitioner to investigate landscape alternatives. 
 To allow the petitioner to consider moving the fence back off of the property line. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Richnak, Stimac, Dziurman, Lenderman 
Absent: 1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 5, 
2009 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  ROBERT MOORHOUSE, OF R.E. 
MOORHOUSE & ASSOCIATES, 767 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect 
a third ground sign that is proposed to be thirty-six (36) square feet in area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to erect a 
third ground sign at 767 W. Big Beaver.  This property is located in the Office-Service-
Commercial (O-S-C) Zoning District.  Section 85.02.05 of the Troy Sign Ordinance 
allows two (2) ground signs per building in the O-S-C Zoning District.  There is an 
existing ground sign on this parcel that is fifty (50) square feet and a second ground 
sign that is thirty-six (36) square feet in area.  This proposed third ground sign exceeds 
the allowable number of signs. 
 
Mr. Moorhouse of R.E. Moorhouse & Associates and Mr. Tony Antone of 755 Tower 
Associates were present.  Mr. Moorhouse stated that the hardship is the fact that Ruth 
Chris Steakhouse, 755 W. Big Beaver, is setback 400’ from Big Beaver.  In the future 
another restaurant, Granite City will be constructed in front of 755 W. Big Beaver and 
the view to this restaurant will be blocked.   
 
Mr. Antone stated that his company is the management-owner of National City Center, 
755 W. Big Beaver.  Granite City is a 1.9 acre site that is not yet developed.  Ruth Chris 
has just extended their lease significantly and they have increased the size of their 
restaurant by approximately 2000 square feet and have updated the look of the 
restaurant.  Mr. Antone said that once Granite City goes in they will not have the 
visibility they will need.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if other tenants in the building have ground signs. 
 
Mr. Antone said that other tenants would not be allowed to have other signs.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked how long the petitioner believes the “For Lease” ground sign would 
remain on the property. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

8 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Antone said that it will probably be there forever.  There is a lot of tenant turnover at 
this location and there is always space for lease.  Even if the building was at a 70% - 
85% capacity, Mr. Antone would have the “For Lease” sign remain. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked if they had acquired a lot of tenants through the “For Lease” sign.   
 
Mr. Antone said that a lot of folks do not want to go through a broker and they do come 
in because of that sign. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the normal size of a ground sign was. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that depending on the location of the sign, the primary sign could 
measure up to 200 square feet.  A second ground sign would be limited to 36 square  
feet.  If the Real Estate sign was removed this proposed sign would not require a 
variance. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how large the National City Center sign is and Mr. Stimac stated 
that it is 50 square feet.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked if Granite City would be allowed to have two (2) ground signs and 
Mr. Stimac stated that was correct. 
 
Mr. Antone stated that originally Granite City wanted to be located farther back from Big 
Beaver, but the Planning Commission stated that as part of the Big Beaver Corridor 
study they wanted it closer to Big Beaver.  When this proposed location was moved 
closer to Big Beaver a hardship was created for Ruth Chris.  Morton Steakhouse is 
much closer to Big Beaver and Ruth Chris is at a disadvantage as it is set farther back. 
 
Motion by Lenderman 
Supported by Stimac 
 
MOVED, to grant Robert Moorhouse, R.E. Moorhouse & Associates, 767 W. Big 
Beaver, relief to Chapter 85 to erect a third (3) ground sign that is proposed to be thirty-
six (36) square feet in area. 
 

 The sale of the front parcel of property has created a hardship as to visibility for 
Ruth Chris. 

 New sign will aid in identifying this restaurant. 
 If the “For Lease” sign were ever removed, the proposed sign would be 

conforming. 
 
Mr. Stimac questioned the location of the proposed sign as it is past the turnaround for 
Ruth Chris. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

9 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Antone said that they have done a number of studies and believe this is the best 
location because it will be visible for people heading westbound on Big Beaver and 
coming off of I-75. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he believes most of the people coming to this restaurant are 
coming past on West Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Antone said this is not a “way finding tool”.  Once people know that the sign is there 
it is directional.  The only other location it could be placed was in the location of the 
existing “For Lease” sign.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked if there was any thought to moving the “For Lease” sign and insert 
“For Lease” on the National City sign. 
 
Mr. Antone said that presently there are two (2) panels available on that sign.  They are 
reserved for any tenant that leases an entire floor. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the sign could be increased to 200 square feet rather than 50 
square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that right now the sign is located at a 0’ setback, which limits it to 50 
square feet.  Mr. Stimac also stated that he was somewhat concerned in the fact that 
the Granite City parcel was sold off so that there was no longer any frontage on Big 
Beaver and that is now being submitted as a hardship to the property.   
 
Mr. Antone said that they did not make this a requirement of the sale and that they are 
under no obligation to do this for Ruth Chris.  Ruth Chris will be blocked off because of 
Granite City, which will be a great addition to this location.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if Morton’s Steakhouse required a variance.  Mr. Stimac said that 
he did believe a variance was granted for the wall signage but not for the ground sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak pointed out that Morton’s does not have a Real Estate Sign in place. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the corporate colors for Ruth Chris are red and black and asked 
why the name on the National City Center sign was in different colors. 
 
Mr. Moorhouse stated that the color scheme was dictated by the owners. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he thought the Ruth Chris name on the existing sign would be more 
recognizable if it was done in their corporate colors. 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                  JULY 1, 2009 

10 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Antone said that the manager of Ruth Chris approached him and stated that he 
could remove their name from the sign whenever they wanted as he feels it does not 
help them at all. 
 
A discussion began as to how Ruth Chris designates their location in their advertising 
and it is hoped that they state that they are located in the National City building. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Stimac, Dziurman, Lenderman, Richnak 
Absent: 1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 9:45 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



 

 
 
July 30, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor and Council  
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
James Nash, Financial Services Director 
Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Golf Course Operations 
 
Background: 

 This memo provides information regarding the monthly operations for the golf course 
operation.   

 
Sanctuary Lake Operations Summary 

 June 07-08 
ACTUAL 

June 08-09 
ACTUAL 

2007-2008  
YTD ACTUAL 

2008-2009  
YTD ACTUAL 

Revenues $185,327.00 $174,900.52 $985,813.25 $922,208.43
Expenses $172,936.79 $97,494.25 $1,620,604.08 $1,542,718.15
Rounds 4,160 3,990 23,664 24,710
 

Sylvan Glen Operations Summary 
 June 07-08 

ACTUAL 
June 08-09 
ACTUAL 

2007-2008  
YTD ACTUAL 

2008-2009  
YTD ACTUAL 

Revenues $171,974.48 $212,336.35 $1,214,312.79 $1,199,379.94
Expenses $97,088.98 $95,958.88 $1,105,554.56 $1,028,157.64
Rounds 6,185 8,902 42,451 43,892
 
These are unaudited revenue/expenses as of June 30, 2009 
 
As is evident from the above information, Sylvan Glen revenues exceed expenses.  There is no debt 
incurred at Sylvan.  Depreciation is currently $183,000/year.   
Expenses exceed revenues at Sanctuary Lake.  Depreciation at Sanctuary Lake is $300,000/year 
while debt (principal and interest) is $828,000 although this amount varies each year. 
 
There are several options that may be considered regarding the future operation of Sanctuary Lake.   
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



Option 1:  Continue Current Operating Procedures 
If the golf course continues current operating procedures, the City will continue to incur expenses of 
debt service, depreciation, maintenance and pro shop operating expenses.  Over the past two 
seasons average total expenses have been $1,587,000.  Average revenues have been $954,000 with 
an annual loss of approximately $633,000.   
The current total cash shortfall position is $633,000. This includes elimination of the depreciation and 
addition of principal.  
 
Option 2:  Close Course Temporarily, Re-open at a Later Date 
If the golf course was temporarily closed and minimally maintained with plans to re-open at a later 
date, the City would incur expenses of debt service and depreciation.  Although maintenance and pro 
shop expenses would be reduced, there would be some maintenance required.  Operating expenses 
would be approximately $150,000.  With debt and depreciation, expenses incurred would be 
estimated at $1,278,000.  There would be no revenues associated with this option until the course 
was re-opened. The current total cash shortfall position is $1,278,000. This eliminates the 
depreciation but includes principal. However, as expenses and the principal and interest payment 
schedule varies each year, this shortfall may change. 
 
Option 3:  Close Course Permanently 
If the golf course was closed permanently and converted into parkland, the City would incur expenses 
of debt service, depreciation, building maintenance and utilities.  The remaining debt service 
obligation, which spans 18 more years, would require an average payment of $897,000.00 per year.  
Costs to maintain this property as parkland are estimated at $200,000 annually. The average total 
annual expense for the property with this option is $1,097,000(total cash shortfall position). This 
includes the estimated direct expenses and payment of interest and principal. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the continuation of operating the golf course. Operating the course gives the city 
the opportunity to reduce the expense/revenue ratio and provide a recreational service to City 
residents and guests.  Staff will continue to work toward reducing expenses and increase revenues 
resulting in reduced subsidy to the operation.   
 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a













campbellld
Text Box
J-05



 
 
 
DATE:   July 22, 2009 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
 
RE: 89 E. Long Lake– response to comments made at July 20, 2009 City 

Council Meeting 
 
 
I understand comments were made at the July 20, 2009 City Council meeting regarding the 
Building Inspection Department’s recent actions concerning Gateway Deli, 89 East Long Lake.   
The subject matter involves Gateway placing a temporary sign in the public right of way.   
 
Sections 85.01.05 A (1) and 85.03.02 B 2 (a) of the City of Troy Sign Ordinance prohibit private 
owned signs within the public right of way.  On Monday July 6, 2009 Housing and Zoning 
Inspector Turner responded to a complaint regarding a sign in the right of way at the northeast 
corner of Livernois and East Long Lake.  She observed a sign advertising Gateway Deli in the 
public right of way.   
 
Inspector Turner proceeded to Gateway Deli and spoke with a gentleman who identified himself 
as the manager.  She explained the sign ordinance to him and left a copy of the Building 
Inspection Department’s temporary sign informational flyer.  The manager removed the sign 
from the right of way a few hours later. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 
 
 
DATE:   July 28, 2009 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
 
RE: 4977 Livernois – response to comments made at July 20, 2009 City 

Council Meeting 
 
 
I understand comments were made at the July 20, 2009 City Council meeting regarding the 
Building Inspection Department’s recent actions at Coffee With Cream, 4977 Livernois.  The 
subject matter involves establishing outdoor incidental customer seating outside the building 
without first receiving a Certificate of Approval from the Building Inspection Department.   
 
The property is Zoned B-1 Local Business.   Section 20.25.03 of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance allows outdoor incidental customer seating as an accessory to food sales 
establishments. The business sells food items such as pastries, donuts, bagels, ice cream and 
hot and cold beverages.    The Zoning Ordinance requires a Certificate of Approval be granted 
prior to establishing outdoor incidental seating.  Applications for Certificates are reviewed and 
granted by the Building Inspection Department.  There is no charge for the Certificate 
 
On June 3, 2009 Housing and Zoning Inspector Griffeth observed two benches on the private 
sidewalk adjacent to the business.   At that time a Certificate of Approval had not been granted 
for the benches.  A notice dated June 9, 2009 was sent to the property owner advising of the 
June 3 observation.  The notice requested the benches be removed or that the necessary 
Certificate be obtained.  An application was included with the notice.    
 
The Building Department is in receipt of the application, and is preparing a written denial.    
Chapter 39.70.03 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 5 foot walkway for pedestrian 
access.  The 7 foot wide sidewalk in front of the store also serves as a bumper stop for motor 
vehicles using parking spaces.  The application proposes placing 21 inch wide benches on the 
sidewalk adjacent to the front building face.  Adding the benches and incorporating a 24 inch 
wide vehicle overhang reduces the walkway width to 39 inches.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



campbellld
Text Box
K-01



 

 
 
DATE:    June 30, 2009                             
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Update of Chapter 82 of the Troy City Code 
    Property Maintenance Code  
 
 
Background: 
 
 The current provisions of the Troy Property Maintenance Code adopts, by reference, the 1993 

Edition of the BOCA Property Maintenance Code. 
 This document is no longer in print and is not available to the public. 
 In August of 2008 the 2006 editions of the Michigan Building Codes went into effect. 
 We have prepared for adoption an updated Property Maintenance Code that is based upon the 

2006 edition of the ICC Property Maintenance Code. 
 We are also proposing changes to the base document to address and consolidate other 

provisions of the Troy Ordinances. 
 Because the length of the document is not too large, we are proposing to include the entire text of 

the ordinance rather than adopting by reference and just printing the amendments to the base 
document.  We believe that this will result in an Ordinance that is easier to read, more 
coordinated, and more user friendly. 

 Some of the highlights of the proposed changes include: 
o Updating to the latest versions of the referenced code documents. 
o Better coordination with Troy Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance. 
o Including Dangerous Building provisions allowing for the deletion of Chapter 82A. 
o Including Weed provisions allowing for the deletion of Chapter 89. 
o Requiring for weed maintenance for right of way adjacent to County and City right of way. 
o Including Litter provisions allowing for the deletion of portions of Chapter 48. 
o Include provisions for Junk Vehicles allowing deletion of portions of Chapter 88. 
o Including new language regarding providing containers for personal property for evictions 

(crafted after similar provisions of City of Detroit Ordinance Language). 
o Better language for requiring exterior painting and addressing graffiti. 

 If this new code is adopted, then accompanying changes to other ordinances should be adopted 
at the same time. 

 We have included a copy of the existing text of Chapter 82 showing the text that will be deleted. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 We have included a copy of the current complete text of the 1993 BOCA Property maintenance 
Code that is the basis for the current Troy Property Maintenance Code for your reference. 

 We have included a series of questions and answers that were raised at the June 15, 2009, City 
Council Meeting. 

 We have also included some changes as a result of the comments raised at, and subsequent to, 
that meeting.  These include: 

o Added documentation requirements to Section 102.8 on matters not covered by the 
code. 

o Changed the right of entry language in Section 104.4 to be identical to the language in 
the Michigan Building Code that is required to be enforced by State statute. 

o Modified the language for Modifications in Section 105.1. 
o Extended the time for compliance with an appeal order by Council for repairs to 60 days 

and eliminated the word “weather” from the provision for conditions for additional time. 
o Added a definition for “deadbolt” in the definitions section. 
o Identified the option for wireless interconnection of smoke detectors. 
o Added an exception for tree branches as rubbish in preservation and restoration areas. 
o Corrected formatting errors that were in the original document. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to adopt a Property Maintenance Code under the City Charter and 

the Home Rule Cities Act. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community (Outcome I). 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can adopt the new Property Maintenance Code 
 City Council can retain the existing Property Maintenance Code. 
 City Council can revise the provisions and adopt those provisions as the new Property 

Maintenance Code. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mss/ Chapter 82 revision memo 7-6-09 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 82 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1. Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 82, 
Property Maintenance Code, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2. Amendment 

Chapter 82, Property Maintenance Code, shall be amended to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 1  ADMINISTRATION 

101  GENERAL. 

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Property Maintenance Code 
of the City of Troy, hereinafter referred to as “this code.” 

101.2 Scope. The provisions of this code shall apply to all existing residential 
and nonresidential structures and all existing premises and constitute minimum 
requirements and standards for premises, structures, equipment and facilities for 
light, ventilation, space, heating, sanitation, protection from the elements, life 
safety, safety from fire and other hazards, and for safe and sanitary 
maintenance; the responsibility of owners, operators and occupants; the 
occupancy of existing structures and premises, and for administration, 
enforcement and penalties. 

101.3 Intent. This code shall be construed to secure its expressed intent, which 
is to ensure and promote public health, safety and welfare in so far as they are 
affected by the continued occupancy and maintenance of structures and 
premises. Existing structures and premises that do not comply with these 
provisions shall be altered or repaired to provide a minimum level of health and 
safety as required herein. 

101.4 Severability. If a section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
code is held to be unconstitutional for any reason, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this code. 

SECTION 102  APPLICABILITY 

102.1 General. The provisions of this code shall apply to all matters affecting or 
relating to structures and premises, as set forth in Section 101. Where, in a 
specific case, different sections of this code specify different requirements, the 
most restrictive shall govern. 



102.2 Maintenance. Equipment, systems, devices and safeguards required by 
this code or a previous regulation or code under which the structure or premises 
was constructed, altered or repaired shall be maintained in good working order. 
No owner, operator or occupant shall cause any service, facility, equipment or 
utility which is required under this section to be removed from or shut off from or 
discontinued for any occupied dwelling, except for such temporary interruption as 
necessary while repairs or alterations are in progress. The requirements of this 
code are not intended to provide the basis for removal or abrogation of fire 
protection and safety systems and devices in existing structures. Except as 
otherwise specified herein, the owner or the owner’s designated agent shall be 
responsible for the maintenance of buildings, structures and premises. 

102.3 Application of other codes. Repairs, additions or alterations to a 
structure, or changes of occupancy shall be done in accordance with the 
procedures and provisions of the Michigan Building Code, International Fuel Gas 
Code, Michigan Mechanical Code, Michigan Plumbing Code,  and the Michigan 
Electrical Code. Nothing in this code shall be construed to cancel, modify or set 
aside any zoning provisions of Chapter 39, Zoning Ordinance, of the Troy Code 
of Ordinances. 

102.4 Existing remedies. The provisions in this code shall not be construed to 
abolish or impair existing remedies of the jurisdiction or its officers or agencies 
relating to the removal or demolition of any structure which is dangerous, unsafe 
or unsanitary. 

102.5 Workmanship. Repairs, maintenance work, alterations or installations 
which are caused directly or indirectly by the enforcement of this code shall be 
executed and installed in a workmanlike manner and installed in accordance with 
the manufacturer’s installation instructions. 

102.6 Historic buildings. The provisions of this code shall not be mandatory for 
existing buildings or structures designated as historic buildings when such 
buildings or structures are judged by the code official to be safe and the 
perpetuation of such historical buildings is in the public interest. 

102.7 Referenced codes, ordinances, and standards. The codes, ordinances, 
and standards referenced in this code shall be those that are listed in Chapter 8 
of this Ordinance and considered part of the requirements of this code to the 
prescribed extent of each such reference. Where differences occur between 
provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the provisions of this code 
shall apply. 

102.8 Requirements not covered by code. Requirements necessary for the 
strength, stability or proper operation of an existing fixture, structure or 
equipment, or for the public safety, health and general welfare shall be 
determined by the code official if not specifically covered by this code.  The 
details of any such determination shall be recorded and entered in the 
department files. 



SECTION 103  BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

103.1 General. The Building Department is hereby designated as the City of 
Troy enforcement division of this code and shall be known as the Department 
and the Director of Building and Zoning shall be known as the code official. 

103.2 Deputies. In accordance with the prescribed procedures of the City of 
Troy, the City Manager shall have the authority to appoint or remove the code 
official, other related technical officers, inspectors and other employees. 

103.4 Liability. The code official and fire official, while acting for the City of Troy, 
shall not thereby be rendered liable personally, and is relieved from all personal 
liability for any damage accruing to persons or property as a result of an act 
required or permitted in the discharge of official duties. Any suit instituted against 
any code official or fire official because of an act performed by that official in the 
lawful discharge of duties and under the provisions of this code shall be 
defended by the City Attorney or his/her designee until the final termination of the 
proceedings. The code official or fire official shall not be liable for costs in an 
action, suit or proceeding that is instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this 
code.  Any official of the department, acting in good faith and without malice, 
shall be free from liability for acts performed under any of its provisions or by 
reason of any act or omission in the performance of official duties, excluding acts 
which constitute gross negligence and/or intentional acts on the part of individual. 

103.5 Fees. The fees for activities and services performed by the department in 
carrying out its responsibilities under this code shall be set forth in Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the City of Troy Ordinances, or by resolution of the 
Troy City Council. 

SECTION 104 DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE CODE OFFICIAL 

104.1 General. The code official shall enforce the provisions of this code. 

104.2 Rule-making authority. The code official shall have authority as 
necessary and in the interest of public health, safety and general welfare to adopt 
and promulgate rules and procedures; to interpret and implement the provisions 
of this code; to secure the intent thereof; and to designate requirements 
applicable because of local climatic or other conditions. Such rules shall not have 
the effect of waiving structural or fire performance requirements specifically 
provided for in this code, or of violating accepted engineering methods involving 
public safety.  

104.3 Inspections. The code official shall make all of the required inspections, or 
shall accept reports of inspection by approved agencies or individuals. All reports 
of such inspections shall be in writing and be certified by a responsible officer of 
such approved agency or by the responsible individual. The code official is 
authorized to engage such expert opinion as deemed necessary to report upon 
unusual technical issues that arise. 

104.3.1 Multiple Family Dwellings. Structures with three or more dwelling units 



are subject to periodic inspections to insure compliance with this code as set 
forth in Chapter 82A, Rental and Dwelling Inspections and Enforcement, of the 
City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

104.4 Right of entry. Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the 
provisions of this code, or where the building official has reasonable cause to 
believe that there exists in a structure or upon a premises a condition which is 
contrary to or in violation of this code which makes the structure or premises 
unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the building official is authorized to enter the 
structure or premises at reasonable times to inspect or to perform the duties 
imposed by this code, provided that if such structure or premises be occupied 
that credentials be presented to the occupant and entry requested.  If such 
structure or premises is unoccupied, the building official shall first make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person having charge or control of 
the structure or premises and request entry.  If entry is refused, the building 
official shall have recourse to the remedies provided by law to secure entry. 

104.5 Identification. The code official shall carry proper identification when 
inspecting structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 

104.6 Notices and orders. The code official shall issue all necessary notices or 
orders to ensure compliance with this code. 

104.7 Department records. The code official shall keep official records of all 
business and activities of the department specified in the provisions of this code. 
Such records shall be retained for as long as the building or structure to which 
such records relate remains in existence, unless otherwise provided under law. 

SECTION 105 APPROVAL 

105.1 Modifications. Existing buildings or structures will not be subject to 
adhere to all or some of the Property Maintenance code requirements when the 
code officer determines that unique circumstances makes the strict enforcement 
of this code impractical, provided that such modification does not lessen health, 
life and fire safety requirements. The details of any such modifications shall be 
recorded and entered in the department files. 

105.2 Alternative materials, methods and equipment. The provisions of this 
code are not intended to prevent the installation of any material or to prohibit any 
method of construction not specifically prescribed by this code, as long as any 
such alternative has been approved. An alternative material or method of 
construction shall be approved where the code official finds that the proposed 
design is satisfactory and complies with the intent of the provisions of this code, 
and that the material, method or work offered is, for the purpose intended, at 
least the equivalent of that prescribed in this code in quality, strength, 
effectiveness, fire resistance, durability and safety. 

105.3 Required testing. Whenever there is insufficient evidence of compliance 
with the provisions of this code, or evidence that a material or method does not 



conform to the requirements of this code, or when necessary to substantiate 
requests for alternative materials or methods, the code official shall have the 
authority to require tests in order to verify compliance. Any such required test 
shall be paid for by the person charged with demonstrating compliance, and shall 
not be charged to the City of Troy. 

105.3.1 Test methods. Test methods shall be as specified in this code or by 
other recognized test standards. In the absence of recognized and accepted test 
methods, the code official shall be permitted to approve appropriate testing 
procedures which shall be performed by an approved agency. 

105.3.2 Test reports. Reports of tests shall be retained by the code official for 
the period required for retention of public records. 

105.4 Material and equipment reuse. Materials, equipment and devices shall 
not be reused unless such elements are in good repair or have been 
reconditioned and tested when necessary, placed in good and proper working 
condition and approved. This section is not intended to limit the use of recycled 
materials. 

 

SECTION 106  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

106.1 Unlawful acts and prosecution of violations. It shall be unlawful for a 
person, firm or corporation to be in conflict with or in violation of any of the 
provisions of this code. A violation of this ordinance shall be prosecuted as a 
municipal civil infraction, pursuant to Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of 
the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

106.2 Separate offense and violation penalties. Any person who violates a 
provision of this code, or fails to comply with any of the requirements thereof, 
shall be prosecuted within the limits provided by state or local laws. Each day 
that a violation continues after a notice of violation has been issued can be 
deemed a separate offense.  Penalties shall be assessed as provided in Chapter 
100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

106.3 Abatement of violation The issuance of a Municipal Ordinance Violation 
Notice or a Municipal Ordinance citation or the imposition of penalties pursuant to 
Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances 
shall not preclude the Troy City Attorney or his/her designee from instituting 
appropriate action to restrain, correct or abate a violation or to prevent illegal 
occupancy of a building, structure or premises or to stop an illegal act, conduct, 
business or utilization of the building, structure or premises; or to take any other 
legal action or remedy as provided by law. 

SECTION 107  NOTICES AND CITATIONS 

107.1 Notice or Citation to person responsible. Whenever the code official 
determines that there has been a violation of this code or has grounds to believe 



that a violation has occurred, a Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or a Municipal 
Civil Infraction Citation may be given to the person responsible for the violation in 
the manner prescribed in Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of 
Troy Code of Ordinances. 

107.2 Form and Method of Service.  A Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or 
Municipal Civil Infraction Citation shall be in a form as prescribed in Chapter 100, 
Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances and shall be 
served in a method prescribed in Chapter 100. 

107.3 Transfer of ownership. It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling 
unit or structure who has received a notice of violation or an order from the court 
requiring compliance, to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of 
such dwelling unit or structure to another person until the code violations have 
been corrected or there is compliance with an applicable court order.  In the 
alternative, an owner can furnish the grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee 
with a true copy of any notice of violation issued by the code official or his/ her 
designee or a copy of any order of the court requiring compliance.  The owner 
shall then furnish to the code official a signed and notarized statement from the 
grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of such 
notice of violation or order requiring compliance where such grantee, transferee, 
mortgagee or lessee fully accepts the responsibility, without condition, for making 
the corrections or repairs required by such notice of violation, or court order 
requiring compliance. 

SECTION 108 DANGEROUS BUILDINGS, UNSAFE STRUCTURES, UNSAFE 
EQUIPMENT AND DEMOLITION 

108.1 General.  The procedures set forth in this Section are established to 
secure the health and safety of the occupants of dwellings and structures and the 
general public. The code official shall enforce the provisions of this Section, and 
shall have jurisdiction to establish the inspection and violation procedures to 
implement enforcement. This Section does not preclude enforcement by any 
other governmental agency with jurisdiction over dangerous buildings, unsafe 
structures or unsafe equipment.  This Section may be enforced by joint 
agreement between the City of Troy and any other governmental agency, if 
practical.  

108.1a Unlawful to maintain dangerous building, unsafe structure or unsafe 
equipment.  It is unlawful for any owner to keep or maintain any building, 
structure or equipment or part thereof in a dangerous or unsafe manner, as set 
forth in Section 108.1.1 or 108.1.2. 

108.1b  Owners subject to ordinance. All owners shall be subject to the 
provisions of this ordinance and shall be parties to all proceedings, actions, or 
prosecutions for dangerous buildings, unsafe structures and/or unsafe 
equipment. 

108.1.1 Dangerous or Unsafe Building or structure. A dangerous or unsafe 



building or structure is one that is found to be dangerous to the life, health, 
property or safety of the public or the occupants of the structure. It does not 
provide minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants in the event of fire, or 
because such structure contains unsafe equipment or is so damaged, decayed, 
dilapidated, structurally unsafe or of such faulty construction or unstable 
foundation that partial or complete collapse is possible. A dangerous building or 
unsafe structure is a building or structure which has one or more of the following 
defects or satisfies one or more of the following conditions: 

a. A door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit is not in 
compliance with the approved Troy Fire Code. 

b. A portion of the building or structure is damaged by fire, wind, flood, or 
other cause in such a manner that the structural strength or stability of the 
building is appreciably less than it was before such catastrophe and does 
not meet the minimum requirements of the City of Troy Ordinances. 

c. A portion of the building or structure has settled to such an extent that 
walls or other structural portions have materially less resistance to winds 
than is required for new construction under the City of Troy Ordinances. 

d. The building or structure or part of the building or structure is likely to 
partially or completely collapse, or become detached, or some portion of 
the foundation or underpinning of the building or structure is likely to fall or 
give way because of dilapidation, deterioration, decay, faulty construction, 
or the removal or movement of some portion of the ground necessary for 
support or for other reason. 

e. The building, structure, or part of the building or structure is manifestly 
unsafe for the purpose for which it is intended to be used  

f. The building or structure is vacant, dilapidated and open at any door or 
window leaving the interior of the building exposed to the elements or 
accessible to entrance by trespassers; or otherwise becomes an attractive 
nuisance to children who might play in the building or structure to their 
danger; or becomes a harbor for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons or 
enables persons to use the building or structure in the commission of a 
nuisance or an unlawful or immoral act. 

g. A residence or the adjoining grounds of a building or structure which is 
used or intended to be used for dwelling purposes is unsanitary or unfit for 
human habitation, due to dilapidation, decay, damage, or faulty 
construction or arrangement or otherwise is in a condition that the code 
official determines is likely to cause sickness or disease or is likely to 
injure the health, continued safety or general welfare of people living in or 
near the residence. 

h.  An owner has been previously notified of existing code violation(s), 
according to the provisions of the Troy Code of Ordinances and after said 



notice has left the structure unattended or unoccupied, whether boarded 
up or in an open condition, for a period exceeding thirty (30) days. 

i.  A building or structure is unfit for human occupancy such that the 
building or structure is unsafe, unlawful or because of the degree to which 
the structure is in disrepair or lacks maintenance, it is unsanitary, vermin 
or rat infested, contains filth and contamination, or lacks ventilation, 
illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or other essential equipment 
required by this code, or because the location of the structure constitutes a 
hazard to the occupants of the structure or to the public. 

j. A building or structure found in whole or in part to be occupied by more 
persons than permitted under this code, or a building or structure that was 
erected, altered or occupied contrary to law. 

108.1.1.1 Notice of dangerous and unsafe building, structure or condition. 
When the whole or part of any building or structure is found to be a dangerous or 
unsafe building or structure, the code official shall issue a notice declaring that 
the building or structure is a dangerous or unsafe building or structure.  The 
notice shall itemize the current code violation(s) and dangerous condition(s) and 
specify a time to complete all necessary repairs or demolish of the building or 
structure. 

108.1.1.2 Service of Notice. The notice shall be served on the owner of record 
or the registered agent in the following manner: 

1. Delivered personally; and 

2. Sent by certified or first-class mail addressed to the owner’s or resident 
agent’s last known address. 

If the owner cannot be found, the notice may alternatively be served by 
posting it prominently and securely on the property and publishing it once 
a week for three (3) consecutive weeks in a newspaper authorized to 
provide service by publication. Service of notice under this provision shall 
supersede Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy 
Code of Ordinances. 

108.1.1.3 Contents of Notice. The notice shall state that the owner or his/her 
authorized representative has the right to appeal the determination of the code 
official that the building or structure is dangerous or unsafe to the Troy City 
Council. The notice shall further state that any appeal under this Section shall be 
filed in writing to the code official within ten (10) days of service of the notice.  

108.1.1.4 Waiver of Hearing.  If a written appeal of the dangerous or unsafe 
building or structure determination is not received by the code official within ten 
(10) days of the date of service of the notice, then a public hearing will not be 
necessary.  The matter shall be referred to the City Council for resolution. 

108.1.1.5 Public Hearing.  If the code official receives a written appeal of the 



dangerous or unsafe building or structure determination within the allocated ten 
(10) day period, then a public hearing will be scheduled before the City Council 
as soon as administratively possible.  At the public hearing, the City Council shall 
take the testimony from the code official and/or his/her authorized 
representatives and employees; testimony from the owner of the property and 
any other interested party to determine whether the building or structure 
constitutes a dangerous or unsafe building or structure, as defined by this 
section.  

108.1.1.6 City Council action.  If the City Council determines that the building or 
structure is a dangerous or unsafe building or structure, and that the building or 
structure should be demolished or made habitable, Council shall order either 
demolition within twenty-one (21) days or require that all necessary repairs be 
completed within sixty (60) days after the hearing and/or resolution, unless the 
City Council determines that the conditions justify a longer time period to 
complete the necessary repairs. 

108.1.1.7 Failure to demolish or repair. If the ordered demolition or repairs are 
not completed within the allocated time period, as set forth in the resolution, City 
Council can then authorize any and all necessary action to enforce their order. 
This includes, but is not limited to, causing the building or structure or any part of 
the building or structure to be razed and removed either through an available 
public agency or by contract or arrangement with private persons, and the cost of 
such razing and removal shall be charged against the real property upon which 
the building or structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real property.  
Such lien shall be enforced against the real property as a special assessment. 

108.1.1.8 Recovery of City’s cost. The owner or party in interest according to 
the last local tax assessment records, shall be notified of the cost of the 
necessary repairs or demolition by first class mail at the address shown on the 
local tax assessment records.  If the owner or party in interest fails to pay the 
same within thirty (30) days after mailing by the Assessor of the notice of the 
amount due, the Assessor shall add the same to the next tax roll of the City of 
Troy, and the same shall be collected in the same manner and in all respects as 
provided by law for the collection of taxes by the City of Troy.  The City Council 
shall also have the option of initiating a lawsuit to recover the City’s full cost of 
necessary repairs or demolition.  If the City receives a favorable judgment, then 
the City shall have all rights and remedies under law to collect the amount of the 
judgment from the property owner(s) and/or parties in interest. 

108.1.8.2 Salvage materials. When any building or structure has been ordered 
demolished and removed, the City of Troy shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to sell the salvage and valuable materials at the highest price 
obtainable either through the City or through a contractor hired by the City. The 
net proceeds of such sale, after deducting the expenses of such demolition and 
removal, shall be promptly remitted to the property owner with a report of such 
sale or transaction, including the items of expense and the amounts deducted.  If 
there is no surplus, the report shall so state. 



108.1.1.10 Appeal to Circuit Court.  An owner aggrieved by any dangerous 
building final decision or order of the City Council may appeal the decision or 
order to the Circuit Court within twenty (20) days from the date of the decision. 

108.1.2 Unsafe equipment. Unsafe equipment includes any boiler, heating 
equipment, elevator, moving stairway, electrical wiring or device, flammable 
liquid containers or other equipment on the premises or within the structure which 
is in such disrepair or condition that such equipment is a hazard to life, health, 
property or safety of the public or occupants of the premises or structure. 

108.2 Closing of vacant buildings and structures. If a building or structure is 
vacant and unfit for human habitation and occupancy, and is not in danger of 
structural collapse, the code official is authorized to post a placard of 
condemnation on the premises and order the structure closed up so as not to be 
an attractive nuisance. Upon failure of the owner to close up the premises within 
the time specified in the order, the code official shall cause the premises to be 
closed and secured through any available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement by private persons and the cost thereof shall be charged against 
the real property upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 
such real property and may be collected by any other legal resource. 

108.3 Posting Notice. Whenever the code official has declared a building, 
structure or equipment dangerous or unsafe under the provisions of this section, 
notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the building or structure 
affected by such notice or placed on the unsafe equipment. 

108.4 Placarding. The code official shall post on the premises or on defective 
equipment a placard bearing the words “Dangerous Building” or “Unsafe 
Building” or “Dangerous Structure” or “Unsafe Structure” or “Dangerous 
Equipment” or “Unsafe Equipment” and a statement of the penalties provided for 
occupying the premises, operating the equipment or removing the placard. 

108.4.1 Placard removal. The code official shall remove the placard whenever 
the defect or defects upon which the determination of dangerous or unsafe 
building, structure or equipment and placarding action were based have been 
eliminated. Any person who defaces or removes a placard without the approval 
of the code official shall be subject to the penalties provided by this code. 

108.5 Prohibited occupancy. Any occupied building or structure determined to 
be dangerous or unsafe and placarded by the code official shall be vacated as 
ordered by the code official. Any person who shall occupy a placarded premise 
or shall operate placarded equipment, and any owner or any person responsible 
for the premises who shall let anyone occupy a placarded premise or operate 
placarded equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided by this code. 

SECTION 109  EMERGENCY MEASURES  

109.1  Imminent danger. When, in the opinion of the code official or fire official, 
there is imminent danger of failure or collapse of a building or structure which 



endangers life, or when any structure or part of a structure has fallen and life is 
endangered by the occupation of the structure, or when there is actual or 
potential danger to the building occupants or those in the proximity of any 
building or structure because of explosives, explosive fumes or vapors or the 
presence of toxic fumes, gases or materials, or operation of defective or 
dangerous equipment, the code official or fire official or designee are hereby 
authorized and empowered to order and require the occupants to vacate the 
premises immediately.  At each entrance to such a building or structure, the code 
official or his/her designee shall post a notice declaring the building or structure 
unsafe and prohibiting occupancy.  It shall be unlawful for any person to enter 
such building or structure except for the purpose of securing the building or 
structure, making the required repairs, removing the hazardous condition or of 
demolishing the building or structure. 

109.2  Temporary safeguards. Notwithstanding other provisions of this code, 
whenever the code official determines that there is imminent danger due to an 
unsafe condition, the code official shall order the necessary work to be done to 
render such structure temporarily safe, whether or not the legal procedure herein 
described has been instituted.  This necessary work could be to board up 
openings of the building or structure, or could be any other action that the code 
official deems necessary to address such emergency. 

109.2a  Abating a nuisance. The code official or fire official shall have the 
power to abate any public nuisance from any dangerous building or structure if 
immediate action is required to avoid a distinct hazard to life or property. Since 
this action is for public safety, the action can be taken without preliminary notice 
as is otherwise required in the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

109.3 Closing streets. When necessary for public safety, the code official shall 
temporarily close buildings and structures. The code official can also close or 
order the closure of sidewalks, streets, public ways and places adjacent to 
unsafe structures, and prohibit the same from being utilized. 

109.4 Emergency repairs. For the purposes of this section, the code official 
shall employ the necessary labor and materials to perform the required work as 
expeditiously as possible. 

109.5 Costs of emergency repairs. Costs incurred in the performance of 
emergency work shall initially be assumed by the City of Troy. The other costs of 
abating a public nuisance shall be charged against the owner(s) or occupant(s) 
of the premise.  The owner(s) or occupant(s) shall be sent an invoice for the cost 
of abatement by the City of Troy Building Department.  If payment is not made 
within thirty (30) days, the amount shall be collected in the same manner as set 
forth in Section 108.1.1.8. 

109.6 Hearing. Owners or occupants must comply with orders for emergency 
measures.  However, the owner or occupant can request relief from the order by 
filing a written petition with the Building Code Board of Appeals within twenty (20) 
days of the decision of the code official and in compliance with Section 111, as 



set forth below.  

SECTION 110  Reserved 

SECTION 111  APPEAL TO BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

111.1 Application for appeal. Except for individuals filing an appeal under 
Section 108.1.1.5 – Public Hearing (Dangerous or Unsafe Buildings, Structures 
or Conditions), any person directly affected by a decision of the code official or a 
notice of violation issued under this code shall have the right to appeal to the 
Building Code Board of Appeals, provided that a written application for appeal is 
filed within twenty (20) days after the day the decision or notice of violation was 
served. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the true intent of 
this code been incorrectly interpreted; the provisions of this code do not fully 
apply; or the requirements of this code have been adequately satisfied. 

111.2 Membership of Building Code Board of Appeals. The authority, 
membership, procedures, and compensation of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals is set out in Section 116 of Chapter 79, General Building Regulations, of 
the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

111.3 Commission or Court Review. Any interested person, whether or not a 
previous party of an appeal under this section, shall have the right to appeal the 
decision of the Building Code Board of Appeals. Appeals can be filed with the 
Michigan Construction Code Commission pursuant to MCL 125.1516, or with an 
appropriate court. Appeals shall be filed in the manner and time required by law. 

111.4 Stays of enforcement. For all but emergency cases, appeals of notices 
and orders of the code official shall stay the enforcement of the notice and order 
until the appeal is heard and a final decision rendered by the Building Code 
Board of Appeals, the Michigan Construction Code Commission or an 
appropriate court of law. 

CHAPTER 2  DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 201 GENERAL 

201.1 Scope. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following terms shall, for 
the purposes of this code, have the meanings as set forth in this chapter. 

201.2 Interchangeability. Words stated in the present tense include the future; 
words stated in the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter; the 
singular number includes the plural and the plural includes the singular. 

201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Where terms are not defined in this code 
and are defined in the Michigan Building Code, Troy Fire Code, Troy Zoning 
Ordinance, Michigan Plumbing Code, Michigan Mechanical Code or the Michigan 
Electrical Code, such terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them as stated 
in those codes. 

201.4  Terms not defined. Where terms are not defined through the methods 



authorized by this section, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings 
taken in light of the context. 

201.5 Parts. Whenever the words “dwelling unit,” “dwelling,” “premises,” 
“building,” “rooming house,” “rooming unit” “housekeeping unit” or “story” are 
stated in this code, they shall be construed as though they were followed by the 
words “or any part thereof.” 

SECTION 202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

APPROVED. Approved by the code official. 

BASEMENT. That portion of a building which is partly or completely below grade. 

BATHROOM. A room containing plumbing fixtures including a bathtub or shower. 

BEDROOM. Any room or space used or intended to be used for sleeping 
purposes in either a dwelling or sleeping unit. 

CITY COUNCIL. The Troy City Council. 

CODE OFFICIAL. The code official charged with the administration and 
enforcement of this code is the City of Troy Director of Building and Zoning or 
his/her designee. 

COMMON PROPERTY. Property commonly owned by a number of individuals in 
a condominium development (including site condominium), subdivision or other 
form of development with common areas, such as cul-de-sacs, traffic medians, 
boulevard, islands, parks, playgrounds, detention and retention areas, open 
space or other common areas. 

DEADBOLT. A locking mechanism consisting of a bolt that when moved into the 
locked position cannot be retracted by end pressure on the bolt. 

DWELLING UNIT. A residential structure, or portion thereof, permanently sited 
on a continuous frost-free masonry foundation, containing all required plumbing, 
heating and electrical systems attached to the available public utilities, designed 
for the occupancy of one (1) family with cooking facilities. 

EASEMENT. That portion of land or property reserved for present or future use 
by a person or agency other than the legal fee owner(s) of the property. The 
easement shall be permitted to be for use under, on, or above a said lot or lots. 

EXTERIOR PROPERTY. The open space on the premises and on adjoining 
property under the control of owners or operators of such premises. 

EXTERMINATION. The control and elimination of insects, rats or other pests by 
eliminating their harborage places; by removing or making inaccessible materials 
that serve as their food or water source; by poison, spraying, fumigating, trapping 
or by any other approved pest elimination methods. 

FIRE OFFICIAL. The fire official charged with the administration and 



enforcement of this code is the City of Troy Fire Chief or his/her designee. 

GARBAGE. The animal or vegetable waste resulting from the handling, 
preparation, cooking and consumption of food. 

GUARD. A building component or a system of building components located at or 
near the open sides of elevated walking surfaces that minimizes the possibility of 
a fall from the walking surface to a lower level. 

HABITABLE SPACE. Space in a structure for living, sleeping, eating or cooking. 
Bathrooms, toilet rooms, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces, and similar 
areas are not considered habitable spaces. 

HOUSEKEEPING UNIT. A room or group of rooms forming a single habitable 
space equipped and intended to be used for living, sleeping, cooking and eating 
which does not contain a toilet, lavatory and bathtub or shower within such a unit. 

IMMINENT DANGER. A condition which could cause serious or life-threatening 
injury or death at any time. 

INFESTATION. The presence, within or contiguous to, a structure or premises of 
rats, vermin or other pests. 

INOPERABLE MOTOR VEHICLE. A vehicle which cannot be driven upon the 
public streets. Inoperable vehicles include, but are not limited to those that are 
unlicensed, wrecked, abandoned, in a state of disrepair, or incapable of being 
moved under its own power. 

LABELED. Devices, equipment, appliances, or materials to which has been 
affixed a label, seal, symbol or other identifying mark of a nationally recognized 
testing laboratory, inspection agency or other organization concerned with 
product evaluation that maintains periodic inspection of the production of the 
above-labeled items and by whose label the manufacturer attests to compliance 
with applicable nationally recognized standards. 

LET FOR OCCUPANCY OR LET. To permit, provide or offer possession or 
occupancy of a dwelling, dwelling unit, rooming unit, building, premise or 
structure by a person who is or is not the legal owner of record thereof, pursuant 
to a written or unwritten lease, agreement or license, or pursuant to a recorded or 
unrecorded agreement of contract for the sale of land. 

OCCUPANCY. The purpose for which a building or portion thereof is utilized or 
occupied. 

OCCUPANT. Any individual living or sleeping in a building, or having possession 
of a space within a building. 

OPENABLE AREA. That part of a window, skylight or door which is available for 
unobstructed ventilation and which opens directly to the outdoors. 

OPERATOR. Any owner, occupant, tenant, lessee, landlord, agent or person 



who has charge, care, control or responsibility over a structure, premises or any 
private property which is let or offered for occupancy. 

OWNER. Any person, partnership, association, agent, operator, firm or 
corporation and/or their legal successors and assigns having a legal or equitable 
interest in the property; or recorded in the official records of the state, county or 
municipality as holding title to the property; or otherwise having control or 
responsibility over the property, including the guardian of the estate of any such 
person, and the executor or administrator of the estate of such person if ordered 
to take possession of real property by a court. 

PERSON. An individual, corporation, partnership or any other group acting as a 
unit. 

PREMISE. A lot, plot or parcel of land, easement or public way, including any 
structures thereon, also including such portions of any street dedicated for public 
use that would be attached to the owner’s property upon vacation of the public 
rights to the street that are not otherwise paved or improved.  Premise includes 
easements or rights-of-way owned by the City or the Road Commission of 
Oakland County. 

PRESERVATION OR RESTORATION AREA. All or a portion of a premise 
managed to preserve or restore native Michigan grasses, native trees, shrubs, 
wildflowers, and aquatic plants, including but not limited to: indian grass 
(Sorghastrum nutans), prairie cordgrass (Spartina pectinata), prairie dropseed 
(Sporobolus heterolepis), rice cut grass (Leersia oryzoides), panic grass ( 
Panicum implicatum), switch grass (Panicum virgatum), riverbank wild-rye 
(Elymus riparius), purple love grass or tumble grass (Eragrostis spectabilis), fowl 
manna grass (Glyceria striata), bottlebrush grass (Hystrix patula), big bluestem 
(Andropogon gerardii), long-awned wood grass (Brachyelytrum erectum) and 
blue-joint grass (Calamagrostis canadensis); an oldfield succession of native and 
non-native plants; or a combination of these. 

PUBLIC WAY. Any street, alley or similar parcel of land essentially unobstructed 
from the ground to the sky, which is deeded, dedicated or otherwise permanently 
appropriated to the public for public use. 

ROOMING HOUSE. A building arranged or occupied for residential lodging for 
compensation with or without meals and not occupied as a one- or two-family 
dwelling. 

ROOMING UNIT. Any room or group of rooms forming a single habitable unit 
occupied or intended to be occupied for sleeping or living, but not for cooking 
purposes. 

RUBBISH. Combustible and noncombustible waste materials, except garbage. 
The term includes burnt wood, burnt coal, burnt coke and other combustible 
materials; paper, rags, cartons, boxes, wood, excelsior, rubber, leather, tree 
branches, yard trimmings, tin cans, metals, mineral matter, glass, crockery, dust, 



residue and other similar materials. 

SLEEPING UNIT. A room or space in which people sleep, which can also include 
permanent provisions for living, eating and either sanitation or kitchen facilities, 
but not both. Such rooms and spaces that are part of a dwelling unit are not 
sleeping units. 

STORY. That part of a building, except a mezzanine, included between the 
surface of one floor and the surface of the next floor, or if there is not a floor 
above, then the ceiling next above.  A story thus defined shall not be counted as 
a story when more than fifty (50) percent by cubic content, is below the height 
level of the adjoining ground. 

STRICT LIABILITY OFFENSE. An offense in which the prosecution in a legal 
proceeding is not required to prove criminal intent as a part of its case. It is 
enough to prove that the defendant either did an act which was prohibited, or 
failed to do an act which the defendant was legally required to do. 

STRUCTURE. That which is built or constructed or a portion thereof. 

TENANT. A person, corporation, partnership or group, whether or not the legal 
owner of record, occupying a building or portion thereof as a unit. 

TOILET ROOM. A room containing a water closet or urinal but not a bathtub or 
shower. 

TURF GRASS. Grass commonly used in regularly-cut lawns or play areas, 
including but not limited to: bluegrass, fescue, and ryegrass blends. 

VENTILATION. The natural or mechanical process of supplying conditioned or 
unconditioned air to, or removing such air from, any space. 

WEEDS.  Noxious weeds as defined under Michigan law (MCL 247.62) including, 
but not limited to: 

Canada thistle (Circium arvense), dodders (any species of Cuscuta), 
mustards (charlock, black mustard and Indian mustard, species of 
Brassica or Sinapis), wild carrots (Daucus carota), bindweed (Convolvulus 
arvensis), perennial sowthistle (Sonchus arvensis), hoary alyssum 
(Berteroa incana), ragweed (ambrosia elatior 1.); and poison ivy 
(rhustoxicodendron), and poison sumac (toxicodondron vernix). 

Any other varieties, species or plant growth designated by the City as 
poisonous, injurious and/or regarded as a common nuisance in the 
opinion of the City of Troy Public Works Director or his/her designee. 

WORKMANLIKE. Executed in a skilled manner; e.g., generally plumb, level, 
square, in line, undamaged and without marring adjacent work. 

YARD. An open space on the same lot with a structure. 



CHAPTER 3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 301 GENERAL 

301.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and the responsibilities of persons for maintenance of structures, equipment and 
exterior property. 

301.2 Responsibility. The owner of a premise shall maintain the structures and 
exterior property in compliance with these requirements, except as otherwise 
provided in this code. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit 
another person to occupy a premise that is not in a sanitary and safe condition 
and which does not comply with the requirements of this chapter. Occupants of a 
dwelling unit, rooming unit or housekeeping unit are responsible for keeping in a 
clean, sanitary and safe condition that part of the dwelling unit, rooming unit, 
housekeeping unit or premise which they occupy and control. 

301.3 Vacant structures and land. All vacant structures and premises thereof 
or vacant land shall be maintained in a clean, safe, secure and sanitary condition 
as provided herein so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the 
public health or safety. 

SECTION 302  EXTERIOR PROPERTY AREAS 

302.1 Sanitation. All exterior property and premises shall be maintained in a 
clean, safe and sanitary condition. The occupant shall keep that part of the 
exterior property that is occupied or controlled by that occupant in a clean and 
sanitary condition. 

302.2 Grading and drainage. All premises shall be graded and maintained to 
prevent the erosion of soil and to prevent the accumulation of stagnant water 
thereon, or within any structure located thereon, including but not limited to 
garden pools and swimming pools. 

Exception: Approved retention areas and reservoirs. 

302.3 Sidewalks and driveways. The occupant or property owner is responsible 
to keep all sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar 
areas in a proper state of repair, and maintained free from hazardous conditions. 

302.4  Turf Grass, Weeds and Plant Growth. 

302.4.1  Weeds and Grass.  The presence of turf grass and/or weeds exceeding 
ten (10) inches in height on any premises in the City is hereby declared to be a 
nuisance.  The owner, occupant or any person having control or management of 
any premises is required to cut turf grass and weeds on the premises to a height 
that is ten (10) inches or less. 

Exceptions: 



1) Preservation or Restoration Areas are allowed to exceed ten (10) 
inches in height if those areas do not contain any turf grass and/or 
weeds. 

2) Areas declared to be wetland or preservation areas by the Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources or the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality are allowed to exceed ten (10) inches in 
height. 

3) Cultivated flowers and gardens or fields devoted to growing any 
small grain crop such as wheat, corn, oats, barley or rye. 

302.4.2 Duty of Owner to abate.  It shall be the duty of the owner, occupant or 
any person having control or management of any premises within the City upon 
which weeds are found growing or standing, to cut and destroy or cause to be cut 
and destroyed all such weeds in such a manner as to prevent such weeds from 
perpetuating themselves or going to seed. 

302.4.3 Failure to abate.  Upon failure of the owner, occupant or any person 
having control or management of any premises to cut turf grass and/or weeds 
and to take action to prevent such weeds from perpetuating themselves; the 
owner, occupant or any person having control or management of the premises 
shall be subject to prosecution as set forth in Chapter 100, Municipal Civil 
Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. Additionally the City may 
enter onto said premises as many times as necessary between May 1st to 
November 1st to cut turf grass and/or weeds, treat weeds or otherwise abate the 
nuisance. 

302.4.4 Published Notice. It shall be the duty of the Public Works Director or 
his/her designee to give general notice to every owner, occupant, or person 
having control or management of any premises of the cutting and weed 
prevention requirements of this section.  Such duty shall be satisfied if publication 
is made of the cutting and weed prevention requirements in the newspaper of 
record in the City during the month of March notifying the owners, occupants or 
persons having control or management of any premises that failure to cut turf 
grass or weeds or failure to prevent the perpetuation of weeds as required under 
this section during the period of May 1 to November 1 of each year, may result in 
the issuance of a Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or Citation under Chapter 100, 
Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances and/or the 
entry on the premises by the City to cut said turf grass and/or weeds or to 
prevent the perpetuation of weeds.  The general notice shall also inform owners, 
occupants and persons having control or management of any premises that if the 
City is required to enter onto the premises to cut turf grass and/or weeds or to 
take an action to prevent the perpetuation of weeds, the property owner 
designated on the City assessment or tax rolls shall be assessed the cost, 
payable to the City, for each required abatement. The City may enter onto said 
premises as many times as necessary between May 1st to November 1st to cut 
turf grass and/or weeds or treat weeds and charge the cost to the property owner 



for each such cutting or treatment. The City has the discretion to send via first 
class mail a ten (10) day notice to the last property owner of record and/or to 
attach a notice to the premises stating that the City intends to cut said turf grass 
and/or weeds or treat weeds, and if the turf grass and/or weeds are not cut or the 
weeds are not treated within ten (10) days from the date of the notice, the City 
may proceed to cut the turf grasses and/or weeds or treat the weeds. Failure to 
send such a warning notice does not in any way prevent the City from entering 
on the premises to cut turf grass and/or weeds or to treat weeds, as long as a 
general notice has been published, as set out herein. 

302.4.5 Recovery of Cost by City. The Department of Public Works Director or 
his/her designee is hereby authorized and directed to keep accurate accounts of 
all reasonable expenses incurred by the City to abate a nuisance.  The Public 
Works Director and/or his designee, is hereby authorized to include in its cost of 
recovery the following: wages, overtime wages, fringe benefits, cost of 
equipment, supplies, materials, and a ten (10) percent administration charge to 
cover the expense of administering the abatement work that is performed. The 
Public Works Director or his/her designee shall prepare an invoice of total 
charges for each premise and forward those invoices to the City Treasurer. 
Within ten (10) days after receipt of an invoice, the City Treasurer shall forward to 
the owner on the last local assessment or tax roll an invoice of the total charges 
assessed against each premises.  Thirty (30) days from the date each statement 
was mailed, payment shall be made.  If the invoice is not paid within thirty (30) 
days, the total amount charged shall become an assessment against the land 
and a lien against the property. 

302.4.6 Common Property.  If property is held as common property, such as, 
but not limited to: common areas of a condominium development (including a site 
condominium), subdivision, cul-de-sac, traffic medians, boulevards, islands, 
parks, playgrounds, detention and retention areas, open space or any other 
common area or other form of development for which the City is unable to 
determine the occupant or person having control or management over a common 
area with assessment or tax records, the City may enter onto the common 
property to abate any nuisance of a type set out in this Chapter. The costs 
incurred by the City for the nuisance abatement shall be pro-rated among each 
individual property owner in the condominium development, subdivision or other 
individual owner in a development with common property. The City Treasurer 
shall send a statement to each owner for their specific pro-rated portion. If the 
invoice is not timely paid, the total amount charged shall become an assessment 
against that particular property for that pro-rated share. 

302.5 Rodent harborage. All structures and exterior property shall be kept free 
from rodent harborage and infestation. Where rodents are found, they shall be 
promptly exterminated by approved processes which will not be injurious to 
human health. After extermination, proper precautions shall be taken to eliminate 
rodent harborage and prevent re-infestation. 

302.6 Exhaust vents. Pipes, ducts, conductors, fans or blowers shall not 



discharge gases, steam, vapor, hot air, grease, smoke, odors or other gaseous 
or particulate wastes directly upon abutting or adjacent public or private property 
or that of another tenant. 

302.7 Accessory structures. All accessory structures, including detached 
garages, fences and walls, shall be maintained structurally sound and in good 
repair. 

302.8 Motor vehicles. No person shall permit the accumulation of one or more 
inoperable vehicles outside of a completely enclosed building for a period of 
more than fourteen (14) days. Inoperable vehicles are those that are not in 
operating condition and eligible for use in accordance with the requirements of 
the Michigan Vehicle Code, being MCL 257.1 through 257.925.  These minimum 
conditions include, but are not limited to: an engine that runs, four wheels and 
four pneumatic tires capable of holding air, working battery, and current license 
plates. This prohibition applies to owners, tenants, managers of private property, 
last registered owners of motor vehicles or transferees on a bill of sale covering a 
vehicle. 

Exception:  Any person enumerated in this section who, under special 
conditions of hardship, or for valid reasons such as the preservation of a 
historic or classic vehicle, may request and extension of the fourteen (14) 
day limitation above described by filing a timely request with Director of 
Building and Zoning. The Director of Building and Zoning may, after 
review of all of the circumstances, grant a reasonable extension of time for 
compliance. 

302.9 Defacement of property. No person shall willfully or wantonly damage, 
mutilate or deface any exterior surface of any structure or building on any private 
or public property by placing thereon any marking, carving or graffiti. Owners of 
property bear the responsibility to remove or obliterate markings, carvings or 
graffiti from their property. 

SECTION 303  SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS AND HOT TUBS  

303.1 Swimming pools. Swimming pools shall be maintained in a clean and 
sanitary condition, and in good repair. 

303.2 Enclosures. Private swimming pools, hot tubs and spas capable of 
holding water more than 24 inches in depth shall be completely surrounded by a 
fence or barrier at least 48 inches in height above the finished ground level 
measured on the side of the barrier away from the pool. Gates and doors in such 
barriers shall be self-closing and self-latching. Where the self-latching device is 
less than 54 inches above the bottom of the gate, the release mechanism shall 
be located on the pool side of the gate. Self-closing and self latching gates shall 
be maintained such that the gate will positively close and latch when released 
from an open position of 6 inches from the gatepost. No existing pool enclosure 
shall be removed, replaced or changed in a manner that reduces its 
effectiveness as a safety barrier. 



Exception: Spas or hot tubs with a safety cover that complies with ASTM 
F 1346 shall be exempt from the provisions of this section. 

SECTION 304  EXTERIOR STRUCTURE  

304.1 General. The exterior of a structure shall be maintained in good repair, 
structurally sound and sanitary so as not to pose a threat to the public health, 
safety or welfare. 

304.2 Protective treatment. All exterior surfaces, including but not limited to, 
doors, door and window frames, cornices, porches, trim, balconies, decks and 
fences shall be maintained in good condition. Exterior wood surfaces, other than 
decay resistant woods, shall be protected from the elements and decay by 
painting or other protective covering or treatment. Peeling, flaking and chipped 
paint shall be eliminated and surfaces repainted. All siding and masonry joints as 
well as those between the building envelope and the perimeter of windows, 
doors, and skylights shall be maintained weather resistant and water tight. All 
metal surfaces subject to rust or corrosion shall be coated to inhibit such rust and 
corrosion and all surfaces with rust or corrosion shall be stabilized and coated to 
inhibit future rust and corrosion. Oxidation stains shall be removed from exterior 
surfaces. Surfaces designed for stabilization by oxidation are exempt from this 
requirement. 

304.3 Premise identification. Buildings shall have approved address numbers 
as required by Chapter 2 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

304.4 Structural members. All structural members shall be maintained free from 
deterioration, and shall be capable of safely supporting the imposed dead and 
live loads. 

304.5 Foundation walls. All foundation walls shall be maintained plumb and free 
from open cracks and breaks and shall be kept in such condition so as to prevent 
the entry of rodents and other pests. 

304.6 Exterior walls. All exterior walls shall be free from holes, breaks, and 
loose or rotting materials; and maintained weatherproof and properly surface 
coated where required to prevent deterioration. 

304.7 Roofs and drainage. The roof and flashing shall be sound, tight and not 
have defects that admit rain. Roof drainage shall be adequate to prevent 
dampness or deterioration in the walls or interior portion of the structure. Roof 
drains, gutters and downspouts shall be maintained in good repair and free from 
obstructions. Roof water shall not be discharged in a manner that creates a 
public nuisance. 

304.8 Decorative features. All cornices, belt courses, corbels, terra cotta trim, 
wall facings and similar decorative features shall be maintained in good repair 
with proper anchorage and in a safe condition. 

304.9 Overhang extensions. All overhang extensions including, but not limited 



to canopies, marquees, signs, metal awnings, fire escapes, standpipes and 
exhaust ducts shall be maintained in good repair and be properly anchored so as 
to be kept in a sound condition. When required, all exposed surfaces of metal or 
wood shall be protected from the elements and against decay or rust by periodic 
application of weather-coating materials, such as paint or similar surface 
treatment. 

304.10 Stairways, decks, porches and balconies. Every exterior stairway, 
deck, porch and balcony, and all appurtenances attached thereto, shall be 
maintained structurally sound, in good repair, with proper anchorage and capable 
of supporting the imposed loads. 

304.11 Chimneys and towers. All chimneys, cooling towers, smoke stacks, and 
similar appurtenances shall be maintained structurally safe and sound, and in 
good repair. All exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be protected from the 
elements and against decay or rust by periodic application of weather coating 
materials, such as paint or similar surface treatment. 

304.12 Handrails and guards. Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in 
good condition. 

304.13 Window, skylight and door frames. Every window, skylight, door and 
frame shall be kept in sound condition, good repair and weather tight. 

304.13.1 Glazing. All glazing materials shall be maintained free from cracks and 
holes. 

304.13.2 Openable windows. Every window, other than a fixed window, shall be 
easily openable and capable of being held in position by window hardware. 

304.14 Insect screens. During the period from April 1 to November 1, every 
door, window and other outside opening required for ventilation of habitable 
rooms, food preparation areas, food service areas or any areas where products 
to be included or utilized in food for human consumption are processed, 
manufactured, packaged or stored shall be supplied with approved tightly fitting 
screens of not less than 16 mesh per inch, and every screen door used for insect 
control shall have a self-closing device in good working condition. 

Exception: Screens shall not be required where other approved means 
are employed, such as air curtains or insect repellent fans. 

304.15 Doors. All exterior doors, door assemblies and hardware shall be 
maintained in good condition. Locks at all entrances to dwelling units and 
sleeping units shall tightly secure the door. Locks on means of egress doors shall 
be in accordance with Section 702.3. 

304.16 Basement hatchways. Every basement hatchway shall be maintained to 
prevent the entrance of rodents, rain and surface drainage water. 



304.17 Guards for basement windows. Every basement window that is 
openable shall be supplied with rodent shields, storm windows or other approved 
protection against the entry of rodents. 

304.18 Building security. Doors, windows or hatchways for dwelling units, room 
units or housekeeping units shall be provided with devices designed to provide 
security for the occupants and property within. 

304.18.1 Doors. Doors providing access to a dwelling unit, rooming unit or 
housekeeping unit that is rented, leased or let shall be equipped with a deadbolt 
lock designed to be readily openable from the side from which egress is to be 
made without the need for keys, special knowledge or effort and shall have a lock 
throw of not less than 1 inch. Such deadbolt locks shall be installed according to 
the manufacturer’s specifications and maintained in good working order. For the 
purpose of this section, a sliding bolt shall not be considered an acceptable 
deadbolt lock. 

304.18.2 Windows. Operable windows located in whole or in part within 6 feet 
above ground level or a walking surface below that provide access to a dwelling 
unit, rooming unit or housekeeping unit that is rented, leased or let shall be 
equipped with a window sash locking device. 

304.18.3 Basement hatchways. Basement hatchways that provide access to a 
dwelling unit, rooming unit or housekeeping unit that is rented, leased or let shall 
be equipped with devices that secure the units from unauthorized entry. 

SECTION 305  INTERIOR STRUCTURE  

305.1 General. The interior of a structure and equipment therein shall be 
maintained in good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. 
Occupants shall keep that part of the structure which they occupy or control in a 
clean and sanitary condition. Every owner of a structure containing a rooming 
house, housekeeping units, a hotel, a dormitory, two or more dwelling units or 
two or more nonresidential occupancies, shall maintain, in a clean and sanitary 
condition, the shared or public areas of the structure and exterior property. 

305.2 Structural members. All structural members shall be maintained 
structurally sound, and be capable of supporting the imposed loads. 

305.3 Interior surfaces. All interior surfaces, including windows and doors, shall 
be maintained in good, clean and sanitary condition. Peeling, chipping, flaking or 
abraded paint shall be repaired, removed or covered. Cracked or loose plaster, 
decayed wood and other defective surface conditions shall be corrected. 

305.4 Stairs and walking surfaces. Every stair, ramp, landing, balcony, porch, 
deck or other walking surface shall be maintained in sound condition and good 
repair. 

305.5 Handrails and guards. Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in 



good condition. 

305.6 Interior doors. Every interior door shall fit reasonably well within its frame 
and shall be capable of being opened and closed by being properly and securely 
attached to jambs, headers or tracks as intended by the manufacturer of the 
attachment hardware. 

SECTION 306  HANDRAILS AND GUARDRAILS 

306.1 General. Every exterior and interior flight of stairs having more than four 
risers shall have a handrail on one side of the stair and every open portion of a 
stair, landing, balcony, porch, deck, ramp or other walking surface which is more 
than 30 inches  above the floor or grade below shall have guards. Handrails shall 
not be less than 30 inches high or more than 42 inches high measured vertically 
above the nosing of the tread or above the finished floor of the landing or walking 
surfaces. Guards shall not be less than 30 inches high above the floor of the 
landing, balcony, porch, deck, or ramp or other walking surface. 

Exception: Guards shall not be required where exempted by the adopted 
building code. 

SECTION 307  RUBBISH AND GARBAGE 

307.1 Accumulation of rubbish or garbage. All exterior property and premises, 
and the interior of every structure shall be free from any accumulation of rubbish 
or garbage. 

Exception:  Fallen trees and branches from trees on the premise in a 
preservation or restoration area. 

307.2 Disposal of rubbish. Every occupant of a structure shall dispose of all 
rubbish in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such rubbish in approved 
containers. 

307.2.1 Rubbish storage facilities. The owner of every occupied premise shall 
supply approved covered containers for rubbish, and the owner of the premises 
shall be responsible for the removal of rubbish. 

307.2.2 Refrigerators. Refrigerators and similar equipment not in operation shall 
not be discarded, abandoned or stored on premises without first removing the 
doors. 

307.3 Disposal of garbage. Every occupant of a building shall dispose of 
garbage in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such garbage in an approved 
garbage disposal facility or approved garbage containers. 

307.3.1 Garbage facilities. The owner of every dwelling shall supply one of the 
following: an approved mechanical food waste grinder in each dwelling unit; or an 
approved, leak-proof, covered, outside garbage container. 

307.3.2 Containers. The operator of every establishment producing garbage 



shall provide, and at all times cause to be utilized, approved leak-proof 
containers with close-fitting covers for the storage of garbage until it is removed 
from the premise for disposal. 

307.4  Rubbish removal after eviction notice for landlord/tenant or 
foreclosure. If a tenant or occupant has personal property on the premises at 
the time of an eviction or involuntary removal the owner or operator shall place a 
large movable container or receptacle on the private property which holds at 
least 6 cubic yards and can be mechanically emptied for disposal purposes of the 
tenant or occupant’s personal property, such as but not limited to: household 
furniture, appliances, clothing, rugs, window treatments, books and paper 
products and personal goods. At no time shall any part of the container be placed 
on any public area adjacent to the private property. 

307.4.1 Type of container. Upon eviction or involuntary the tenant’s or 
occupant’s personal property shall be placed and disposed of only in the large 
movable container as referenced above. The container shall be of the type which 
will allow access from its side as opposed to access solely through the top of the 
container. 

307.4.2 Removal of container. The movable container and its contents shall be 
removed from the real property within forty-eight (48) hours of placement. 

307.4.3  Blight violation. In the event that a moveable container is not used for 
disposal of the tenant’s or occupant’s personal property and that property is 
improperly placed elsewhere on the property, or the container is not properly 
removed, then the owner, operator or other person in violation of this Section is 
subject to immediate issuance of a Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or a 
Municipal Civil Infraction Citation pursuant to Chapter 100, Municipal Civil 
Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

307.4.4 Cost Recovery. In addition to any other penalties set out in the Troy 
Code of Ordinances, if the City of Troy incurs any costs to remove solid waste 
from property resulting from an eviction or foreclosure proceeding, the owner and 
the operator shall be billed by invoice sent by first class mail for the cost of the 
removal, including but not limited to:  the cost of labor for removal of the solid 
waste and the cost of the use or rental of the container.  If the owner or operator 
fails to pay the same within thirty (30) days after the invoice is mailed, the City 
shall add the amount to the next tax roll of the City of Troy, and it shall be 
collected in the same manner as provided by law for the collection of taxes by the 
City of Troy.  The City Council shall also have the option of initiating a lawsuit to 
recover the City’s full cost of necessary expenses.  If the City receives a 
favorable judgment, then the judgment may be assessed against all of the assets 
of the owner of the property, both real and personal, not just the real property 
where the removal of solid waste occurred. 

SECTION 308 EXTERMINATION 

308.1 Infestation. All structures shall be kept free from rodent or pest infestation. 



All structures in which rodents or pests are found shall be promptly exterminated 
by approved processes that will not be injurious to human health. After 
extermination, proper precautions shall be taken to prevent re-infestation. 

308.2 Responsibility. The owner, occupant, or any person having control of any 
structure or premises shall be responsible for extermination. 

Exception: Where the infestations are caused by defects in the structure, 
the owner shall be responsible for extermination. 

CHAPTER 4  LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS 

SECTION 401  GENERAL 

401.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for light, ventilation and space for occupying a structure. 

401.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
light, ventilation and space conditions in compliance with these requirements. A 
person shall not occupy as owner-occupant, or permit another person to occupy, 
any premises that do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

401.3 Alternative devices. In lieu of the means for natural light and ventilation 
herein prescribed, artificial light or mechanical ventilation complying with the 
Michigan Building Code shall be permitted. 

SECTION 402  LIGHT 

402.1 Habitable spaces. Every habitable space shall have at least one window 
of approved size facing directly to the outdoors or to a court. The minimum total 
glazed area for every habitable space shall be 8 percent of the floor area of such 
room. Wherever walls or other portions of a structure face a window of any room 
and such obstructions are located less than 3 feet from the window and extend to 
a level above that of the ceiling of the room, such window shall not be deemed to 
face directly to the outdoors nor to a court and shall not be included as 
contributing to the required minimum total window area for the room. 

Exception: Where natural light for rooms or spaces without exterior 
glazing areas is provided through an adjoining room, the unobstructed 
opening to the adjoining room shall be at least 8 percent of the floor area 
of the interior room or space, but not less than 25 square feet. The exterior 
glazing area shall be based on the total floor area being served. 

402.2 Common halls and stairways. Every common hall and stairway in 
residential occupancies, other than in one and two family dwellings, shall be 
lighted at all times with at least a 60-watt standard incandescent light bulb for 
each 200 square feet of floor area or equivalent illumination, provided that the 
spacing between lights shall not be greater than 30 feet. In other than residential 
occupancies, means of egress, including exterior means of egress stairways, 
shall be illuminated at all times the building space served by the means of egress 



is occupied with a minimum of 1 foot-candle at floors, landings and treads. 

402.3 Other spaces. All other spaces shall be provided with natural or artificial 
light sufficient to permit the maintenance of sanitary conditions, and the safe 
occupancy of the space and utilization of the appliances, equipment and fixtures. 

SECTION 403  VENTILATION  

403.1 Habitable spaces. Every habitable space shall have at least one openable 
window. The total openable area of the window in every room shall be equal to at 
least 45 percent of the minimum glazed area required in Section 402.1. 

Exception: Where rooms and spaces without openings to the outdoors 
are ventilated through an adjoining room, the unobstructed opening to the 
adjoining room shall be at least 8 percent of the floor area of the interior 
room or space, but not less than 25 square feet. The ventilation openings 
to the outdoors shall be based on a total floor area being ventilated. 

403.2 Bathrooms and toilet rooms. Every bathroom and toilet room shall 
comply with the ventilation requirements for habitable spaces as required by 
Section 403.1, except that a window shall not be required in such spaces 
equipped with a mechanical ventilation system. Air exhausted by a mechanical 
ventilation system from a bathroom or toilet room shall discharge to the outdoors 
and shall not be re-circulated. 

403.3 Cooking facilities. Unless approved through the certificate of occupancy, 
cooking shall not be permitted in any rooming unit or dormitory unit, and a 
cooking facility or appliance shall not be permitted to be present in the rooming 
unit or dormitory unit. 

Exceptions: 

1. Where specifically approved in writing by the code official. 

2. Devices such as coffee pots, hot plates, toaster ovens and microwave 
ovens shall not be considered cooking appliances. 

403.4 Process ventilation. Where injurious, toxic, irritating or noxious fumes, 
gases, dusts or mists are generated, a local exhaust ventilation system shall be 
provided to remove the contaminating agent at the source. Air shall be exhausted 
to the exterior and not be re-circulated to any space. 

403.5 Clothes dryer exhaust. Clothes dryer exhaust systems shall be 
independent of all other systems and shall be exhausted in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. 

SECTION 404  OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS  

404.1 Privacy. Dwelling units, hotel units, housekeeping units, rooming units and 
dormitory units shall be arranged to provide privacy and be separate from other 
adjoining spaces. 



404.2 Minimum room widths. A habitable room, other than a kitchen, shall not 
be less than 7 feet in any plan dimension. Kitchens shall have a clear 
passageway of not less than 3 feet between counter fronts and appliances or 
counter fronts and walls. 

404.3 Minimum ceiling heights. Habitable spaces, hallways, corridors, laundry 
areas, bathrooms, toilet rooms and habitable basement areas shall have a clear 
ceiling height of not less than 7 feet. 

Exceptions: 

1. In one and two family dwellings, beams or girders spaced not less than 
4 feet on center and projecting not more than 6 inches below the required 
ceiling height. 

2. Basement rooms in one and two-family dwellings occupied exclusively 
for laundry, study or recreation purposes, having a ceiling height of not 
less than 6 feet 8 inches with not less than 6 feet 4 inches of clear height 
under beams, girders, ducts and similar obstructions. 

3. Rooms occupied exclusively for sleeping, study or similar purposes and 
having a sloped ceiling over all or part of the room, with a clear ceiling 
height of at least 7 feet over not less than one-third of the required 
minimum floor area. In calculating the floor area of such rooms, only those 
portions of the floor area with a clear ceiling height of 5 feet or more shall 
be included. 

404.4 Bedroom and living room requirements. Every bedroom and living room 
shall comply with the requirements of Sections 404.4.1 through 404.4.5. 

404.4.1 Room area. Every living room shall contain at least 120 square feet and 
every bedroom shall contain at least 70 square feet. 

404.4.2 Access from bedrooms. Bedrooms shall not constitute the only means 
of access to other bedrooms or habitable spaces and shall not serve as the only 
means of egress from other habitable spaces. 

Exception: Units that contain fewer than two bedrooms. 

404.4.3 Water closet accessibility. Every bedroom shall have access to at least 
one water closet and one lavatory without passing through another bedroom. 
Every bedroom in a dwelling unit shall have access to at least one water closet 
and lavatory located in the same story as the bedroom or an adjacent story. 

404.4.4 Prohibited occupancy. Kitchens and non-habitable spaces shall not be 
used for sleeping purposes. 

404.4.5 Other requirements. Bedrooms shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of this code including, but not limited to, the light, ventilation, room 
area, ceiling height and room width requirements of this chapter; the plumbing 
facilities and water-heating facilities requirements of Chapter 5; the heating 



facilities and electrical receptacle requirements of Chapter 6; and the smoke 
detector and emergency escape requirements of Chapter 7. 

404.5 Overcrowding. The number of persons occupying a dwelling unit shall not 
create conditions that, in the opinion of the code official, endanger the life, health, 
safety or welfare of the occupants. 

404.6 Efficiency unit. Nothing in this section shall prohibit an efficiency living 
unit from meeting the following requirements: 

1. A unit occupied by not more than two occupants shall have a clear floor 
area of not less than 220 square feet. A unit occupied by three occupants 
shall have a clear floor area of not less than 320 square feet. These 
required areas shall be exclusive of the areas required by Items 2 and 3. 

2. The unit shall be provided with a kitchen sink, cooking appliance and 
refrigeration facilities, each having a clear working space of not less than 
30 inches in front. Light and ventilation conforming to this code shall be 
provided. 

3. The unit shall be provided with a separate bathroom containing a water 
closet, lavatory and bathtub or shower. 

4. The maximum number of occupants shall be three. 

404.7 Food preparation. All spaces to be occupied for food preparation 
purposes shall contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare and serve 
foods in a sanitary manner. There shall be adequate facilities and services for the 
sanitary disposal of food wastes and refuse, including facilities for temporary 
storage. 

CHAPTER 5  PLUMBING FACILITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 501  GENERAL 

501.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum plumbing 
systems, facilities and plumbing fixtures to be provided. 

501.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
such plumbing facilities and plumbing fixtures in compliance with these 
requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another 
person to occupy any structure or premises which does not comply with the 
requirements of this chapter. 

SECTION 502  REQUIRED FACILITIES 

502.1 Dwelling units. Every dwelling unit shall contain its own bathtub or 
shower, lavatory, water closet and kitchen sink which shall be maintained in a 
sanitary, safe working condition. The lavatory shall be placed in the same room 
as the water closet or located in close proximity to the door leading directly into 
the room in which such water closet is located. A kitchen sink shall not be used 



as a substitute for the required lavatory. 

502.2 Rooming houses. At least one water closet, lavatory and bathtub or 
shower shall be supplied for every four rooming units. 

502.3 Hotels. Where private water closets, lavatories and baths are not 
provided, one water closet, one lavatory and one bathtub or shower having 
access from a public hallway shall be provided for each ten occupants. 

502.4 Employees’ facilities. A minimum of one water closet, one lavatory and 
one drinking facility shall be available to employees. 

502.4.1 Drinking facilities. Drinking facilities shall be a drinking fountain, water 
cooler, bottled water cooler or clean cups next to a sink or water dispenser. 
Drinking facilities shall not be located in toilet rooms or bathrooms. 

SECTION 503  TOILET ROOMS 

503.1 Privacy. Toilet rooms and bathrooms shall provide privacy and shall not 
constitute the only passageway to a hall or other space, or to the exterior. In 
multiple dwellings, a door and interior locking device shall be provided for all 
common or shared bathrooms and toilet rooms. 

503.2 Location. Toilet rooms and bathrooms serving hotel units, rooming units 
or dormitory units or housekeeping units, shall have access by traversing not 
more than one flight of stairs and shall have access from a common hall or 
passageway. 

503.3 Location of employee toilet facilities. Toilet facilities shall have access 
from within the employees’ working area. The required toilet facilities shall be 
located not more than one story above or below the employees’ working area 
and the path of travel to such facilities shall not exceed a distance of 500 feet. 
Employee facilities shall either be separate facilities or combined employee and 
public facilities. 

Exception: Facilities that are required for employees in storage structures 
or kiosks, which are located in adjacent structures under the same 
ownership, lease or control, shall not exceed a travel distance of 500 feet 
from the employees’ regular working area to the facilities. 

503.4 Floor surface. In other than dwelling units, every toilet room floor shall be 
maintained to be a smooth, hard, nonabsorbent surface to permit such floor to be 
easily kept in a clean and sanitary condition. 

 

SECTION 504  PLUMBING SYSTEMS AND FIXTURES 

504.1 General. All plumbing fixtures shall be properly installed and maintained in 
working order, and shall be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects and be 
capable of performing the function for which such plumbing fixtures are designed. 



All plumbing fixtures shall be maintained in a safe, sanitary and functional 
condition. 

504.2 Fixture clearances. Plumbing fixtures shall have adequate clearances for 
usage and cleaning. 

504.3 Plumbing system hazards. Where it is found that a plumbing system in a 
structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants or the structure by reason of 
inadequate service, inadequate venting, cross connection, back siphonage, 
improper installation, deterioration or damage or for similar reasons, the code 
official shall require the defects to be corrected to eliminate the hazard. 

SECTION 505  WATER SYSTEM 

505.1 General. Every sink, lavatory, bathtub or shower, drinking fountain, water 
closet or other plumbing fixture shall be properly connected to either a public 
water system or to an approved private water system. All kitchen sinks, 
lavatories, laundry facilities, bathtubs and showers shall be supplied with hot or 
tempered and cold running water in accordance with the Michigan Plumbing 
Code. 

505.2 Contamination. The water supply shall be maintained free from 
contamination, and all water inlets for plumbing fixtures shall be located above 
the flood-level rim of the fixture. Shampoo basin faucets, janitor sink faucets and 
other hose bibs or faucets to which hoses are attached and left in vacuum 
breaker or an approved permanently attached hose connection vacuum breaker. 

505.3 Supply. The water supply system shall be installed and maintained to 
provide a supply of water to plumbing fixtures, devices and appurtenances in 
sufficient volume and at pressures adequate to enable the fixtures to function 
properly, safely, and free from defects and leaks. 

505.4 Water heating facilities. Water heating facilities shall be properly 
installed, maintained and capable of providing an adequate amount of water to 
be drawn at every required sink, lavatory, bathtub, shower and laundry facility at 
a temperature of not less than 110°F.  A gas-burning water heater shall not be 
located in any bathroom, toilet room, bedroom or other occupied room normally 
kept closed, unless adequate combustion air is provided. An approved 
combination temperature and pressure-relief valve and relief valve discharge 
pipe shall be properly installed and maintained on water heaters. 

SECTION 506  SANITARY DRAINAGE SYSTEM 

506.1 General. All plumbing fixtures shall be properly connected to either a 
public sewer system or to an approved private sewage disposal system. 

506.2 Maintenance. Every plumbing stack, vent, waste and sewer line shall 
function properly and be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects. 

SECTION 507  STORM DRAINAGE 



507.1 General. Drainage of roofs and paved areas, yards and courts, sub soil 
collection systems, and other open areas on the premises shall not be 
discharged in a manner that creates a public nuisance. 

CHAPTER 6  MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 601  GENERAL 

601.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum 
mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment to be provided. 

601.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment in compliance with these 
requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another 
person to occupy any premises which does not comply with the requirements of 
this chapter. 

SECTION 602  HEATING FACILITIES 

602.1 Facilities required. Heating facilities shall be provided in structures as 
required by this section. 

602.2 Residential occupancies. Dwellings shall be provided with heating 
facilities capable of maintaining a room temperature of 68°F in all habitable 
rooms, bathrooms and toilet rooms based on the winter outdoor design 
temperature for the locality indicated in Appendix D of the Michigan Plumbing 
Code. Cooking appliances shall not be used to provide space heating to meet the 
requirements of this section. 

602.3 Heat supply. Every owner and operator of any building who rents, leases 
or lets one or more dwelling units or sleeping units on terms, either expressed or 
implied, to furnish heat to the occupants thereof shall supply heat during the 
period from September 1 to June 1 to maintain a temperature of not less than 
68°F in all habitable rooms, bathrooms, and toilet rooms. 

Exception: 

When the outdoor temperature is below the winter outdoor design 
temperature for the locality, maintenance of the minimum room 
temperature shall not be required provided that the heating system is 
operating at its full design capacity. The winter outdoor design 
temperature for the locality shall be as indicated in Appendix D of the 
Michigan Plumbing Code. 

602.4 Occupiable work spaces. Indoor occupiable work spaces shall be 
supplied with heat during the period from September 1 to June 1 to maintain a 
temperature of not less than 65°F during the period the spaces are occupied. 

Exceptions: 

1. Processing, storage and operation areas that require cooling or special 



temperature conditions. 

2. Areas in which persons are primarily engaged in vigorous physical 
activities. 

602.5 Room temperature measurement. The required room temperatures shall 
be measured 3 feet above the floor near the center of the room and 2 feet inward 
from the center of each exterior wall. 

SECTION 603  MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT 

603.1 Mechanical appliances. All mechanical appliances, fireplaces, solid fuel-
burning appliances, cooking appliances and water heating appliances shall be 
properly installed and maintained in a safe working condition, and shall be 
capable of performing the intended function. 

603.2 Removal of combustion products. All fuel-burning equipment and 
appliances shall be connected to an approved chimney or vent. 

Exception: Fuel-burning equipment and appliances which are labeled for 
unvented operation. 

603.3 Clearances. All required clearances to combustible materials shall be 
maintained. 

603.4 Safety controls. All safety controls for fuel-burning equipment shall be 
maintained in effective operation. 

603.5 Combustion air. A supply of air for complete combustion of the fuel and 
for ventilation of the space containing the fuel-burning equipment shall be 
provided for the fuel-burning equipment. 

603.6 Energy conservation devices. Devices intended to reduce fuel 
consumption by attachment to a fuel-burning appliance, to the fuel supply line 
thereto, or to the vent outlet or vent piping there from, shall not be installed 
unless labeled for such purpose and the installation is specifically approved. 

603.7 Portable cooking equipment Unless otherwise approved, portable 
cooking equipment shall not be used on the interior of a structure in any area 
other than an area designated as a cooking room. 

SECTION 604  ELECTRICAL FACILITIES 

604.1 Facilities required. Every occupied building shall be provided with an 
electrical system in compliance with the requirements of this section and Section 
605. 

604.2 Service. The size and usage of appliances and equipment shall serve as a 
basis for determining the need for additional facilities in accordance with the 
Michigan Electrical Code. Dwelling units shall be served by a three-wire, 120/240 
volt, single-phase electrical service having a rating of not less than 60 amperes. 



604.3 Electrical system hazards. Where it is found that the electrical system in 
a structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants or the structure by reason of 
inadequate service, improper fusing, insufficient receptacle and lighting outlets, 
improper wiring or installation, deterioration or damage, or for similar reasons, 
the code official shall require the defects to be corrected to eliminate the hazard. 

SECTION 605  ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 

605.1 Installation. All electrical equipment, wiring and appliances shall be 
properly installed and maintained in a safe and approved manner. 

605.2 Receptacles. Every habitable space in a dwelling shall contain at least two 
separate and remote receptacle outlets. Every laundry area shall contain at least 
one grounded-type receptacle or a receptacle with a ground fault circuit 
interrupter. Every bathroom shall contain at least one receptacle. Any new 
bathroom receptacle outlet shall have ground fault circuit interrupter protection. 

605.3 Luminaires. Every public hall, interior stairway, toilet room, kitchen, 
bathroom, laundry room, boiler room and furnace room shall contain at least one 
electric luminaire. 

SECTION 606  ELEVATORS, ESCALATORS AND DUMBWAITERS 

606.1 General. Elevators, dumbwaiters and escalators shall be maintained in 
compliance with ASME A17.1. The most current certification of inspection shall 
be on display at all times within the elevator or attached to the escalator or 
dumbwaiter, or the certificate shall be available for public inspection in the office 
of the building operator. The inspection and tests shall be performed at not less 
than the periodical intervals listed in ASME A17.1, Appendix N, except where 
otherwise specified by the authority having jurisdiction. 

606.2 Elevators. In buildings equipped with passenger elevators, at least one 
elevator shall be maintained in operation at all times when the building is 
occupied. 

Exception: Buildings equipped with only one elevator shall be permitted 
to have the elevator temporarily out of service for testing or servicing. 

SECTION 607  DUCT SYSTEMS 

607.1 General. Duct systems shall be maintained free of obstructions and shall 
be capable of performing the required function. 

 

CHAPTER 7  FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 701 GENERAL  

701.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for fire safety relating to structures and exterior premises, 



including fire safety facilities and equipment to be provided. 

701.2 Responsibility. The owner of the premises shall provide and maintain 
such fire safety facilities and equipment in compliance with these requirements. A 
person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to occupy 
any premises that do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

SECTION 702 MEANS OF EGRESS 

702.1 General. A safe, continuous and unobstructed path of travel shall be 
provided from any point in a building or structure to the public way. Means of 
egress shall comply with the Fire Prevention Code of the City of Troy, Chapter 93 
of the Troy Code of Ordinances, hereafter referred to as the Troy Fire Code. 

702.2 Aisles. The required width of aisles in accordance with the Troy Fire Code 
shall be unobstructed. 

702.3 Locked doors. All means of egress doors shall be readily openable from 
the side from which egress is to be made without the need for keys, special 
knowledge or effort, except where the door hardware conforms to that permitted 
by the Michigan Building Code. 

702.4 Emergency escape openings. Required emergency escape openings 
shall be maintained in accordance with the code in effect at the time of 
construction, and the following: required emergency escape and rescue openings 
shall be operational from the inside of the room without the use of keys or tools. 
Bars, grilles, grates or similar devices are permitted to be placed over emergency 
escape and rescue openings provided the minimum net clear opening size 
complies with the code that was in effect at the time of construction and such 
devices shall be releasable or removable from the inside without the use of a 
key, tool or force greater than that which is required for normal operation of the 
escape and rescue opening. 

SECTION 703  FIRE-RESISTANCE RATINGS 

703.1 Fire-resistance-rated assemblies. The required fire resistance rating of 
fire-resistance-rated walls, fire stops, shaft enclosures, partitions and floors shall 
be maintained. 

703.2 Opening protectives. Required opening protectives shall be maintained in 
an operative condition. All fire and smoke stop doors shall be maintained in 
operable condition. Fire doors and smoke barrier doors shall not be blocked or 
obstructed or otherwise made inoperable. 

SECTION 704  FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

704.1 General. All systems, devices and equipment to detect a fire, actuate an 
alarm, or suppress or control a fire or any combination thereof shall be 
maintained in an operable condition at all times in accordance with the Troy Fire 
Code. 



704.2 Smoke alarms. Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall be installed 
and maintained in Groups R-2, R-3, R-4 and in dwellings not regulated in Group 
R occupancies, regardless of occupant load at all of the following locations: 

1. On the ceiling or wall outside of each separate sleeping area in the 
immediate vicinity of bedrooms. 

2. In each room used for sleeping purposes. 

3. In each story within a dwelling unit, including basements and cellars but 
not including crawl spaces and uninhabitable attics. In dwellings or 
dwelling units with split levels and without an intervening door between the 
adjacent levels, a smoke alarm installed on the upper level shall suffice for 
the adjacent lower level provided that the lower level is less than one full 
story below the upper level. Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall 
be installed in other groups in accordance with the Troy Fire Code. 

704.3 Power source. In Group R occupancies and in dwellings not regulated as 
Group R occupancies, single-station smoke alarms shall receive their primary 
power from the building wiring provided that such wiring is served from a 
commercial source and shall be equipped with a battery backup. Smoke alarms 
shall emit a signal when the batteries are low. Wiring shall be permanent and 
without a disconnecting switch other than as required for overcurrent protection. 

Exception: Smoke alarms are permitted to be solely battery operated in 
buildings where no construction is taking place, buildings that are not 
served from a commercial power source and in existing areas of buildings 
undergoing alterations or repairs that do not result in the removal of 
interior wall or ceiling finishes exposing the structure, unless there is an 
attic, crawl space or basement available which could provide access for 
building wiring without the removal of interior finishes. 

704.4 Interconnection. Where more than one smoke alarm is required to be 
installed within an individual dwelling unit in Group R-2, R-3, R-4 and in dwellings 
not regulated as Group R occupancies, the smoke alarms shall be 
interconnected in such a manner that the activation of one alarm will activate all 
of the alarms in the individual unit. Such interconnection shall be permitted to be 
through wired or approved wireless methods. The alarm shall be clearly audible 
in all bedrooms over background noise levels with all intervening doors closed. 

Exceptions: 

1. Interconnection is not required in buildings which are not undergoing 
alterations, repairs, or construction of any kind. 

2. Smoke alarms in existing areas are not required to be interconnected 
where alterations or repairs do not result in the removal of interior wall or 
ceiling finishes exposing the structure, unless there is an attic, crawl space 
or basement available which could provide access for interconnection 
without the removal of interior finishes. 



CHAPTER 8  REFERENCED STANDARDS 

This chapter lists the standards that are referenced in various sections of this 
document. The standards are listed herein by the promulgating agency of the 
standard, the standard identification, the effective date and title and the section 
or sections of this document that reference the standard. The application of the 
referenced standards shall be as specified in Section 102.7. 

ASME 

American Society of Mechanical Engineers 
Three Park Avenue 
 New York, NY 10016-5990 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code 
section number 

A17.1—2000 Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators 
with A17.1a 2002 Addenda 

606.1 

 
 

  

ASTM 

ASTM International 
100 Barr Harbor Drive West 
Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code 
section number 

F1346—91 
(2003) 

Performance Specifications for Safety 
Covers and Labeling Requirements for All 
Covers for Swimming Pools, Spas and Hot 
Tubs 

303.2 

 
 

  

DELEG 

Michigan Department of Energy Labor and 
Economic Growth 
Bureau of Construction Codes 
2501 Woodlake Circle 
Okemos, MI 48864 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code 
section number 

MEC—06 Michigan Electrical Code 102.3, 201.3, 604.2 
MBC—06 Michigan Building Code 102.3, 201.3, 401.3, 702.3 
IMC—06 Michigan Mechanical Code 102.3, 201.3 
IPC—06 Michigan Plumbing Code 102.3, 201.3, 505.1, 602.2, 602.3 



 

   

City of Troy 

City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI 48084 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code  
section number 

Charter Charter of the City of Troy 104.3 
Chapter 2 Address Numbering and Street Naming 304.3 
Chapter 39 Troy Zoning Ordinance 102.3, 201.3 

Chapter 60 Fees and Bonds Required 103.5 

Chapter 79 General Building Regulations 111.2 

Chapter 82A Rental and Dwelling Inspection and 
Enforcement 

104.3.1 

Chapter 88 Nuisances 302.8 
Chapter 93 Troy Fire Prevention Code 108.1, 201.3, 702.1, 702.2, 704.1 

704.2 
Chapter 100 Municipal Civil Infractions 106.1, 106.2, 106.3, 107.1, 107.2, 

108.1.1.2, 302.4.3, 302.4.4, 
307.4.3 

 

ICC 

International Code Council 
5203 Leesburg Pike, Suite 600 
Falls Church, VA 22041 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code  
section number 

IFGC-06 International Fuel Gas Code 102.3 
   
 



 

Section 3. Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4. Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on August 1, 2009. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the    day of     2009. 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



Changes to the proposed language of the Troy Property Maintenance Code from 
the language presented at the June 15, 2009, City Council meeting. 

102.8 Requirements not covered by code. Requirements necessary for the strength, 
stability or proper operation of an existing fixture, structure or equipment, or for the 
public safety, health and general welfare shall be determined by the code official if not 
specifically covered by this code.  The details of any such determination shall be 
recorded and entered in the department files. 

104.4 Right of entry. The code official and his or her designated representatives are 
authorized to enter the structure or premises at reasonable times to inspect, subject to 
constitutional and legal restrictions on unreasonable searches and seizures. If entry is 
refused or not obtained, the code official is authorized to pursue recourse as provided 
by law.  Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the provisions of this 
code, or where the building official has reasonable cause to believe that there exists in a 
structure or upon a premises a condition which is contrary to or in violation of this code 
which makes the structure or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the building 
official is authorized to enter the structure or premises at reasonable times to inspect or 
to perform the duties imposed by this code, provided that if such structure or premises 
be occupied that credentials be presented to the occupant and entry requested.  If such 
structure or premises is unoccupied, the building official shall first make a reasonable 
effort to locate the owner or other person having charge or control of the structure or 
premises and request entry.  If entry is refused, the building official shall have recourse 
to the remedies provided by law to secure entry. 

105.1 Modifications. Whenever there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out 
the provisions of this code, the code official shall have the authority to grant 
modifications for individual cases, provided the code official shall first find Existing 
buildings or structures will not be subject to adhere to all or some of the Property 
Maintenance code requirements when the code officer determines that unique 
circumstances makes the strict enforcement of this code impractical and the 
modification is in compliance with the intent and purpose of this code and , provided that 
such modification does not lessen health, life and fire safety requirements. The details 
of any such modifications shall be recorded and entered in the department files. 

108.1.1.6 City Council action.  If the City Council determines that the building or 
structure is a dangerous or unsafe building or structure, and that the building or 
structure should be demolished or made habitable, Council shall order either demolition 
within twenty-one (21) days or require that all necessary repairs be completed within 
sixty (60) days by a specified time, which shall not exceed 21 days after the hearing 
and/or resolution, unless the City Council determines that the weather conditions justify 
a longer time period to complete the necessary repairs. 

 

DEADBOLT. A locking mechanism consisting of a bolt that when moved into the locked 
position cannot be retracted by end pressure on the bolt. 

 



307.1 Accumulation of rubbish or garbage. All exterior property and premises, and 
the interior of every structure shall be free from any accumulation of rubbish or garbage. 

Exception:  Fallen trees and branches from trees on the premise in a 
preservation or restoration area. 

704.4 Interconnection. Where more than one smoke alarm is required to be installed 
within an individual dwelling unit in Group R-2, R-3, R-4 and in dwellings not regulated 
as Group R occupancies, the smoke alarms shall be interconnected in such a manner 
that the activation of one alarm will activate all of the alarms in the individual unit. Such 
interconnection shall be permitted to be through wired or approved wireless methods. 
The alarm shall be clearly audible in all bedrooms over background noise levels with all 
intervening doors closed. 



Questions and Answers on the Property Maintenance Code From the June 15, 2009 City Council Meeting 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 

Section # Question Answer 

106.2 Clarification regarding code enforcement officer's 
discretion 

The ordinance does identify each day that a violation exists to be a 
separate offence.  However it has not been our practice to write multiple 
violations for the same offence because practice has shown that it does not 
result in any benefit when appearing in court.  We do wish to retain the 
language however, so that in those rare cases where a “time sensitive” 
incentive is necessary, we can use the daily violations to motivate an owner 
to act more quickly.  

106.1 Confirm spacing format The comma (shown in red) in the fourth line is intended to be in the new 
text. 

107.3 Confirm spacing format The space between “violation” and “issued” in the seventh line is intended 
to be in the new text. 

108.1.1.6 CC to have more discretion than 21 days; specifically 
for hardship cases (45 day option for appeal) (strike "the 
weather") 

The 21 day time frame for an order for demolition comes from the Michigan 
Housing Law MCL 125.451.  A 60 day time limit is permitted for an order to 
repair. 

202 Dwelling Unit. Are mobile homes a part of this 
definition? 

Yes, a properly installed mobile home would meet the definition of a 
dwelling unit. 

202 Weeds. Include pictures for better understanding by the 
public 

The preference of staff is to not put pictures within the enforceable 
provisions of the code.  A picture guide for weeds will be developed or 
linked as part of a commentary on the Property Maintenance Code. 

301.3 Define "clean, safe, sanitary"  Clean, safe, and sanitary are “as provided herein”.  The text of Sections 
302 through 308 would be used to define those terms.  This section is 
necessary to make sure that vacant structures are not held to a lesser 
standard just because they are unoccupied. 

304.14 Applied to food preparation areas only or every open 
area? 

The requirement for screens applies to all windows that “are required for 
ventilation”.  If fresh air ventilation is provided by the mechanical system, or 
if the windows are in excess of those required to meet the ventilation 
opening requirement, then screens would not be required.  If no screens 
are available then the windows will not be used and the lack of fresh air 
may affect the health of occupants. 

404.4.1 & .2 Impact on older homes built before the first building 
code was adopted 

These are not unreasonable minimum standards and would not create 
violations on a vast majority of the existing housing stock in the city.  Those 
rare instances could be looked at on a case by case basis under Sections 
102.6, 105.1, 105.2, or 111.  



Questions and Answers on the Property Maintenance Code From the June 15, 2009 City Council Meeting 

 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Section # Question Answer 

 Provision to provide a grandfather clause for older 
homes that don't meet ordinance requirements 

The Property Maintenance Code is in many cases the ONLY code that 
regulates older structures.  If they are exempted from the provisions of the 
Property Maintenance Code then there would be no regulation and no 
enforcement on these structures. 

105.1 Does this section provide for code enforcement officers 
to find that improvements would be impractical?  

The opening sentence states “Whenever there are practical difficulties 
involved in carrying out the provisions of this code”.  This would require a 
“finding” of impracticality by the building official to accept alternative 
materials and methods.  The details of the findings and the acceptance of 
the alternatives must be documented in the records. 

102.6 Modify to also allow buildings built before building code 
was adopted 

The Property Maintenance Code is in many cases the ONLY code that 
regulates older structures.  If they are exempted from the provisions of the 
Property Maintenance Code then there would be no regulation and no 
enforcement on these structures.  While there has been stated a public 
desire to retain historic structures (Chapter 13 of the Troy City Code) there 
has not been a public desire to retain ALL old structures. 

 Add an additional section specifically for buildings built 
before building code was adopted 

(see above) 

404.4.3 How is each story defined for split-level homes in terms 
of water closet accessibility? 

The definition of “story” is found in Section 202.  In terms of a tri-level, 
bathrooms located on the highest level would be considered on an 
“adjacent story” to bedrooms located on the lowest level and visa-versa. 

404.5 How is number of persons calculated?  The determination of “overcrowding” is more subjective and less formula 
driven in the new text.  We do still have formula based standards found 
within the Housing Law of Michigan (MCL 125.483) that are available for 
guidance.  However, we would also look for additional signs that the 
structure is overcrowded.  Some of these signs could include; lack of clear 
egress aisles, use of “alternative” plumbing fixtures; overloading of 
structural systems; or illegal conversion of rooms or spaces for sleeping 
quarters. 

404.6 Use 404.6 numeric format for 404.5 instead of relying 
on the code enforcement officer's discretion 

The use of a numeric formula was one of the main sticking points that 
caused the failure of the adoption of the 2000 Property Maintenance Code 
in 2002.  We believe that the new methodology provides a better way to 
address conditions while still giving us the ability to use formulas to 
determine maximum occupancy rates if we choose to do so. 



Questions and Answers on the Property Maintenance Code From the June 15, 2009 City Council Meeting 

 

Page 3 of 4 

 

Section # Question Answer 

404.5 Literal enforcement may force large families to move; 
there is no provision that provides for a hardship 
situation 

Under Section 105.1 an owner could obtain approval of a modification if 
they could show that there was a practical difficulty and that the resultant 
conditions met the intent and purpose and that an equivalent level of health 
and safety were maintained.  They could also appeal the decision under the 
provisions of Section 111. 

704.2 Define "Groups R-2, R-3, and R-4" These are the Use Group Classifications from the Building Code.  These 
are not Zoning Districts.  R-2 Uses are apartments.  R-3 Uses are Single 
Family Residences.  R-4 Uses are small congregate care facilities. 

104.4 Modify legal terminology by inserting more common 
language 

The current text of the Michigan Building Code regarding Right of Entry 
states: “Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the 
provisions of this code, or where the building official has reasonable 
cause to believe that there exists in a structure or upon a premises a 
condition which is contrary to or in violation of this code which makes 
the structure or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the 
building official is authorized to enter the structure or premises at 
reasonable times to inspect or to perform the duties imposed by this 
code, provided that if such structure or premises be occupied that 
credentials be presented to the occupant and entry requested.  If 
such structure or premises is unoccupied, the building official shall 
first make a reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person 
having charge or control of the structure or premises and request 
entry.  If entry is refused, the building official shall have recourse to 
the remedies provided by law to secure entry”.  This text must be 
used without amendment by State statute.  If any change is 
proposed we may want to adopt identical text in the Property 
Maintenance Code. 

304.18.1 Clarify which doors require a deadbolt lock; define 
deadbolt lock 

This is new language that was added to the Property Maintenance Code in 
2002.  A copy of the code change document for code change PM13-02 is 
attached for your reference.  The requirements for a deadbolt lock (one that 
can only be engaged when the door is in the closed position) is only 
required on dwellings, or portions of dwellings, that are rented or leased. 

305.3 Strike "peeling, chipping, flaking" Many of the structures that are regulated by this code are ones that were 
constructed before 1979 when lead based paint was in prevalent use.  
Health hazards to small children from the ingestion of lead paint chips is a 
significant health concern. 



Questions and Answers on the Property Maintenance Code From the June 15, 2009 City Council Meeting 

 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Section # Question Answer 

 Copy of 1939 & 1966 Building Codes A copy of the text of the 1993 BOCA National Property Maintenance Code 
is provided for your reference.  This text needs to be combined with the 
amendments contained within the current text of Chapter 82 to form the 
current text of the Troy Property Maintenance Code. 

 Outline appeal process The appeals process of the provisions of the Property Maintenance Code 
Are as follows: 

1. Request a modification to the code official under Section 105.1 
2. Propose alternative materials and methods to the code official 

under Section 105.2 
3. Appeal a decision of the code official to the Building Code Board of 

Appeals (BCBA) under Section 111.1 
4. Appeal the BCBA decision to the State Construction Code 

Commission under Section 111.3 
5. Appeal the decision of the BCBA or the Construction Code 

Commission to the Circuit Court under Section 111.3 
(These steps do not all have to be taken in sequential order.) 

 



 1 

Existing Text of Chapter 82 that is proposed to be deleted 
 
1. Adoption of Code by Reference. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 3 (K) of Act 279 of 1909, 

State of Michigan as amended, the B.O.C.A. National Property Maintenance Code/1993 
and published by the Building Officials and Code Administrators International, Inc., is 
hereby adopted by reference by the City of Troy as in this Chapter modified for the purpose 
of establishing minimum standards governing the condition and maintenance of all 
structures and dwellings; establishing minimum standards governing supplied utilities and 
facilities and other physical things and conditions essential to insure that structures are 
safe, sanitary and fit for occupation and use; establishing minimum standards governing 
the condition of dwellings offered for rent; fixing certain responsibilities and duties of owners 
and occupants of structures, and the condemnation of dwellings unfit for human habitation 
and the demolition of such dwellings and structures; and fixing penalties for violation. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
 2. Code on File. Complete printed copies of the B.O.C.A. National Property Maintenance 

Code/1993, herein adopted, are available for public use and inspection at the office of the 
City Clerk. 

 
  (Rev. 1-29-96) 
 
 3. Change in Code. The following Sections and Subsections the B.O.C.A. National Property 

Maintenance Code/1993 are hereby amended or deleted and additional sections or 
subsections are added as indicated. Subsequent section numbers used in this Chapter 
shall refer to like numbered sections of the B.O.C.A. National Property Maintenance 
Code/1993. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
 4. Penalties for Violations: Except as otherwise provided by other sections of this Chapter, a 

violation of any section of Chapter 82 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions 
of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy. Each day that a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation. Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 82 shall 
include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized 
by Chapter 100. 

 
  (03-01-06) 
 
 
PM-100.1 Title: These regulations shall be known as the Property Maintenance Code of the City of 

Troy hereinafter referred to as the Property Maintenance Code or "this code". 
 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
PM-105.1 General: It shall be the duty and responsibility of the Building Department, through its 

Building Official, his authorized representative and employees, hereinafter referred to as 
the code official, to enforce the provisions of this code as herein provided. 

  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-105.7 Thru PM-105.10 - Sections deleted. 
 
  (01-29-96) 
 
PM-106.2 Section deleted. 



 2 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-107.4 Section deleted. 
 
  (01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.1.1 Emergency: The Fire Chief or Building Official shall have the power to abate any public 

nuisance from any dangerous structure or building if the public safety shall require 
immediate action due to a distinct hazard to life or property, without preliminary notice as 
otherwise required by this section. Thereafter the cost of abating such public nuisance shall 
be charged against the owner or occupant of the premises and payment hereof shall be 
enforced as a special assessment as provided in section PM-110.4. 

 
  (Rev. 7-13-92) 
 
PM-110.2 Order: The order shall specify a time in which the owner shall comply therewith and specify 

repairs, if any, and shall include notice of the rights and limitations as provided in Section 
PM-110.2.1. It shall be served on the owner of record or his agent where an agent is in 
charge of the building and upon the holder of any encumbrance of record in the manner 
provided for service of a summons by a court of record. If the owner or a holder of an 
encumbrance of record cannot be found, the order may be served by posting it on the main 
entrance of the building and by publishing it once each week for three (3) successive 
weeks in a newspaper authorized to provide service by publication. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.2.1 Right of Appeal: The owner of a building or structure may appeal any such order to the City 

Council. The appeal shall be filed within ten (10) days of the date the order is served and a 
hearing shall be scheduled within fifteen (15) days of the date the appeal is filed. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.2.2 Restraining Actions: Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the City Council shall within twenty 

(20) days after notification of such decision apply to a court of record for an order 
restraining the code official from razing and removing such structure or parts thereof. The 
court shall determine whether the order of the code official is reasonable, and if found 
reasonable, the court shall dissolve the restraining order, and if found not reasonable, the 
court shall continue the restraining order or modify it as the circumstances may require. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.3 Failure to Comply: Whenever the owner of a property fails to comply with a demolition order 

within the time prescribed, the code official shall cause the structure or part thereof to be 
razed and removed whether through an available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal shall be 
charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 
such real estate. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.5 Unreasonable Repairs: Wherever the code official determines that the cost of such repairs 

would exceed one hundred (100) percent of the current value of such structure, such 
repairs shall be presumed unreasonable and it shall be presumed for the purpose of this 
section that such structure is a public nuisance which may be ordered razed without option 



 3 

on the part of the owner to repair. 
 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-111 Section deleted. 
 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
PM-202.0 Applied Meaning of Words and Terms: The following words and terms are amended to 

read: 
 
  (Dwellings) 
 
  Boarding House, Lodging House, Tourist Home: a building arranged or used for lodging 

with or without meals, for compensation, by more than two (2) and not more than twenty 
(20) individuals. 

 
  One Family Dwelling: a building designed exclusively for occupancy by one (1) family.  
 
  Two Family Dwelling: a building designed exclusively for occupancy by two (2) families, 

independent of each other such as a duplex dwelling unit. 
 
  Family: One or two persons or parents, with their direct lineal descendants and adopted 

children (and including the domestic employees thereof) together with not more than two 
persons not so related, living together in the whole or part of a dwelling comprising a single 
housekeeping unit. 

 
  Rooming House: any residence building, or any part thereof, containing one or more 

rooming units, in which space is let by the owner or operator to more than two (2) persons, 
who are not members of the family.  

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-301.2 Maintenance Responsibility: Owners of structures and land that remain vacant for a period 

of more than 60 days shall register with the City of Troy, Building Department the name, 
address and telephone number of a responsible person. This person shall be responsible 
for the maintenance of the structure and land in compliance with the provisions of this code. 
Failure to comply with a request for repair or maintenance of structures and land within a 
prescribed time shall be cause for the Building Official to arrange for the repair and 
maintenance thereof through a public agency or private contract. The cost of such repair or 
maintenance shall be charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located 
and shall be a lien upon such real estate. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-306.3.1 Garbage Storage Facilities: Every dwelling unit shall be supplied with an approved garbage 

disposal facility, which shall be any adequate mechanical garbage disposal unit 
(mechanical in-sink grinder). In existing dwelling units, an approved outside garbage 
container or containers, as required in Section PM-306.3.2 shall be sufficient to meet the 
needs of the occupants. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-306.3.2 Containers: The operator of every establishment producing garbage, vegetable wastes, or 

other putrescible materials shall provide and at all times cause to be used, leakproof 



 4 

approved containers, provided with close fitting covers for the storage of such materials 
until removed from the premises for disposal, or have garbage disposal unit, as required in 
Section PM-306.3.1. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-602.2 Residential buildings: Every owner of any structure who rents, leases, or lets one or more 

dwelling units or guest rooms on terms, either express of implied, to furnish heat to the 
occupants thereof shall supply sufficient heat during the period of September 1 to June 1 to 
maintain a room temperature of not less than 70 degrees F. (21 degrees C.), in all habitable 
spaces, bathrooms, and toilet rooms during the hours between 6:30 a.m. and 10:30 p.m. of 
each day and maintain a temperature of not less than 65 degrees F. (18 degrees C.) during 
other hours. The temperature shall be measured at a point 3 feet (914mm) above the floor 
and 3 feet (914mm) from exterior walls. 

 
  Exception: When the exterior temperature falls below 0 degrees F. (-18 degrees C.) and 

the heating system is operating at its full capacity, a minimum room temperature of 65 
degrees F. (18 degrees C.) shall be maintained at all times.  

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-603.2 Cooking and Heating Equipment: All cooking and heating equipment, components, and 

accessories in every heating, cooking, and water heating device shall be maintained free 
from leaks and obstructions and kept functioning properly so as to be free from fire, health, 
and accident hazards. All installations and repairs shall be made in accordance with the 
provisions of the building code, or other laws or ordinances applicable thereto. Portable 
cooking equipment employing flame is prohibited in any area other than an area designated 
as a cooking room. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-702.3 Number of exits: Every story used for human occupancy shall be provided not less than two 

independent exits. Every story used for human occupancy totally below grade greater than 
2,000 square feet (186m²) shall be provided not less than two independent exits. 

 
  EXCEPTIONS: A single exit is acceptable when: 
 
  1. The Building is provided an automatic fire suppression system and an automatic fire 

alarm system with smoke detectors located in all corridors, lobbies and common 
area, or: 

 
  2. The building is provided an automatic fire alarm system and the exit is a 

smokeproof enclosure or pressurized stairway, or;  
 
  3. An existing fire escape or slidescape conforming to the building code is provided in 

addition to the single exit, or; 
 
  4. Buildings permitted to have one exit as described in the B.O.C.A. Building Code. 
 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-702.10 Information signs: A sign shall be provided at each floor landing in all interior stairways 

more than three stories above grade, designating the floor level above the floor of 
discharge. All elevator lobby call stations on all floor levels in buildings shall be marked with 
approved signs reading as follows: Use Stairways in Case of Fire - Do Not Use Elevators. 



 5 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-705.3 Fire standpipes: All buildings having floors used for human occupancy located more than 

40 feet (12192mm) above the grade shall be provided with standpipes according to the 
building code, except that an automatic water supply, hose, and cabinets are not required. 
The standpipes shall have an approved fire department connection with hose connections 
at each floor level. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-705.5.4 Smoke and heat detection: Each recirculating air or exhaust system which serves more 

than one floor in buildings which exceed 40 feet (12192mm) in height shall be equipped 
with approved smoke and heat detection devices in accordance with the mechanical code. 
The devices shall stop the fan(s) automatically and shall be of the manual reset type. 
Automatic fan shutdown is not required when the system is part of an approved smoke 
removal or control system. 

 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
PM-705.8 Use Group R-1 Structures: All buildings of Use Group R-1 as defined by the B.O.C.A. 

National Building Code shall be equipped with an approved quick response automatic fire 
suppression system. This requirement applied to all Use Group R-1 buildings that received 
an occupancy certificate before July 1, 1987. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-705.9 Alarm and Communications Systems: All buildings of Use Group R-1; as defined by the 

B.O.C.A. National Building Code which have floors for human occupancy located more 
than 40 feet above the lowest level of fire department access shall be equipped with an 
approved alarm and communications system consisting of a voice alarm system, a public 
address system, and a fire department communications system. This requirement applies 
to all Use Group R-1 buildings that received an occupancy certificate before July 1, 1987. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-706.1 Required: All buildings having three or more separate floor levels served by elevators shall 

have at least one elevator equipped with emergency controls and all elevators shall be 
equipped with car recall activated by a smoke detector in each lobby in accordance with the 
building code. 

 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
 
SECTION PM-708.1. COMPLIANCE DATE 
 
PM-708.1 Effective Date: All structures described in Section PM-705.8 and PM-705.9 shall comply 

with their provisions by having the retrofitting under contract within one year and completed 
within two years of the date that this amendment takes effect. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 1 
 

CHAPTER 1 
 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

SECTION PM-101.0 GENERAL 
 
PM-101.1 Title:  These regulations shall be known as the Property Maintenance Code 
of [NAME OF JURISDICTION] herinafter referred to as “this code”. 
 
PM-101.2 Scope:  This code is to protect the public health, safety and welfare in all 
existing structures, residential and nonresidential, and on all existing premises by 
establishing minimum requirements and standards for premises, structures, equipment, 
and facilities, for light, ventilation, space, heating, sanitation, protection from the 
elements, life safety, safety from fire and other hazards, and for safe and sanitary 
maintenance; fixing the responsibility of owners, operators and occupants; regulating 
the occupancy of existing structures and premises, and providing for administration, 
enforcement and penalties. 
 
PM-101.3 Intent:  This code shall be construed to secure its expressed intent, which is 
to insure public health, safety and welfare insofar as they are affected by the continued 
occupancy and maintenance of structures and premises.  Existing structures and 
premises that do not comply with these provisions shall be altered or repaired to provide 
a minimum level of health and safety as required herein. 
 
PM-101.4 Referenced standards:  The standards referenced in this code and listed in 
Chapter 8 shall be considered part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed 
extent of each such reference.  Where differences occur between provisions of this 
code and referenced standards, the provisions of this code shall apply. 
 
PM-101.5 Existing remedies:  The provisions in this code shall not be construed to 
abolish or impair existing remedies of the jurisdiction or its officers or agencies relating 
to the removal or demolition of any structure which is dangerous, unsafe and 
unsanitary. 
 
PM-101.6 Workmanship:  All repairs, maintenance work, alterations or installations 
which are caused directly or indirectly by the enforcement of this code shall be executed 
and installed in a workmanlike manner. 
 
PM-101.7 Application of other codes:  Any repairs, additions or alterations to a 
structure, or changes of occupancy, shall be done in accordance with the procedures 
and provisions of the building, plumbing and mechanical codes and NFiPA 70 listed in 
Chapter 8. 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 2 
 

SECTION PM-102.0 VALIDITY 
 
PM-102.1 Validity:  If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
of this code shall be declared invalid for any reason whatsoever, such decision shall not 
affect the remaining portions of this code which shall continue in full force and effect, 
and to this end the provisions of this code are hereby declared to be severable. 
 
PM-102.2 Saving clause:  This code shall not affect violations of any other ordinance, 
code or regulation existing prior to the effective date hereof, and any such violation shall 
be governed and shall continue to be punishable to the full extent of the law under the 
provisions of those ordinances, codes or regulations in effect at the time the violation 
was committed. 
 

SECTION PM-103.0 MAINTENANCE 
 
PM-103.1 Required:  All equipment, systems, devices and safeguards required by this 
code or a previous statute or code for the structure or premises when erected or altered 
shall be maintained in good working order.  The requirements of this code are not 
intended to provide the basis for removal or abrogation of fire protection and safety 
systems and devices in existing structures. 
 

SECTION PM-104.0 APPROVAL 
 
PM-104.1 Approved materials and equipment:  All materials, equipment and devices 
approved by the code official shall be constructed and installed in accordance with such 
approval. 
 
PM-104.2 Modifications:  Where there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out 
structural or mechanical provisions of this code, the code official shall have the right to 
vary or modify such provisions upon application of the owner or the owner’s 
representative, provided that the spirit and intent of the law is observed and that the 
public health, safety and welfare is assured. 
 

PM-104.2.1 Records:  The application for modification and the final 
decision of the code official shall be in writing and shall be officially 
recorded in the permanent records of the department. 
 

PM-104.3  Material and equipment reuse:  Materials, equipment and devices shall not 
be reused unless such elements have been reconditioned, tested and placed in good 
and proper working condition and approved. 
 
PM-104.4 Alternative materials and equipment:  The provisions of this code are not 
intended to prevent the installation of any material or method of construction not 
specifically prescribed by this code, provided that any such alternative has been 
approved.  An alternative material or method of construction shall be approved when 
the code official finds that the proposed design is satisfactory and complies with the 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 3 
 

intent of the provisions of this code, and that the material, method or work offered is, for 
the purpose intended, at least the equivalent of that prescribed in this code in quality, 
strength, effectiveness, fireresistance, durability and safety. 
 
PM-104.5  Research and investigations:  Sufficient technical data shall be submitted 
to substantiate the proposed installation of any material or assembly.  If it is determined 
that the evidence submitted is satisfactory proof of performance for the proposed 
installation, the code official shall approve such alternative subject to the requirements 
of this code.  The cost of all tests, reports and investigations required under these 
provisions shall be paid by the attendant. 
 

SECTION PM-105.0 DUTIES AND POWERS OF CODE OFFICIAL 
 
PM-105.1 General:  The code official shall enforce all of the provisions of this code. 
 
PM-105.2 Notices and orders:  The code official shall issue all necessary notices or 
orders to ensure compliance with the code. 
 
PM-105.3 Right of entry:  The code official is authorized to enter the structure or 
premises at reasonable times to inspect.  Prior to entering into a space not otherwise 
open to the general public, the code official shall make a reasonable effort to locate the 
owner or other person having charge or control of the structure or premises, present 
proper identification and request entry.  If requested entry is refused or not obtained, the 
code official shall pursue recourse as provided by law. 
 
PM-105.4 Access by owner or operator:  Every occupant of a structure or premises 
shall give the owner or operator thereof, or agent or employee, access to any part of 
such structure or its premises at reasonable times for the purpose of making such 
inspection, maintenance, repairs or alterations as are necessary to comply with the 
provisions of this code. 
 
PM-105.5 Identification:  The code official shall carry proper identification when 
inspecting structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 
 
PM-105.6 Coordination of enforcement:  Inspection of premises, the issuance of 
notices and orders and enforcement thereof shall be the responsibility of the code 
official so charged by the jurisdiction.  Whenever inspections are necessary by any 
other department, the code official shall make reasonable effort to arrange for the 
coordination of such inspections so as to minimize the number of visits by inspectors, 
and to confer with the other departments for the purpose of eliminating conflicting orders 
before any are issued.  A department shall not, however, delay the issuance of any 
emergency orders. 
 
PM-105.7 Rule-making authority:  The code official shall have power as necessary in 
the interest of public health, safety and general welfare, to adopt and promulgate rules 
and regulations to interpret and implement the provisions of this code to secure the 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 4 
 

intent thereof and to designate requirements applicable because of local climatic or 
other conditions.  Such rules shall not have the effect of waiving structural or fire 
performance requirements specifically provided for in this code or of violating accepted 
engineering practice involving public safety. 
 
PM-105.8 Organization:  The code official shall appoint such number of officers, 
technical assistants, inspectors and other employees as shall be necessary for the 
administration of this code and as authorized by the appointing authority.  The code 
official is authorized to designate an employee as deputy who shall exercise all the 
powers of the code official during the temporary absence or disability of the code 
official. 
 
PM-105.9 Restriction of employees:  An official or employee connected with the 
enforcement of this code, except one whose only connection is that of a member of the 
board of appeals established under the provisions of Section PM-111.0, shall not be 
engaged in, or directly or indirectly connected with, the furnishing of labor, materials or 
appliances for the construction, alteration or maintenance of a building, or the 
preparation of construction documents thereof, unless that person is the owner of the 
building; nor shall such officer or employee engage in any work that conflicts with official 
duties or with the interests of the department. 
 
PM-105.10 Relief from personal responsibility:  The code official, officer or employee 
charged with the enforcement of this code, while acting for the jurisdiction, shall not 
thereby be rendered liable personally, and is hereby relieved from all personal liability 
for any damage accruing to persons or property as a result of any act required or 
permitted in the discharge of official duties.  Any suit instituted against an officer or 
employee because of an act performed by that officer or employee in the lawful 
discharge of duties and under the provisions of this code shall be defended by the legal 
representative of the jurisdiction until the final termination of the proceedings.  The code 
official or any subordinate shall not be liable for costs in any action, suit or proceeding 
that is instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this code; and any officer of the 
department of building inspection, acting in good faith and without malice, shall be free 
from liability for acts performed under any of its provisions or by reason of any act or 
omission in the performance of official duties in connection therewith. 
 
PM-105.11 Official records:  An official record shall be kept of all business and 
activities of the department specified in the provisions of this code, and all such records 
shall be open to public inspection at all appropriate times and according to reasonable 
rules to maintain the integrity and security of such record. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 5 
 

SECTION PM-106.0 VIOLATIONS 
 

PM-106.1 Unlawful acts:  It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to 
erect, construct, alter, extend, repair, remove, demolish, maintain, fail to maintain, 
provide, fail to provide, occupy, let to another or occupy or permit another person to 
occupy any structure or equipment regulated by this code, or cause same to be done, 
contrary to or in conflict with or in violation of any of the provisions of this code, or to fail 
to obey a lawful order of the code official, or to remove or deface a placard or notice 
posted under the provisions of this code. 
 
PM-106.2 Penalty:  Any person who shall violate a provision of this code shall, upon 
conviction thereof, be subject to a fine of not less than [AMOUNT] nor more than 
[AMOUNT] or imprisonment for a term not to exceed [NUMBER] days, or both, at the 
discretion of the court.  Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been 
serviced shall be deemed a separate offense. 
 
PM-106.3 Prosecution:  In case of any unlawful acts the code official shall institute an 
appropriate action or proceeding at law to exact the penalty provided in Section PM-
106.2.  Also, the code official shall ask the jurisdiction’s legal representative to proceed 
at law or in equity against the person responsible for the violation for the purpose of 
ordering that person: 
  
1. To restrain, correct or remove the violation or refrain from any further 

execution of work; 
2. To restrain or correct the erection, installation, maintenance, repair or 

alteration of such structure; 
3. To require the removal of work in violation; or 
4. To prevent the occupancy of the structure that is not in compliance with 

the provisions of this code. 
 

SECTION PM-107.0 NOTICES AND ORDERS 
 

PM-107.1 Notice to owner or to person or persons responsible:  Whenever the 
code official determines that there has been a violation of this code or has grounds to 
believe that a violation has occurred, notice shall be give to the owner or the person or 
persons responsible therefore in the manner prescribed in Sections PM-107.2 and PM-
107.3.  Notices for condemnation procedures shall also comply with Section PM-108.3 
 
PM-107.2 Form:  Such notice prescribed in Section PM-107.1 shall: 
 
1.  Be in writing. 
2.  Include a description of the real estate sufficient for identification. 
3. Include a statement of the reason or reasons why the notice is being 

issued; and 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 6 
 

4. Include a correction order allowing a reasonable time for the repairs and 
improvements required to bring the dwelling unit or structure into 
compliance with the provisions of this code. 

 
PM-107.3 Method of service:  Such notice shall be deemed to be properly served if a 
copy thereof is (a) delivered to the owner personally; or (b) sent by certified or 
registered mail addressed to the owner at the last known address with return receipt 
requested.  If the certified or registered letter is returned showing that the letter was not 
delivered, a copy thereof shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the 
structure affected by such notice.  Service of such notice in the foregoing manner upon 
the owner’s agent or upon the person responsible for the structure shall constitute 
service of notice upon the owner. 
 
PM-107.4 Penalties:  Penalties for noncompliance with orders and notices shall be as 
set forth in Section PM-106.2. 
 
PM-107.5 Transfer of ownership:  It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling 
unit or structure who has received a compliance order or upon whom a notice of 
violation has been served to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of to 
another until the provisions of the compliance order or notice of violation have been 
complied with, or until such owner shall first furnish the grantee, transferee, mortgagee 
or lessee a true copy of any compliance order or notice of violation issued by the code 
official and shall furnish to the code official a signed and notarized statement from the 
grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of such 
compliance order or notice of violation and fully accepting the responsibility without 
condition for making the corrections or repairs required by such compliance order or 
notice of violation.  
 

SECTION PM-108.01 UNSAFE STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT 
 

PM-108.1 General:  When a structure or equipment is found by the code official to be 
unsafe, or when a structure is found unfit for human occupancy, or is found unlawful, 
such structure shall be condemned pursuant to the provisions of this code. 
 

PM-108.1.1. Unsafe structure:  An unsafe structure is one that is found to be 
dangerous to the life, health, property or safety of the public or the occupants of 
the structure by not providing minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants  
in the event of fire, or because such structure contains unsafe equipment or is so 
damaged, decayed, dilapidated, structurally unsafe, or of such faulty construction 
or unstable foundation, that partial or complete collapse is likely. 
 
PM-108.1.2 Unsafe equipment:  Unsafe equipment includes any boiler, heating 
equipment, elevator, moving stairway, electrical wiring or device, flammable 
liquid containers or other equipment on the premises or within the structure which 
is in such disrepair or condition that such equipment is a hazard to life, health, 
property or safety of the public or occupants of the premises or structure. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 7 
 

PM-108.1.3 Structure unfit for human occupancy:  A structure is unfit for 
human occupancy whenever the code official finds that such structure is unsafe, 
unlawful or, because of the degree to which the structure is in disrepair or lacks 
maintenance, is unsanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and 
contamination, or lacks ventilation, illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or 
other essential equipment required by this code, or because the location of the 
structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants of the structure or to the public. 
 
PM-108.1.4 Unlawful structure:  An unlawful structure is one found in whole or 
in part to be occupied by more persons than permitted under this code, or was 
erected, altered or occupied contrary to law. 
 

  
PM-108.2 Closing of vacant structures:  If the structure is vacant and unfit for human 
habitation and occupancy, and is not in danger of structural collapse, the code official is 
authorized to post a placard of condemnation on the premises and order the structure 
closed up so as not be an attractive nuisance.  Upon failure of the owner to close up the 
premises within the time specified in the order, the code official shall cause the 
premises to be closed through any available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement by private persons and the cost thereof shall be charged against the real 
estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real estate. 
 
PM-108.3 Notice:  Whenever the code official has condemned a structure or equipment 
under the provisions of this section, notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or 
about the structure affected by such notice and served on the owner or the person or 
persons responsible for the structure or equipment in accordance with Section PM-
107.3.  The notice shall be in the form prescribed in Section PM-107.2. 
 
PM-108.4 Placarding:  Upon failure of the owner or person responsible to comply with 
the notice provisions within the time given, the code official shall post on the premises 
or on defective equipment, a placard bearing the word “Condemned” and a statement of 
the penalties provided for occupying the premises, operating the equipment or removing 
the placard. 
 
PM-108.5 Prohibited occupancy:  Any person who shall occupy a placarded premises 
or shall operate placarded equipment, and any owner or any person responsible for the 
premises who shall let anyone occupy a placarded premises or operate placarded 
equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided by this code. 
 
PM-108.6 Removal of placard:  The code official shall remove the condemnation 
placard whenever the defect or defects upon which the condemnation and placarding 
action were based have been eliminated.  Any person who defaces or removes a 
condemnation placard without the approval of the code official shall be subject to the 
penalties provided by this code. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 8 
 

SECTION PM-109.0 EMERGENCY MEASURES 
 

PM-109.1 Imminent danger:  When, in the opinion of the code official, there is 
imminent danger of failure or collapse of a building or structure which endangers life, or 
when any structure or part of a structure has fallen and life is endangered by the 
occupation of the structure, or when there is actual or potential danger to the building 
occupants or those in the proximity of any structure because of explosives, explosive 
fumes or vapors or the presence of toxic fumes, gases or materials, or operation of 
defective or dangerous equipment, the code official is hereby authorized and 
empowered to order and require the occupants to vacate the premises forthwith.  The 
code official shall cause to be posted at each entrance to such structure a notice 
reading as follows:  “This Structure is Unsafe and its Occupancy has been Prohibited by 
the Code Official.”  It shall be unlawful for any person to enter such structure except for 
the purpose of securing the structure, making the required repairs, removing the 
hazardous condition, or of demolishing the same. 
 
PM-109.2 Temporary safeguards:  Notwithstanding other provisions of this code, 
whenever, in the opinion of the code official, there is imminent danger due to an unsafe 
condition, the code official shall order the necessary work to be done, including the 
boarding-up of openings, to render such structure temporarily safe whether or not the 
legal procedure herein described has been instituted; and shall cause such other action 
to be taken as the code official deems necessary to meet such emergency. 
 
PM-109.3 Closing streets:  When necessary for the public safety, the code official shall 
temporarily close structures and close, or order the authority having jurisdiction to close, 
sidewalks, streets, public ways and places adjacent to unsafe structures, and prohibit 
the same from being utilized. 
 
PM-109.4 Emergency repairs:  For the purpose of this section, the code official shall 
employ the necessary labor and materials to perform the required work as expeditiously 
as possible. 
 
PM-109.5 Costs of emergency repairs:  Costs incurred in the performance of 
emergency work shall be paid from the treasury of the jurisdiction on approval of the 
code official.  The legal counsel of the jurisdiction shall institute appropriate action 
against the owner of the premises where the unsafe structure is or was located for the 
recovery of such costs. 
 
PM-109.6 Hearing:  Any person ordered to take emergency measures shall comply 
with such order forthwith.  Any affected person shall thereafter, upon petition directed to 
the appeals board, be afforded a hearing as described in this code. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 9 
 

SECTION PM-110.0 DEMOLITION 
 

PM-110.01 General:  The code official shall order the owner of any premises upon 
which is located any structure, which in the code official’s judgement is so old, 
dilapidated or has become so out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or 
otherwise unfit for human habitation or occupancy, and such that it is unreasonable to 
repair the structure, to raze and remove such structure; or if such structure is capable of 
being made safe by repairs, to repair and make safe and sanitary or to raze and remove 
at the owner’s option; or where there has been a cessation of normal construction of 
any structure for a period of more than two years, to raze and remove such structure. 
 
PM-110.2 Order:  All notices and orders shall comply with Section PM-107.0. 
 
PM-110.3 Failure to comply:  If the owner of a premises fails to comply with a 
demolition order within the time prescribed, the code official shall cause the structure to 
be razed and removed, either through an available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal shall be 
charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien 
upon such real estate. 
 
PM-110.4 Salvage materials:  When any structure has been ordered razed and 
removed, the governing body or other designated officer under said contract or 
arrangement aforesaid shall have the right to sell the salvage and valuable materials at 
the highest price obtainable.  The net proceeds of such sale, after deducting the 
expenses of such razing and removal, shall be promptly remitted with a report of such 
sale or transaction, including the items of expense and the amounts deducted, for the 
person who is entitled thereto, subject to any order of a court.  If such a surplus does 
not remain to be turned over, the report shall so state. 
 

SECTION PM-111.0 MEANS OF APPEAL 
 

PM-111.1 Application for appeal:  Any person affected by a decision of the code 
official or a notice or order issued under this code shall have the right to appeal to the 
board of appeals, provided that a written application for appeal is filed within 20 days 
after the day the decision, notice or order was served.  An application for appeal shall 
be based on a claim that the true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted 
thereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully 
apply, or the requirements of this code are adequately satisfied by other means. 
 
PM-111.2 Membership of the board:  The board of appeals shall consist of five 
members appointed by the chief appointing authority as follows:  one for five years, one 
for four years, one for three years, one for two years, and one for one year.  Thereafter, 
each new member shall service for five years or until a successor has been appointed. 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 10 
 

PM-111.2.1 Qualifications:  The board of appeals, shall consist of five 
individuals, one from each of the following professions or disciplines: 

 
1.  Registered design professional  that is a registered architect; or a 
builder or superintendent of building construction with at least ten-years 
experience, five of which shall have been in responsible charge of work. 
 
2.  Registered design professional with structural engineering or 
architectural experience. 
 
3.  Registered design professional with mechanical or plumbing 
engineering experience; or a mechanical or plumbing contractor with at 
least ten-years experience, five of which shall have been in responsible 
charge of work. 
 
4.  Registered design professional with electrical engineering experience; 
or an electrical contractor with at least ten-years experience, five of which 
shall have been in responsible charge of work. 
 
5.  Registered design professional with fire protection engineering 
experience; or a fire protection contractor with at least ten-years 
experience, five of which shall have been in responsible charge of work. 
 

PM-111.2.2  Alternate members:  The chief appointing authority shall appoint 
two alternate members who shall be called by the board chairman to hear 
appeals during the absence or disqualification of a member.  Alternate members 
shall possess the same qualifications required for board membership, and shall 
be appointed for five years or until a successor has been appointed. 

 
PM-111.2.3  Chairman:  The board shall annually select one of its members to 
serve as chairman. 

 
PM-111.2.4  Disqualification of member:  A member shall not hear an appeal 
in which that member has any personal, professional or financial interest. 

 
PM-111.2.5  Secretary:  The chief administrative officer shall designate a 
qualified clerk to service as secretary to the board.  The secretary shall file a 
detailed record of all proceedings in the office of the chief administrative officer. 
 
PM-111.2.6  Compensation of members:  Compensation of members shall be 
determined by law. 
 

PM-111.3  Notice of meeting:  The board shall meet upon notice from the chairman, 
within ten days of the filing of an appeal, or at stated periodic meetings. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 11 
 

PM-111.4  Open hearing:  All hearings before the board shall be open to the public.  
The appellant, the appellant’s representative, the code official, and any person whose 
interests are affected shall be given an opportunity to be heard. 
 

PM-111.4.1 Procedure:  The board shall adopt and make available to the public 
through the secretary, procedures under which a hearing will be conducted.  The 
procedures shall not require compliance with strict rules of evidence but shall 
mandate that only relevant information be received. 
 

PM-111.5  Postponed hearing:  When five members are not present to hear an 
appeal, either the appellant or the appellant’s representative shall have the right to 
request a postponement of the hearing. 
 
PM-111.6 Board decision:  The board shall modify or reverse the decision of the code 
official by a concurring vote of three members. 
 

PM-111.6.1  Resolution:  The decision of the board shall be by resolution.  
Certified copies shall be furnished to appellant and to the code official. 
 
PM-111.6.2  Administration:  The code official shall take immediate action in 
accordance with the decision of the board. 
 

PM-111.7 Court review:  Any person, whether or not a previous party of the appeal, 
shall have the right to apply to the appropriate court for a writ of certiorari to correct 
errors of law.  Application for review shall be made in the manner and time required by 
law following the filing of the decision in the office of the chief administrative officer. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 12 
 

CHAPTER 2 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

 
SECTION PM-201.0 GENERAL 

 
PM-201.1  Scope:  Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following terms shall, for the 
purposes of this code, have the meanings shown in this chapter. 
 
PM-201.2  Interchangeability:  Words stated in the present tense include the future; 
words stated in the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter; the singular 
number includes the plural and the plural the singular. 
 
PM-201.3  Terms defined in other codes:    Where terms are not defined in this code 
and are defined in the building, plumbing or mechanical codes listed in Chapter 8, such 
terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them as in those codes. 
 
PM-201.4  Terms not defined:  Where terms are not defined, through the methods 
authorized by this section, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as 
the context implies. 
 
PM-201.5  Parts:  Whenever the words “dwelling unit,”  “dwelling,” premises”, “building”, 
“rooming house,”  “rooming unit,” story” or “structure” are stated in this code, they shall 
be construed as though they were followed by the words “or any part thereof.” 
 

SECTION PM-202.0 GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 

Approved:  Approved by the code official. 
 
Basement:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Bathroom:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Building:  Any structure occupied or intended for supporting or sheltering any 
occupancy. 
 
Building code:  The building code officially adopted by the legislative body of this 
jurisdiction, or other such codes officially designated by the legislative body of the 
jurisdiction for the regulation of construction, alteration, addition, repair, removal, 
demolition, location, occupancy and maintenance of buildings and structures. 
 
Code official:  The official who is charged with the administration and enforcement of 
this code, or any duly authorized representative. 
 
Condemn:  To adjudge unfit for occupancy. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 13 
 

 
Construction documents:  All the written, graphic and pictorial documents prepared or 
assembled for describing the design, location and physical characteristics of the 
elements of the project necessary for obtaining a building permit.  The construction 
drawings shall be drawn to an appropriate scale. 
 
Dwellings:  (See Section PM-201.5) 
 

Dormitory:  A space in a building where group sleeping accommodations are 
provided in one room, or in a series of closely associate rooms, for persons not 
members of the same family group. 
Dwelling unit:  A single unit providing complete, independent living facilities for 
one or more persons, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, 
cooking and sanitation. 
Hotel:  Any building containing six or more guestrooms, intended or designed to 
be occupied, for sleeping purposes by guests. 
One-family dwelling:  A building containing one dwelling unit with not more than 
five lodgers or boarders. 
Rooming house:  A building arranged or occupied for lodging, with or without 
meals, for compensation and not occupied as a one-family dwelling or a two-
family dwelling. 
Rooming unit:  Any room or group of rooms forming a single habitable unit 
occupied or intended to be occupied for sleeping or living, but not for cooking 
purposes. 
Two-family dwelling:  A building containing two dwelling units with not more 
than five lodgers or boarders per family. 
 

Exterior property:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Extermination:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Family:  An individual or married couple and the children thereof with not more than two 
other persons related directly to the individual or married couple by blood or marriage; 
or a group of not more than five unrelated persons, living together as a single 
housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit. 
 
Garbage:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Habitable space:  See Section PM-402.0. 
 
Infestation:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Let for occupancy or let:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Occupancy:  The purpose for which a building or portion thereof is utilized or occupied. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 14 
 

Occupant:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Openable area:  See Section PM-402.0. 
 
Operator:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Owner:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Person:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Plumbing:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Plumbing fixture:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Premises:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Public nuisance:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Registered design professional:  An architect or engineer, registered or licenses to 
practice professional architecture or engineering, as defined by the statutory 
requirements of the professional registration laws of the state in which the project is to 
be constructed. 
 
Rubbish:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Structure:  That which is built or constructed or a portion thereof. 
 
Toilet room:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Ventilation:  See Section PM-402.0. 
 
Workmanlike:  Executed in a skilled manner; e.g., generally plumb, level, square, in 
line, undamaged, and without marring adjacent work. 
 
Yard:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 15 
 

CHAPTER 3 
 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

SECTION PM-301.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-301.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and the responsibilities of persons for maintenance of structures, equipment and 
exterior property. 
 
PM-301.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the premises shall maintain the structures and 
exterior property in compliance with these requirements, except as otherwise provided 
in Sections PM-306.0 and PM-307.0.  A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or 
permit another person to occupy premises which do not comply with the requirements of 
this chapter. 
 
PM-301.3  Vacant structures and land:  All vacant structures and premises  thereof or 
vacant land shall be maintained in a clean, safe, secure and sanitary condition as 
provided herein so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the public 
health or safety. 
 

SECTION PM-302.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

PM-301.1 General:  The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this 
chapter and as stated elsewhere in this code, have the meanings show herein. 
 
 Basement:  That portion of a structure which is partly or completely below grade. 
 

Exterior property:  The open space on the premises and on adjoining property 
under the control of owners or operators of such premises. 

 
Extermination:  The control and elimination of insects, rats or other pests by 
eliminating their harborage places; by removing or making inaccessible materials 
that serve as their food; by poison spraying, fumigating, trapping or by any other 
approved pest elimination methods. 

 
Garbage:  The animal and vegetable waste resulting from the handling, 
preparation, cooking and consumption of food. 
 
Infestation:  The presence, within or contiguous to, a structure or premises of 
insects, rats, vermin or other pests. 
 
Let for occupancy or let:  To permit possession or occupancy of a dwelling, 
dwelling unit, rooming unit, building or structure by a person who is or is not the 
legal owner of record thereof, pursuant to a written or unwritten lease, agreement 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 16 
 

or license, or pursuant to a recorded or unrecorded agreement of contract for the 
sale of land. 
 
Occupant:  Any person living or sleeping in a building; or having possession of a 
space within a building. 
 
Operator:  Any person who has charge, care or control of a structure or 
premises which is let or offered for occupancy. 
 
Owner:  Any person, agent, operator, firm or corporation having a legal or 
equitable interest in the property; or recorded in the official records of the state, 
county or municipality as holding title to the property; or otherwise having control 
of the property, including the guardian of the estate of any such person, and the 
executor or administrator of the estate of such person if ordered to take 
possession of real property by a court. 
 
Person:  An individual, corporation, partnership or any other group acting as a 
unit. 
 
Premises:  A lot, plot or parcel of land including any structures thereon. 
 
Public nuisance:  Includes the following: 
1.  The physical condition or occupancy of any premises regarded as a  
      public nuisance at common law; or 
2.  Any physical condition or occupancy of any premises or its appurtenances  

considered an attractive nuisance to children, including, but not limited to,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
abandoned wells, shafts, basements, excavations and unsafe fences or 
structures; or 

 3.  Any premises that has unsanitary sewerage or plumbing facilities; or 
 4.  Any premises designated as unsafe for human habitation; or 
 5.  Any premises that is manifestly capable of being a fire hazard, or is manifestly  

     unsafe or unsecure so as to endanger life, limb or property; or 
6.  Any premises  from which the plumbing, heating or facilities required by this       

code have been removed, or from which utilities have been disconnected,                     
destroyed, removed or rendered ineffective, or the required precautions 
against trespassers have not been provided; or 

7.  Any premises that is unsanitary, or that is littered with rubbish or garbage, or   
     that has an uncontrolled growth of weeds; or 
8.  Any structure that is in a state of dilapidation, deterioration or decay; faulty 

construction; overcrowded; open, vacant or abandoned; damaged by fire to 
the extent so as not to provide shelter; in danger of collapse or failure; and 
dangerous to anyone on or near the premises. 
 

Rubbish:  Combustible and noncombustible waste materials, except garbage; 
the term shall include the residue from the burning of wood, coal, coke and other 
combustible materials, paper, rags, cartons, boxes, wood, excelsior, rubber, 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 17 
 

leather, tree branches, yard trimmings, tin cans, metals mineral matter, glass, 
crockery and dust and other similar materials. 

 
 Yard:  An open space on the same lot with a structure. 
 

SECTION PM-303.0 EXTERIOR PROPERTY AREAS 
 

PM-303.1 Sanitation:  All exterior property and premises shall be maintained in a 
clean, safe and sanitary condition.  The occupant shall keep that part of the exterior 
property which such occupant occupies or controls in a clean and sanitary condition. 
 
PM-303.2 Grading and drainage:  All premises shall be graded and maintained to 
prevent the accumulation of stagnant water thereon, or within any structure located 
thereon. 
 
 Exception:  Water retention areas and reservoirs approved by the code official. 
 
PM-303.3 Sidewalks and driveways:  All sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, 
parking spaces and similar areas shall be kept in a proper state of repair, and 
maintained free from hazardous conditions.  Stairs shall comply with the requirements 
of Section PM-304.10 and PM-702.9. 
 
PM-303.4 Weeds:  All premises and exterior property shall be maintained free from 
weeds or plant growth in excess of 10 inches (254mm).  All noxious weeds shall be 
prohibited.  Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, annual plants and vegetation, other 
than trees or shrubs provided; however, this term shall not include cultivated flowers 
and gardens. 
 
PM-303.5 Rat harborage:  All structures and exterior property shall be kept free from 
rat infestation.  Where rats are found, they shall be promptly exterminated by approved 
processes which will not be injurious to human health.  After extermination, proper 
precautions shall be taken to prevent reinfestation. 
 
PM-303.6 Exhaust vents:  Pipes, ducts, conductors, fans or blowers shall not 
discharge gases, steam, vapor, hot air, grease, smoke, odors or other gaseous or 
particulate wastes directly upon abutting or adjacent public or private property or that of 
another tenant. 
 
PM-303.7 Accessory structures:  All accessory structures, including detached 
garages, fences and walls, shall be maintained structurally sound and in good repair. 
 
PM-303.8 Motor vehicles:  Except as provided for in other regulations, not more than 
one currently unregistered or uninspected motor vehicle shall be parked, kept or stored 
on any premises, and no vehicle shall at any time be in a state of major disassembly, 
disrepair, or in the process of being stripped or dismantled. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 18 
 

Exception:  A vehicle of any type is permitted to undergo major overhaul, 
including body work, provided that such work is performed inside a structure or 
similarly enclosed area designed and approved for such purposes. 
 

SECTION PM-304.0 EXTERIOR STRUCTURE 
 

PM-304.1 General:  The exterior of a structure shall be maintained in good repair, 
structurally sound and sanitary so as not to pose a threat to the public health, safety or 
welfare. 
 
PM-304.2 Street numbers:  Each structure to which a street number has been 
assigned shall have such number displayed in a position easily observed and readable 
from the public right-of-way.  All numbers shall be in Arabic numerals at least 3 inches 
(76 mm) and ½ inch (13 mm) stroke. 
 
PM-304.3 Structural members:  All structural members shall be maintained free from 
deterioration, and shall be capable of safely supporting the imposed dead and live 
loads. 
 
PM-304.4 Foundation walls:  All foundation walls shall be maintained plumb and free 
from open cracks and breaks and shall be kept in such condition so as to prevent the 
entry of rats. 
 
PM-304.5 Exterior walls:  All exterior walls shall be free from holes, breaks, loose or 
rotting materials; and maintained weatherproof and properly surface coated where 
required to prevent deterioration. 
 
PM-304.6 Roofs and drainage:  The roof and flashing shall be sound, tight and not 
have defects that admit rain.  Roof drainage shall be adequate to prevent dampness or 
deterioration in the walls or interior portion of the structure.  Roof water shall not be 
discharged in a manner that creates a public nuisance. 
 
PM-304.7 Decorative features:  All cornices, belt courses, corbels, terra cotta trim, wall 
facings and similar decorative features shall be maintained in good repair with property 
anchorage and in a safe condition. 
 
PM-304.8 Overhang extensions:  All canopies, marquees, signs, metal awnings, 
stairways, fire escapes, standpipes, exhaust ducts and similar overhang extensions 
shall be maintained in good repair and be properly anchored so as to be kept in a safe 
and sound condition.  When required, all exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be 
protected from the elements and against decay or rust by periodic application of 
weather-coating materials, such as paint or similar surface treatment. 
 
PM-304.9 Chimneys and towers:  All chimneys, cooling towers, smoke stacks, and 
similar appurtenances shall be maintained structurally safe and sound, and in good 
repair.  All exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be protected from the elements and 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 19 
 

against decay or rust by periodic application of weather-coating materials, such as paint 
or similar surface treatment. 
 
PM-304.10 Handrails and guards:  Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in good 
condition. 
 
PM-304.11 Window and door frames:  Every window, door and frame shall be kept in 
sound condition, good repair and weather tight. 
 

PM-304.11.1 Glazing:  All glazing materials shall be maintained free from cracks 
and holes. 
 
PM-304.11.2 Openable windows:  Every window, other than a fixed window, 
shall be easily openable and capable of being held in position by window 
hardware. 
 

PM-304.12 Insect screens:  During the period from [DATE] to [DATE], every door, 
window and outside opening utilized or required for ventilation purposes serving any 
structure containing habitable rooms, food preparation areas, food service areas, or any 
areas where products to be included or utilized in food for human consumption are 
processed, manufactured, packaged or stored, shall be supplied with approved tightly 
fitting screens of not less than 16 mesh per inch and every swinging door shall have a 
self-closing device in good working condition. 
 

Exception:  Screen doors shall not be required for out-swinging doors or other 
types of openings which make screening impractical, provided other approved 
means, such as air curtains or insect repellent fans are employed. 
 

PM-304.13 Doors:  All exterior doors and hardware shall be maintained in good 
condition.  Locks at all entrances to dwelling units, rooming units and guestrooms shall 
tightly secure the door. 
 
PM-304.14 Basement hatchways:  Every basement hatchway shall be maintained to 
prevent the entrance of rats, rain and surface drainage water. 
 
PM-304.15 Guards for basement windows:  Every basement window that is openable 
shall be supplied with ratproof shields, storm windows or other approved protection 
against the entry of rats. 
 

SECTION PM-305.0 INTERIOR STRUCTURE 
 

PM-305.1 General:  The interior of a structure and equipment therein shall be 
maintained in good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition.  Every 
occupant shall keep that part of the structure which such occupant occupies or controls 
in a clean and sanitary condition.  Every owner of a structure containing a rooming 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 20 
 

house, a hotel, a dormitory, two or more dwelling units or two or more nonresidential 
occupancies, shall maintain, in a clean and sanitary condition, the shared or public 
areas of the structure and exterior property. 
 
PM-305.2 Structural members:  The supporting structural members of every structure 
shall be maintained structurally sound, and be capable of supporting the imposed loads. 
 
PM-305.3 Interior surfaces:  All interior surfaces, including windows and doors, shall 
be maintained in good, clean and sanitary condition.  Peeling paint, cracked or loose 
plaster, decayed wood, and other defective surface conditions shall be corrected. 
 
PM-305.4 Lead-based paint:  Interior and exterior painted surfaces of dwellings and 
child and day care facilities, including fences and outbuildings, which contain in excess 
of 0.06 percent lead by weight shall be removed or covered in an approved manner.  
Any surface to be covered shall first be marked with warnings as to the lead content of 
such surface. 
 
PM-305.5 Stairs and railings:  All interior stairs and railings shall be maintained in 
sound condition and good repair. 
 
PM-305.5 Handrails and guards:  Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in good 
condition. 
 

SECTION PM-306.0 RUBBISH AND GARBAGE 
 
PM-306.1 Accumulation of rubbish or garbage:  All exterior property and premises, 
and the interior of every structure shall be free from any accumulation of rubbish or 
garbage. 
 
PM-306.2 Disposal of rubbish:  Every occupant of a structure shall dispose of all 
rubbish in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such rubbish in approved containers. 
 

PM-306.2.1 Rubbish storage facilities:  The owner of every occupied premises 
shall supply approved covered containers for rubbish, and the owner of the 
premises shall be responsible for the removal of rubbish. 
 

PM-306.3 Disposal of garbage:  Every occupant of a structure shall dispose of 
garbage in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such garbage in an approved 
garbage disposal facility or approved garbage containers. 
 

PM-306.3.1 Garbage facilities:  The owner of every dwelling shall supply one of 
the following:  an approved mechanical food waste grinder in each dwelling unit, 
an approved incinerator unit in the structure available to the occupants in each 
dwelling unit, or an approved leakproof, covered, outside garbage container. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 21 
 

PM-306.3.2 Containers:  The operator of every establishment producing 
garbage shall provide, and at all times cause to be utilized, leakproof approved 
containers provided with close-fitting covers for the storage of such materials 
until removed from the premises for disposal. 
 

SECTION PM-307.0 EXTERMINATION 
 

PM-307.1 Infestation:  All structures shall be kept free from insect and rat infestation.  
All structures in which insects or rats are found shall be promptly exterminated by 
approved processes that will not be injurious to human health.  After extermination, 
proper precautions shall be taken to prevent reinfestation. 
 
PM-307.2 Owner:  The owner of any structure shall be responsible for extermination 
within the structure prior to renting or leasing the structure. 
 
PM-307.3 Single occupancy:  The occupant of a structure containing a single dwelling 
unit or of a single nonresidential structure shall be responsible for extermination on the 
premises. 
 
PM-307.4 Multiple occupancy:  The owner of a structure containing two or more 
dwelling units, a multiple occupancy, a rooming house or a nonresidential structure shall 
be responsible for extermination in the public or shared areas of the structure and 
exterior property.  If infestation is caused by failure of an occupant to prevent such 
infestation in the area occupied, the occupants shall be responsible for extermination. 
 
PM-307.5 Occupant:  The occupant of any structure shall be responsible for the 
continued ratproof condition of the structure, and if the occupant fails to maintain the 
ratproof condition, the cost of extermination shall be the responsibility of the occupant. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 22 
 

CHAPTER 4 
 

LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS 
 
 

SECTION PM-401.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-401.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for light, ventilation and space for the occupancy of a structure. 
 
PM-401.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain light, 
ventilation and space conditions in compliance with these requirements.  A person shall 
not occupy as owner-occupant, or permit another person to occupy any premises that 
do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 
PM-401.3 Alternative devices:  In lieu of the means for natural light and ventilation  
herein prescribed, artificial light or mechanical ventilation complying with the building 
code listed in Chapter 8 shall be permitted. 
 

SECTION PM-402.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

PM-402.1 General:  The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this 
chapter and as stated elsewhere in this code, have the meanings shown herein. 
 

Habitable space:  Space in a structure for living, sleeping, eating or cooking.  
Bathrooms, toilet compartments, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces, and 
similar areas are not considered habitable spaces. 

 
Openable area:  That part of a window or door which is available for 
unobstructed ventilation and which opens directly to the outdoors. 

 
Ventilation:  The natural or mechanical process of supplying conditioned or 
unconditioned air to, or removing such air from, any space. 

 
SECTION PM-403.0 LIGHT 

 
PM-403.1 Habitable spaces:  Every habitable space shall have at least one window of 
approved size facing directly to the outdoors or to a court.  The minimum total window 
area, measured between stops, for every habitable space shall be 8 percent of the floor 
area of such room, except in kitchens where artificial light is provided in accordance 
with the provisions of the building code listed in Chapter 8.  Wherever walls or other 
portions of a structure face a window of any room and such obstructions are located 
less than 3 feet (914 mm) from the window and extend to a level above that of the 
ceiling of the room, such window shall not be deemed to face directly to the outdoors 
nor to a court and shall not be included as contributing to the required minimum total 
window area for the room. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 23 
 

PM-403.2 Common halls and stairways:  Every common hall and stairway, other than 
in one- and two-family dwellings, shall be lighted at all times with at least a 60-watt 
standard incandescent light bulb or equivalent for each 200 square feet (19 m2) of floor 
area, provided that the spacing between lights shall not be greater than 30 feet (9144 
mm).  Every exterior stairway shall be illuminated with a minimum of 1 footcandle (11 
lux) at floors, landings and treads. 
 
PM-403.3 Other spaces:  All other spaces shall be provided with natural or artificial 
light sufficient to permit the maintenance of sanitary conditions, and the safe occupancy 
of the space and utilization of the appliances, equipment and fixtures. 
 

SECTION PM-404.0 VENTILATION 
 

PM-404.1 Habitable spaces:  Every habitable space shall have at least one openable 
window.  The total openable area of the window in every room shall be equal to at least 
45 percent of the minimum glazed area required in Section PM-403.1. 
 
PM-404.2 Bathrooms and toilet rooms:  Every bathroom and toilet room shall comply 
with the ventilation requirements for habitable spaces as required by Section PM-404.1, 
except that a window shall not be required in spaces equipped with a mechanical 
ventilation system that complies with the following: 
 

1. Air exhausted by a mechanical ventilation system from a bathroom within 
a dwelling unit shall be exhausted to the exterior and shall not be 
recirculated to any space, including the space from which such air is 
withdrawn. 

2. Air exhausted by a mechanical ventilation system from all other bathrooms 
or toilet rooms shall be exhausted to the exterior without recirculation to 
any space, or not more than 85 percent of the exhaust air shall be 
recirculated where the system is provided with effective absorption and 
filtering equipment. 

 
PM-404.3 Cooking facilities:  Unless approved through the certificate of  
occupancy, cooking shall not be permitted in any rooming unit or dormitory unit, and a 
cooking facility or appliance shall not be permitted to be present in a rooming unit or 
dormitory unit. 
 
 Exception:  Where specifically approved in writing by the code official. 
 
  PM-0404.4 Process ventilation:  Where injurious, toxic, irritating or noxious fumes, 
gases, dusts or mists are generated, a local exhaust ventilation system shall be 
provided to remove the contaminating agent at the source.  Air shall be exhausted to 
the exterior and not be recirculated to any space. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 24 
 

PM-404.5 Clothes dryer exhaust:  Clothes dryer venting systems shall be independent 
of all other systems and shall be vented in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
instructions. 
 

SECTION PM-405.0 OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS 
 

PM-405.1 Privacy:  Dwelling units, hotel units, rooming units and dormitory units shall 
be arranged to provide privacy and be separate from other adjoining spaces. 
 
PM-405.2 Access from sleeping rooms:  Sleeping rooms shall not constitute the only 
means of access to other sleeping rooms or habitable spaces. 
 
 Exception:  Dwelling units that contain fewer than two bedrooms. 
 
PM-405.3 Area for sleeping purposes:  Every room occupied for sleeping purposes 
by one occupant shall contain at least 70 square feet (7 m2) of floor area, and every 
room occupied for sleeping purposes by more than one person shall contain at least 50 
square feet (5 m2) of floor area for each occupant thereof. 
 
PM-405.4 Water closet accessibility:  Every bedroom shall have access to at least 
one water closet and one lavatory without passing through another bedroom. 
 
PM-405.5 Overcrowding:  Dwelling units shall not be occupied by more occupants 
than permitted by the minimum occupancy area requirements of Table PM-405.5. 
 

Table PM-405.5 
MINIMUM OCCUPANCY AREA REQUIREMENTS 

 
Minimum occupancy area in square feetb 

Space 1 – 2 occupants 3-5 occupants 6 or more 
    

Living rooma No requirements 120 150 
Dining rooma No requirements 80 100 
Kitchen 50 50 60 
Bedrooms  Shall comply with Section PM-405.3   

 
Note a.  See Section PM-405.6 for combined living room/dining room spaces. 
Note b.  1 square foot = 0.093 m2 
 
PM-405.6 Combined spaces:  Combined living room and dining room spaces shall 
comply with the requirements of Table PM-405.5 if the total area is equal to that 
required for separate rooms and if the space is located so as to function as a 
combination living room/dining room. 
 
PM-405.7 Prohibited occupancy:  Kitchens, nonhabitable spaces and interior public 
areas shall not be occupied for sleeping purposes. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 25 
 

PM-405.8 Minimum ceiling heights:  Habitable spaces, other than kitchens, shall have 
a clear ceiling height of not less than 7 feet 4 inches (2235 mm).  Hallways, corridors, 
laundry areas, bathrooms, toilet rooms and kitchens shall have a clear ceiling height of 
not less than 7 feet (2134 mm). 
 
 Exceptions 

1.  Beams or girders spaced not less that 4 feet (1219 mm) on center and 
projecting not more than 6 inches (152 mm) below the required ceiling 
height, provided that the minimum clear height is not less than 6 feet 8 
inches (2033 mm). 

2. Dropped or furred ceilings over not more than one-half of the minimum 
floor area required by this code, provided that no part of such dropped or 
furred ceiling is less than 7 feet (2134 mm) in height. 

3. Rooms occupied exclusively for sleeping, study or similar purposes and 
having a sloped ceiling over all or part of the room, with a clear ceiling 
height of at least 7 feet (2134 mm) over not less than one-third of the 
required minimum floor area.  In calculating the floor area of such rooms, 
only those portions of the floor area with a clear ceiling height of 5 feet 
(1524 mm) or more shall be included. 

4. Basement rooms in one- and two-family dwellings occupied exclusively 
for laundry, study or recreation purposes, having a ceiling height of not 
less than 6 feet 8 inches (2033 mm) with not less than 6 feet 4 inches 
(1932 mm) of clear height under beams, girders, ducts and similar 
obstructions. 

 
PM-405.9 Minimum room widths:  A habitable room, other than a kitchen, shall not be 
less than 7 feet (2133 mm) in any plan dimension.  Kitchens shall have a clear 
passageway of not less than 3 feet (914 mm) between counterfronts and appliances or 
counterfronts and walls. 
 
PM-405.10 Food preparation:  All spaces to be occupied for food preparation 
purposes shall contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare and serve foods 
in a sanitary manner.  There shall be adequate facilities and services for the sanitary 
disposal of food wastes and refuse, including facilities for temporary storage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 26 
 

CHAPTER 5 
 

PLUMBING FACILITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 

SECTION PM-501.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-501.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum plumbing 
facilities and plumbing fixtures to be provided. 
 
PM-501.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain such 
plumbing facilities and plumbing fixtures in compliance with these requirements.  A 
person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to occupy any 
structure or premises which does not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 

SECTION PM-502.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

PM-502.1 General:  The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this 
chapter and as stated elsewhere in this code, have the meanings shown herein. 
 
Bathroom:  A room containing plumbing fixtures including a bathtub or shower. 
 
Plumbing:  The practice, materials and fixtures utilized in the installation, maintenance, 
extension and alteration of all piping, fixtures, appliances and appurtenances within the 
scope of the plumbing code listed in Chapter 8. 
 
Plumbing fixture:  A receptacle or device which is either permanently or temporarily 
connected to the water distribution system of the premises, and demands a supply of 
water therefrom; or discharges waste water, liquid-borne waste materials, or sewage 
either directly or indirectly to the drainage system of the premises; or which requires 
both a water supply connection and a discharge to the drainage system of the premises. 
 
Toilet room: A room containing a water closet or urinal but not a bathtub or shower. 
 

SECTION PM-503.0 REQUIRED FACILITIES 
 

PM-503.1 Dwelling units:  Every dwelling unit shall contain its own bathtub or shower, 
lavatory, water closet and kitchen sink which shall be maintained in a sanitary, safe 
working condition.  The lavatory shall be placed in the same room as the water closet or 
located in close proximity to the door leading directly into the room in which such water 
closet is located. 
 
PM-503.2 Rooming houses:  At least one water closet, lavatory and bathtub or shower 
shall be supplied for each four rooming units. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 27 
 

PM-503.3 Hotels:  Where private water closets, lavatories, and baths are not provided, 
one water closet, one lavatory and one bathtub or shower having access from a public 
hallway shall be provided for each ten occupants. 
 
PM-503.4 Employee’s facilities:  A minimum of one water closet, one lavatory and one 
drinking facility shall be available to employees. 
 

PM-503.4.1 Drinking facilities:  Drinking facilities shall be a drinking fountain, 
water cooler, bottled water cooler, or disposable cups next to a sink or water 
dispenser.  Drinking facilities shall not be located in toilet room or bathrooms. 
 

SECTION PM-504.0 TOILET ROOMS 
 

PM-504.1 Privacy:  Toilet rooms and bathrooms shall provide privacy and shall not 
constitute the only passageway to a hall or other space, or to the exterior. 
 
PM-504.2 Location:  Toilet rooms and bathrooms serving hotel units, rooming units or 
dormitory units, shall have access by traversing not more than one flight of stairs and 
shall have access from a common hall or passageway. 
 
PM-504.3 Location of employee toilet facilities:  Toilet facilities shall have access 
from within the employees’ regular working area.  The required toilet facilities shall be 
located not more than one story above or below the employee’s regular working area 
and the path of travel to such facilities shall not exceed a distance of 500 feet (152 m).  
Employee facilities shall either be separate facilities or public customer facilities. 
 

Exception:  Facilities that are required for employees in storage structures or 
kiosks, and which are located in adjacent structures under the same ownership, 
lease or control, shall not exceed a travel distance of 500 feet (152 m) from the 
employees’ regular working area to the facilities. 
 

SECTION PM-505.0 PLUMBING FIXTURES 
 

PM-505.1 General:  All plumbing fixtures shall be properly installed and maintained in 
working order, and shall be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects and be 
capable of performing the function for which such plumbing fixtures are designed.  All 
plumbing fixtures shall be maintained in a safe, sanitary and functional condition. 
 
PM-505.2 Fixture clearances:  Plumbing fixtures shall have adequate clearances for 
usage and cleaning. 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 28 
 

SECTION PM-506.0 WATER SYSTEM 
 

PM-506.1 General:  Every sink, lavatory, bathtub or shower, drinking fountain, water 
closet or other plumbing fixture shall be property connected to either a public water 
system or to an approved private water system.  All kitchen sinks, lavatories, laundry 
facilities, bathtubs and showers shall be supplied with hot or tempered and cold running 
water. 
 
PM-506.2 Contamination:  The water supply shall be maintained free from 
contamination, and all water inlets for plumbing fixtures shall be located above the flood 
level rim of the fixture.  Shampoo basin faucets, janitor sink faucets, and other hose bibs 
or faucets to which hoses are attached and left in place, shall be protected by an 
approved atmospheric-type vacuum breaker or an approved permanently attached hose 
connection vacuum breaker. 
 
PM-506.3 Supply:  The water supply system shall be installed and maintained to 
provide a supply of water to plumbing fixtures, devices and appurtenances in sufficient 
volume and at pressures adequate to enable the fixtures to function properly, safely, 
and free from defects and leaks. 
 
PM-506.4 Water heating facilities:  Water heating facilities shall be properly installed, 
maintained and capable of providing an adequate amount of water to be drawn at every 
required sink, lavatory, bathtub, shower and laundry facility at a temperature of not less 
that 110 degrees F. (43 degrees C.).  A gas-burning water heater shall not be located in 
any bathroom, toilet room, bedroom or other occupied room normally kept closed, 
unless adequate combustion air is provided.  An approved combination temperature 
and pressure relief valve and relief valve discharge pipe shall be property installed and 
maintained on water heaters. 
 

SECTION PM-507.0 SANITARY DRAINAGE SYSTEM 
 

PM-507.1 General:  All plumbing fixtures shall be properly connected to either a public 
sewer system or to an approved private sewage disposal system. 
 
PM-507.2 Maintenance:  Every plumbing stack, vent, waste and sewer line shall 
function properly and be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects. 
 

SECTION PM-508.0 STORM DRAINAGE 
 
PM-508.1 General:  Drainage of roofs and paved areas, yards and courts, and other 
open areas on the premises shall not be discharged in a manner that creates a public 
nuisance. 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 29 
 

CHAPTER 6 
 

MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

SECTION PM-601.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-601.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum mechanical 
and electrical facilities and equipment to be provided. 
 
PM-601.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment in compliance with these 
requirements.  A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person 
to occupy any premises which does not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 

SECTION PM-602.0 HEATING FACILITIES 
 

PM-602.1 Facilities required:  Heating facilities shall be provided in structures as 
required by this section. 
 
PM-602.2 Residential buildings:  Every dwelling shall be provided with heating 
facilities capable of maintaining a room temperature of 65 degrees F. (18 degrees C.) in 
all habitable rooms, bathrooms and toilet rooms based on the outside design 
temperature required for the locality by the mechanical code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

PM-602.2.1 Heat supply:  Every owner and operator of any building who rents, 
leases or lets one or more dwelling unit, rooming unit, dormitory or guestroom on 
terms, either express or implied, to furnish heat to the occupants thereof shall 
supply sufficient heat during the period from [DATE] to [DATE] to maintain the 
room temperatures specified in Section PM-602.2 during the hours between 6:30 
a.m. and 10:30 p.m. of each day and not less than 60 degrees F. (16 degrees C.) 
during other hours. 
 
PM-602.2.2 Room temperature exception:  When the outdoor temperature is 
below the outdoor design temperature required for the locality by the mechanical 
code listed in Chapter 8, the owner or operator shall not be required to maintain 
the minimum room temperatures, provided that the heating system is operating 
at full capacity, with supply valves and dampers in a full open position. 
 

PM-602.3 Nonresidential structures:  Every enclosed occupied work space shall be 
supplied with sufficient heat during the period from [DATE] to [DATE] to maintain a 
temperature of not less than 65 degrees F. (18 degrees C.) during all working hours. 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 30 
 

 Exceptions 
1. Processing, storage and operation areas that require cooling or special 

temperature conditions. 
2. Areas in which persons are primarily engaged in vigorous physical 

activities. 
 
PM-602.4 Room temperature measurement:  The required room temperatures shall 
be measured at a point 3 feet (914 mm) above the floor and 3 feet (914 mm) from the 
exterior walls. 
 

SECTION PM-603.0 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT 
 

PM-603.1 Mechanical equipment:  All mechanical equipment, fireplaces and solid fuel-
burning appliances shall be properly installed and maintained in a safe working 
condition, and shall be capable of performing the intended function. 
 
PM-603.2 Cooking and heating equipment:  All cooking and heating equipment, 
components and accessories in every heating, cooking and water-heating device shall 
be maintained free from leaks and obstructions. 
 
PM-603.3 Flue:  All fuel-burning equipment and appliances shall be connected to an 
approved chimney or vent. 
 

Exception:  Fuel-burning equipment and appliances which are labeled for 
unvented operation. 
 

PM-603.4 Clearances:  All required clearances to combustible materials shall be 
maintained. 
 
PM-603.5 Safety controls:  All safety controls for fuel-burning equipment shall be 
maintained in effective operation. 
 
PM-603.6 Combustion air:  A supply of air for complete combustion of the fuel and for 
ventilation of the space shall be provided for the fuel-burning equipment. 
 
PM-603.7 Energy conservation devices:  Devices purporting to reduce fuel 
consumption by attachment to a fuel-burning appliance, to the fuel supply line thereto, 
or to the vent outlet or vent piping therefrom, shall not be installed unless labeled for 
such purpose and the installation is specifically approved. 
 

SECTION PM-604.0 ELECTRICAL FACILITIES 
 

PM-604.1 Facilities required:  Every occupied building shall be provided with an 
electrical system in compliance with the requirements of this section and Section PM-
605.0. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 31 
 

PM-604.2 Service:  The size and usage of appliances and equipment shall serve as a 
basis for determining the need for additional facilities in accordance with NFiPA 70 
listed in Chapter 8.  Every dwelling shall be served by a main service that is not less 
than 60 amperes, three wires. 
 
PM-604.3 Electrical system hazards:  Where it is found that the electrical system in a 
structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants or the structure by reason of inadequate 
service, improper fusing, insufficient outlets, improper wiring or installation, deterioration 
or damage, or for similar reasons, the code official shall require the defects to be 
corrected to eliminate the hazard. 
 

SECTION PM-605.0 ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 
 

PM-605.1 Installation:  All electrical equipment, wiring and appliances shall be properly 
installed and maintained in a safe and approved manner. 
 
PM-605.2 Receptacles:  Every habitable space in a dwelling shall contain at least two 
separate and remote receptacle outlets.  Every laundry area shall contain at least one 
grounded type receptacle.  Every bathroom shall contain at least one receptacle. 
 
PM-605.3 Lighting fixtures:  Every public hall, interior stairway, water closet 
compartment, bathroom, laundry room and furnace room shall contain at least one 
electric lighting fixture. 
 

SECTION PM-606.0 ELEVATORS, ESCALATORS AND DUMBWAITERS 
 

PM-606.1 General:  Elevators, dumbwaiters and escalators shall be maintained to 
sustain safely all imposed loads, to operate properly, and to be free from physical and 
fire hazards. 
 
PM-606.2 Elevators:  In buildings equipped with passenger elevators, at least one 
elevator shall be maintained in operation at all times when the building is occupied. 
 

Exception:  Buildings equipped with only one elevator shall be permitted to have 
the elevator temporarily out of service for testing or servicing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 32 
 

CHAPTER 7 
 

FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 
 

SECTION PM-701.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-701.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for fire safety relating to structures and exterior premises, including fire 
safety facilities and equipment to be provided. 
 
PM-701.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the premises shall provide and maintain such 
fire safety facilities and equipment in compliance with these requirements.  A person 
shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to occupy any premises 
that do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 

SECTION PM-702.0 MEANS OF EGRESS 
 

PM-702.1 General:  A safe, continuous and unobstructed means of egress shall be 
provided from the interior of a structure to a public way. 
 
PM-702.2 Exit capacity:  The capacity of the exits serving a floor shall be sufficient for 
the occupant load thereof as determined by the building code listed in Chapter 8. 
 
PM-702.3 Number of exits:  In nonresidential buildings, every occupied story more 
than six stories above grade shall be provided with not less than two independent exits.  
In residential buildings, every story exceeding two stories above grade shall be provided 
with not less than two independent exits.  In stories where more than one exit is 
required, all occupants shall have access to at least two exits.  Every occupied story 
which is both totally below grade and greater than 2,000 square feet shall be provided 
with not less than two independent exits. 
 
 Exception:  A single exit is acceptable under any one of the following conditions: 

1. Where the building is equipped throughout with an automatic 
sprinkler system and an automatic fire detection system with smoke 
detectors located in all corridors, lobbies and common areas. 

2. Where the building is equipped throughout with an automatic fire 
detection system and the exit is an approved smokeproof enclosure 
or pressurized stairway. 

3. Where an existing fire escape conforming to the building code listed 
in Chapter 8 is provided in addition to the single exit. 

4. Where permitted by the building code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

PM-702.4 Arrangement:  Exits from dwelling units, rooming units, guestrooms and 
dormitory units shall not lead through other such units, or through toilet rooms or 
bathrooms. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 33 
 

PM-702.5 Exit signs:  All means of egress shall be indicated with approved “Exit” signs 
where required by the building code listed in Chapter 8.  All “Exit” signs shall be 
maintained visible and all illuminated “Exit” signs shall be illuminated at all times that the 
building is occupied. 
 
PM-702.6 Corridor enclosure:  All corridors serving an occupant load greater than 30 
and the openings therein shall provide an effective barrier to resist the movement of 
smoke.  All transoms, louvers, doors and other openings shall be closed or shall be self-
closing. 
 
 Exceptions 

1. Corridors in occupancies in other than Use Group H which are 
equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system. 

2. Patient room doors in corridors in occupancies in Use Group I-2 
where smoke barriers are provided in accordance with the fire 
prevention code listed in Chapter 8, are not required to be self-
closing. 

3.   Corridors in occupancies in Use Group E where each room that is 
occupied for instruction or assembly purposes has at least one-half 
of the required means of egress doors opening directly to the 
exterior of the building at ground level. 

4. Corridors that are in compliance with the building code listed in 
Chapter 8. 

 
PM-702.7 Dead-end travel distance:  All corridors that serve more than one exit shall 
provide direct connection to such exits.  The length of a dead-end corridor shall not 
exceed 35 feet (10668 mm) where the building is not equipped throughout with an 
automatic sprinkler system.  The dead-end travel distance limitation shall be increased 
to 70 feet (21336 mm) where the building is equipped throughout with an automatic 
sprinkler system. 
 
PM-702.8 Aisles:  Arrangements of chairs or tables and chairs shall provide for ready 
access by aisle accessways and aisles to each egress door.  The minimum clear width 
of each aisle in occupancies in Use Groups A, E and I-2 shall be maintained in 
accordance with the requirements of the building code listed in Chapter 8.  In all other 
occupancies, aisles shall have a minimum required clear width of 44 inches (1118 mm) 
where serving an occupant load greater than 50, and 36 inches (914 mm) where 
serving an occupant load of 50 or less.  The clear width of aisles shall not be obstructed 
by chairs, tables or other objects. 
 
PM-702.9 Stairways, handrails and guards:  Every exterior and interior flight of stairs 
having more than four risers, and every open portion of a stair, landing or balcony which 
is more than 30 inches (762 mm) above the floor or grade below shall have guards.  
Handrails shall not be less than 30 inches (762 mm) nor more than 42 inches (1067 
mm) high, measured vertically above the nosing of the tread or above the finished floor 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 34 
 

of the landing or walking surfaces.  Guards shall not be less than 30 inches (762 mm) 
high above the floor of the landing or balcony. 
 
PM-702.10 Information signs:  A sign shall be provided at each floor landing in all 
interior stairways more than three stories above grade, designating the floor level above 
the floor of discharge.  All elevator lobby call stations on all floor levels shall be marked 
with approved signs in accordance with the requirements for new buildings in the 
building code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

Exception:  The emergency sign shall not be required for elevators that are part 
of an accessible means of egress complying with the building code listed in 
Chapter 8. 

 
PM-702.11 Locked doors:  All means of egress doors shall be readily openable from 
the side from which egress is to be made without the need for keys, special knowledge 
or effort, except as provided for in Section PM-702.11.1. 
 

PM-702.11.1 Locks permitted:  Locks or fasteners shall not be installed on 
egress doors except in accordance with the following conditions: 
1. In mental, penal or other institutions where the security of inmates is 

necessary, in which case properly trained supervisory personnel shall be 
continuously on duty and approved provisions are made to remove 
occupants safely in case of fire or other emergency. 

2. In problem security areas, special-purpose door alarms or locking devices 
shall be approved prior to installation.  Manually operated edge or surface-
molded flush bolts are prohibited. 

3. Where the door hardware conforms to that permitted by the building code 
listed in Chapter 8. 

 
PM-702.12 Emergency escape:  Every sleeping room located in a basement in an 
occupancy in Use Group I-1 or R shall have at least one openable window or exterior 
door approved for emergency egress or rescue; or shall have access to not less than 
two approved independent exits. 
 

Exception:  Buildings equipped throughout with an automatic fire suppression 
system. 
 

SECTION PM-703.0 ACCUMULATIONS AND STORAGE 
 

PM-703.1  Accumulations:  Rubbish, garbage or other materials shall not be stored or 
allowed to accumulate in stairways, passageways, doors, windows, fire escapes or 
other means of egress. 
 
PM-703.2 Hazardous material:  Combustible, flammable, explosive or other hazardous 
materials, such as paints, volatile oils and cleaning fluids, or combustible rubbish, such 
as wastepaper, boxes and rags, shall not be accumulated or stored unless such storage 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 35 
 

complies with the applicable requirements of the building code and the fire prevention 
code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

SECTION PM-704.0 FIRERESISTANCE RATINGS 
 

PM-704.1  General:  The fireresistance rating of floors, walls, ceilings, and other 
elements and components shall be maintained. 
 
PM-704.2  Maintenance:  All required fire doors and smoke barriers shall be 
maintained in good working order, including all hardware necessary for the proper 
operation thereof.  Fire doors shall not be held open by door stops, wedges and other 
unapproved hold-open devices. 
 

SECTION PM-705.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

PM-705.1  General:  All systems, devices and equipment to detect a fire, actuate an 
alarm, or suppress or control a fire or any combination thereof shall be properly 
maintained. 
 
PM-705.2  Fire suppression system:  Fire suppression systems shall be in proper 
operating condition at all times. 
 
 PM-705.2.1 Valves:  Control valves shall be in the fully open position. 
 

PM-705.2.2 Sprinklers:  Sprinklers shall be clean and free of corrosion, paint 
and damage.  Stock shall be at least 18 inches (457 mm) below sprinkler 
deflectors. 
 
PM-705.2.3  Piping:  Piping shall be properly supported and shall not support 
any other loads. 
 

PM-705.3 Standpipe systems:  Standpipe systems shall be in proper operating 
condition at all times. 
 

PM-705.3.1 Valves:  Water supply control valves shall be in the fully open 
position. 
 
PM-705.3.2 Hose connections:  Hose connections shall be identified and have 
ready access thereto. 
 
PM-705.3.3 Hose: Where provided, the hose shall be properly packed, dry and 
free from deterioration. 

 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 36 
 

PM-705.4  Fire extinguishers:  All portable fire extinguishers shall be visible, provided 
with ready access thereto, and maintained in an efficient and safe operating condition.  
Extinguishers shall be of an approved type. 
 
PM-705.5 Smoke detectors:  A minimum of one approved single-station or multiple-
station smoke detector shall be installed in each guestroom, suite or sleeping area in 
occupancies in Use Groups R-1 and I-1, and in dwelling units in the immediate vicinity 
of the bedrooms in occupancies in Use Groups R-2 and R-3.  In all residential 
occupancies, smoke detectors shall be required on every story of the dwelling unit, 
including basements. In dwelling units with split levels and without an intervening door 
between the adjacent levels, a smoke detector installed on the upper level shall suffice 
for the adjacent lower level provided that the lower level is less than one full story below 
the upper level. 
 

PM-705.5.1 Installation:  All detectors shall be installed in accordance with the 
building code listed in Chapter 8.  When actuated, the smoke detectors shall 
provide an alarm suitable to warn the occupants within the individual room or 
dwelling unit. 
 
PM-705.5.2 Power source:  The power source for smoke detectors shall be 
either an AC primary power source or a monitorized battery primary power 
source. 
 
PM-705.5.3 Tampering:  Anyone tampering or interfering with the effectiveness 
of a smoke detector shall be in violation of this code. 
 

PM-705.6 Fire protective signaling systems:  Fire protective signaling systems shall 
be in proper operating condition at all times. 
 

PM-705.6.1 Control panel:  The “power on” indicator shall be lit.  Alarm or 
trouble indicators shall not be illuminated. 
 
PM-705.6.2 Manual fire alarm boxes:  All manual fire alarm boxes shall be 
operational and unobstructed. 
 
PM-705.6.3 Automatic fire detectors:  All automatic fire detectors shall be 
operational and free from any obstructions that prevent proper operation, 
including smoke entry. 
 

PM-705.7 Records:  A complete written record of all tests and inspections of fire 
protection systems shall be maintained on the premises by the owner or occupant in 
charge of said premises. 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 37 
 

SECTION PM-706.0 ELEVATOR RECALL 
 

PM-706.1 Required:  All elevators having a travel distance of 25 feet (7620 mm) or 
more above or below the primary level of elevator access for emergency fire-fighting or 
rescue personnel shall conform to the requirements of Rule 211.3 of ASME A17.1 listed 
in Chapter 8. 

 
SECTION PM-707.0 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT CONTROL 

 
PM-707.1 Smoke and heat detection:  Approved smoke or heat detectors shall be 
installed in return air ducts or plenums in each recirculating air system with a capacity of 
more than 2,000 cfm and serving more than one floor in buildings that exceed six 
stories in height in accordance with the mechanical code listed in Chapter 8.  Actuation 
of the detector shall stop the fan(s) automatically and shall be of the manual-reset type.  
Automatic fan shutdown is not required where the system is part of an approved smoke 
control system. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  



 

 
 
DATE:    June 10, 2009                             
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Amendments to Chapter 48 of the Troy City Code 
    Litter Ordinance  
 
 
Background: 
 
 With the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code certain provisions of the existing Litter 

Ordinance will no longer be necessary. 
 Section 6.107 will be covered by Section 302.1 of the Property Maintenance Code. 
 Other current text of the Litter Ordinance will still be necessary to address issues of litter placed 

upon public property or streets. 
 We have attached the current text of the Litter Ordinance showing the language that is proposed 

to be deleted. 
 This action should only be taken after the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Litter Ordinance under the City Charter and the Home 

Rule Cities Act. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community (Outcome I). 
 
Options: 
 
 Once the new Property Maintenance Code is adopted the existing text of portions of the Litter 

Ordinance can be deleted. 
 Council can retain the existing text of the Litter Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 Council can adopt revised text of the Litter Ordinance. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mss/ Chapter 48 revision memo 6-15-09 



The text of Chapter 48, Litter, Shall be amended as follows: 
 
6.107 Owner to Maintain Premises Free of Litter Enforcement. 
The Public Works Director is hereby charged with the enforcement of this Chapter. The owner 
or person in control of any private premises shall at all times maintain the premises free of litter; 
Provided, however, that this section shall not prohibit the storage of litter in authorized private 
receptacles for collection. 
 
6.108 Enforcement - Notice to Abate. 
 
The City Superintendent of Public Works is hereby charged with the enforcement of this 
Chapter. No person being the owner or person in charge of or occupant of any private premises 
shall accumulate or permit the accumulation of any litter on the private premises owned, 
controlled or occupied by him in a manner prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter. When 
any litter shall be accumulated or permitted to accumulate on any private premises in a manner 
prohibited by this Chapter, the enforcing officer shall notify the owner, person in control or 
occupant of such private premises to remove the litter and clear said private premises within a 
time limited in the notice, such time not to be less than two (2) days nor more than ten (10) days 
from the time said notice is served. Such notice shall be served as provided in section 1.11 of 
this Code. 
 
If the owner, person in charge or occupant of any premises notified to abate a nuisance 
consisting of the accumulation of litter on any private premises shall fail to abate the same 
within the time limited in said notice therefor, the enforcing officer is hereby authorized to enter 
upon such private premises and abate said nuisance by removing said litter and clearing said 
private premises. The cost of abating such nuisance plus an additional fifteen (15%) percent for 
overhead and other expenses shall constitute a lien against the private premises and shall be 
charged to the occupant thereof or to the owner of unoccupied premises, as the case may be. If 
not paid within sixty (60) days after the bill for such charges is rendered, such charges may be 
collected as a single lot assessment against said premises in the manner provided by the City 
Charter or in any other manner authorized for the collection of debts owed the City. 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 48 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1. Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 48, 
Litter, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2. Amendment 

Chapter 48, Litter, shall be amended as follows: 

Section 6.107 shall be amended to read as follows: 

6.107 Enforcement 

The Public Works Director is hereby charged with the enforcement of this 
Chapter. 

Section 6.108 Enforcement – Notice to Abate, shall be deleted in its entirety. 

Section 3. Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4. Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date 



This Ordinance shall become effective on July 1, 2009. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the    day of     2009. 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
DATE:    June 10, 2009                             
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Amendments to Chapter 82-B of the Troy City Code 
    Dangerous Buildings Ordinance  
 
 
Background: 
 
 With the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code the current provisions of the Dangerous 

Buildings Ordinance will no longer be necessary. 
 Dangerous Buildings will be covered by Section 108 of the Property Maintenance Code. 
 We have attached the current text of the Dangerous Buildings Ordinance showing the language 

that is proposed to be deleted. 
 This action should only be taken after the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to delete the Dangerous Buildings Ordinance under the Housing 

Laws of the State of Michigan, the City Charter and the Home Rule Cities Act. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community (Outcome I). 
 
Options: 
 
 Once the new Property Maintenance Code is adopted the existing text of the Dangerous Buildings 

Ordinance can be deleted. 
 Council can retain the existing text of the Dangerous Buildings Ordinance. 
 Council can adopt revised text of the Dangerous Buildings Ordinance. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mss/ Chapter 82B revision memo 6-15-09 



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

DANGEROUS BUILDINGS 
 

1. Purpose and Reference to State Act 

The procedures set forth in this Chapter are established in the public interest, to secure the 
health and safety of the occupants of dwellings, structures, and the general public.  

This Chapter is enacted pursuant to the Housing Law of Michigan, found at Michigan Compiled 
Laws §125.401 et. seq., and is to be construed in conjunction therewith and interpreted to 
comply with the language of said law and any subsequent amendments. 

2. Designation of Enforcement Body 

The Director of Building and Zoning, his authorized representatives and employees, shall 
enforce the provisions of this Chapter, and shall have jurisdiction to establish the inspection and 
violation procedures to implement said enforcement. 

3.  Joint Implementation 

This Chapter may be enforced by any other governmental agency by joint agreement where 
joint enforcement is practicable.  

4. Dangerous Building, Prohibition. 

It is unlawful for any owner or agent thereof to keep or maintain any structure or part thereof 
which is a dangerous building as defined in Section 5 (3). 

5. Definitions. 

(1) "City Council" shall mean the legislative body to hear appeals at the local level. 

(2) "Owner" means any person, firm, partnership, association or corporation and/or their 
legal successors.  All proceedings, actions, or prosecutions hereunder in which the 
owner of any building, structure, or part thereof, shall be subject to the provisions of this 
ordinance. 

(3) "Dangerous Building" means a building or structure which has one or more of the 
following defects or is in one or more of the following conditions: 

(a) A door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit does not conform to 
the approved fire code of the City of Troy. 

(b) A portion of the building is damaged by fire, wind, flood, or other cause in such a 
manner that the structural strength or stability of the building is appreciably less 
than it was before such catastrophe and does not meet the minimum 
requirements of the City of Troy ordinances. 

 

(c) A portion of the building or structure has settled to such an extent that walls or 
other structural portions have materially less resistance to winds than is required 
for new construction under the City of Troy ordinances. 

 

82B-1 

(4-17-00) 



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

(d) The building or structure or part of the building or structure, because of 
dilapidation, deterioration, decay, faulty construction, or the removal or 
movement of some portion of the ground necessary for support or for other 
reason, is likely to partially or completely collapse, or become detached, or some 
portion of the foundation or underpinning of the building or structure is likely to 
fall or give way. 

(e) The building, structure, or part of the building or structure is manifestly unsafe for 
the purpose for which it is intended to be used. 

(f)  The building or structure is vacant, dilapidated and open at any door or window 
leaving the interior of the building exposed to the elements or accessible to 
entrance by trespassers or otherwise becomes an attractive nuisance to children 
who might play in the building or structure to their danger, or becomes a harbor 
for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons or enables persons to resort to the 
building or structure for committing a nuisance or an unlawful or immoral act.  

(g) A residence or the adjoining grounds of a building or structure which is used or 
intended to be used for dwelling purposes is unsanitary or unfit for human 
habitation, due to dilapidation, decay, damage, or faulty construction or 
arrangement or otherwise is in a condition that the Director of Building and 
Zoning or his authorized representatives or employees determines is likely to 
cause sickness or disease or is likely to injure the health, continued safety or 
general welfare of people living in the residence.  

(h) An owner has been previously notified of existing code violation(s), according to 
the provisions of this Chapter and after said notice has left the structure 
unattended or unoccupied, whether boarded up or in an open condition, for a 
period exceeding thirty (30) days, then the structure shall be declared a 
dangerous building. 

3. Notice of Dangerous and Unsafe Condition, Issuance, Recipient, Contents, Filing, Form, 
 Service; City Council 

(1) When the whole or any part of any building or structure is found to be in a dangerous 
building the Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representatives or 
employees shall issue a notice declaring that the building or structure is a dangerous 
building.  The notice shall itemize the current code violation(s) and dangerous 
condition(s) and specify a time to complete all necessary repairs or demolish the building 
or structure.   

(2) The notice shall be served on the owner of record or the registered agent and upon the 
holder of any encumbrance of record in the manner provided for service of a summons 
by a court of record.  If the owner or holder of an encumbrance of record cannot be 
found, the notice may be served by posting it on the main entrance of the building and 
publishing it once a week for three (3) successive weeks in a newspaper authorized to 
provide service by publication. 

(3) The notice shall specify the right of the owner to appeal to City Council the dangerous 
building determination of the Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized 
representatives or employees. The notice shall also set forth the administrative appeal 
procedure, including the requirement that any appeal under this section shall be filed in 
writing to the Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representatives or 
employees within ten days of service of the notice. 

(4-17-00)     82B-2 



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

4. Waiver of Hearing; Testimony; Determination to Close Proceedings or Order Building 
 Demolished or Made Safe, Compliance, Hearing, Cost of Compliance As Lien  Collection. 

(1) If a written appeal of the dangerous building determination is not received within ten 
days of the date of service of the notice, as described in section 3, then a public hearing 
will not be necessary, and the matter shall be referred to the City Council for resolution. 

(2) If a written appeal of the dangerous building determination is received within the 
allocated ten day period, then a public hearing will be scheduled before City Council as 
soon as administratively possible.  At the public hearing, the City Council shall take the 
testimony from the Director of Building and Zoning and/or his authorized representatives 
and employees, testimony from the owner of the property and any other interested party 
to determine whether the building or structure constitutes a dangerous building pursuant 
to this Chapter.  

(3) If it is determined by the City Council that the building or structure is a dangerous 
building and therefore should be demolished or made habitable, Council shall order the 
demolition or necessary repairs be completed.  The repairs shall be ordered to be 
completed by a specified time, which shall not exceed 21 days after the hearing and/or 
the resolution.  

(4) If the ordered demolition or repairs are not completed within the allocated time period, as 
set forth in section (3), City Council can then authorize any and all necessary action to 
enforce their order.  This includes, but is not limited to, causing the structure or any part 
of the structure to be razed and removed either through an available public agency or by 
contract or arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal 
shall be charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be 
a lien upon such real estate.   

(5) The owner or party in interest in whose name the property appears upon the last local 
tax assessment records shall be notified of the the cost of the necessiated repairs or 
demolition by first class mail at the address shown on the records.  If the owner fails to 
pay the same within thirty (30) days after mailing by the Assessor of the notice of the 
amount thereof, the Assessor shall add the same to the next tax roll of the City of Troy, 
and the same shall be collected in the same manner in all respects as provided by law 
for the collection of taxes by the City of Troy.  The City Council shall also have the option 
of initiating a lawsuit to recover the City’s full cost of necessitated demolition and/or 
repair.  If the City receives a favorable judgment, then said judgment may be assessed 
against all of the assets of the owner of the property, not just the real estate that is the 
subject of the dangerous building determination.  

5. Appeal to Circuit Court. 

 

An owner aggrieved by any final decision or order of the City Council, made pursuant to this 
Chapter, may appeal the decision or order to the Circuit Court by filing a petition for an order of 
superintending control within twenty (20) days from the date of the decision. 

 

82B-3 

(4-17-00) 

 



Chapter 82-B - Dangerous Buildings 
 

6. Emergency: 

 

The Fire Chief or Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representatives or 
employees shall have the power to abate any public nuisance from any dangerous structure or 
building if the public safety shall require immediate action due to a distinct hazard to life or 
property, without preliminary notice as otherwise required by this section.  Thereafter the cost of 
abating such public nuisance shall be charged against the owner or occupant of the premises 
and payment hereof shall be enforced as a special assessment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82B-4 

(4-17-00) 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 82-B 
OF THE CODE OF THE 

CITY OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1. Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 82-
B, Dangerous Buildings, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2. Amendment 

Chapter 82-B, Dangerous Buildings, shall be amended by deleting the Chapter in 
its entirety: 

Section 3. Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4. Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on July 1, 2009. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the    day of     2009. 

 



 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
DATE:    June 10, 2009                             
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Amendments to Chapter 88 of the Troy City Code 
    Nuisance Ordinance  
 
 
Background: 
 
 With the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code certain provisions of the existing 

Nuisance Ordinance will no longer be necessary. 
o Section 9.2, and 9.3, of the Nuisance Ordinance on Dangerous Buildings will now be 

covered by Section 108 of the Property Maintenance Code. 
o Section 9.4, of the Nuisance Ordinance on Emergency Abatement will now be covered by 

Section 109 of the Property Maintenance Code. 
o Section 9.14 of the Nuisance Ordinance is already covered by the provisions of the Sign 

Ordinance.  
o Section 9.17 on Privies and Cesspools is already covered by Section 19.03 of the Sanitary 

Sewer Service Ordinance. 
o Section 9.18 on Drainage of Premises will be covered by Section 302.2 of the Property 

Maintenance Code. 
o Section 9.20 on Junk Cars will be covered by Section 302.8 of the Property Maintenance 

Code. 
 We have attached the current text of the Nuisance Ordinance showing the language that is 

proposed to be deleted. 
 This action should only be taken after the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Nuisance Ordinance under the City Charter and the 

Home Rule Cities Act. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community (Outcome I) 
 
Options: 
 
 Once the new Property Maintenance Code is adopted the existing text of portions of the Nuisance 

Ordinance can be deleted. 
 Council can retain the existing text of the Nuisance Ordinance. 
 Council can adopt revised text of the Nuisance Ordinance. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mss/ Chapter 88 revision memo 6-15-09 



The following text is proposed to be deleted from Chapter 88 – Nuisances, of the Troy 
City Code. 
 
 9.2 Dangerous Structures. No person shall maintain any structure which is unsafe or which is a 

menace to the health, morals or safety of the public.  
 
9.3 Disregarding Notice or Orders.  

 
(a) The owner of any dangerous building who shall fail to comply with any notice or order 
to repair, vacate or demolish said building given by any person authorized by this Code 
to give such notice or order shall be guilty of a violation of this Code.  
 
(b) The occupant or lessee in possession who fails to comply with any notice to vacate 
or who fails to repair said building in accordance with any notice given, as provided for in 
this Code, shall be guilty of a violation of this Code.  

(Rev. 03-26-79)  
 
9.4. Dangerous Structures - Emergency Abatement. The Fire Chief or Building Official shall 

have the power to abate any dangerous structure or building if the public safety shall 
require immediate action due to a distinct hazard to life or property, without preliminary 
notice as otherwise required by this Chapter. Thereafter the cost of abating such public 
nuisance shall be charged against the owner or occupant of the premises and payment 
thereof shall be enforced through special assessment as provided in the Charter.  

(Rev. 04-12-82) 

9.14 Billposting. No person shall himself or by another post, attach, place, print, paint or stamp 
any placard, circular, show bill or advertisement of any description whatever, except 
such as what may be expressly authorized by law, on any street, or sidewalk, or upon 
any election booth or other public place or object, with the exception of legally permitted 
billboards, in the City, or upon any fence, building or property belonging to the City, or 
upon any telegraph pole, telephone pole, electric light pole, or tower, or bridge or curb 
stone in any public street or alley in the City; provided, however, that a service, religious 
or charitable organization may make application to the Board of Appeals for the erection 
of a sign upon City property, and the Board of Appeals may in their discretion grant such 
application and designate the size, type and place at which said sign is to be erected, 
and shall be removed upon written notice at the discretion of the City Council; provided 
further that the Engineering Department shall first make a recommendation on the 
location, type and size of signs.  

(Rev. 03-26-79) 

PRIVIES AND CESSPOOLS  
9.17 Privies, Vaults, Regulations.  

(1) No person shall construct or cause to be constructed a privy, outhouse, cesspool or 
privy vault within the City if there be a public sewer within one hundred and fifty feet of 
the property line. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the construction of privies on 
property with the nearest lot line more than one hundred and fifty (150) feet from a public 
sewer.  
 
(2) Privies shall at all times be kept by the owner or occupant of the premises upon 
which it is located in a condition not offensive to the public or to any person.  
 



(3) Any privy or cesspool that emits any foul or offensive odor is hereby declared a 
nuisance and the health officer and/or building inspector shall abate the same, and no 
owner or occupant of any premises shall permit any privy to become a nuisance, 
emitting any foul or offensive odor, or shall permit any open or exposed privy vault or 
cesspool to exist on any premises owned or occupied by him.  

 

9.18. Drainage of Premises. If any lands, excavations, cellar, vault, sewer, drain, place or 
premises within the City shall be damp, unwholesome, offensive or filthy, or be covered during 
any portion of the year with stagnant or impure water, or shall be in such condition as to 
produce offensive exhalations, the health officer and/or building inspector may require the same 
to be drained, filled, up, cleansed or purified by the owner or occupant, or person in charge of 
such lot, premises or place. 

9.20. Junk Cars. Unless otherwise permitted, no person or corporation whether he be the 
owner, tenant or manager of private property, or whether he be the last registered owner of the 
vehicle or transferee on a bill of sale covering the vehicle, shall permit the accumulation on 
private property of one or more vehicles which do not meet the following conditions:  

 
(a) Any motor vehicle must be in operating condition and eligible for use in accordance 
with the requirements of the Michigan Vehicle Code being MCL 257.1 through 257.925; 
provided that any such vehicle will be permitted not to comply with these requirements 
for any period not to exceed fourteen (14) days.  
 
(b) These minimum conditions, except for any fourteen (14) day period will include, but 
are not limited to, an engine that runs, four wheels and four pneumatic tires capable of 
holding air working battery., current license plates, and  
 
c) Any person enumerated in this section who, under special conditions of hardship, or 
for valid reasons such as the preservation of a historic or classic vehicle, may request 
and extension of the fourteen (14) day limitation above described by filing a timely 
request with the Office of the Police Chief or Director of Building and Zoning who may, 
after review of all of the circumstances, grant a reasonable extension of time for 
compliance.  
(Rev. 07-12-99) 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 88 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1. Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 88, 
Nuisances, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2. Amendment 

Chapter 88, Nuisances, shall be amended by deleting the following sections in 
their entirety: 

Section 9.2 Dangerous Structures 

Section 9.3 Disregarding Notice or Orders (including subparagraphs a and b) 

Section 9.4 Dangerous Structures – Emergency Abatement 

Section 9.14 Billposting 

Section 9.17 Privies, Vaults, Regulations (including subparagraphs 1, 2, and 3) 

Section 9.18 Drainage of Premises 

Section 9.20 Junk Cars (including subparagraph a, b, and c) 

Section 3. Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4. Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 



full force and effect. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on July 1, 2009. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the    day of     2009. 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
DATE:    June 10, 2009                             
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Deletion of Chapter 89 of the Troy City Code 
    Weed Control Ordinance  
 
 
Background: 
 
 With the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code the existing provisions of the Weed 

Control Ordinance will no longer be necessary. 
 Weed control will now be regulated by Section 302.4 of the Property Maintenance Code. 
 We have attached the current text of the Weed Control Ordinance showing the language that is 

proposed to be deleted. 
 This action should only be taken after the adoption of the new Property Maintenance Code. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Weed Control Ordinance under the City Charter and 

the Home Rule Cities Act. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community (Outcome I). 
 
Options: 
 
 Once the new Property Maintenance Code is adopted the existing text of the Weed Control 

Ordinance can be deleted. 
 Council can retain the existing text of the Weed Control Ordinance. 
 Council can adopt revised text of the Weed Control Ordinance. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mss/ Chapter 89 revision memo 6-15-09 



The text of Chapter 89, Weed Control, shall be amended by deleting the chapter in its 
entirety. 
 
CHAPTER 89 WEED CONTROL 
 
9.21 Commissioner of Noxious Weeds. Pursuant to the provisions of Act 359, Public Acts of 
1941 (Michigan Compiled Laws of 1948, Sections 247.61 - 247.72), there is hereby created the 
office of "Commissioner of Noxious Weeds". Said Commissioner of Noxious Weeds shall be 
appointed by the City Manager in accordance with the provisions of the aforesaid Act 359 of the 
Public Acts of 1941, and shall possess all rights and be subject to all duties as prescribed in 
said Act. 
 
9.22 Definition of Noxious Weeds. For the purpose of this Chapter, "Noxious Weeds" shall 
include 
Canada thistle (circium arvense), dodders (any species of Cuscuta), mustards (charlock, black 
mustard and Indian mustard, species of Brassica or Sinapis), wild carrot (Daucus Carota), 
bindweed (convolvulus arvensis), perennial sowthistle (Sonchus arvensis), hoary alyssum 
(Berteroa incana), ragweed (ambrosia elatior 1.) and poison ivy (rhus toxicondendron), poison 
sumac (toxicondendron vernix) or other plant which, in the opinion of the City Council, is 
regarded as a common nuisance. 
 
9.23 Destruction of Noxious Weeds. It shall be the duty of all owners of land on which noxious 
weeds are found growing within one hundred (100) feet of any occupied building, or within 100 
feet of a platted subdivision, or within the boundaries of any subdivision in which buildings have 
been erected on thirty percent (30%) of the lots included in that subdivision, or within 100 feet of 
any major road, to destroy the same before they reach a seed-bearing state and to prevent such 
weeds from perpetuating themselves or to prevent such weeds from becoming a detriment to 
the public health. 
 
In case owner, agent or occupant fails or refuses to comply with the provisions of this 
Ordinance, the Commissioner of Noxious Weeds will enter upon the land and destroy the weeds 
as many times as necessary during the growing season, not to exceed four cuttings. 
(Rev. 5-12-80) 
 
9.24 Exemptions. Nothing herein shall apply to fields devoted to the growing of small grain 
crops such as corn, wheat, oats or rye. 
(Rev. 4-21-69) 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 89 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1. Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 89, 
Weed Control, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2. Amendment 

Chapter 89, Weed Control, shall be amended by deleting the Chapter in its 
entirety: 

Section 3. Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4. Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on July 1, 2009. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the    day of     2009. 

 



 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 


	AGENDA: August 3, 2009
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Troy Traffic Jam Classic Car Show – Presentation by Cindy Stewart


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – X-Ray Industries, 1961 Thunderbird
	C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to X-Ray Industries, 1961 Thunderbird

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations: Downtown Development Authority (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Commission; Parks & Recreation Board; ...
	E-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 15, 2009
	E-4 Michigan Municipal League, Michigan Green Communities Challenge, An Energy Efficiency and Conservation Strategy, Resolution to Participate
	E-5 Charter Section 6.2 (g) Recommendation

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy Youth Assistance
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Avondale Youth Assistance
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Common Ground
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy Community Coalition
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – HAVEN
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – National League of Cities – Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Affairs (FAIR) Steering Committee Fall Meeting
	g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7:  Proprietary Maintenance Service Contract – Engineering Software Maintenance (Bentley Systems, Inc.)
	h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Lawn and Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment
	i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Marcite/Grouting Tile – Troy Community Center Pools

	F-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Alexandria Whitney, President of Guardians For Animals
	F-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage Easement – McComb Construction Company, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-03-401-053, -052 and -051
	F-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Sidewalk Easement – Michael J. Lamb – Sidwell #88-20-15-376-036
	F-8 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Easements – Michael J. Lamb – Sidwell #88-20-15-377-052
	F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement – West Maple Ventures, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-32-126-004
	F-10 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Storm Sewer and Drainage Easements, Subhash and Sandhya Subhedar – Sidwell #88-20-22-102-022 and Neil G. and Donna L. Mitchell – #88-20-22-102-023
	F-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement
	F-12 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Lanctot, Trustee for Friends of Jacob Foundation
	F-13 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival
	F-14 Traffic Signal Agreements – Rochester, Torpey to Barclay and Wattles, East and West of Rochester – Project No. 99.203.5 and 01.106.5
	F-15 Request to Grant a Permanent Drain Easement to McCulloch Drain Drainage District – Sidwell #88-20-22-478-007 and 88-20-23-354-047
	F-16 McCulloch Drain License and Use Agreement
	F-17 Request to Transfer Ownership through Merger of 2009 B-Hotel Licensed Business for Drury Hotels Company, LLC 575 W Big Beaver (Step 1) {MLCC Request #491090}

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 Proposed City Charter Amendments as Requested by Council Member Eisenbacher and Council Member Howrylak Pertaining to Vacancies in Office (Item to be Transmitted Electronically as a Supplemental Item)

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Traffic Committee/Final – January 21, 2009
	Special Joint Birmingham Planning Board/Troy Planning Commission – April 16, 2009
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – April 23, 2009
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – May 5, 2009
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 16, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 23, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – July 1, 2009

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Parks and Recreation – Monthly Golf Course Operations

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Officer Craig White, Madison Heights Police Department, Commending the Troy Police Department Color Guard in Honoring Officer Ryan Settlemoir and His Family
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Tpr. Denis McGuckin Regarding the Professionalism and Dedication of Sgt. Kowalski, Officers Brazel and Drewek, and PSA Ann Scherlinck

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #09130 – Support for Safe Passage of Great Lakes Migrating Birds in Oakland County

	J-5  Communication from Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy Regarding Downtown Development Authority Membership
	J-6  Communication from Housing and Zoning Inspector Supervisor Paul Evans in Response to Comments made at July 20, 2009 City Council Meeting Regarding 89 E. Long Lake
	J-7  Communication from Housing and Zoning Inspector Supervisor Paul Evans in Response to Comments made at July 20, 2009 City Council Meeting Regarding 4977 Livernois

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Amendments to the Troy City Code: Update of Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code; Amendments to Chapter 48 – Litter; Chapter 82-B – Dangerous Buildings; Chapter 88 – Nuisance; and Deletion of Chapter 89 – Weed Control

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor  CMAE IV #6345



